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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 04 MARCH 2021  

CHAIRPERSON:    Good morn ing  Mr  Se leka,  good morn ing  

everybody.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Morn ing  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   A re  you ready?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   We are  ready to  p roceed Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The w i tness  fo r  th is  morn ing  is  Ms 

B ianca Goodson  she is  ready  to  take  the  oa th  o r  

a f f i rmat ion  and then I  w i l l  g ive  a  br ie f  summary.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   Okay p lease admin is te r  the  oa th  o r  

a f f i rmat ion .  

REGISTRAR:   P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record .  

MS GOODSON:   B ianca Cher i se  Goodson.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any  ob jec t ion  to  tak ing  the  

prescr ibed oath?  

MS GOODSON:   No.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you cons ider  the  oa th  b ind ing  on  your  

consc ience?  

MS GOODSON:   Yes.  20 

REGISTRAR:   Do you so lemnly  swear  tha t  the  ev idence  

you w i l l  g i ve  w i l l  be  the  t ru th ;  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  

bu t  the  t ru th ;  i f  so  p lease ra ise  your  r igh t  hand and  say,  so  

he lp  me God.  

MS GOODSON:   So  he lp  me God.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you fo r  coming to  ass i s t  the  

commiss ion  Ms Goodson.   Thank you.  

MS GOODSON:   Cha i r  I  rea l i se  the  peop le  who s i t  in  th is  

cha i r  do  no t  o f ten  ask  how are  you do ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:   So  you want  to  ask?  I  am f ine  thank you.   

Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Thank you Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Cha i rpe rson Ms Goodson is  go ing  to  

g ive  ev idence to  the  commiss ion  in  re la t ion  to  her  t ime a t  10 

Tr i l la in  –  Tr i l l i an  Management  Consu l t ing .   The in te rac t ion  

be tween Tr i l l i an  Management  Consu l t ing  and McKinsey as  

we l l  as  the  in te rac t ion  o f  the  two compan ies  w i th  Eskom.  

 She w i l l  re fe r  to  whatever  serv ices  may o r  may no t  

have been rendered by  Tr i l l i an  to  Eskom and whe ther  o r  

no t  there  were  cont rac ts  conc luded between McKinsey and 

Tr i l l i an  on  the  one hand and between the  two ent i t ies  and 

Eskom.  

 Her  a f f idav i t  i s  found in  Eskom Bund le  14(B )  –  

14(A )  her  a f f idav i t .   Ms Goodson you w i l l  have the  same 20 

f i le  14(A)  tha t  i s  on  page 425.    

CHAIRPERSON:   I  have got  i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   Ms Goodson you are  

on  the  same page  as  we l l  –  page 435.   That  a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  i s  the  b lack  numbers  on  the  le f t  
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hand co rner  a t  the  top  each t ime there  is  a  re ference to  a  

page you look a t  tha t  corne r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes Cha i r.  

MS GOODSON:   And tha t  i s  my s ignature  on  459.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   She has watched us  ex tens ive ly.  

MS GOODSON:   Very.  

CHAIRPERSON:   She knows the  ru les .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   She knows the  ru les .   She is  a l ready on  

the  las t  page.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   So  the  las t  page –  page 459 is  that  

your  s ignatu re?  

MS GOODSON:   Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja  the  a f f idav i t  i s  da ted  18 Sep tember  

2020.  

MS GOODSON:   Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You conf i rm th is  to  be  your  a f f idav i t?  

MS GOODSON:   Huh-uh.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you.   You –  Cha i rpe rson  he has 

–  she has a lso  prov ided a  supp lementary  a f f idav i t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Which  they are  seek ing  to  update .   I  

w i l l  re fe r  to  i t  when 00:04:17 a f te r  tea  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I s  tha t  –  tha t  i s  no t  in  the  bund le  as  ye t  

o r  i s  tha t  in  the  bund le  a l ready?  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   I t  i s  ready to  be  inse r ted .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Bu t  i t  i s  no t  ye t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay no tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  le t  us  dea l  w i th  th is .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Th is  one i f  you can dea l  w i th  

supp lementary  la te r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   Ms Goodson  jus t  by 10 

way o f  a  background.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Do you not  want  to… 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Oh yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Get  her  to  conf i rm tha t  the  contents  a re  

cor rec t  and to  ask  me to  admi t  i t  as  an  exh ib i t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Sor ry  Cha i r  I  go t  d is t rac ted  by  the  

supp lementary  a f f idav i t .   I  beg leave to  have the  a f f idav i t  

o f  Ms Goodson on page 425 admi t ted  as  Exh ib i t  U31.1?  

CHAIRPERSON:   U?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   31 .1 .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Goodson  you conf i rm tha t  the  

contents  o f  the  a f f idav i t  a re  t rue  and cor rec t  to  the  best  o f  

your  knowledge and be l ie f?  

MS GOODSON:   Yes I  do .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   The a f f idav i t  o f  Ms B ianca  Cher ise  
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Goodson s tar t ing  a t  page 425 is  admi t ted  –  i t  has  no t  

annexures does i t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I t  does have annexures Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I s  admi t ted  together  w i th  i t s  annexures 

as  Exh ib i t  U31.1 .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   .1  thank you  Cha i r.   Thank you.   Ms  

Goodson jus t  by  way o f  a  background cou ld  you  te l l  the 

Cha i rperson p lease what  i s  you r  p ro fess ion?  

MS GOODSON:   Cha i r  I  do  no t  have to  have  a  pro fess ion .   

I  s tud ied  –  I  have got  a  post  g raduate  degree in  phys i ca l  10 

sc ience and maths f rom the  Un ivers i t y  o f  Nata l  and so  I  am 

not  rea l l y  l i ke  a  cer t i f ied  pro fess iona l  necessar i l y  in  

anyth ing  l i ke  an  accountant  and  so  fo r th .   And  s t ra igh t  

a f te r  ob ta in ing  my degree I  s ta r ted  my career  i n  the  m in ing  

indust ry  and I  was in  the  m in ing  indust ry  and progressed  

my career  up  un t i l  the  end o f  2015.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Hm.    How d id  you get  employed a t  

Tr i l l i an?  

MS GOODSON:   Oh dear.   Ja  so  Cha i r  I  –  I  had a  rea l l y  

good career  f rom the  t ime I  go t  my degree up un t i l  2015  20 

and then I  p rog ressed a lmost  every  second year  I  was 

get t ing  promot ions w i th in  the  m in ing  indust ry  and i t  

cu lm inated in  me work ing  fo r  Ang lo  Amer i can.    

 So in  2015 I  was  employed in  Ang lo  Amer ican and I  

rece ived a  ca l l  f rom an ex  co l l eague o f  m ine f rom a  
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p rev ious company who  sa id  tha t  he  had  a  f r iend who was  

in te res ted  –  who  was s tar t ing  a  management  consu l t ing  

company;  wanted  i t  to  be  very  p roud ly  South  A f r i can and  

was look ing  fo r  a  b lack  female  CEO;  wou ld  I  be  in te res ted .   

That  i s  the  quest ion .     

 And i t  was because the  re fer ra l  so  to  say came f rom 

someone tha t  I  t rus ted  I  thought  i t  cou ld  have been  a  great  

oppor tun i ty.  

 In  th is  phone ca l l  th is  gent leman  then sa id  to  me  

okay look you are  go ing  to  ge t  a  ca l l  f rom a  Mr  Dan ie l  Roy  10 

and jus t  take  i t  f rom there .    

 So I  go t  a  ca l l  very  shor t l y  a f te rwards f rom a  Mr  

Dan ie l  Roy say ing  tha t  he  was par t  o f  th is  company tha t  

wou ld  be  bu i l t  up  and h is  words to  me phys i ca l l y  were  bu t  I  

am too  fa r  down the  food cha in  phys ica l l y.  

 You go ing  to  ge t  a  ca l l  f rom a  Mr  C l ive  Ange l  who i s  

go ing  to  exp la in  more  to  you.   So a l though I  though t  i t  was 

a  b i t  b izar re  I  d id  no t  rea l l y  ac t  on  anyth ing  because i t  was 

the  f i rs t  t ime tha t  I  had been head hunted in  th is  spec i f i c  

way fo r  a  s ta r t -up  company r igh t .  20 

 Anyway so  la te r  I  go t  a  ca l l  f rom Mr  C l ive  Ange l  and  

Mr  C l ive  Ange l  asked to  meet  me.   We met  and tha t  i s  how 

the  process o f  –  and tha t  i s  my in t roduct ion  to  Tr i l l i an  

r igh t .   Subsequent ly  when we met  face  to  face  no t  on  the  

phone.  
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 Shou ld  I  go  in to  more  de ta i l  on  th i s?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   When d id  you say th is  was?  

MS GOODSON:   Th is  was rough ly  p lease fo rg i ve  me I  do 

no t  have exact  da tes  bu t  i t  i s  be tween September  and  

October  2015.   So I  was s t i l l  employed a t  Ang lo  Amer ican.   

Had a  ve ry  average l i fe  and out  o f  the  b lue  I  jus t  ge t  these  

ca l l s .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes you wanted  to  go  in to  more  de ta i l .  

MS GOODSON:   Ja .   So subsequent  to  the  in i t ia l  ca l l  w i th  

Mr  C l ive  Ange l  I  d id  meet  w i th  h im one – a  few days  10 

a f te rwards and what  Mr  Ange l  –  bu t  I  am –  sor ry  p lease le t  

me know i f  I  am go ing  in to  too  much deta i l .   I  am go ing  to  

overshare  and you can te l l  me to  s top .  

 You know before  you meet  somebody you genera l l y  

go  on to  the  i n te rnet  and you sor t  o f  Goog le /s ta lk  them i f  –  

espec ia l l y  when you hear  names fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime r igh t .   So 

I  never  heard  o f  th is  C l i ve  Ange l  be fo re  so  I  go  on to  

L inkedIn  and see  what  connect ions we have common and I  

jus t  t ry  and f ind  ou t  more  about  h im.  

 And what  I  f ind  ou t  f rom the  in te rnet  search  a t  the  20 

t ime was tha t  he  was ac tua l l y  a  d i rec tor  fo r  a  company 

ca l led  In tegra ted  Cap i ta l  Management .   So I  was a  b i t  

confused because we were  ta lk ing  about  a  company  named 

Tr i l l i an  bu t  th is  gent leman is  f rom a  d i f fe ren t  company and  

i t  d id  no t  qu i te  make sense to  me.  
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 A few days la te r  l i ke  I  sa id  we d id  meet  in  pe rson 

and Mr  Ange l  exp la ined to  me tha t  In tegra ted  Cap i ta l  

Management  were  brought  on  by  the  majo r  shareho lde r  o f  

what  w i l l  become Tr i l l i an  to  –  and  the i r  serv i ces  and the i r  

pos i t ion  was to  in  essence es tab l i sh  Tr i l l i an  –  to  se t  i t  up 

and tha t  i s  why they were  look ing  fo r  execut ive  

management  fo r  some o f  the  subs id ia r i es  so  tha t  th is  

execut ive  management  cou ld  s ta r t  se t t ing  i t  up .  

 So I  asked a  few quest ions.   I  d id  ask  quest ions l i ke  

you know what  i s  the  in ten t ion  w i th  the  management  10 

consu l t ing  company;  what  t ype o f  indust ry  wou ld  they be  

ta rge t ing?  Mr  Ange l  in fo rmed me tha t  spec i f i ca l l y  Tr i l l i an  

Management  Consu l t ing  wou ld  be  focussed predominant ly  

in  the  pub l i c  sec tor  and to  tha t  ex ten t  they had  a l ready  

secured work  a t  Eskom.  

 Persona l ly  I  do  no t  have sk i l l s  to  se l l  th ings.   I  am 

not  a  sa les  person r igh t  and I  ment ioned th is  concern  to  Mr  

Ange l  and I  sa id  i f  I  am the  CEO I  am go ing  to  s t rugg le  to  

secure  work  to  ensure  revenue.   And he exp l i c i t l y  sa id  to  

me you do not  have to  wor ry  about  tha t  because the  work  20 

is  secured.  

 And a f te r  tha t  f i rs t  meet ing  he  gave me a  se t  o f  

documents  and those documents  –  they were  phys ica l  

documents  un for tunate ly  I  do  no t  have them anymore  but  

they were  Minutes  o f  the  Eskom Board  Tender  Commi t tee  I  
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th ink  tha t  i s  what  i t  was re fer red  to  –  sub-commi t tee  –  the  

Eskom Board  Tender  Sub-Commi t tee  in  wh ich  they were  

d iscuss ing  th is  p rog ram re fe r red  to  as  the  Top Eng ineers  

Prog ram and you cou ld  see tha t  the  nego. . .  – in  the  

m inutes  –  the  m inutes  re ferenced the  fac t  tha t  nego t ia t ions  

had a l ready taken p lace between Eskom and McKinsey.  

 So a t  the  meet ing  w i th  C l ive  –  the  in i t ia l  meet ing  

w i th  –  sor ry  Mr  Ange l  he  gave me these documents .   We 

subsequent ly  met  aga in  and he sa id  the  ins t ruc t ion  tha t  I  

had a t  the  t ime was B ianca read th rough i t  and i f  you  have  10 

got  quest ions reach out  r igh t .  

 So I  read th rough the  documents  and I  reached ou t  

to  h im and we had a  subsequent  meet ing  and I  asked the  

quest ion  bu t  what  i s  Tr i l l i an ’s  ro le  because c lear ly  th is  

work  a t  Eskom was negot ia ted  be tween Eskom and  

McKinsey;  what  i s  the  ro le  o f  Tr i l l i an?  

 And Mr  Ange l  sa id  to  me tha t  Tr i l l i an  wou ld  be  the  

supp ly  deve lopment  pa r tne r  fo r  McK insey in  th is  work .   So  

th is  i s  now towards the  end o f  October  2015.   And tha t  i s… 

ADV SELEKA SC:   So  what  i s  –  so r ry  towards the  end o f?  20 

MS GOODSON:   October  2015.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   October  2015.  

MS GOODSON:   Ja  I  am s t i l l  emp loyed a t  Ang lo  Amer i can  

00:12:11.   

CHAIRPERSON:   He –  ja  he  w i l l  be  lead you.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

MS GOODSON:   Must  I  car ry  on?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   No –  you want  to  car ry  on?  

MS GOODSON:   Yes because I  want  to  exp la in  how I  go t  

on  board .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Oh yes.  

MS GOODSON:   ( Inaud ib le ) .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

MS GOODSON:   So  I  met  w i th  Mr  Ange l  the  second t ime  10 

and unders tood then tha t  the  re la t ionsh ip  or  the  revenue  

fo r  Tr i l l i an  wou ld  be  p redominant ly  th rough Eskom because 

tha t  work  was secured.  

 And i t  wou ld  be  th rough work ing  w i th  McK insey as  

the  supp ly  deve lopment  pa r tne r.   Mr  Ange l  then sa id  i t  

wou ld  be  prudent  fo r  me to  meet  w i th  the  main  shareho lder  

because the re  was one major i t y  shareho lder  o f  Tr i l l i an .   

Tr i l l i an  wou ld  –  he  d id  no t  exp la in  the  s t ruc tu re  to  me a t  

tha t  t ime wh ich  I  w i l l  exp la in  to  you a  b i t  la te r  bu t  the  

ho ld ing  company  had one major  shareho lder  and tha t  20 

shareho lder ’s  name was Sa l im Essa –  Mr  Sa l im Essa.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Which  one was  the  ho ld ing  company?  

MS GOODSON:   The ho ld ing  company the  way I  

unders tood i t  a t  the  t ime was Tr i l l i an  Cap i ta l  Par tne rs .   So 

maybe I  shou ld  exp la in  the  s t ruc tu re  now? 
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ADV SELEKA SC:   You can do so  yes.  

MS GOODSON:   Okay.   My unders tand ing  was tha t  Tr i l l i an  

Cap i ta l  Par tners  was the  overa l l  company very  s im i la r  to  

Ang lo  Amer ican Group o f  Companies  so  to  say.   And then  

underneath  there  was f i ve  subs id ia ry  compan ies  r igh t .   And 

the  subs id ia ry  compan ies  were  Tr i l l i an  Management  

Consu l t ing  o f  wh ich  I  was be ing  in te rv iewed a t  the  t ime to 

become the  CEO.   There  was –  there  wou ld  be  Tr i l l i an  

F inanc ia l  Adv i so ry  o f  wh ich  Ms  Mothepu –  Ms  Mos i lo  

Mothepu wou ld  become the  CEO.   There  was  Tr i l l i an  10 

Secur i t ies  o f  wh ich  Mr  Er ic  Wood wou ld  be  the  ac t ing  CEO.   

There  was Tr i l l i an  Asset  Management  o f  wh ich  Mr  Dan ie l  

Roy wou ld  be  the  CEO and then las t l y  a t  the  t ime when I  

was hav ing  these  d iscuss ions there  was d iscuss ions about  

another  subs id ia ry  ca l led  Tr i l l i an  Proper t ies  o f  wh ich  Mr  

Mark  Pamensky was ea rmarked to  be  the  CEO.  

 I t  was a lso  exp la ined to  me tha t  Mr  Er ic  Wood  

wou ld  eventua l l y  become the  CEO of  the  group –  the  

ho ld ing  company but  on l y  a t  the  1s t  o f  March  2016.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.  20 

MS GOODSON:   So  Mr  Ange l  exp la ined th is  to  me and he  

ment ioned tha t  i t  was prudent  tha t  I  meet  the  major  

shareho lder  o f  the  ho ld ing  company wh ich  wou ld  be  Mr  

Sa l im Essa pr io r  to  us  progress ing  any fu r the r  w i th  these  

d iscuss ions.  
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 So  I  met  Mr  Essa fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime.  Aga in  I  t r ied  to  

Goog le  h im pr io r  to  meet ing  h im and I  d id  no t  rea l l y  f ind  

anyth ing  on  the  in te rnet .   A t  tha t  t ime he was  a  very  

unknown ent i t y.   

 So I  had no reasons to  be  susp ic ious or  concerned .   

I  met  Mr  Essa as  a  second in te rv iew –  sor ry  I  am not  

ge t t ing  my chrono logy cor rec t .  

 P r io r  to  me meet ing  Mr  Essa I  had  a  meet ing  be fore  

and tha t  meet ing  was w i th  Mr  Er ic  Wood  and Mr  

Mohammed Boba t  and i t  was pa r t  o f  the  in te rv iew process  10 

so  to  say.  

 And i t  was in  tha t  meet ing  tha t  Mr  Wood exp la ined  

to  me h is  t rans i t ion  tha t  he  was a t  Reg iments  a t  the  t ime 

and tha t  as  o f  the  1s t  o f  March  o f  the  fo l low ing year  he  

wou ld  become the  CEO of  Tr i l l i an .   I  d id  no t  ask  h im  

deta i l s  about  why  he was leav ing .    

 Mr  Mohammed Bobat  asked me a  few quest ions  

th ings l i ke  d id  I  –  d id  I  have exper ience w i th  the  PFMA 

which  I  answered no but  d id  I  no t  come f rom the  pr iva te  

secto r.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Where  d id  –  where  d id  th is  meet ing  

take  p lace?  

MS GOODSON:   Th is  meet ing  took p lace in  the  In tegra ted  

Cap i ta l  Management ’s  o f f i ce  in  Mel rose.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   In  Mel rose Arch?  
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MS GOODSON:   In  Mel rose Arch  ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And your  meet ings w i th  Mr  C l i ve  Ange l?  

MS GOODSON:   A l l  in  the  same o f f i ce .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So  you do go to  Mel rose Arch  fo r  these 

meet ings.  

MS GOODSON:   Me l rose  Arch  ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.    

MS GOODSON:   And then when I  met  w i th  Mr  Sa l im Essa i t  

was a lso  in  Mel rose Arch  a  d i f fe ren t  o f f i ce .    Bas ica l l y  i t  

was the i r  In tegra ted  Cap i ta l  Management ’s  o f f i ces  were  10 

jus t  one f loor  up  –  you cou ld  wa lk  –  pa rk  in  the  same 

basement  and jus t  wa lk  up  the  ramp.   

 Anyway so  when I  met  Mr  Essa fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime i t  

was an in te res t ing  in te rv iew because i t  fe l t  as  though he  

was se l l ing  the  company to  me as  opposed to  me t ry ing  to  

se l l  my sk i l l s  and  competence to  h im.   And I  found i t  a  b i t  

b iza r re .  

 So Mr  Essa went  on  to  say tha t  h is  v i s ion  fo r  

Tr i l l i an  Management  Consu l t ing  was tha t  i t  wou ld  compete  

in  the  same space as  the  l i kes  o f  McK insey and  a t  tha t  20 

t ime a  lead ing  management  consu l tan ts  South  A f r i can  

management  consu l tan ts  company was Letsema and he 

says you know why i s  i t  on ly  Le tsema and McKinsey in  the  

pub l i c  sec tor  space there  needs to  become a  new bus iness  

–  a  new proud ly  South  A f r i can b lack  management  
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consu l t ing  company tha t  a l so  competes in  tha t  space.   And 

tha t  was h is  v i s ion  fo r  th is  en t i t y.   A t  the  t ime load 

shedd ing  was r i fe .   He ment ioned  to  me tha t  the  in ten t ion  

was to  go  in to  Eskom to  he lp  reduce load shedd ing  and 

he lp  Eskom become a  f i rs t  wor ld  u t i l i t y.   And i t  sounded  

exc i t ing .  

 So Mr  Essa was rea l l y  se l l ing  th is  oppor tun i ty  to  me  

and towards the  end o f  the  in te rv iew he asked me so  te l l  

me about  yourse l f  and I  am not  too  sure  what  came over  

me a t  the  t ime bu t  I  ac tua l l y  dec ided to  te l l  h im a  lo t  about  10 

my upbr ing ing .  

 You know I  come f rom – f rom P ie termar i t zbu rg ,  

smal l  communi ty,  very,  very  s t rong fami ly  va lues,  my 

parents  a re  ve ry  re l ig ious now I  went  in to  tha t  t ype o f  

de ta i l .  

 The next  day I  go t  an  emai l  f rom Cl ive  say ing  Sa l im  

l i kes  you i f  you  want  the  job  i t  i s  yours .   That  i s  how I  go t  

on  board .  

 I  s igned –  I  fo rmal ly  s igned my o f fe r  o f  employment  

in  about  November  2015 however  I  had to  f i l l  ou t  my 20 

res ignat ion  per iod  a t  Ang lo  Amer i can.   So I  on ly  fo rmal ly  

s ta r ted  work ing  fo r  Tr i l l i an  on  the  1s t  o f  January  o r  the  f i rs t  

work ing  day o f  January  2016.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Hm.   You s igned your  emp loyment  

cont rac t  on  the  17  November  2015 .  
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MS GOODSON:   I  be l ieve  my a f f idav i t  yes  tha t  has more  

de ta i l s  than I  remember  a t  th is  po in t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.   But  what  d id  you say about  

January  2016?  

MS GOODSON:   I  on ly  fo rmal ly  s ta r ted .   My s ta r t  da te  in  

tha t  cont rac t  –  the  e f fec t i ve  da te  so  to  say is  1s t  o f  January  

a l though I  res igned in  November.   I  had to  –  I  had a  

res ignat ion  per iod  tha t  I  had to  honour  a t  Ang lo  Amer i can  

s t i l l .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So  f rom the  t ime you s igned the  10 

employment  cont rac t  17  November  2015 to  the  t ime you 

o f f i c ia l l y  resumed your  employment  what  were  you do ing?  

MS GOODSON:   That  was a  very  in te res t ing  t ime.   I  had 

accumula ted  qu i te  a  lo t  o f  annua l  leave f rom Ang lo  

Amer i can a t  the  t ime so  in  tha t  per iod  ca l l  i t  about  s i x  

weeks so  the  las t  two week o f  November  and the  month  o f  

December  2015  I  had taken my leave in  l ieu  o f  my 

res ignat ion  per iod  so  to  say.   But  techn ica l l y  I  was  s t i l l  an 

employee o f  Ang lo  Amer ican.  

 And I  had ment ioned th is  to  Mr  Ange l  and Mr  Ange l  20 

had sa id  to  me tha t  I  need to  ge t  my sk in  in  the  game.   So 

he had ar ranged numerous meet ings fo r  me wi th  the  

McK insey team.   I t  was obv ious l y  c lear  to  me f rom the  

documents  tha t  Mr  Ange l  had g iven  me pr io r  tha t  McK insey 

had s tar ted  a t  leas t  negot ia t ing  towards work ing  on  th is  
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cont rac t .  

 So i t  was in  December  very  ear ly  December  2015 I  

had a l ready met  qu i te  a  few members  o f  the  McK insey  

team tha t  were  work ing  on  the  Eskom Top Eng ineers  

Prog ram.  

 In  add i t ion  to  tha t  I  was a lso  in t roduced to  a  

company ca l led  E-Gateway an  Ind ian  and Emerg ing  

company and I  was to ld  tha t  th is  wou ld  be  the  company 

tha t  Tr i l l i an  sub-cont rac ts  fo r  one  o f  the  work  s t reams a t  

Eskom.  10 

 So we had qu i te  a  few meet ings dur ing  tha t  per iod .   

So i t  was 00:20:21 work ing  or  i t  was qu i te  ac t i ve .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And th is  i s  –  I  mean when you go to  

them to  go ing  to  Mel rose  Arch  o f f i ces .  

MS GOODSON:   Yes.   Yes a lmost  a l l  the  t ime i f  I  remember  

cor rec t l y.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   So o f f i c ia l  commencement  o f  your  

employment  cont rac t  i s  1  January  2016 how long d id  you  

remain  there?  

MS GOODSON:   Th is  i s  t he  shor tes t  job  I  had eve r  had in  20 

my l i fe  Cha i rman .   I  res igned on the  19  March 2016 so  I  

was employed fo r  what  does tha t  make i t  two and a  ha l f  

months  round i t  up  to  th ree  months .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja .   

MS GOODSON:   I  was –  I  have  never  eve r  s tayed in  a 



04 MARCH 2021 – DAY 355 
 

Page 19 of 361 
 

pos i t ion  tha t  qu ick ly.   Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So  you –  what  you w i l l  te l l  the  

Cha i rperson is  your  exper ience  in  tha t  re la t i ve ly  shor t  

space o f  t ime.  

MS GOODSON:   Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   That  i s  –  then go in to  the  serv ices  tha t  

Tr i l l i an  ra ther  on  your  pos i t ion  what  i s  your  pos i t ion  on  

Tr i l l i an?  

MS GOODSON:   My pos i t ion  in  Tr i l l i an  was the  CEO of  one  

o f  the  subs id ia r i es  the  Tr i l l ian  Management  Consu l t ing  10 

Subs id ia ry.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.    

CHAIRPERSON:   You were  –  you were  the  CEO of  the   o f  

TMC? 

MS GOODSON:   Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   And whereas you sa id  a  number  o f  

subs id ia r ies  and there  was the  ho ld ing  company.  

MS GOODSON:   Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   So  I  guess i t  i s  go ing  to  be  impor tan t  to  

re fe r  to  TMC as TMC and to  the  ho ld ing  company  as  the  20 

ho ld ing  company  and whatever  o ther  subs id ia r i es  so  tha t  

we a re  sure  wh ich  one –  wh ich  en t i t y  we are  ta lk ing  about .  

MS GOODSON:   I  w i l l  be  c lear  on  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   
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CHAIRPERSON:   I  am ment ion ing  th is  because i t  i s  easy to  

jus t  say  Tr i l l i an ,  Tr i l l i an ,  Tr i l l i an .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   That  i s  r igh t .  

MS GOODSON:   Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:   And then one does not  know wh ich  en t i t y.   

Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes so  your  pos i t ion  is  CEO of  TMC.  

MS GOODSON:   Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And what  –  f rom your  exper ience a t  the  

t ime what  serv ices  was TMC p rov id ing?  10 

MS GOODSON:   So  TMC was in tended to  be  a  s tock  

s tandard  management  consu l t ing  company so  very  s im i la r  

to  what  we –  the  se rv i ces  tha t  McK insey o r  the  l i kes  o f  

ex tens ion  or  De lo i t te  wou ld  o f fe r.   I t  was not  any 

spec ia l i sed se rv i ces  in  any way.  

 I f  I  assumed tha t  i f  we encounte red a  c l ien t  tha t  

needed spec ia l i sed  serv ices  in  the  rea lm o f  f inance tha t  

one o f  the  o the r  subs id ia r ies  tha t  was more  app l i cab le  

wou ld  then take  up the  work .   But  Management  Consu l t ing  

is  qu i te  in  my op in ion  i s  very  gener ic  serv ices  tha t  en t i t ies  20 

genera l l y  b r ing  on  board  i f  they  jus t  do  no t  have the  

manpower  or  the  exper ience to  do  i t  themse lves.   So i t  was 

not  spec ia l i sed  in  any way.    

 Sor ry  –  so  –  you know now tha t  I  say  tha t  i t  i s  

maybe wor th  men t ion ing  tha t  Mr  Ange l  a l so  d id  te l l  me and 
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I  d id  come to  know tha t  th is  Top  Eng ineers  Program was 

awarded so  to  say –  I  w i l l  come and exp la in  tha t  a  b i t  la te r  

to  McK insey and i t s  SD and our  supp l ie r  deve lopment  

par tner  on  a  con f ined bas is  on  the  bas is  tha t  they were 

o f fe r ing  spec ia l i sed  se rv i ces .   And I  do  no t  be l ieve  tha t  

Management  Consu l t ing  i s  a  spec ia l i sed  se rv i ce  in  any  

way.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja  you can go in to  i t .  

MS GOODSON:   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The Top Eng ineer ing  Program –  Top 10 

Eng ineers  Program.  

MS GOODSON:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Was i t  a l ready a  pro jec t  o r  p rogram 

g iv ing  to  McK insey by  the  t ime you were  appo in ted  a t  

TMC? 

MS GOODSON:   Bu t  tha t  i s  what  I  unders tood so  I  have 

ment ioned Cha i r  tha t  I  had met  w i th  the  McK insey teams in  

December  2015.   I  s t i l l  had not  fo rmal ly  taken my ro le  as  

CEO of  TMC at  tha t  po in t .   And i t  seemed to  me tha t  the  

McK insey team were  s t reaks ahead in  te rms o f  de l i ver ing  20 

work  aga ins t  th is  p rogram.   They  had es tab l i shed  teams.   

They had a l ready  got  fo r  example  work  schedu les  in  te rms 

o f  what  work  needed to  be  done.   They were  – they were  

prepared and ready to  h i t  the  ground runn ing  f i rs t  th ing  in  

January  and I  fe l t  as  TMC on my back foo t  because TMC 



04 MARCH 2021 – DAY 355 
 

Page 22 of 361 
 

d id  no t  even have any employees a t  the  t ime i t  was  jus t  me  

you know.  

 So McKinsey had a l ready s ta r ted  do ing  someth ing  

towards th is  p rogram and the  program cons is ted  o f  four  

spec i f i c  work  s t reams.   I  am not  too  sure  i f  Mr  Se leka  

wou ld  l i ke  me to  exp la in  them now or  la te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  maybe befo re  you go on jus t  in  one 

or  two sentences  exp la in  what  was the  ob jec t  o f  t h is  Top 

Eng ineers  Program? 

MS GOODSON:   I t  was so  convo lu ted  I  w i l l  t ry  rea l l y  hard  10 

to  pu t  in to  two sentences.   The Top Eng ineers  Program i f  

you take  i t  l i t e ra l l y  ta lks  about  top  eng ineers  l i te ra l l y.   So 

the  in ten t ion  was  to c rea te  sk i l l s  w i th in  Eskom tha t  gave 

you the  –  what  i s  the  word  I  am look ing  fo r?   I t  was as  i f  

you  had success ion  p lann ing  r igh t  and you re ta in  the  IP 

and you re ta in  the  sk i l l s  w i th in  the  organ isa t ion  to  susta in  

the  bus iness in  four  spec i f i c  a reas l ook ing  a t  the  

Genera t ion  work  s t ream.   So how do we genera te  energy?   

Look ing  a t  p rocurement  in  te rms o f  what  were  they  

spend ing?  There  was a  c la ims work  s t ream and then there  20 

was a  pr imary  energy work  s t ream.   

 And the  in ten t ion  was to  take  Eskom employees in  

each o f  those d i f fe ren t  a reas and ac tua l l y  bu i ld  them up so  

tha t  they cou ld  i n  essence in  long run  rep lace the  l i kes  o f  

McK insey so  tha t  Eskom wou ld  have i t s  own McKinsey in -
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house so  to  say.    

 But  the  p lan  was  tha t  wh i le  you do tha t  you have  

got  the  sub-cont rac to rs  o r  these consu l tan ts  l i ke  McK insey 

and Tr i l l i an  wa lk ing  the  jou rney w i th  the  Eskom employees.  

 That  was then –  tha t  i s  the  way I  unders tood i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   So  –  so  the  idea was not  to  take  new 

graduates  and  t ra in  them and g ive  them cer ta in  

oppor tun i t ies  so  tha t  in  long te rm they cou ld  be  top  

eng ineers  ava i lab le  to  Eskom.   I t  wou ld  be  to  take  peop le  

who are  a l ready eng ineers  bu t  he lp  them to  ge t  to  the  top  10 

o f  the i r  –  o f  the i r  game? 

MS GOODSON:   I  w ish  I  cou ld  –  I  w ish  I  cou ld  answer  tha t  

in  more  de ta i l  the  th ing  is  McK insey jus t  d id  no t  ge t  me 

invo lved  and d id  no t  even requ i re  Tr i l l i an  to  ge t  invo l ved 

in  tha t  recru i tment  p rocess and tha t  recru i tment  p rocess 

was ex tens ive .  

 My unders tand ing  –  I  do  no t  know i f  I  can  say  

ca tegor i ca l l y  yes  to  the  quest ion  tha t  you asked what  I  do  

know for  ce r ta in  though is  tha t  i t  was employees  w i th in  

Eskom.  20 

 So whether  those  employees were  a l ready qua l i f ied  

or  work ing  towards a  qua l i f i ca t ion  I  do  no t  know.   But  i t  

cer ta in ly  was peop le  –  i t  was not  ex terna l  recru i t s  i t  was 

a l l  employees o f  Eskom.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.    
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   D id  Tr i l l i an  had any ro le  to  p lay  in  

the  rend i t ion  o f  the  se rv i ces  re la t i ng  to  the  Top Eng ineers  

Prog ram? 

MS GOODSON:   Tr i l l i an  was supposed to  have a  ro le  to  

p lay  because we  were  the  Supp ly  Deve lopment  Par tne r.   

We were  supposed to  be  work ing  w i th  McK insey to  de l i ve r  

on  the  ob jec t i ves  and I  t r ied  so  ha rd  to  work  w i th  McK insey 

but  McK insey made i t  imposs ib le  –  abso lu te ly  imposs ib le .  

 To  –  sor ry  I  am runn ing  away w i th  myse l f  bu t  to  the  

ex ten t  tha t  I  remember  a t tend ing  a  leadersh ip  meet ing  10 

McKinsey and Tr i l l i an  in  a  leadersh ip  meet ing  a t  the  

McK insey o f f i ces  in  January  and one o f  the  pr inc ip les  o f  

McK insey sa id  –  because I  was f igh t ing  to  say why do you  

guys no t  want  us  to  pu t  peop le  on  the  ground?  I f  we do  

not  pu t  peop le  to  work  how do  we get  pa id?   And I  

remember  the  one pr inc ip le  say ing  to  me why do you care  

you w i l l  ge t  your  money anyway.   And I  cou ld  no t  

unders tand how cou ld  we get  pa id  i f  we were  no t  work ing?   

So I  t r ied  so  hard  to  ge t  peop le  invo lved in  de l i ve r ing  to  

cont r ibu te  –  I  mean I  come f rom m in ing  the  pr imary  energy 20 

works  s t ream for  example  wou ld  have been one o f  the  work  

s t reams tha t  I  cou ld  add more  va lue  than anybody  on the  

McKinsey team because o f  my exper ience.   McK insey  

wou ld  no t  ge t  me  invo lved.   We were  comple te ly  s ide l ined.   

So –  does tha t  answer  your  quest ion  Mr  Se leka  There  was  
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an  a t tempt  to  de l i ve r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja .   Yes.   I  th ink  you shou ld  a lso  

exp la in  to  the  Cha i rperson whethe r  o r  ra ther  the  

cont rac tua l  re la t ionsh ip  be tween TMC and McKinsey.  

MS GOODSON:   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Because there  is  ev idence to  the  e f fec t  

tha t  there  was no  cont rac t  be tween the  two.   You were  the  

CEO . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS GOODSON:    I  wou ld  no t  know.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    . . . in  a  be t te r  pos i t ion  to  know what  was  10 

go ing  on?  

MS GOODSON:    Abso lu te ly.   Jus t  to . . .   I  am go ing  to  s ta r t  

re fe renc ing  one o ther  ind iv idua l .   The gent leman’s  name 

was Glen(?)  Bernard .   He became a  COO.   So before  I  ge t  

to  the  quest ion ,  I  jus t  –  because you know answer ing  some 

o f  these quest ions fo r  Mr  Se leka ,  I  need to  re ference my 

COO.    

 Mr  Bernard  on  board  tha t  he  –  he  worked w i th  

me a t  Ang lo  Amer ican.   So a l so  had ex tens i ve  exper ience 

in  the  m in ing  indust ry  and he jo ined Tr i l l i an  a lso  in  January  20 

o f  2016 f rom Ang lo  Amer ican.  

 And so  we s tar ted  work ing  a t  Tr i l l i an  together  in  

January.   So i t  was myse l f  and my COO.   And we had a l l  

these meet ings w i th  McK insey and dur ing  the  meet ings,  

espec ia l l y  when the  meet ings were  no t  necessar i l y  go ing  



04 MARCH 2021 – DAY 355 
 

Page 26 of 361 
 

we l l ,  so  when I  wou ld  want  to  in f luence the  work  s t ream,  

fo r  example ,  and  we wou ld  ge t  pushed back,  G len  and I  

wou ld  a lways t r y  and defau l t  the  cont rac t .  

 So we spoke to  Mr  Ange l . . .  the  then ex is t ing  

cont rac t . . .  w i th  negot ia t ions  fo r  th is  work  pr io r,  r igh t .   And 

Mr  Ange l  sa id  to  me,  no ,  there  i s  no  ex is t ing  cont rac t .   We 

spoke to  Mr  Sagar  who –  Mr  Becca(?)  Sega l  who was a  

d i rec tor  a t  McK insey and he spoke  about  –  we had to  pu t  a  

cont rac t  in  p lace  tha t  governs the  re la t ionsh ip  be tween the  

two ent i t ies .    10 

 So Mr  Sagar,  a t  some po in t . .   P lease fo rg ive  me 

fo r  no t  ge t t ing  my te rm ino logy a  hundred percent  r igh t ,  bu t  

I  am jus t  t ry ing  to  answer  your  quest ion  on  the  cont rac t .  

 In  some po in t  dur ing  my tenure  and I  seem to  

remember  the re  was some t ime,  I  th ink  towards the  end o f  

January,  i t  cou ld  very  we l l  be  the  beg inn ing  o f  February,  

Mr  Sagar  sent  me a  two or  th ree  pages sub-con t rac tors  

agreement .  

 But  you must  keep in  t ime tha t  a t  the  t ime tha t  

the  cash f lows fo r  th is  p ro jec t ,  th is  Top Eng ineer  Pro jec t ,  20 

were  go ing  to  the  reg ions o f  about  R 10 b i l l i on  over  th ree  

years ,  okay.  

 And the  subcont rac to rs  ag reement  tha t  was sent  

to  me was about  th ree  pages long and you know my COO 

and I  were  asked to  s ign  th is ,  r igh t .    
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 So  I  looked a t  the  subcont rac tors  agreement  and  

I  was,  l i ke ,  there  is  no  way tha t  you cou ld  s ign  a  th ree  

pagers  tha t  i s  so  loose and f loppy  to  govern  a  t ransact ion  

tha t  i s  wor th  R 10  b i l l i on  fo r  an  SOE.    

 So I  t racked changes and I  –  a lmost  every  s ing le  

sentence in  tha t  subcont rac to rs  agreement  I  had an issue 

w i th  and I  sent  i t  back to  McK insey.   By  the  t ime I  

res igned,  I  had  not  rece ived any feedback on tha t  

subcont rac to rs  agreement .    

 So what  I  am aware  o f  i s  tha t  there  was a  10 

d iscuss ion  about  the  subcont rac tors  agreement .   There  

were  in i t ia l  communica t ions abou t  one but  dur ing  my very  

shor t  tenure  I  had never  seen a  s igned copy.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    H ’m.   And . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS GOODSON:    Sor ry.   And I  cer ta in ly  d id  no t  f ind  a  copy.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You a re  cer ta in  you d id  no t  f ind 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS GOODSON:    Abso lu te ly  no t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    H ’m.   A lso  exp la in  the  d i s t inc t ion  

be tween what  has been re fe r red  to  as  a  corpora te  p lan  and 20 

the  master  serv i ce  agreement  wh ich  I  see you dea l  w i th  

a lso  to  some exten t  in  your  a f f idav i t .   Jus t  en l igh ten  us  on  

the  d is t inc t ion  be tween the  two.  

MS GOODSON:    Okay.   Cha i r,  i s  i t  okay tha t  I  am not  

go ing  in  a  ch rono log ica l  o rder?   I t  i s  okay?  L ike ,  okay?  
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CHAIRPERSON:    No,  we w i l l  gu ide  you.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .  

MS GOODSON:    Okay.    

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  and he  w i l l  re ign  you  in  when  

you. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS GOODSON:    Because I  jus t  go ing  to  answer  the  

quest ion .   I  mean,  th ings d id  no t  qu i te  happen so  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja-no,  he  w i l l  ask  you the  quest i ons.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    And he knows what  he  is  look ing  fo r.  

MS GOODSON:    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MS GOODSON:    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And i f  there  i s  someth ing  impor tan t  tha t  

you fee l  you were  no t  asked to  ta lk  about  tha t  you  want  to  

share ,  then you w i l l  have  tha t  chance but  he  w i l l  gu ide  you.   

He knows what  he  is  look ing  fo r.  

MS GOODSON:    Okay.   So you. . .   Do you mind repeat ing  

the  quest ion?  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  jus t  the  d is t inc t ion  be tween  what  i s  

re fe r red  to  the  corpo ra te  p lan  and the  maste r  serv ice  

agreement .  

MS GOODSON:    Okay.   So th is  i s . . .   Sor ry,  I  chuck le  

because o f  wha t  I  know now in  h inds igh t .   The Top 
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Eng ineers  Programme cons is ted  o f  on ly  four  work  s t reams 

and . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Four  work  s t reams?  

MS GOODSON:    Yes,  and I  w i l l  repeat  them for  you .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MS GOODSON:    There  was Genera t ion ,  there  was Pr imary  

Energy,  there  was C la ims and the re  was Procurement .   So 

there  were  on ly  those fou r.   There  is  no  Corpora te  

P lann ing .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  bu t  where  d id  i t  fo rm,  the  co rpo ra te  10 

p lan  o r  the  maste r  serv ice?  

MS GOODSON:    So  the  reason why I  am say ing  th i s  to  you 

Cha i r  and how I  know i t  on ly  inc luded fou r  i s  because 

dur ing  my tenure  I  go t  s igh t  o f  what  d raws(?)  the  master  

serv i ces  agreement ,  the  dra f t  a t  tha t  t ime fo r  th is  

p rogramme and i t  on ly  re fe renced those four  work  s t reams,  

r igh t .    

 So  tha t  i s  the  scope o f  the  cont rac t  to  my  

unders tand ing .   The corpora te  p lan  who is  someth ing  tha t  

dur ing  my tenure  –  I  am t ry ing  very  much to  answer  the  20 

quest ion  based on what  I  knew then and not  what  I  know 

now.    

 I  have no idea then what  the  corpora te  p lan  was 

because i t  had noth ing  to  do  w i th  Tr i l l i an  Management  

Consu l t ing .   Nobody asked me to  do  the  work.   We d id  no t  
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have peop le  to  do  the  work .   I t  d id  no t  fa l l  w i th in  the  scope  

o f  the  MSA.    

 A f te r  watch ing  numerous,  you know,  these 

sess ions,  the  Commiss ion ’s  sess ions,  I  now unders tand 

tha t  the  corpora te  p lan  f i t ted  in to  someth ing  e lse  bu t  i t  

cer ta in ly  was not  anyth ing  tha t  I  was aware  o f .    

 Cer ta in ly  no t  Tr i l l i an  Management  Consu l t ing  

and not  Tr i l l i an  F inanc ia l  Adv iso r ies  as  fa r  as  I  knew but  I  

cou ld  be  wrong  w i th  tha t  bu t  de f in i te ly  no t  Tr i l l i an  

Management  Consu l t ing .    10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Can I  jus t  take  you back,  a  l i t t le  b i t ,  to  

th is  Programme o f  Top Eng ineers .   D id  Tr i l l i an  have any  

eng ineers?  

MS GOODSON:    Any eng ineers?  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MS GOODSON:    No.   So when I  was a t  Tr i l l i an  fo r  those –  

the  f i rs t  th ree  months  –  fo r  the  f i rs t  two months  there  were  

on ly  two employees.   So i t  was myse l f  and my COO,  r igh t?  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  20 

MS GOODSON:    On the  1 s t  o f  March  when peop le  came 

over  f rom Reg iments ,  there  were  about  15  employees or  so  

tha t  came over  f rom Reg iments .   I  th ink  there  were  a  few 

eng ineers  in  tha t  cont ingence o f  peop le .    

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry,  jus t  repeat  tha t .  
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MS GOODSON:    I  th ink  there  were  a  few ind iv idua ls  w i th in  

tha t  team tha t  t ransfer red  tha t  were  –  tha t  had  s tud ied  

eng ineer ing .   I  do  no t  know i f  they  had cer t i f ied  

eng ineer ing  qua l i f i ca t ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.   Okay.   H ’m.  

MS GOODSON:    Bu t  yes ,  we eventua l l y  d id  on  the  

1 s t  o f  March  have  some eng ineers .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Would  you say how many tha t  you 

knew o f?  

MS GOODSON:    Not  many.   A handfu l .    10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MS GOODSON:    So f i ve . . .   f i ve .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MS GOODSON:    Bu t  keep in  m ind Cha i rman tha t  when I  

s igned the  o f fe r  o f  employment  I  was to ld  by  Mr  Ange l  tha t  

eGateway were  the  spec ia l i s t  in  Genera t ion  and they had  

the  qua l i f i ca t ion  bu t  there  is  a  lo t  to  be  sa id  about  tha t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MS GOODSON:    . . . sur round ing  the . . .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   And as  fa r  as  you know,  

McK insey had lo ts  o f  eng ineers?  

MS GOODSON:    Yes.   No,  no . . .   What . . .   Sor ry.   Le t  me 

ask you a  quest ion .   What  i s  a  lo t?   What  does a  lo t  mean?  

CHAIRPERSON:    [ laughs]   Wel l ,  i t  depends,  you  know.   
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Wou ld  you regard  10 ,  20?  I t  jus t  depends on you.  

MS GOODSON:    The team tha t  I  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    You g ive  me your  own v iew o f  whethe r  

they had a  lo t  and whether  tha t  i s . . .  lo t ,  tha t  i s  another  

i ssue.  

MS GOODSON:    Ja ,  I  th ink  the  McK insey –  i f  I  cou ld  g ive  

you an ind ica t ion  o f  the  McK insey Team.   And the  McKinsey 

Team eventua l l y  fo r  th is  p rogramme. . .  i t  i s  l i ke  abou t  a  100 

peop le .   I t  was  a  very  s ign i f i can t  team.   I  th ink  the  

qua l i f i ca t ions tha t  you founded  in  there  –  when I  say  10 

qua l i f i ca t ion ,  I  am jus t  ta lk ing  about  degrees,  no t  

cer t i f i ca t ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m? 

MS GOODSON:    Wou ld  be  a long the  l ines  o f  f inance.   

There  were  a  lo t  o f  peop le  tha t  had MBA’s .   Dr  Weiss ,  fo r  

example ,  was an eng ineer.    

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MS GOODSON:    And you wou ld  have probab ly  aga in  about  

a  handfu l  a t  most  two o f  peop le  tha t  had  s tud ied  

eng ineer ing  bu t  the  res t  more  in  the  l ines  o f  f inance .    20 

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.   I  am t ry ing  to  unders tand what  was  

sought  to  be  done,  what  the  –  was rea l l y  sough t  to  be  

ach ieved by  the  Top Eng ineers  Programme because the  

f i rs t  impress ion  I  ge t  when you say to  me top  eng ineers  i s  

tha t  those peop le  are  rea l l y  a t  the  top  o f  the i r  p ro fess ion  in  
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te rms o f  how good they a re .   Okay.    

 Now the  programme was not  ca l led  Top 

Managers .   I t  was Top Eng ineers .   And i f  the  peop le  you  

are  ta l k ing  about  who are  to  go  and be in  the  p rogramme 

are  no t  peop le  who are  a l ready top  eng ineers  bu t  you want  

to  make them top  eng ineers ,  I  wou ld  expect  tha t  you need  

top  eng ineers  t o  make these group o f  eng ineers  t op  

eng ineers .   

 You wou ld  need  eng ineers  to  make them top  

eng ineers .   That  wou ld  be  the  f i rs t  impress ion  10 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS GOODSON:    I t  takes one to  know one.  

CHAIRPERSON:    . . . tha t  one wou ld  ge t .   I f  you  want . . .   I f  

Mr  Se leka wants  to  make somebody,  a  young lawyer  a  top  

lawyer,  you know,  he  must  a t  leas t  be  a  lawyer  h imse l f .   

P re ferab le  he  must  be  a  top  lawyer  h imse l f .    

MS GOODSON:    Abso lu te ly.   I t  take  one to  know one,  as  

you wou ld  say.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   So tha t  is  why I  am t ry ing  to  f ind 

ou t  whether  Tr i l l i an  had eng ineers ,  had top  eng ineers  bu t  i t  20 

m ight  be  eas ie r  to  say they had eng ineers  maybe to  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS GOODSON:    Can I  exp la in?  

CHAIRPERSON:    . . . to  say  whether  i t  was top  eng ineers .   

McK insey the  same th ing .   That  –  you want  to  say  
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someth ing?  

MS GOODSON:    Cha i r,  wou ld  i t  he lp  i f  I  exp la in  what  the 

d i f fe ren t  work  s t reams were  in tended to  do?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MS GOODSON:    You w i l l  ac tua l ly  f ind  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MS GOODSON:    . . . tha t  i t  d id  no t  have much to  do  w i th  

eng ineer ing  a t  a l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MS GOODSON:    Okay.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja  exp la in  tha t .  

MS GOODSON:    Can I  exp la in  tha t?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   H ’m.  

MS GOODSON:    The on ly. . .   So I  have ment ioned before ,  

okay?  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MS GOODSON:    In  my exper ience  and I  am not  tha t  young 

but  –  and I  have got  qu i te  a  b i t  o f  exper ience but  the  on ly  

o ther  fou r  –  the  on ly  work  s t ream tha t  had a  very  

s ign i f i can t  re l iance on the  eng ineer ing  facu l ty,  the  pu re  20 

eng ineer ing  facu l ty  be ing  c iv i l ,  e lec t r i ca l  and mechan ica l  

was the  Genera t ion  work  s t ream tha t  because i t  was h igh l y  

techn ica l .    

 And I  know th is  because I  come f rom min ing ,  

r igh t ,  tha t  w i l l  be  the  on ly  space where  you maybe wou ld  
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have needed some techn ica l  ins igh t  to  ac tua l l y  i ncrease 

the  per fo rmance o f  the  power  s ta t ions ,  r igh t .    

 Bu t  what  was so  b izar re  about  tha t  in  i t se l f  i s  

tha t  the  work  s t ream tha t  McK insey was put t ing  fo rward  to  

b r ing  about  these  e f f i c ienc ies  w i th in  the  power  s ta t ions  had  

noth ing  to  do  w i th  eng ineer ing .   They were  propos ing  a  

human cap i ta l  op t im isa t ion .   They wanted to  res t ruc ture  the  

peop le  and the  processes and the  –  no t  the  techn ica l  

p rocesses.    

 The bus iness processes o f  the  power  s ta t ion  to  10 

br ing  about  the  e f f i c iency tha t  Eskom sought  to  ach ieve.   

So techn ica l l y  i f  you  are  go ing  to  t ry  and res t ruc ture  your  

human cap i ta l  and improve your  bus iness p rocesses,  a l l  

be ing  i t  fo r  a  power  s ta t ion ,  you do not  rea l l y  need 

eng ineer ing  qua l i f i ca t ions fo r  tha t ,  r igh t .   So tha t  was the  

Genera t ion  work  s t ream.    

 On the  Pr imary  Energy  work  s t ream,  I  a lso  

thought  to  an  ex ten t  tha t  wou ld  seek some sor t  o f  gu idance 

f rom the  l i kes  o f  m in ing  eng ineer ing ,  r igh t .   Because you  

are  look ing  a t  the  coa l  m ines and you are  l ook ing  to  20 

op t im ise  the  qua l i t y  o f  coa l  tha t  you are  ge t t ing  ou t  o f  the  

m ines to  b r ing  in to  the  power  s ta t ions ,  r igh t .   But  tha t  i s  

no t  what  McK insey was do ing .    

 What  McK insey were  do ing  in  tha t  spec i f i c  work  

s t ream was renegot ia t ing  the  costs  p lus  cont rac t s  and tha t  
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i s  more  cont rac tua l  work  s t ream.   Then you come to  the  

Procurement  work  s t ream.   The P rocurement  work  s t ream 

is  bas ica l l y  jus t  look ing  to  op t im ise  the  spend,  the  

commodi ty  spend  o f  Eskom.    

 So in  essence what  they were  do ing  is  th is  te rm  

tha t  management  consu l tancy th row around ca l led  s t ra teg ic  

sourc ing  where  you wou ld  say,  okay,  because I  am Eskom 

and because I  have got  economy to  sca le ,  I  can take  my 

ent i re  spend on computers ,  fo r  example ,  I  go t  one supp l ie r  

and say tha t  because I  want  to  buy such bu lk ,  I  need the 10 

best  p r ice .    

 That  i s  what  they were  do ing  in  Procurement ,  

okay.   Put  very  s imp ly.   In  c l ien ts(?)  they had lawyers  on  

the  team because they were  nego t ia t ing  cont rac tua l  c la ims 

fo r  a  th i rd  par ty  aga ins t  Eskom and fo r  Eskom.   So i t  i s  

lawyers .    

 So as  you can see,  w i th in  those four  rea lms,  

a l though i t  i s  ca l led  the  Top Eng ineers  Programme,  i t  rea l l y  

was not  the  r i se(? )  any eng ineers  f rom the  way tha t  

McK insey had proposed to  do  the  work ,  okay.    20 

 I  fe l t  d i f fe ren t ly.   I  fe l t  tha t  Genera t ion  cou ld  

have techn ica l  exper t i se  wh ich  wou ld  have been eng ineers  

and I  fe l t  the  same about  Pr imary  Energy bu t  my vo ice  was  

not  heard  in  the  McK insey team.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay thank you.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS GOODSON:    Sor ry,  I . . .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   You ment ioned ear l ie r  

tha t  McK insey was appo in ted  on a  conf inement  bas i s .   Now 

in  respect  o f  wh ich  o f  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS GOODSON:    The top  eng ineers .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Was i t  the  top  eng ineers?  

MS GOODSON:    Top Eng ineers  Programme.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    D id  the  Top  Eng ineers  fa l l  under  the  

master  serv i ce  ag reement?  10 

MS GOODSON:    Cor rec t .   The master  se rv i ce  agreement  –  

the  Top Eng ineers  Programme was re fer red  to  by  two  

d i f fe ren t  names.   I t  was e i ther  –  you e i ther  re fe r red  to  i t  as  

the  Top Eng ineers  or  the  Eskom Turnaround P lan  but  i t  was 

exact ly  the  same th ing .   And the  MSA,  the  master  serv i ce  

agreement ,  governed –  because i t  i s  the  same th ing ,  i t  

goes two th ings –  peop le  jus t  use  the  names,  the  re ference 

in te rchangeab le .    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS GOODSON:    Sor ry,  I  do  no t  want  to  add more  20 

acronyms and i t  jus t  makes th ings more  confus ing  and. . .   

[ laughs]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  I  have tha t .   And le t  us  go  back to  

the  proposa l  tha t  Tr i l l i an  shou ld  be  the  supp l ie r  

deve lopment  par tne r.   So you,  I  th ink  you ment ioned,  tha t  
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two or  th ree  pager  document  wh ich  is  the  subcont rac t ,  was 

tha t  in  re la t ion  to  th is  master  serv i ce  agreement?  

MS GOODSON:    Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You d id  t rack  changes on i t?  

MS GOODSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You sent  i t  back?  

MS GOODSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Bu t  by  the  t ime you le f t  i t  was never  

s igned.  

MS GOODSON:    To  the  best  o f  my  knowledge.   Abso lu te ly.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    To  the  best  o f  your  knowledge.  

MS GOODSON:    There  were  too  many issues.   That  en t i re  

cont rac t  wou ld  have to  be  comple te ly  red ra f ted .   And a f te r  

send ing  my comments  back to  McK insey I  heard  no th ing  

about  i t ,  fo l low ing –  and I  d id  fo l low up but  I  never  

rece ived feedback.    

ADV SELEKA SC:    H ’m.  

MS GOODSON:    Bu t  the  cont rac t  needed to  be  comple te l y  

red ra f ted .   My home loan agreement ,  fo r  example ,  tha t  i s  a  

lo t  less  than R 10 b i l l i on  [ laughs]  i s  a  lo t  more  ex tens ive  20 

than jus t  two pages.    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .   But  then,  dur ing  tha t  th ree  months  

tha t  you were  the re ,  was tha t  subcont rac t  no t  hav ing  been  

s igned,  what  was the  re la t ionsh ip  be tween Tr i l l i an  (TMC)  

and McKinsey?  
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MS GOODSON:    The re la t ionsh ip  was based on –  i t  was a t  

r i sk  and i t  was on fa i th ,  a lmost .   Wherever  we wou ld  speak 

–  and when I  say  we I  ta lk  about  now the  execut ive  – and 

the  execut ive  o f  Tr i l l i an  compr ised o f  the  CEO’s  o f  the  

d i f fe ren t  –  the  va r ious subs id ia r i es .    

 So tha t  i s  myse l f ,  Ms Mathebo,  Mr  Roo i ,  my COO 

for  example .   We wou ld  o f ten  meet  and ta l k  about  what  was 

happen ing  in  our  respect ive  subs id ia r i es  and we  wou ld  

ra ise  concerns because McKinsey  wou ld  a lways say tha t ,  

look ,  they are  wor r ied  because the  MSA i s  no t  s igned.   And 10 

I  wou ld  a l so  speak to  the  peop le  in  my company to  say,  you 

know,  what  i s  the  issue w i th  the  MSA.   Why is  the  MSA not  

s igned -  ge t t ing  s igned?  And what  i s  the  issue w i th  our  

cont rac t  w i th  McK insey?   

 And I  wou ld  ask  McK insey the  same quest ions 

and the  rep ly  tha t  I  wou ld  ge t ,  spec i f i ca l l y  f rom Mr  Sagar  

and Dr  Weiss ,  was tha t  i t  w i l l  be  s igned eminent ly.    

 And I  be l ieved  them and I  unders tood or  I  

accepted tha t  i t  was on th is  bas is  tha t  i t  w i l l  be  s igned  

eminent ly  tha t  they fe l t  tha t  they cou ld  car ry  on  work .    20 

 So a l though these cont rac ts  were  no t  s igned and 

i t  was not  anyth ing  fo rmal ,  i t  d id  no t  necessar i l y  –  so  i t  d id  

no t  s top  the  momentum o f  t ry ing  to  make p rogress towards 

the  pro jec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    H ’m.   Okay.   You. . .   Wel l ,  to  tha t  –  to  
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the  ex ten t  tha t  the  cont rac t  was no t  in  p lace .   How d id  TMC 

fea ture  in  the  se rv ices  tha t  McK insey then d id  to  Eskom 

pursuant  to  e i the r  the  Top Eng ineers  P rogramme o r  any o f  

the  work  s t reams tha t  you ment ioned?  

MS GOODSON:    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  see  you are  shak ing  your  head.  

MS GOODSON:    Ja ,  you know,  Cha i r  I  do  no t  want  to  

come across as  somebody who is  jus t  compla in ing  and –  

bu t  I  rea l l y  do  d isagree w i th  the  percept ion  tha t  the  

McK insey team,  spec i f i ca l l y  w i th  Dr  F ine  and Dr  Weiss  sa id  10 

a t  th is  Commiss ion .   I  can  be l ieve  and I  accepted the  

in ten t ion  was to  bu i ld  jun io r  compan ies ,  smal l  to  med ium 

s ize  compan ies  o f  wh ich  Tr i l l i an  was perce i ved to  be  one,  

r igh t  bu t  the  way  tha t  they went  about  do ing  i t  dur ing  my 

ent i re  tenure  and my re la t ionsh ip  w i th  McK insey was 

ex tens i ve .    

 I  met  w i th  them and I  spoke w i th  them every  

s ing le  day fo r  the  t ime tha t  I  was there .   They were  no t  

he lp fu l  a t  a l l .   They were  supposed to  be  the  main  

cont rac tor  because they have got  a l l  the  g loba l  exper ience,  20 

they have got  the  g loba l  ne twork ,  they have done  th ings 

l i ke  th is  be fore  and so  fo r th .   And  they were  supposed to 

be  tak ing . . .   as  I  unders tood th is .    

 Sor ry.   They were  supposed to  be  tak ing  Tr i l l i an  

under  the  arm and do the  t ransfer  o f  sk i l l s  to  bu i ld  up  tha t  
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as  we l l .   In  a  management  consu l t ing  company you prov ide  

a  se rv i ce  and the  on ly  asset  tha t  you rea l l y  have is  peop le ,  

r igh t .   Peop le  have the  IT,  peop le  have the  sk i l l s .   You do 

not  ac tua l l y  have anyth ing  e l se  tha t  i s  tang ib le .    

 So the  on ly  way  tha t  Tr i l l i an  cou ld  grow,  in  my 

op in ion ,  was fo r  us  to  pu t  peop le  to  work  a longs ide  

McKinsey.   Every  s ing le  t ime I  asked McKinsey,  and I  met  

w i th  them on a l l  four  work  s t reams,  okay,  eve ry  s ing le  t ime 

they wou ld  te l l  me an organogram o f  the  team tha t  wou ld  

be  execut ing  any o f  the  work ,  there  was never  a  s ing le  10 

Tr i l l i an  representa t i ve .    

 And I  had -  my  f rus t ra t ion  was  so  he igh tened 

because I  kept  on  say ing . . .   I  mean,  we wou ld  ge t  peop le .   

My COO and I  were  ge t t ing  CV ’s  o f  peop le .   We have  

reached out  to  ta len t  acqu is i t ion  compan ies  to  s ta r t  

in te rv iewing peop le  and get t ing  peop le  onboard  and  eve ry  

t ime we wou ld  in te rv iew.    

 So we spent  a  lo t  o f  t ime in te rv iewing peop le .   

We wou ld  then shor t l i s t  and we wou ld  then to  go t  McK insey  

to  say,  okay,  he re  is  the  –  here  is  the  Tr i l l i an  peop le (?)  20 

tha t  a re  go ing  to  s ta r t  on ,  ca l l  i t  the  1s t  o f  Apr i l ,  r igh t .   

McK insey wou ld  say:   No,  we are  no t  accept ing  and i t  i s  

no t  good enough.   We are  look ing  fo r  an  MBA.   No,  we a re  

no t  –  we. . .   You know on Genera t ion  i t  was the  funn ies t  

th ing .    
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 McK insey sa id  to  me tha t  they were  look ing  fo r  

somebody who had a t  leas t  25-years ’ exper ience  in  coa l  

towered power  s ta t ions  bu t  had to  be  BEE compl ian t .    

 Now i f  you look a t  the  h is to ry  o f  th is  company,  

how are  you go ing  to  f ind  somebody tha t  i s  non-wh i te ,  tha t  

has go t  tha t  k ind  o f  exper ience in  the  coa l  indus t ry  tha t  

has –  tha t  i s  a lso  young and i s  w i l l i ng  to  come on as  an  

assoc ia te  in  a  management  consu l t ing  company?  [ laughs]    

 You know,  the  made i t  imposs ib le  to  work  and  

the i r  a t t i tude was:   Why are  you  even compla in ing?  You 10 

are  go ing  to  ge t  pa id  anyway.   That  never  made sense to  

me.    

ADV SELEKA SC:    H ’m.   That  i s  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS GOODSON:    So . . .   Sor ry.   We had a  ve ry  acr imon ious 

re la t ionsh ip .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   D id  you  repor t  tha t  s i tua t ion  to  

e i ther  Mr  Er i c  Wood,  Mr  Sa l im Essa or. . .  

MS GOODSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  th ink  you sa id  Mr  Mohammed 

Goldberg  was a lso  in  your  in te rv iew.  20 

MS GOODSON:    Ja .   I  d id  no t  have a  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  

Mr  Wood because  I  d id  no t  come f rom Reg iments .    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.  

MS GOODSON:    R igh t .   So dur ing  the  per iod ,  January  to  

February,  my cont rac t  was a lways w i th  Mr  Ange l .   I  on ly  
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s ta r ted  –  i f  you  cou ld  ca l l  i t  work ing  w i th  Mr  Wood s l igh t ly,  

f rom the  1s t  o f  March .   

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS GOODSON:    A l though he d id  in te rv iew me.   You a re  

abso lu te l y  cor rec t .   But  there  was a lmost  a  in  

communica t ion  be tween January  and February.    

ADV SELEKA SC:    What  was Mr  C l ive  Ange l ’s  pos i t ion?  

MS GOODSON:    Mr  C l ive  Ange l  i s  the  person tha t  s igned 

my employment  cont rac t  and my unders tand ing  was  tha t  he 

was the  ac t ing  CEO of  the  Ho ld ing  Group unt i l  Mr  Wood  10 

came onboard .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes?  

MS GOODSON:    So  you w i l l  no t ice  in  my emp loyment  

cont rac t ,  I  am one o f  the  on ly  peop le  tha t  Sa l im Essa has  

ac tua l l y  s igned an employment  cont rac t  fo r  and Mr  C l ive  

Ange l .   So I  was the  f i rs t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS GOODSON:    . . .employee.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  you know Mr  Sa l im Essa?  

MS GOODSON:    Wel l ,  he  in te rv iewed,  i f  you  reca l l .   I  20 

ment ioned.   And to  answer  your  quest ions.   D id  I  esca la te  

my concern .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes?  

MS GOODSON:    Okay.   In  a  roundabout  way I  was  t ry ing  

to  answer  you.   I  d id  to  esca la te  the  concern  to  
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Mr  Go ldberg ,  nor  d id  I  esca la te  the  concerns to  Mr  Wood  

because I  d id  no t  have an opera t iona l  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  

them.    

 However,  I  d id  esca la te  the  concern  to  Mr  Ange l  

on  a  da i l y  bas i s .   I  communica ted  i t  to  Mr  Sagar.   I  

communica ted  i t  to  m is ter  –  whatever  p r inc ipa ls  a t  

McK insey,  Mr  Lawrence J ink l ing (?) .   I  th ink ,  I  s tand  

cor rec t .   I  esca la ted  i t  to  Mr  Essa and I  esca la ted  i t  to  

m is te r. . .   I  mus t  ge t  i t  r igh t .   Mr  Koko.   Or  was i t  

Mr  Matshe la?   Mr  Koko.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Matshe la  Koko.  

MS GOODSON:    Mr  Koko.   Mr  Matshe la  Koko.   And I  

esca la ted  i t  to  Mr  Koko.   So,  yes ,  I  – Mr  Koko,  when he 

was here  yesterday,  re fe renced tha t  emot iona l  mee t ing  tha t  

I  had w i th  h im.   And,  I  mean,  you  can see how – he  s t i l l  

ge t t ing  angry  now even though th is  was years  ago.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  he  was he re  on  Monday.  

MS GOODSON:    Sor ry.   Forg i ve  me.    

ADV SELEKA SC:    H ’m.  

MS GOODSON:    Yes.   And i t  was tha t ,  I  was te l l ing  h im 20 

about  the  acr imon ious re la t ionsh ip  tha t  we were  hav ing  a t  

McK insey and was rea l l y  see ing  some way tha t  Tr i l l i an  

cou ld  ge t  some fo rm or  representa t ions on  these work 

s t reams.   We cou ld  no t  ge t  pa id  fo r  no t  do ing  work .    

 And a l though we  d id  no t  have the  peop le  to  do  
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the  work  a t  the  t ime,  we  had th ree  years  to  ge t  peop le  in  

work  and to  ge t  exper ience.   And we were  t ry ing  to  ge t  

peop le  i n  –  peop le  in  cha i rs  i n  f ron t  o f  computers ,  s ta r t ing  

the  1 s t  o f  Apr i l .    

 And every  s ing le  t ime we wou ld  pu t  fo rward  any 

k ind  o f  v iews. . .   Whenever  my COO and I  pu t  fo rward  any 

k ind  o f  v iews in  t e rms o f  the  de l i very  approach. . .  where  we 

are  exper ts  wh ich  is  Pr imary  Energy spec i f i ca l l y,  we were  

jus t  d ismissed.    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .   But  I  have seen in  your  a f f idav i t  10 

your  re fe rence to  ind iv idua ls  o r  exper t s  taken f rom Ind ia  

and the  Un i ted  Arab Emi ra tes  who  were  used by  Tr i l l i an  to  

p rov ide  ce r ta in  serv i ces .  

MS GOODSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Can you go in to  tha t?  

MS GOODSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And ta lk  about  i t?   Because you  do say 

tha t  McK insey was not  p leased by  tha t .  

MS GOODSON:    No.   So the  Emi ra te  and Ind ian  team 

come f rom a  company ca l led  eGateway and. . .   A l though 20 

a lso ,  i f  you  t ry  to  Goog le  i t ,  you  wou ld  no t  rea l l y  f ind  much  

about  the  organ isa t ion  bu t  what  I  unders tood about  th is  

spec i f i c  company is  tha t  they had a  representa t ion  or  

foo tpr in t  in  bo th  Duba i  and in  Ind ia  and tha t  they were  

exper t s  in  coa l  power  s ta t ions .   So they f i t  rea l l y  good f rom 
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a  techn ica l  perspect ive  in  the  Genera t ion  work  s t ream.    

 A f te r  I  s igned my employment  cont rac t  and i t  

was in  December  2015 when Mr  Ange l  s ta r ted  ar rang ing  a l l  

these meet ings w i th  McK insey,  the  one such mee t ing  was  

w i th  the  Genera t ion  work  s t ream in  wh ich  the re  were  

rep resenta t i ves  o f  bo th  McK insey and eGateway.    

 But  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  ment ion  to  the  Cha i r  i s  tha t  I  

d id  no t  have any v iew o f  b r ing ing  eGateway onboard .   I  

was to ld  tha t  they are  re la ted  to  our  shareho lder  and we  

w i l l  use  them.   That  i s  my –  I  had .   There  was no p lace to  10 

meet ,  debate  or  d iscuss th ings.    

ADV SELEKA SC:    And . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS GOODSON:    So  tha t  i s  a l l  tha t  i t  was.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And who is  the  shareho lde r  there ,  i t  

was sa id  there ,  re la ted  to?  

MS GOODSON:    Mr  Essa.   Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  you –  who is  te l l ing  you th is?  

MS GOODSON:    Mr  Ange l .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Mr  Ange l  i s  te l l ing  you eGateway i s  

re la ted  to  Mr  Essa.  20 

MS GOODSON:    Mr  Essa has an  in te res ted  i n  eGateway.   

The words verbat im.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS GOODSON:    That  i s  what  Mr  Ange l  to ld  me.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And you say you were  to ld  tha t  
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because you d id  no t  have a  v iew about  engag ing  

eGateway.   You were  to ld  tha t  they  shou ld  be  engag ing .  

MS GOODSON:    They w i l l  be  our  subcont rac tor.   Ve rbat im.   

They w i l l  be  our  subcont rac tor.    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   I  am in te res ted  in  why you 

ment ioned th is .   I s  i t  because they had the  –  the  lacked the  

qua l i f i ca t ion  to  do  the  work  requ i red?  

MS GOODSON:    Wel l . . .   Can I  ge t  there?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  go  ahead.  

MS GOODSON:    Okay.   So my f i rs t  in i t ia l  engagement  w i th  10 

the  Emi ra te  and the  Ind ian  team was in  Mel rose Arch  in  

In tegra ted  Cap i ta l ’s  o f f i ce .   I t  was both  McK insey and 

eGateway.   I  was  in t roduced to  eGateway and as  I  sa id  to  

Mr  Se leka,  I  was to ld  they w i l l  be  your  subcont rac tor.   Th is  

was in  December  o f  2015.    

 So we have s tar ted  these engagements .   I f  you 

jus t  go  fo rward  a  l i t t le  b i t  in  t ime and I  now you put  

yourse l f  in  th is  –  ca l l  i t  the  end o f  January,  the  beg inn ing  

o f  February  2016,  these teams have progressed.    

 McK insey a t  the  t ime was happy to  have two 20 

ind iv idua ls  f rom eGateway on the  Genera t ion  team because  

they d id  have the  eng ineer ing  qua l i f i ca t ions .   They d id  

have the  exper ience.   And so  they were  a t  the  Medup i  

Power  S ta t ion  mak ing  th is  d i f fe rence.    

 The team was qu i te  b ig .   I  th ink  the  team had 
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about  20  peop le  o f  wh ich  there  were  on ly  two 

rep resenta t i ves  o f  Tr i l l i an  and those  Tr i l l i an  

rep resenta t i ves  were  no t  employees but  ra ther  two  

gent lemen o f  Ind ian  descent  o r  Ind ian  na t iona l i t y  ra the r.   

Sor ry.   Because they l i te ra l l y  had to  come in  and go  out . . .    

 They were  par t  o f  the  team.   So i t  was not  even 

Tr i l l i an .   So in  the  background I  am in  Joburg ,  in  Sandton  

and I  am hav ing  these f igh ts  w i th  McK insey say ing  we need  

to  pu t  peop le  onboard  because  nobody is  learn ing  o r  

nobody is  ge t t ing  the  sk i l l s  requ i red .    10 

 And McKinsey wou ld  say to  me but  we a re  happy 

tha t  you have got  two peop le  f rom,  you know,  on  the  

Genera l  work  s t ream and I  wou ld  argue w i th  them say ing  

my issue as  tha t  tha t  goes aga ins t  the  fac t  tha t  th is  needs 

to  be  a  proud ly  South  A f r i can bus iness.   We are  ac tua l l y  

no t  t ra in ing  anybody to  ge t  these sk i l l s  f rom Tr i l l i an ’s  s ide .    

 My second i ssue  was tha t  i t  i s  spec ia l i s t  sk i l l s .   

I f  you  are  t ry ing  to  s ta r t  a  management  consu l t ing  

company,  you do not  want  spec ia l i s t  sk i l l s  un less  the  

in ten t ion  is  to  spec ia l i se  and  tha t  was not  Tr i l l i an  20 

Management  Consu l t ing ’s  s t ream.   We wanted to  s tay  in  

genera l  eng ineer ing  management  consu l tancy.    

 So the  fac t  tha t  McK insey wou ld  on l y  use or  

u t i l i se  spec ia l i s t  sk i l l s  tha t  were  no t  even South  A f r i can,  I  

found to  be  a  huge cont rad ic t ion .    
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 And then they wou ld  argue w i th  me la te r  and 

tu rn  i t  a round. . .  la te r  to  say bu t  you are  no t  even  

comply ing  w i th  your  requ i rements  because a l l  the  peop le  

tha t  you are  pu t t ing  on  the  teams,  and a l l  the  peop le  be ing  

two,  r igh t ,  a re  no t  even South  A f r i can.    

 And th is  came ou t  la te r.   So th is  c rea ted a  lo t  o f  

content ion  amongst  so  many o ther  i ssues tha t  we wou ld 

f igh t  about .    

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  jus t  to  unders tand th is .   You  

ment ion ing  eGateway as  a  . . . [ ind is t inc t  –  aud io  cu t  o f f ]  . . .  10 

to  TMC.  

MS GOODSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And TMC is  a  subcont rac to r  to  

McKinsey.  

MS GOODSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And you are  say ing  TMC was p rov id ing  

personne l  f rom eGateway wh ich  were  no t  TMC’s  own  

employees.  

MS GOODSON:    Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Was there  a  subcont rac t  ag reement  20 

be tween TMC and  eGateway?  

MS GOODSON:    A t  the  t ime in  January  there  was not ,  

there  was subsequent ly  a  subcon t rac tors ’ ag reement  tha t  

was s igned.   I  s igned i t ,  i t  was s igned between  Tr i l l i an  

Management  Consu l t ing  and eGateway and the  te rms o f  
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tha t  agreement  in  my op in ion  are  comple te l y  lud ic rous.   

They are  lud ic rous to  the  ex ten t  tha t  eGateway wou ld  ge t  

775 o f  eve ry th ing  tha t  Tr i l l i an  Management  Consu l t ing  

wou ld  earn  on  the  Genera t ion  work  s t ream.    

 Now to  me tha t  was an exorb i tan t  amount  o f  money  

fo r  two peop le ,  i t  meant  tha t  the i r  charge out  ra te  per  hour  

was someth ing  c lose  to  l i ke ,  I  do  no t  know,  a  ha l f  a  m i l l i on  

per  hour  cons ider ing  how many  hours  they wou ld  have 

worked on a t  Ma juba.   But  I  s igned tha t  agreement  w i th  a  

gent leman –  I  cannot  remember  h i s  name r i gh t  now,  sor ry,  10 

i t  was a  long  t ime ago but  I  am sure  I  go t  the  

subcont rac to r ' s  agreement  as  an  annexure ,  I  am sure .   I f  i t  

i s  no t ,  I  w i l l  g ive  i t  to  you.   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  there  is  ex tens ive  amount  o f  

annexures there .  

MS GOODSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Bu t  was McKinsey aware  tha t  you were  

subcont rac t ing?   

MS GOODSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Were  they aware?  20 

MS GOODSON:    Yes bus iness these gent lemen,  fo r  

example ,  when  they s ta r ted  work ing ,  Ma juba  – the  

genera t ion  work  s t ream s ta r ted  w i th  Majuba power  s ta t ion  

and i t  s ta r ted  ve ry,  very  ear ly  in  January  the  en t i re  team 

went  to  Majuba and worked there ,  so  they were  work ing  on 
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s i te .   So they were  s tay ing  in  the  same guesthouse.   These 

ind iv idua ls  made  i t  very  c lear  tha t  they were  f rom Ind ia ,  

they were  no t  f rom Tr i l l i an ,  they worked fo r  eGateway,  they 

d id  no t  have ema i l  addresses a t  the  t ime f rom Tr i l l i an  and I  

d id  no t  h ide  i t ,  there  was noth ing  to  h ide ,  I  was a l so  very  

c lea r  tha t  they subcont rac ted  because tha t  i s  wha t  I  was  

to ld .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.   Any o ther  subcont rac to r  Tr i l l i an  

used?  

MS GOODSON:    Yes,  then there  was another  10 

subcont rac to r .   The o the r  subcont rac to r  was ca l led  Cut t ing  

Edge Commerce.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And in  wh ich  work  s t ream d id  they use 

Cut t ing  Edge?  

MS GOODSON:    That  was in  the  procu rement  work  s t ream 

and i t  was on a  very  s im i la r  sor t  o f  se tup  as  eGateway,  

there  was a l ready an ex i s t ing  re la t ionsh ip  i t  seemed 

because aga in ,  shor t l y  a f te r  I  s igned my employment  

cont rac t  Mr  Ange l  sa id  to  me we wi l l  be  work ing  w i th  them,  

our  sha reho lder  has an  in te res t  in  the  company,  I  was  20 

in t roduced to  d i rec tors .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     And the  shareho lder  i s  aga in  Mr  Sa l im 

Essa?  

MS GOODSON:    Mr  Essa,  ja .   I  was in t roduced  to  two 

d i rec tors  o f  Cut t ing  Edge Commerce,  one was  A l tha f  
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Emmamal ly  and the  o the r  was Mr  Santosh Choubey and  

they had a l ready been work ing  a t  Eskom,  they were  

es tab l i shed a t  Eskom.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   A re  these South  A f r i cans?  

MS GOODSON:    Yes,  tha t  i s  a  South  A f r i can company.   Mr  

Choubey,  whenever  he  wou ld  emai l  me,  however,  h i s  emai l  

add ress came f rom Sahara  Computers .   So I  suspected a  

l ink  to  the  Gupta  fami ly  o f  bus iness organ isa t ions.    

ADV SELEKA SC:     Was there  a  subcont rac t  ag reement  

be tween TMC and  …[ in tervenes]  10 

MS GOODSON:    I  never  –  no ,  I  d id  no t  f ind  a  

subcont rac to r ’s  agreement  be tween TCM and Cut t ing  Edge.   

I  never  s ta r ted  negot ia t ions  w i th  one and I  have never  

seen one.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    In  tha t  per iod  tha t  you were  there  a t  

TMC d id  Eskom make any payments  in  regard  to  the 

serv i ces  under  the  env isaged MSA? 

MS GOODSON:    I  wou ld  no t  even  know.   So a t  the  t ime I  

wou ld  no t  have known because I  asked Mr  Ange l  –  aga in ,  

Cha i rman,  i f  you  jus t  keep in  m ind  tha t  my re fe rence f rame 20 

is  la rge  organ isa t ions l i ke  Ang lo  Amer i can  and I  

unders tand how those type o f  o rgan isa t ions work  and are  

s t ruc tured.   I  expected as  the  CEO of  the  subs id ia ry  TMC 

tha t  I  wou ld  have sight  of  the  f inanc ia ls  o f  the  bus iness,  I  

wou ld  assume tha t  one o f  my KPIs  wou ld  be  the  f i nanc ia l  
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hea l th  o f  the  subs id ia ry,  as  i s  reasonab le  fo r  a  CEO and 

then I  asked Mr  Ange l  th i s  and I  sa id  a  case o f  when do I  

ge t  access to  the  bank accounts  and when do I  ge t  access 

to  manag ing  how money is  coming in  and go ing  out ,  he  

says no ,  tha t  w i l l  never  happen,  a l l  the  money is  go ing  to  –  

a l l  the  f inanc ia l  aspects  o f  Tr i l l i an  w i l l  be  managed 

cent ra l l y  a t  the  ho ld ing  company.   So the  execu t ive  

management –  so a l l  the CEOs and  COOs wi l l  do  no th ing 

when i t  comes to  f inances and  I  thought  tha t  was very  

b izar re  because  I  wondered then  how wi l l  you  manage my 10 

per fo rmance?  How wi l l  you  know tha t  I  am actua l ly  do ing 

a  good job o r  no t?   You  know?  So  no ,  to  answer  your  

quest ion ,  dur ing  my tenure  I  had  abso lu te ly  no  idea  i f  any 

amounts  had  been pa id  o r  any –  I  knew about  the  one 

invo ice  be ing  issues,  wh ich  I  am sure  we wi l l  speak about  

la te r,  bu t  I  d id  not  know anyth ing  about  any money coming 

in ,  I  was concerned  a t  the  –  i t  was on  the  16  March  2016 

and  I  remember go ing  to  the  CFO who was  Mr  Tebogo 

Lobo lo ,  the  CFO o f  the  ho ld ing  company,  TCP 

…[ in te rvenes]  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Tebogo Leba lo?  

MS GOODSON:    Excuse me?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I s  i t  Tebogo Leba l lo .  

MS GOODSON:    Yes,  so r ry,  Tebogo Leba l lo .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  
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MS GOODSON:    Yes.   I  remember  go ing  to  h im and go ing  

h im because the  Reg iments  team had come on board  and I  

knew tha t  sudden ly  our  cos t  base had inc reased,  now we 

had to  pay sa la r ies  fo r  qu i te  a  few more  peop le  then pr io r  

to  them coming  on board .   I t  was on ly  Ben and I ,  Mr 

Benade and I  tha t  we were  pay ing  sa la r ies  fo r  and I  

remember  go ing  to  Mr  Leba l lo  ask ing  h im how are  we go ing  

to  pay fo r  th ings  i f  the  MSA is  no t  s igned,  because i f  the 

MSA is  no t  s igned we are  no t  ge t t ing  money in  and I  

remember  even ask ing  Mr  Ange l  and Mr  Ange l  sa id  to  me 10 

tha t  i t  does not  mat te r  because  we have shareho lder  

cap i ta l  investmen ts ,  as  you do in  a  s ta r t -up ,  so  i t  d id  no t  

seem unreasonab le  bu t  w i thout  have s igh t  o f  how much  

money the  shareho lder  was prepared to  pu t  in to  the  

company,  I  d id  no t  know how long th is  bus iness wou ld  

ac tua l l y  be  ab le  to  susta in  i t se l f ,  so  I  had no s igh t  o f  any  

money coming in to  the  bus iness dur ing  my tenure ,  Mr  

Se leka.   I  have la te r  come to  f ind  ou t  when I  was work ing  

w i th  Mr  Bud lender  on  h is  invest iga t ions in to  Tr i l l i an ,  so  

tha t  was in  2017.   I  found out  fo r  t he  f i rs t  t ime tha t  Tr i l l i an  20 

was in  fac t  pa id  –  I  th ink  i t  was a f te r  my depar tu re ,  though.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   There  were  payments  in  August  2016,  

December  2016 and February  2017 .    

MS GOODSON:    Bu t  I  came to  know tha t  la te r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  you had a l ready le f t  by  tha t  t ime.  
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MS GOODSON:    I  beg your  pardon? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    You had a l ready le f t .  

MS GOODSON:    Yes,  co r rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The date  you gave when you make 

enqu i r ies  about  how are  we go ing  to  pay the  employees  

because the  MSA is  no t  ye t  s igned,  d id  you say 16  March  

2016?  

MS GOODSON:    Cor rec t ,  i t  was a  Wednesday.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   What  were  to ld  about  Mr  Sa l im Essa a t  

the  beg inn ing  o f  your  employment  a t  Tr i l l i an?  10 

MS GOODSON:    About  the  company?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   About  h im persona l ly,  h is  ro le ,  because 

you have been ment ion ing  he  is  the  major i t y  shareho lde r.  

MS GOODSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Ja ,  what  ro le  were  you to ld  he  is  

go ing  to  p lay  in  the  group?  

MS GOODSON:    Okay.   Mr  Sa l im Essa d id  no t  te l l  me 

much about  h imse l f  when I  met  w i th  h im.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

MS GOODSON:    Bu t  I  unders tood Mr  Sa l im Essa ’s  ro le  20 

ra the r  th rough Mr  Ange l .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay,  te l l  the  Cha i rperson. ,   

MS GOODSON:    Can I  exp la in  tha t?   Okay.   Mr  Ange l  –  

th is  i s  rea l l y  in te res t ing  –  so  I  had ment ioned,  Cha i r,  tha t  

Mr  Ange l  and I  had met  a  few t imes before  I  s igned my 
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employment  cont rac t  and obv ious ly  once I  had accepted 

the  o f fe r  we were  in  a  lo t  more  constant  contac t  and then  

Mr  Essa –  i t  was  before  I  had commi t ted  to  jo in ing  Tr i l l i an  

–  I  do  reca l l  ask ing  Mr  Ange l  how was i t  possib le that 

Tr i l l ian  could secure work at Eskom?  And the reason why I 

asked that quest ion is because coming f rom – just having 

experience, a l i t t le  b i t  of experience in the management 

consult ing s ide of th ings,  I  just  know that  working with in the 

publ ic sector is very d i ff icu l t ,  i t  is very d i ff icu l t  to secure work 

with in the publ ic sector and probably more di ff icu l t  to secure 10 

work in the publ ic sector i f  the company does not have a 

h istory to prove that  i t  has del ivered,  as such, and that  would 

have been Tr i l l ian  because Tr i l l ian  was just  start ing and Mr 

Angel speci f ica l ly said to me that  you need people with 

re lat ionships and our major shareholder,  Mr Essa, is one of  

those people with those re lat ionships.   His words to me that 

you need people to open the taps,  the phrasing that  he used 

and our shareholder can open the taps.   

 In subsequent conversat ions – I  do not remember the 

exact date, I  a lso remember asking Mr Angel th ings l ike what 20 

is the long term plan of Tr i l l ian ,  was is the intent ion – because 

Integrated Capita l  Management spoke of  themselves as an 

IPL, an in i t ia l  publ ic offer ing.   So typical ly in th is industry i f  

people are sett ing up an IP,  oh,  you set t ing up a company to 

l is t  on the stock exchange ul t imately so I  had asked Mr Angel 
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th is,  is that  the intent ion with Tr i l l ian?  And he repl ied to me 

and he said he is not  sure because Tr i l l ian ’s l i fespan is 

envisaged only for the current  d ispensat ion,  is  what he had 

said to me at the t ime.  So in my mind,  Tr i l l ian  was only going 

to be working for about three years or that  is  only the plan for 

three years and af ter that  people would be what is going to 

happen with i t  la ter? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Oh,  so  the  cur ren t  d ispensat ion ,  you 

unders tood i t  to  be  a  per iod  o f  th ree  years?  

MS GOODSON:    Yes because tha t  was 2016.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

MS GOODSON:    I  unders tood to  l i ke  a  po l i t i ca l  a f f i l i a t ion 

w i th  our  cur ren t  Pres ident  and the  next  e lec t ion  was go ing  

to  happen …[ in te rvenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Jus t  face  the  Cha i rperson,  what  d id  

you unders tand i t?  

MS GOODSON:     I  unders tood  tha t  i t  was l i ke  cur ren t  

d ispensat ion  mean ing  the  po l i t i ca l  par t y  o f  the  ru l ing  par ty  

o r  the  Pres ident .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Who was the  P res ident  a t  the  t ime? 20 

MS GOODSON:    Mr  Jacob Zuma and the  next  genera l  

e lec t ion  wou ld  have been he ld  a t  tha t  t ime,  i t  was e i ther  

2019 or  2020,  was go ing  to  be  the  next  genera l  e lec t ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  I   wou ld  no t  reca l l  o f fhand.  

MS GOODSON:    Sor ry?  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   I  wou ld  no t  reca l l  o f fhand.  

MS GOODSON:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  there  was to  be  a  loca l  government  

e lec t ion  in  2016.   There  was a  genera l  e lec t ion  in  2014 and  

there  was anothe r  genera l  e lec t ion  in  2019.  

MS GOODSON:    Ja ,  so  th i s  was sa id  to  me in  2016 .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

MS GOODSON:    So  the  cur ren t  d ispensat ion  wou ld  have 

been about  th ree  years .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The next  e lec t ion  was schedu led  fo r  10 

2019,  as  you say.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  o f  course  there  was go ing  to  be  an  

in te rna l  ANC e lec t ion  in  December  2017,  the  ANC was  

go ing  to  be  hav ing  an  e lec t i ve  conference in  December  

2017 a t  wh ich  e lec t ions wou ld  take  p lace fo r  i t s  leaders .  

MS GOODSON:    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  wh ich  one were  you ta lk ing  about?  

MS GOODSON :    I  persona l ly  unders tood i t  to  be  the 

genera l  e lec t ion  where  we cou ld  ge t  a  new Pres ident ,  I  do 

no t  fo l low po l i t i cs ,  so  I  d id  even know about  the  2017,  bu t  20 

my pe rsona l  unders tand ing  when Mr  Ange l  sa id  the  cur ren t  

d ispensat ion ,  I  assumed the  t ime per iod  f rom tha t  po in t  to  

be  un t i l  the  next  genera l  e lec t ion .   That  i s  what  I  

unde rs too d .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  
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MS GOODSON:    So  p lease fo rg ive  my na ive ty  in  te rms o f  

po l i t i cs ,  I  . . . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r ight .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   That  i s  f ine .   Because I  th ink  when the  

Eskom board  members  were  appo in ted  in  2014,  December  

2014,  they were  appo in ted  on a  th ree  year  te rm .   Ja ,  I  

know some o f  them le f t  in  2017.    You do – okay,  you were  

to ld  tha t  about  Mr  Sa l im Essa.  

MS GOODSON:    Does tha t  answer  the  quest ion  co r rec t l y?   

I  mean,  we l l  appropriatel y  tha t  i s  a l l  I  can  te l l  you ,  10 

un for tunate ly.    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  no ,  tha t  is  a l r igh t .  

MS GOODSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   What  you know,  wh ich  is  what  you were 

to ld ,  and then Mr  Ange l  to ld  you  about  –  jus t  repeat  the  

words,  you sa id  Tr i l l i an  i s  what  fo r  the  d ispensat ion?  

MS GOODSON:    Tr i l l i an  –  because I  asked h im about  the 

fu tu re  p lans.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

MS GOODSON:    R igh t  and he jus t  says what  we know is  20 

tha t  we have got  the  secured  work  fo r  the  cur ren t  

d ispensat ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Oh,  go t  secured work  fo r  cur ren t  

d ispensat ion .  

MS GOODSON:    And when you look a t  the  cash f lows fo r  
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the  top  eng ineer  p rogramme they were  fo r  th ree  years .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja ,  can you  take  the  Cha i rperson to  

tha t  p lease?  

MS GOODSON:    Oh,  okay.   Le t  me  see …[ in te rvenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC:   That  i s  on  page  450.  

MS GOODSON:    Sor ry,  415 or  450? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   450,  yes .  

MS GOODSON:    Okay,  here  we go .   Okay …[ in te rvenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC:   O f  Eskom bund le  14 ,  Cha i rperson.  

MS GOODSON:    So  I  have got  the  tab le  in  f ron t  o f  me,  I  10 

w i l l  jus t  wa i t  fo r  the  Cha i rman to  ge t  i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS GOODSON:    Okay.   So Cha i rman,  what  you see in  the  

tab le  on  tha t  page is  …[ in tervenes ]  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The tab le  i s  on  page 451.  

MS GOODSON:    I  am ta lk ing  about  –  bu t  I  on ly  

re fe renc ing  the  tab le  now,  i s  tha t  okay?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   No,  I  am jus t  p lac ing  on  record .  

MS GOODSON:    Sor ry.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The r igh t  page  fo r  the  tab le .  20 

MS GOODSON:    Sor ry.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You may proceed.  

MS GOODSON:    The f i rs t  co lumn o f  the  tab le  you can see 

in  the  top  corne r  i t  says  Top Eng ineer,  r igh t?   And  in  tha t  

en t i re  co lumn i t  g ives  you a  who le  bunch o f  d i f fe ren t  work  
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p rogrammes and  work  s t reams and I  am go ing  to  exp la in  

them to  you now shor t l y.   Okay?  Some o f  them d i f fe ren t  

f rom what  I  have spoken about  bu t  I  am go ing  to  pu t  tha t  in  

contex t  he re .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Jus t  be fore  you do tha t  –  Cha i r,  I  see  

we a re  f i ve  m inutes  in to  your  tea  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  le t  us  take  the  tea  break,  we w i l l  

resume a t  twenty  f i ve  to  twe lve .    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    We ad jou rn .  10 

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you,  DCJ –  so r ry,  Cha i rperson.   

Jus t  be fo re  we p roceed,  Cha i r,  I  have been ab le  to  ge t  the  

ass is tan t  to  update  the  bund le  w i th  Ms Goodson ’s  

supp lementary  a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Which  is  in  Eskom bund le  14(B )  page  

566.1 .   I  wou ld  jus t  l i ke  Ms Mothepu to  conf i rm i t  so  tha t  20 

we can admi t  i t  as  an  exh ib i t .   Ms Goodson,  [ indist inct  – 

dropping voice]   Ms Mothepu.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Did you get  the page number? 

MS GOODSON:    Sorry? 
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Page 566.1.   She wi l l  help you.   Is that  

the one? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you,  Mr Seleka,  I  have got  i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ms Goodson,  you are also there,  page 

566.1? 

MS GOODSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I t  i s  an  a f f idav i t  –  we l l ,  the  l ine  says  

s ta tement  bu t  i t  i s  on  the  las t  page commiss ioned by  a  

Commiss ioner  o f  Oaths .   

MS GOODSON:    Cor rec t .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:     The las t  page  is  page 566.5 .    

MS GOODSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    A re  you there?  

MS GOODSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And there  is  a  s ignatu re  there ,  you 

conf i rm tha t  to  be  your  s ignature?  

MS GOODSON:    Yes,  I  do .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The a f f idav i t  i s  da ted  19  February  

2021.   Do you conf i rm th is  to  be  your  a f f idav i t?  

MS GOODSON:    Yes.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    And conf i rm the  contents  thereo f .  

MS GOODSON:    Abso lu te ly.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cha i rperson ,  I  beg leave to  have i t  

admi t ted  as  EXHIBIT U31.2.  

CHAIRPERSON :    The s ta tement  o f  Ms B ianca Cher ise  
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Goodson s ta r t ing  a t  page 566.1 ,  Eskom bund le  14 ,  i s  

admi t ted  togethe r  w i th  i t s  annexures and w i l l  marked as  

EXHIBIT U31.2.  

STATEMENT OF BIANCA CHERISE GOODSON TOGETHER 

WITH ANNEXURES HANDED IN AS EXHIBIT U31.2 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you,  Cha i rperson.   Ms Goodson,  

jus t  be fore  the  ad journment  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    D id  you want  me to  pu t  th is  f i l e  away fo r  

now or…? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes p lease,  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you.   So  we must  go  back  to  the  

f i le  we were  dea l ing  w i th  be fore  the  ad jou rnment .   That  i s  

EB,  Eskom bund le  14 .   Ms Goodson,  you were  about  to  

take  the  Cha i rpe rson th rough the  fo recast  cash f lows and 

wh ich  is  the  tab le  on  page 451 and I  th ink  as  you  do tha t ,  

p lease g ive  the  Cha i rperson the  contex t ,  where  does th is  

tab le  come f rom,  who gave i t  you,  fo r  what  reason and 

what  does the  tab le  show? 

MS GOODSON:    Okay,  Mr  Cha i rman,  i f  you  look a t  the 20 

tab le  and you look a t  the  f i rs t  co lumn you w i l l  see  in  the  

top  le f t  hand s ide  i t  says  Top Eng ineer  under  wh ich  i t  has  

go t  PMO,  GX Des ign  and so  fo r th .   A l l  those in  tha t  co lumn 

are  d i f f i cu l t y  sub-work  s t reams,  wh ich  I  w i l l  exp la in  each  

shor t l y.  
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 And then you have two more  co lumns w i th  numbers  

in  them,  the  f i rs t  i s  da ted  the  17  December  2015 and i t  i s  a  

fo recast  and then  there  is  another,  tha t  i s  the  18  November  

2015,  wh ich  is  a  fo recast .   Okay?  

 I  wou ld  l i ke  to  jus t  g ive  you the  contex t  o f  where  

those numbers  come f rom.   So the  co lumn tha t  ta lks  to  

November,  wh ich  is  the  r igh tmost  co lumn,  was an  emai l  

tha t  I  rece ived f rom Mr  C l ive  Ange l .   Mr  C l ive  Ange l  had  

fo rwarded an emai l  to  me.   The or ig ina l  emai l ,  when you  

look a t  the  th read,  the  or ig ina l  au thors  o f  the  emai l  was Mr  10 

Vikas Sagar  and a t tached to  th is  emai l  was an Exce l  

spreadsheet  and  in  the  Exce l  spreadsheet  where  those 

d i f fe ren t  work  s t reams,  so  to  say tha t  you see on the  le f t  

hand las t  co lumn.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You sa id  the  or ig ina l  au thor  o r  the  

person f rom whom the  emai l  o r ig ina ted?  

MS GOODSON:    Or ig ina ted .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    From Mr  Sagar.  

MS GOODSON:    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    He was f rom McKinsey.  20 

MS GOODSON:    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MS GOODSON:    Okay,  so  Mr  Sagar  sent  the  ema i l  to  Mr  

Ange l ,  Mr  Ange l  then sends the  emai l  to  me,  okay?  There  

is  an  Exce l  worksheet  in  there  and I  have ex t rac ted  the  
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numbers  f rom tha t  Exce l  workshee t  in to  the  co lumn on the  

r igh t -hand s ide .  The way tha t  you  read the  numbers  i s  tha t  

where  the  number  i s  pos i t i ve ,  so  fo r  example  you see Top 

Eng ineer,  341.   That  i s  ac tua l l y  a  cost  tha t  McK insey has  

to  invest ,  okay?  Wherever  the  number  i s  negat ive ,  i t  i s  

ac tua l l y  revenue.   So i f  you  go to  the  bo t tom and you look  

a t  to ta l  cash f low,  the  second row f rom the  bot tom and you  

look in  the  co lumn fo r  November  2015 you see tha t  the  

number  there  i s  m inus 10 311,  so  tha t  number  i s  ac tua l l y  

…[intervenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sorry,  I  am sorry,  le t  me try and – yes, 

I  can see that ,  ja . 

MS GOODSON:    Okay.   That number is actual ly mi l l ions,  so 

that  number is actual ly 10 bi l l ion and 300 mi l l ion.  Okay? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Hang on one second.  Did you say i t  

represented McKinsey’s or Tr i l l ian’s cost ,  the posi t ive one? 

MS GOODSON:    This the posi t ive [ inaudib le – speaking 

simultaneously]3 

CHAIRPERSON :    The cost? 

MS GOODSON:    The combined team that  the stream worked, 20 

so th is would be McKinsey and I am assuming also the supply 

development partner,  [ inaudib le – speaking simultaneously]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay. 

MS GOODSON:    So that is why,  Cha i rman, you wi l l  see in 

the Top Engineer l ine i tem is actual ly an investment 
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…[intervenes] 

CHAIRPERSON :    Just hang one second.  Yes, okay,  you can 

cont inue,  ja. 

MS GOODSON:    Okay.   So before I  start  expla in ing what th is 

table represents, would you mind i f  I  take you through what the 

d i f ferent  work streams are on the left  hand side? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  yes. 

MS GOODSON:    Okay.   So the Top Engineer in the context3 

of  th is table is that  you f i rst  descr ibed i t  to me, when you were 

asking the clar i fy ing quest ion about engineers.   So the Top 10 

Engineer there talks to McKinsey’s investment or McKinsey 

and i ts partners investment into Eskom employees to make 

them top engineers and that  investment in both scenarios,  the 

December forecast ,  as wel l  as the November forecast  as an 

investment of  341 mi l l ion. 

CHAIRPERSON :    Why –  i s  there  any s ign i f i cance  to  the  

fac t  tha t  the  ear l ie r  month ,  namely  November  2015 ,  i s  pu t  

a t  the  end and the  la te r  month ,  namely  December  2015,  i s  

pu t  be fore?  I s  i t  an  account ing  th ing  or  what?  

MS GOODSON:    The reason why I  d id  tha t ,  Mr  Cha i rman, 20 

is  because I  wanted to  show you the  one f i rs t  tha t  was 

most  p reva i l ing  so  the  one tha t  was the  last  and most  

s ign i f i can t  one tha t  I  have seen  as  ac tua l l y  the  m idd le  

co lumn,  so  i t  cou ld  –  there  i s  no t  any …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Made any s ign i f i cance,  okay,  a l r igh t .   
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MS GOODSON:    In  tha t  [ inaudib le – speaking 

simultaneously]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r ight .   Okay,  cont inue.  

MS GOODSON:    So  obv ious ly  I  assume tha t  December  

supersedes November  in  te rms o f  the  fo recast  and you w i l l  

see  tha t  those numbers  are  s l igh t ly  d i f fe ren t  by  a  b i l l i on .   

But  the  Top Eng ineer  p rogram was an investment  f rom 

McKinsey’s  and i t s  par tne r  s ide  in to  Eskom and tha t  i s  why 

i t  i s  a  pos i t i ve  number,  okay,  because they have got  to  

expend the  money.  10 

 The next  l ine  i s  PMO and what  tha t  s tands fo r  a  

p ro jec t  management o f f i ce ,  so  i t  i s  an  overhead  o f  the  

en t i re  s t ruc ture  tha t  has to  oversee th is  en t i re  p rog ramme,  

so  aga in  tha t  i s  no t  revenue genera t ion ,  i t  i s  ac tua l l y  and 

expense and tha t  i s  why you see McKinsey fo recast ing  

expense as  be ing  320 mi l l ion .   Okay?  

 The next  two l ines  tha t  you see is  GX des ign  and 

sca le  and then GX ro l lou t .   Okay?  Those two together  

make the  genera t ion  work  s t ream tha t  I  spoke  to  you  abou t  

ea r l i e r  t ha t  f o rms  par t  o f  t he  Top  Eng ineer ’s  MS A.   So 20 

those  two  toge the r  a re  genera t i on .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So  GX s tands fo r  genera t ion?  

MS GOODSON:    Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  see  they desc r ibed above the  tab le .  

MS GOODSON:    Cor rec t .   Okay?  So what  th is  tab le  te l l s  
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you  is  tha t  in  December  the  au thors  o f  th is  spreadsheet  

wh ich  was McKinsey ant ic ipa ted  a t  leas t  R3 b i l l i on  as  

revenue f rom the  genera t ion  work  s t reams togethe r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  i s  the  two f igures  added toge ther?  

MS GOODSON:    Yes,  so  i f  you  take  the  1537 and you add 

i t  to  1537,  I  am round ing  i t  and I  am ca l l ing  i t  3  b i l l i on  bu t  

i t  i s  a  l i t t le  b i t  more  than 3  b i l l i on ,  okay?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS GOODSON:    And you see tha t  tha t  number  s tays  more  

or  less  the  same in  November  as  we l l .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  okay.  

MS GOODSON:    Okay?  I f  we go to  the  next  l ine  i tem 

which  is  p rocurement ,  I  exp la ined the  procu rement  work  

s t ream to  you ea r l ie r  and McKinsey had env i saged tha t  i t  

and i t s  par tners  wou ld  accrue a  revenue o f  1 .6  b i l l i on  fo r  

p rocu rement .    

CHAIRPERSON :    What  were  they  ta lk ing  about  when they 

were  say ing  they wou ld  make tha t  k ind  o f  money under  

p rocu rement?   D id  they mean tha t  tha t  i s  the  tenders  tha t  

they wou ld  ge t  f rom Eskom? 20 

MS GOODSON:    No,  the  way  tha t  th is  cont rac t  was 

s t ruc tured was tha t  McKinsey and i t s  par tners  wou ld  on ly  

ever  ge t  pa id  –  i t  was re fer red  to  as  an  a t  r i sk  cont rac t .   

So when you looked a t  the  dra f t  vers ions o f  th is  MSA,  you 

know,  in  a l l  the  cont rac ts  you a lways get  an  amount ,  what  
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i s  i t  go ing  to  cos t  you to  ge t  the  serv i ce .   The amount  o f  

th is  spec i f i c  cont rac t  was a lways ze ro  because the  

exp lanat ion  was tha t  Eskom wou ld  never  spend money on  

the  consu l tan ts ,  the  consu l tan ts  wou ld  on ly  ge t  pa id  ou t  o f  

the  sav ings tha t  they rea l i se .  

 So the  way you read th i s ,  under  the  procurement  fo r  

example  is  tha t  McKinsey had ant ic ipa ted  tha t  ou t  o f  a l l  the  

sav ings tha t  they  wou ld  have got  fo r  Eskom,  they wou ld  be  

deserv ing  o f  o r  they wou ld  accrue  1 .6  b i l l i on  o f  tha t  sav ing  

as  fees.   That  i s  how you read i t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MS GOODSON:    Wel l ,  th is  en t i re  tab le .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MS GOODSON:    PED is  Pr imary  Energy  and I  exp la ined  

tha t  tha t  was one  o f  the  work  s t reams in  Top Eng ineers  and  

fo r  Pr imary  Energy McKinsey and  i t s  par tners  had p lanned 

to  ge t  1 .6  b i l l i on  in  revenue.    

 And then f ina l l y  you have c la ims  and I  ment ion  i t  

here  and tha t  in  tha t  ins tance McKinsey fe l t  tha t  they cou ld  

earn  710 mi l l ion .   So I  have exp la ined to  you now the  four  20 

work  s t reams tha t  I  to ld  you I  unders tood a  par t  o f  the  Top  

Eng ineers .   I  have exp la ined Genera t ion ,  I  have exp la ined 

procurement ,  I  have exp la ined Pr imary  Energy and I  have  

exp la ins  c la ims.   So when I  looked  a t  th is  workshee t ,  those 

are  the  on ly  ones tha t  I  knew const i tu ted  th is  Top 
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Eng ineers  p rog ramme,  okay?  

 However,  McKinsey c lea r ly  were  p lann ing  o the r  

work  tha t  I  d id  no t  know about ,  okay?  And now they s ta r t  

look ing  a t  the  l ines  tha t  s ta r t  by  new bu i ld .   I  have no idea 

what  tha t  i s  bu t  c lear l y  McKinsey a t  some po in t  in  

November  though t  tha t  they wou ld  ge t  1 .5  b i l l i on  fo r  tha t .   

There  was f inanc ing  and fund ing ,  I  do  no t  know anyth ing  

about  tha t .   There  was the  co rpora te  p lan ,  I  d id  no t  know 

anyth ing  about  tha t ,  there  was f i xed  f inance s t ra tegy,  I  d id  

no t  know anyth ing  about  tha t  and  then c lear ly  they were  10 

p lann ing  to  do  someth ing  w i th  nuc lea r  power  w i th  300  

mi l l ion .  

 When you add a l l  o f  those up and you take  away the  

expenses,  you are  look ing  a t  the  ne t  cash f low l ine  wh ich  

shows you tha t  the  ne t  cash f low  f rom McKinsey and as  

par tners  wou ld  have been –  I  am round ing  i t  up ,  wou ld  

have been rough ly  R10 b i l l i on  tha t  they acc rue th rough a l l  

th is  work  and tha t  was the  p lan  and th i s  work  –  and i t  i s  

par t  my annexures,  i t  i s  cash f lowed,  so  you can  ac tua l l y  

see i t  as  a  sequence o f  t ime and you can see tha t  th is  20 

money wou ld  be  accrued over  th ree  years  s ta r t ing  1  

January  2016.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So  what  a re  these,  p ro jec t ions?  

MS GOODSON:    P ro jec t ions fo recast ,  yes .   And  I  reca l l  

when I  ment ioned  ear l ie r  tha t  when I  was hav ing  d i f f i cu l t ies  
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w i th  my re la t ionsh ip  w i th  McKinsey,  I  had esca la ted  the  

concerns to  Mr  Essa.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes?  

MS GOODSON:    And I  reca l l  Mr  Essa say ing  to  me who do 

these guys th ink  they a re ,  we w i l l  rep lace them because I  

am get t ing  my 5  b i l l i on .   Now the  5  b i l l i on  i s  50% 

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry,  jus t  repeat  tha t  sentence?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

MS GOODSON:    Okay,  I  ment ioned ear l ie r  …[ in te rvenes]  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    You reca l led  someth ing ,  tha t  i s  what  I  

want  to  hear.  

MS GOODSON:    You reca l l  tha t  I  ment ioned tha t  I  

esca la ted  the  acr imon ious re la t ionsh ip  w i th  McKinsey to  a  

few peop le ,  one o f  them be ing  Mr  Essa.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And tha t  acr imon ious re la t ionsh ip ,  I  want  

to  ask  you ear l ie r,  was between yourse l f  and McKinsey or  

w i th  TMC or  Tr i l l i an  w i th  McKinsey? 

MS GOODSON:    Wel l ,  I  was TMC.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  so  …[ in tervenes]  20 

MS GOODSON:     We had no o the r  employees.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  so  bu t  you  –  what  you mean i t  was  

not  persona l?  

MS GOODSON:    No,  no ,  no ,  i t  was bus iness,  i t  was jus t  

…[ in te rvenes]  
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CHAIRPERSON :    I t  i s  jus t  because o f  who you  

rep resented?  

MS GOODSON:    Abso lu te ly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MS GOODSON:    I t  was comple te l y  professional .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MS GOODSON:    And I  ment ioned ear l ier that  I  escalated 

that  acr imony to Mr Essa and in that  meet ing wi th Mr Essa 

Mr Essa says wel l ,  i f  McKinsey do not  play bal l  we wi l l  

replace them, I  st i l l  want  my 5 bi l l ion.   Now 5 bi l l ion 10 

…[intervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    They would replace them and…? 

MS GOODSON:    I  st i l l  want  my 5 bi l l ion.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MS GOODSON:    The 5 bi l l ion is ha l f  of  the 10 bi l l ion.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  is hal f  of  the 10 bi l l ion.  

MS GOODSON:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  not  that  is f ine.   But  just  go back to  

table 1 forecasted close,  that  table,  did you say was based 

on the emai l  you received f rom Mr Angel  who had received i t  20 

f rom Mr… 

MS GOODSON:    Sagar.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m? 

MS GOODSON:    Mr Sagar f rom McKinsey.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Sagar,  yes,  okay.  
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MS GOODSON:    That  is November and on the 17 December 

I  received an update and that  is …[ intervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  so you received two? 

MS GOODSON:    Yes,  correct .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r ight  but  do you by any chance 

st i l l  have the document that  you received? 

MS GOODSON:    Ja, .  Part  of  my …[ intervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes?  Is i t  here by any chance? 

MS GOODSON:    H ’m,  par t  o f  annexures.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine  bu t  these are  10 

the  f igures .  

MS GOODSON:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    These f igures  you took f rom tha t  

document .  

MS GOODSON:    And i f  fo r  some reason i t  i s  no t  a t tached  

jus t  le t  me know I  w i l l  g ive  i t  to  you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay,  okay.   Okay,  so  do  you have 

any unders tand ing  as  to  why revenue was re f lec ted  under  

negat ive?  

MS GOODSON:    No,  i t  i s  so  uncommon because usua l ly  20 

your  revenue is  pos i t i ve  and your  expenses are  negat ive ,  

bu t  i t ’ s  very  uncommon …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja  or  was i t  way o f  h id ing  what  i t  

rep resented?  

MS GOODSON:    Cha i r ,  you are  ask ing  me to  specu la te .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    You don ’ t  know.   Ja ,  no ,  no ,  i f  you  do  

not  know,  you do not  know but  i t  i s  – ja ,  okay,  you may  

cont inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Ms Goodson,  I  am reminded o f  Ms  

Mothepu ’s  ev idence about  an  emai l  tha t  came f rom her,  

tha t  came f rom Mr  Er ic  Wood,  Er ic  Wood to  he r,  w i th  a lso  a  

tab le  o f  ca sh  f lo w  p ro jec t ions.   I  am wonder ing  whethe r  

cou ld  th is  be  –  are  you aware  o f  tha t  exchange between  

the  two o f  them? 

MS GOODSON:    No and I  fo l lowed  Ms Mothepu ’s  ev idence 10 

in  the  par l iamentary  enqu i ry  and here  so  c lose ly  t ha t  i t  i s  

ac tua l l y  –  no ,  i t  is  the  f i rs t  t ime tha t  you are  ment ion ing  i t  

to  me,  bu t  I  wou ld  g lad l y  take  a  look.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     No,  she men t ioned i t  here ,  when she 

was he re .  

MS GOODSON:    Okay.   I  do  no t  know,  I  have never  

conducted and exerc i se  to  compare  i f  they  are  the  same or  

d i f fe ren t ,  bu t  I  mean,  I  w i l l  happ i l y  do  i t  i f  you  want  me to .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   No,  tha t  i s  f ine ,  you w i l l  ge t  the  

re ference to  tha t .  20 

MS GOODSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    When do you say you rece ived tha t  

emai l  tha t  came f rom Mr  Er i c  –  was i t  Mr  Er ic  Wood? 

MS GOODSON:    Ange l .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   From Mr  Ange l .   So i t  came f rom Mr  
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Sagar,  to  Ange l ,  Mr  Ange l  then fo rwarded i t  to  you.  

MS GOODSON:    Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   When was tha t?  

MS GOODSON:    The dates  are  shown on the  top  o f  the 

co lumn.   The f i rs t  –  sor ry,  the  second one was  the  17  

December  and then the  f i rs t  one was on the  18  November.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Oh,  those are  the  da tes  when you  

rece ived the  in fo rmat ion .  

MS GOODSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Oh,  I  see.   So you c rea ted th i s  tab le  10 

yourse l f .  

MS GOODSON:    Yes,  I  d id ,  because they were  no t  in  

exact ly  the  same fo rmat  bu t  fo r  the  sake o f  th is  a f f idav i t  

…[ in te rvenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  okay,  bu t  the  in fo rmat ion  obv ious l y  

come f rom tha t  emai l  wh ich  was sent  to  you?  

MS GOODSON:    Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Then you le f t  too  soon before  th is  

money cou ld  be  made.  

MS GOODSON:    Abso lu te ly.   I  thought  th is  –  I  mean,  th is  20 

was so  ambi t ious .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You thought  what?  

MS GOODSON:    Th is  i s  so  ambi t ious ,  th is  can be the  GDP 

o f  a  smal l  count ry.   I  d id  no t  th ink  tha t  th is  was ac tua l l y  

ach ievab le  in  th ree  years .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Oh.  

MS GOODSON:    I  have never  seen ca sh  f lo ws l i ke  th is  

and remember,  I  come f rom min ing ,  r igh t ,  Ang lo  Amer i can  

has huge ca sh  f lo ws,  th is  was fo r  consu l t ing ,  th is  was  

shock ing ,  to  say the  least .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    What  was the  reason why the  

in fo rmat ion   was sent  to  you?  

MS GOODSON:    I  do  no t  even know why.   I  th ink  Mr  Ange l  

jus t  sent  i t  to  me.   I  do  no t  even th ink  I  requested i t  

because I  d id  no t  know i t  ex is ted .   So Mr  Sagar  sent  i t  to  M 10 

Ange l .   Mr  Ange l  wou ld  very  o f ten  do  tha t ,  he  wou ld  

l i te ra l l y  jus t  qu ick  fo rward  w i thout  g iv ing  me exp lanat ions  

or  comment  and he wou ld  jus t  send me th ings and I  th ink  

tha t  was the  case w i th  these as  we l l .   I f  I  reca l l  cor rec t l y,  

there  was not  even any tex t  in  the  emai l ,  i t  was jus t  

fo rwarded to  me.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    What  d id  you do w i th  i t?  

MS GOODSON:    I  looked a t  i t  and I  thought  i t  was  

r id icu lous,  I  do  no t  know o f  any s ta r te r  company –  when I  

pu t  my Tr i l l i an  ha t  on  and I  do  no t  th ink  about  McKinsey 20 

because I  know McKinsey because I  know McKinsey earns  

a  lo t  more  money than s tar t -up  compan ies .   As  a  s ta r t -up  

company,  Tr i l l i an  mak ing  th is  k ind  o f  money in  th ree  years  

i s  bewi lde r ing ,  r igh t?    

CHAIRPERSON :    So  the  focus was  ove r  th ree  years?  



04 MARCH 2021 – DAY 355 
 

Page 77 of 361 
 

MS GOODSON:    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay and a t  tha t  t ime Tr i l l i an  was a  few 

months o ld .  

MS GOODSON:    Yes and Tr i l l i an  on ly  had me employed a t  

th is  t ime on these dates ,  and I  knew tha t  I  cannot  do  work  

fo r  10  –  fo r  5  b i l l i on .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Wel l ,  you  had not  even o f f i c ia l l y  s ta r ted  

your  employment .  

MS GOODSON:    I  was s t i l l  work ing  fo r  Ang lo  Amer ican on 10 

these days.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.   Cou ld  i t  be  tha t  th is  was used –

wel l ,  now look ing  a t  the  t im ing  o f  i t ,  i t  was used to  en t ice  

you to  come in to  the  company?  

MS GOODSON:    No because th is  was on ly  shared w i th  me 

a f te r  I  s igned …[ in tervenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC:   A f te r  [ inaudible – speaking 

simultaneously]  

MS GOODSON:    I  th ink  he  reminded me tha t  I  s ign  my 

employment  cont rac t  a  day be fore  t he  17 t h .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   On the  17 t h ,  I  see .  

MS GOODSON:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  you  sa id  you rece ived th is  emai l  

wh ich  had these f igures  when? 

MS GOODSON:    The one was on the  18  November  and the  
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o ther  one was on  the  17  December.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  on  the  – those dates ,  on  those  

co lumns,  a re  the  da tes  o f  rece ip t .  

MS GOODSON:    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    O f  the  emai l .  

MS GOODSON:    Yes and i f  I  remember  cor rec t l y  i t  i s  even 

the  da te  o f  the  Exce l  sp readsheet  tha t  i s  a t tached to  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   They a re  no t  the  da tes  when the  

fo recast  was made by  whoever  made the  fo recast .  

MS GOODSON:    I  assumed both  are  t rue .   I t  i s  the  da te  10 

tha t  I  rece ived and i t  i s  the  fo recast  was made,  I  be l ieve  

both  are  t rue .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So  these are  two compan ies  

exchang ing  in fo rmat ion  about  ca sh  f lo w  p ro jec t i ons in  

respect  o f  work  tha t  they are  busy negot ia t ing  together  a t  

Eskom or  i s  i t  work  o r  some o f  i t ,  Top Eng ineers ,  you sa id  

they had a l ready s ta r ted  in  December?  

MS GOODSON:    That  i s  the  th ing ,  McKinsey looked as  

though they had s tar ted  work ing .   Just  to  come to  your  f i rs t  20 

quest ion  you say  tha t  we were  negot ia t ing  th is  together,  

Tr i l l i an  was not  par t  o f  these negot ia t ions  a t  a l l ,  r igh t ,  so  

McKinsey was negot ia t ing  th is  and tha t  i s  why I  was the  

rec ip ien t  o f  the  in fo rmat ion  no t  conc luded as  – or  no t  

inc luded as  somebody to  add or  supp lement  the 
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in fo rmat ion .   I  was jus t  g iv ing  i t .   R igh t ,  so  a l l  the  work  

tha t  was happen ing  in  the  background I  rea l l y  go t  the  

impress ion  tha t  i t  was spec i f i ca l l y  be tween Eskom and 

McKinsey and Tr i l l i an  as  the  SD par tne r  was jus t  in fo rmed,  

sor t  o f  l i ke  baggage on the  s ide .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    D id  you know about  Reg iments?  

MS GOODSON:    I  knew tha t  Reg iments  had  ex is ted  

because when I  met  Mr  Er ic  Wood and Mr  Boba t  in  my 

in te rv iew …[ in te rvenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Jus t  face  to  the  Cha i rperson.  10 

MS GOODSON:    Sor ry,  fo rg ive  me,  sor ry.   I  knew tha t  

Reg iments  ex i s ted  and I  knew tha t  Mr  Wood was go ing  to  

be  leav ing  in  March the  fo l low ing year.   I  d id  no t  know 

anyth ing  e lse  about  Reg iments  a t  the  t ime.   Aga in ,  you  

know,  you Goog le  and you read the  webs i te  bu t  I  have  

never  ever  heard  o f  them before  tha t  one t ime.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Bu t  I  am ask ing  spec i f i ca l l y  in  th is  

per iod ,  November  2015,  December  2015.   D id  you know 

tha t  there  was a  company ca l led  Reg iments  in  ex is tence? 

MS GOODSON:    Yes I  d id  because Mr  Er ic  Wood  and Mr  20 

Bobat  had in te rv iewed me in  about  November  be fore  I  

s igned my cont rac t  and tha t  was  my f i rs t  in t roduct ion  o r  

ever  ment ioned o f  the  words Reg iments .   That  i s  a l l  tha t  I  

knew o f  them.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Can you –  you  were  in te rv iewed by  Mr  
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E r ic  Wood and Mr  Mohammed Bobat ,  d id  you say i t  was in  

October?  

MS GOODSON:    The  in i t ia l  conversa t ion  s ta r ted  around 

about  September /October  and I  th ink  the  in te rv iew was 

a lso  p robab ly  in  about  October.   Cou ld  have been.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You have exp la ined what  Mr  Er ic  

Wood ’s  pos i t ion  was,  Mr  C l ive  Ange l ’s  pos i t ion  was but  

what  was the  pos i t ion  o f  Mr  Mohammed Bobat?  

MS GOODSON:    Th is  i s  in te res t ing ,  there  is  some 

in fo rmat ion   tha t  I  found out  in  Ms Mothepu ’s  ev idence to  10 

you,  Cha i r.   But  a lso  what  Ms Mothepu sa id  to  you,  I  was 

a lso  to ld  by  Mr  Ange l ,  r igh t?   So what  I  was to ld ,  C l i ve  had 

to ld  me tha t  I  wou ld  be  meet ing  Mr  Wood a t  th is  in te rv iew.   

He d id  no t  te l l  me pr io r  tha t  I  wou ld  be  meet ing  Mr  Bobat .   

So I  was a  b i t  su rpr ised tha t  when  I  wa lked in to  the  room 

there  were  two gent lemen there .    

So a f te r  hav ing  th is  in te rv iew wi th  them I  asked  

C l ive  who was Mr  Bobat  and why d id  he  have to  in te rv iew 

me and Mr  Ange l  sa id  to  me the  reason why Mr  Bobat  

in te rv iewed you is  because he wou ld  have taken the  job ,  20 

so  he  was or ig ina l l y  earmarked fo r  the  CEO of  TMC.   And i f  

I  reca l l  co r rec t l y,  Ms Mothepu ment ioned the  same in  her  

ev idence and tha t  i s  what  she had heard  f rom the  

Reg iments  s ide ,  r igh t?    

So then I  asked Mr  Ange l  –  I  was l i ke  okay,  so  then  
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why is  he  no t  tak ing  i t?   Why a re  you guys look ing  a t  me?  

And Mr  Ange l  sa id  because he has  go t  a  be t te r  oppor tun i ty.  

.  And,  you know,  when peop le  have sa id  tha t  to  me,  I  have 

got  a  be t te r  oppor tun i ty  ,  i t  i s  a lmost  imp l ies  tha t  you are  

leav ing  the  company or  the  organ isa t ion  and you are  go ing  

somewhere  e l se .   So I  assumed tha t  and tha t  maybe he  

was leav ing  on  decent  te rms and he jus t  wanted to  make 

sure  tha t  he  was leav ing ,  Er ic  go t  somebody tha t  he  

t rus ted  and tha t  i s  why he was see ing  me in  the  in te rv iew,  

tha t  i s  what  I  assumed.    10 

But  on  the  8  December  2015,  Mr  Ange l  ca l led  me 

and Mr  Ange l  sa id  to  me do you remember  I  to ld  you tha t  

Mr  Bobat  has go t  be t te r  th ings?  I  sa id  yes?  He says have 

you seen the  head l ines?  L ike  I  th ink  i t  –  yes ,  i t  cou ld  be  

the  9  December  and I  saw the  head l ines and the  head l ines 

were  tha t  Mr  Bobat  was jo in ing  Mr  van Rooyen a t  Treasury 

and had rece ived  promot ion  and Mr  Ange l  sa id  to  me,  see 

our  boss,  who is  Mr  Essa –  no t  encourages –  tha t  was not  

the  word ,  he  p romotes loya l ty.  

CHAIRPERSON :    He what?  20 

MS GOODSON:    P romotes loya l ty.  

CHAIRPERSON :    He promotes loya l ty.  

MS GOODSON:    So  the  way tha t  I  in te rpre ter  tha t  was tha t  

Mr  Bobat  must  have been qu i te  loya l  in  some way to  my 

boss,  wh ich  was Mr  Essa,  and fo r  tha t  he  became a  spec ia l  
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adv iser  to  Mr  van Rooyen when Mr  Rooyen went  to  

Treasury bu t  I  was –  Mr  Ange l  d id  exp l i c i t l y  te l l  me tha t  Mr  

Bobat  was ac tua l l y  supposed to  have my job ,  tha t  was the  

or ig ina l  p lan .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And the  da te  you gave,  is  i t  9  

December  20…[ in tervenes]  

MS GOODSON:    I t  i s  the  8 t h  o r  the  9 t h ,  i t  i s  one o f  those  

two,  i t  i s  in  my a f f idav i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja ,  bu t  2015?  

MS GOODSON:    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    What  d id  you say the  head l ines were  

say ing?  

MS GOODSON:    That  i s  when the  news broke tha t  Mr  van  

Rooyen wou ld  be  the  new Finance Min is te r,  and the  

head l ines,  the  head l ines ve ry  shor t l y  a f te r  tha t  was  – no  I  

th ink  Mr  Ange l  to ld  me tha t  he  was coming  but  the  

head l ines shor t l y  a f te r  tha t  was about  Mr  van Rooyen ’s  

adv isors  and tha t  he  came wi th  Mr  Whi t ley.   I t  was  

someth ing  a long  those l ines  Cha i rman,  I  s tand to  be  

cor rec ted  on the  exact  da tes  bu t  I  do  know Mr  Ange l  to ld  20 

me tha t  Mr  Bobat  was w i th  Mr  Van Rooyen a t  Treasury.    

And I  th ink  the  med ia  p icked up  on the  adv isors  

poss ib ly  a  l i t t le  b i t  la te r  I  do  no t  remember  exac t ly  the  

da te ,  th is  was four  yea rs  ago,  f i ve  years  now.   I  am su re  i t  

i s  in  my a f f idav i t .   
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ADV SELEKA SC:     Ja ,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .   You say the  8 t h  o r  

the  9 t h  o f  December  2015.   You were  exp la in ing  tha t ,  you 

thought  when they say h is  wha t ,  h is  ge t t ing  a  be t te r 

pos i t ion .  

MS GOODSON:    P romoted,  yeah we l l ,  I  am sor ry,  what  I  

meant ,  what  I  sa id  verbat im was tha t  h is  go t  be t te r  op t ions,  

h is  go t  a  be t te r  oppor tun i ty.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Ja ,  bu t  you thought  tha t  he  wou ld  be  

leav ing  the  company.  

MS GOODSON:    Yes.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:     Why d id  you say you thought  i s  i t  

because he s t i l l  remained a t  TMC? 

MS GOODSON:    No,  because usua l ly,  tha t  i s  what  you 

wou ld  say,  l i ke  when I  res igned f rom Ang lo  fo r  example ,  

and peop le  wou ld  ask  bu t  why is  B ianca res ign ing .   My  

manager  wou ld  say,  she has go t  a  be t te r  oppor tun i ty,  

imp ly ing  tha t  I  am mov ing ,  mov ing  somewhere  e lse .   

ADV SELEKA SC:     Yes,  fo r  g reener  pastures .  

MS GOODSON:    So  to  say.   

ADV SELEKA SC:     When Ms Mos i lo  was he re ,  she 20 

tes t i f ied  about  the  appo in tment  o f  Mr  Bobat  as  the  spec ia l  

adv iser  to  Min is te r  Van Rooyen.  

CHAIRPERSON:    A re  you re fer r ing  to  Ms Mothepu?  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Ms Mothepu.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  i t  i s  jus t  tha t  the  record  w i l l ,  
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whoever  reads the  reco rd  w i l l  th ink  i t  i s  somebody e l se  

because I  th ink  you ment ioned  a  name ra ther  than a 

surname I  th ink .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Oh,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Or  d id  I  m isunders tand.   Ja ,  so  

somebody who i s  read ing  the  t ransc r ip t  w i l l  th ink  you are  

ta lk ing  about  somebody e lse  and  they wou ld  say,  who is  

th is  now.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:     Ms Mothepu tes t i f ied  about  th is  

appo in tment  bu t  she a lso  sa id  the re  was a  purpose  beh ind  

i t  a t  one po in t .   Now,  I  am no t  go ing  to  te l l  you  tha t  

purpose.  D id  you  know o f  any purpose beh ind  Mr  Bobat ’s  

appo in tment  as  a  spec ia l  adv i ser  to  the  Min is te r?  

MS GOODSON:    A t  the  t ime,  wha t  I  knew or  what  I  know 

now? 

MS GOODSON:    A t  the  t ime,  i t  was ment ioned to  me I  am 

jus t  t ry ing ,  I  am jus t  t ry ing  to  make sure  tha t  I  ge t  the  da te  

cor rec t l y,  the  year.   No,  no t  in  Treasury,  once Mr  Bobat  had 20 

moved to  COGTA,  Mr  Ange l  was very  exp l i c i t  tha t  we wou ld  

be  get t ing  oppor tun i t ies  the re ,  bu t  no t  in  the  t ime w i th  

Treasury.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Okay.  

MS GOODSON:    No,  wh ich  was on ly  a  few days,  bu t  the  
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fo l low ing year  when I  s ta r ted ,  so  in  January  2016 the re  

was a  lo t  o f  movements  and Tr i l l i an  Management  

Consu l t ing  was inv i ted  to  p resent  to  Min is te r  Van Rooyen 

fo r  example ,  and  Mr  Bobat  fac i l i ta ted  tha t .   So,  there  was  

qu i te  a  b i t  o f  connect ion ,  bu t  p lease fo rg i ve  me I  d id  no t  

p lan  on  d iscuss ing  tha t  here  knowing tha t  th is  i s  the  Eskom 

work  s t ream but  I  am happy to  d iscuss i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Yes,  no  I  have seen i t  in  your  

a f f idav i t .  

MS GOODSON:    Okay.   10 

ADV SELEKA SC:     I t  i s  a l ready there .   

MS GOODSON:    Yes.   

ADV SELEKA SC:     So  you have no chance,  un for tunate ly.  

Okay,  you have ta lked about  the  events  o f  December  2015,  

the  appo in tment  o f  Min i s te r  Van Rooyen as  the  Min is te r  o f  

F inance.   Mr  Bobat  ge ts  to  be  appo in ted  as  a  spec ia l  

adv isor  to  h im bu t  tha t  ge ts  to  be  shor t - l i ved .    

Now you are  in  2016 and you are  tak ing  us  to  the i r  

move f rom Treasury  to  COGTA,  i s  tha t  r igh t?   

MS GOODSON:    Yes.   20 

ADV SELEKA SC:     Then te l l  the  Cha i rperson about  th is  

meet ing  you a re  ta lk ing  about  and who a r ranges the  

meet ing?  

MS GOODSON:    Okay,  can I  go  in to  qu i te  a  b i t  o f  de ta i l  

about  th is?  
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ADV SELEKA SC:     Wel l ,  le t  us  see.   

MS GOODSON:    Okay,  aga in ,  Cha i rman,  p lease fo rg ive  me 

fo r  no t  ge t t ing  the  exact  da tes ,  bu t  I  know tha t  in  my 

a f f idav i t ,  they  are  very  exp l i c i t  and they a re  suppor ted  by  

meet ing  request  and emai ls .   

I t  was somet ime in  January,  and I  re fe r  to  i t  in  my 

a f f idav i t  as  a  road show be ing  tongue and cheek.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     I  can  he lp  you  w i th  the  page number.  

MS GOODSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Page 457,  four,  f i ve ,  seven,  I  see you 10 

have dates  there .  

MS GOODSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     The f i rs t  week in  January  2016,  8  

January  2016.  

MS GOODSON:    Yes,  co r rec t .   On the  8 t h  o f  January,  Cha i r  

I  ge t  a  ca l l  f rom Mr  Wood.   Now Mr  Wood is  s t i l l  a t  

Reg iment ,  I  had jus t  s ta r ted  work ing  actua l l y  l i ke  tha t  week  

because i t  was f i rs t  day so  to  say  and Mr  Wood asked me 

to  come th rough  to  the  Reg iments  o f f i ces  and he  -  and I  

go ,  I  was qu i te  compl ian t .   And when I  ge t  to  the  20 

Reg iment ' s  o f f i ces ,  he  in t roduces me to  two d i rec to rs  f rom 

a  company ca l led  O l ive r  Wyman and spec i f i ca l l y  these  

d i rec tors  a re  d i rec to rs  o f  O l iver  Wyman but  no t  O l iver  

Wyman South  A f r i ca ,  O l ive r  Wyman Duba i  and Mr  Woods 

says to  me,  we go ing  on a  road show,  and I  sa id  okay,  you 



04 MARCH 2021 – DAY 355 
 

Page 87 of 361 
 

know,  so  what  do  we need to  do?  

So there  is  on l y  four  o f  us  in  tha t  meet ing ,  i t  is  

myse l f ,  Mr  Wood and these two d i rec tors  f rom Ol ive r  

Wyman and,  and  tha t  n igh t ,  tha t  even ing ,  Mr  Wood had  

ar ranged fo r  us  to  have d inner  a t  Wombles in  Parkers  or  

Park town Nor th  or  someth ing  w i th  Mr  Gary  Peter,  in  h is  

capac i ty  as  the  as  the  CFO of  Transnet  a t  the  t ime.  

We have d inner  and tha t  was qu i te  a  surpr i se  fo r  

me,  I  d id  no t  qu i te  expect  i t  and we have d inner  a t  

Wombles,  and the  d iscuss ion  over  d inner  i s  w i th  the  O l iver  10 

Wyman d i rec tors  was,  i s  there  oppor tun i ty  fo r  O l iver  

Wyman to  work  a t  Transnet  where  Tr i l l i an  wou ld  be  the  

supp ly  deve lopment  par tne r.   So the  d inner  conc luded,  the  

next  day…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  bu t  cannot  conc lude l i ke  tha t ,  what  

i s  the  response?  

MS GOODSON:    Oh,  no  I  was  jus t  go ing  to  te l l  you  

every th ing  tha t  I  was go ing  to  te l l  you  but  the  road show 

was l i ke  rea l l y  coo l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Now you took us  to  the  d inner  tab le ,  te l l  20 

us  what  was be ing  d iscussed,  you say they posed the  

quest ion ,  a re  there  bus iness oppor tun i t ies  fo r  us  a t  

Transnet  and then you do not  te l l  us  what  the  response 

f rom Mr  Gary  Peter  was.  

MS GOODSON:    Sor ry,  because  the  po in t  I  am t ry ing  to  
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make is  more  about  the  road show but  abso lu te ly,  I  w i l l  te l l  

you  what  Mr  Gary  Peter  sa id ,  Mr  Gary  Pete r  sa id  tha t  he  

assumed tha t  there  were  oppor tun i t ies  w i th in  Transnet  

eng ineer ing  and,  and I  do  no t  reca l l  the  res t  o f  the  de ta i l s  

o f  tha t  n igh t .  

Th is  was a  long t ime ago and i t  i s  no t  one o f  those 

meet ings where  you take  notes ,  i t ’s  a  d inner  bu t  Mr  Peter  

rep l ied  in  the  a f f i rmat ive .   I  th ink tha t  i s  what  you a re  

look ing  fo r,  and the  next  morn ing  the  road show cont inued  

and Mr  Wood asked me to  co l lec t…[ in tervene]  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Now th is  road show was  tha t  a  

p rogramme in  te rms o f  wh ich  you were  go ing  to  meet  w i th  

po ten t ia l  c l ien t s?   What  i s  the  connect ion  be tween  a  road  

show and what  you were  do ing?  

MS GOODSON:    I t  i s  what  I  ca l l  i t  now a f te r  the  events .   I  

was qu i te  in  the  dark ,  I  d id  no t  an t ic ipa te  the  d inner  w i th  

Mr  Gary  Peter  un t i l  I  go t  the  meet ing  inv i te  f rom Mr  Woods  

PA and then I  jus t  go t  the  mee t ing  inv i te  tha t  we a re  

meet ing  Mr  S ingh  the  next  day and  in  tha t  same a f te rnoon,  

we were  meet ing  the  Min i s te r.   I  woke up in  the  morn ing  20 

expect ing  a  no rmal  day jus t  go ing  to  the  o f f i ce ,  Cha i r  so  in  

h inds igh t  when I  wro te  the  a f f idav i t  I  re fe r red  to  i t  as  a 

road show,  bu t…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  you gave i t  the  te rm road show.  

MS GOODSON:    I  gave i t  the  te rm  road show.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  bu t  why d id  you g ive  the  te rm road  

show? 

MS GOODSON:    Because in  two days we met  rea l l y  

in te res t ing  peop le ,  we met  the  CFO of  Transnet ,  the  CFO 

of  Eskom,  and the  Min i s te r  o f  COGTA in  a  space o f  two  

days.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay a l r igh t ,  okay.  

MS GOODSON:    And a l l  tha t  we do ing  we tak ing  these  

d i rec tors  a round to  meet  a l l  these  in f luent ia l  peop le  and I  

fe l t  l i ke  a  g lo r i f ied  dr ive r.   10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Why d id  you fee l  l i ke  tha t?  

MS GOODSON:    Because,  so ,  sor ry  can I  go  aga in ,  

chrono log ica l l y  now?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  ja .  

MS GOODSON:    So  i t  i s  the  morn ing  a f te r  the  d inner,  Mr  

Wood asked me to  co l lec t  the  O l iver  Wyman d i rec to rs  f rom 

the i r  ho te l ,  and th is  maybe too  much in fo rmat ion ,  bu t  I  

d is t inc t l y  remember  how embarrass ing  th is  was because 

the  ho te l  was next  to  my daughter ' s  schoo l  and my  

daughte r  had th rown up in  the  ca r.   So now you have got  20 

these d i rec tors  o f  th is  company,  in  you r  ca r,  you  got  to  

d r ive  to  Megawat t  Park  f rom Saxon f rom sor t  o f  the  Saxon  

wor ld ,  Sandton a rea and your  car  l i ke ,  you know,  i t  i s  very  

uncomfo r tab le  to  be  ins ide  o f  i t  and you are  on  your  way to  

go  meet  the  CFO of  Eskom.   You know,  I  jus t  remember  
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fee l ing  so  embarrassed and I  jus t  met  these gent lemen the  

day be fo re ,  I  d id  no t  know what  to  ta lk  to  them about ,  I  d id  

no t  know what  to  te l l  them about  Tr i l l i an .  

Tr i l l i an  fo r  a l l  in ten ts  and purposes was on ly  e igh t  

days o ld  you know,  I  mean,  what  was I  expected to  say and  

do fo r  a  company  tha t  tha t  i s  so  huge and has a  g loba l  t ra i l  

l i ke  O l iver  Wyman.   Anyway,  you know peop le  say  fake  i t  

t i l l  you  make i t ,  so  I  t r ied  to  pu t  on  a  smi le ,  I  t ry  to  ac t  

p ro fess iona l ,  I  t ry  to  come across  as  though I  knew what  I  

was do ing  and I  went  to  these meet ings.  10 

And in  tha t  morn ing ,  we met  the  two Ol iver  Wyman 

d i rec tors  and myse l f ,  met  Mr  Wood a t  Megawat t  Park  and 

we were  escor ted  to  the  execut ive  w ing  in  a  board room 

where  we were  in t roduced to  Mr  Ano j  S ingh and i t  was very  

s im i la r  to  the  d inner.   Mr  Wood in t roduced who everybody 

was and the  d i rec tors  f rom Ol iver  Wyman were  very  

fo r thcoming say ing  tha t  we wou ld  l i ke  to  work  w i th  Eskom,  

we th ink  Eskom has got  g rea t  oppor tun i t ies ,  and these are  

the  th ings tha t  they are  th ink ing  cou ld  he lp  Eskom,  and  

they p roposed two work  s t reams.   20 

The one was a  change management ,  a  change 

management  t ype o f  management  consu l t ing  suppor t ,  and  

the  o ther  one was assoc ia ted  w i th  the  nuc lea r  p rog ram and  

Mr  S ingh was very  much in  the  a f f i rmat ive ,  very  much l i ke  

Mr  Peter  and Mr  S ingh was say ing ,  okay f ine  ge t  me a  
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p roposa l ,  send i t  to  me,  le t  us  see what  happens a f te r  th is .  

So the  meet ings  were  very  shor t ,  they  were  very  

in t roducto ry,  so  a t  most  they were  l i ke  45  minutes .   You 

know,  there  was no p lanned agenda,  there  was no  

presenta t ions,  there  was noth ing  l i ke  tha t .   La ter  on  tha t  

a f te rnoon,  Mr  Wood had ar ranged a  meet ing  w i th  Mr  Van 

Rooyen,  so  in  be tween those two meet ings we had tha t  

in t roduced.  

So the  d i rec to rs  o f  O l iver  Wyman and myse l f  went  

to  the  Reg iments  o f f i ces  and wh i le  we were  there  we were  10 

communica t ing  w i th  Mr  Bobat  and  Mr  Bobat  was te l l ing  us  

th ings l i ke ,  o f  what  how do you re fer  to  i t?   Sor t  o f  l i ke  the  

proceed ings.  l i ke  do  not  speak to  the  Min is te r  f i rs t ,  the  

Min is te r  must  s i t  down f i rs t ,  you know,  jus t  the  genera l  so r t  

o f  th is  i s  how you re fer  to  a  Min is te r  and so  fo r th ,  th ings 

tha t  I  d id  no t  rea l l y  know so I  apprec ia ted  get t ing  

feedback.   

Mr  Bobat  then sent  me an emai l  te l l ing  me tha t  I  

have got  to  pu t  together  a  bus iness,  l i ke  a  bus iness 

prospectus  or  bus iness pro f i le  fo r  Tr i l l i an  i t  knocked me o f f  20 

my fee t ,  because th is  company was  on ly  in  b lack ,  as  I  sa id ,  

n ine  days o ld ,  and now I  have got  to  pu t  together  th is  

bus iness proposa l .   

CHAIRPERSON:    So  to  say you were  the  on ly  employee.  

MS GOODSON:    Yes,  th is  was l i ke  a  shock fo r  me ,  r igh t .   
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So  we s i t t ing  in  th is  board room wi th  the  O l iver  Wyman 

d i rec tors ,  i t  i s  easy fo r  them to  come up w i th  a  bus iness 

pro f i le ,  because they have got  a l l  these market ing  teams to  

he lp  them,  they  have got  these amazing  s l ides  and 

presenta t ions.    

Here  I  am s tar t i ng  fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime t ry ing  to  pu t  

someth ing  together  in  any way,  the  long the  shor t ,  we 

eventua l l y  go  to  the  Min is te r  in  Pre tor ia .   So we go and  

meet  the  Min i s te r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     A t  COGTA.  10 

MS GOODSON:    O f  COGTA so Mr  Van Rooyen,  Min is te r  

Van Rooyen and  a t  tha t  t ime,  he  was the  Min is te r  o f  

COGTA.  

CHAIRPERSON:    A t  tha t  s tage,  what  was your  

unders tand ing  o f  the  purpose Why you needed to  meet  the  

m in is te r,  o r  the  scope?  

MS GOODSON:    Based on the  d inner  the  prev ious n igh t  

and in  the  meet ing  w i th  Mr  S ingh in  the  morn ing ,  i t  became 

very  c lear  to  me tha t  th is  was the  road shows a  good name 

to  ac tua l l y  g ive  th is  exper ience because i t  was in t roduc ing  20 

these ent i t ies  o f  the  South  A f r i can peop le  to  the  O l iver  

Wyman d i rec tors  as  Tr i l l i an  be ing  the  fac i l i ta to r  t ry ing  to  

ge t  work ,  tha t  was ve ry  obv ious to  me.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  tha t  i s  what  was obv ious to  you.   

D id  nobody ever  say what  the  pu rpose was?  
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MS GOODSON:    No,  Mr  Wood wou ld  jus t  in t roduce  us  and  

i t  was as  though we were  expected.   Mr  Peter,  and Mr  

S ingh,  fo r  example ,  d id  no t  look  surpr i sed,  l i ke  oh  my 

gosh,  you were  no t  in  my d ia ry,  who a re  you,  why we  

meet ing  there  was no sense o f  tha t  a t  a l l .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay a l r igh t .  

MS GOODSON:    So  we met  the  M in is te r  and we presented 

our…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Who was the  Min is te r  w i th?  

MS GOODSON:    Mr  Whi t ley  and Mr  Bobat .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  was the  DG not  there?  

MS GOODSON:    No,  no  i t  was i t  the  four  o f  us ,  the  us 

be ing  myse l f ,  Mr  Wood and the  two Ol ive r  Wyman d i rec to rs  

s i t t ing  on  the  one  s ide ,  and on the  o ther  s ide  is  Mr  Whi t ley 

and Mr  Bobat  and Mr  Van Rooyen,  tha t  i s  a l l  tha t  was in  

the  meet ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Obv ious ly,  o f  course ,  Mr  Bobat  was we l l  

known to  you.  

MS GOODSON:    I  had met  h im before ,  no t  we l l  known I  

had met  h im befo re .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    I  mean,  ja ,  was we l l  known to  Tr i l l i an .  

MS GOODSON:    I  never  met  Mr  Whi t ley  be fo re .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  you say you had never?  

MS GOODSON:    Never  met  h im be fore  tha t  i s  the  f i rs t  t ime 

tha t  I  ever  met  Mr  Whi t ley.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    A l r igh t ,  cont inue .  

MS GOODSON:    And what…[ in te rvene]  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Sor ry  can you  spe l l  tha t  name? 

MS GOODSON:    Whi t ley?  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Ja .  

MS GOODSON:    W-h- i - t -e - l -e -y.   

ADV SELEKA SC:     Okay,  so  he…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  so  he  was  one o f  the  two persons  

who were  appo in ted  to  -  one was ch ie f  o f  s ta f f  fo r  M in is te r  

Van Rooyen when  he was appo in ted  as  Min is te r  o f  F inance,  10 

and the  o the r  was an adv iso r,  I  keep on fo rge t t ing  wh ich  

one was wh ich ,  was what .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Okay,  the  spec ia l  adv i sor  i s  

Mohammed Bobat .  

MS GOODSON:    Mohammed Bobat  and Mr  Whi t ley.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MS GOODSON:    I  see  my a f f idav i t ;  I  spe l l  i t  W-h- i - t - l -e -y.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     On tha t  same page?  

MS GOODSON:    Yes,  i f  you  look a t  paragraph 60 in  my 

a f f idav i t .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:     Paragraph?  

MS GOODSON:    Paragraph 60,  s ix  zero ,  o f  my a f f idav i t  on  

page 457.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Yes.  

MS GOODSON:    I  spe l t  Whi t ley.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:     Yes,  I  see tha t  yes .  

MS GOODSON:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  cont inue so  the  Min i s te r  the  

meet ing  s ta r ts  and then what  happens?  

MS GOODSON:    We present  ou r  p resenta t ion .   So the 

O l ive r  Wyman d i rec to rs  had the i r  own bus iness  pro f i le  

p resenta t ion ,  and  then I  had -  I  must  be  honest  w i th  you 

Cha i r  a  rea l l y  embarrass ing  presenta t ion ,  because I  on ly  

had a  few hours  to  pu t  i t  together.   I  d id  no t  even know 

what  th is  company was go ing  to  do .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  you d id  no t  need much t ime.  

MS GOODSON:    I  d id  no t  have t ime,  I  d id  no t  even have 

employees,  I  cannot  even say wha t  we good a t  because we 

d id  no t  even…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    You put  i t  as  i f  you  are  compla in ing  tha t  

you were  no t  g iven enough t ime,  you d id  no t  need  enough  

t ime.  

MS GOODSON:    Apparent ly,  apparent ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You cou ld  have  put  i t  together  w i th  your  

eyes c losed.  20 

MS GOODSON:    Bu t  tha t  i s  the  th ing  and I  th ink  tha t  i s  the 

po in t  I  am t ry ing  to  make to  you is  tha t  as  much as  I  wou ld  

be  in  my pro fess iona l  caree r,  i f  I  had got ten  f i red  fo r  tha t  

p iece  o f  work ,  I  wou ld  no t  even  – I  wou ld  be l ieve  my 

employer  was jus t i f ied .   But  when we le f t  tha t  meet ing ,  we 
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rece ived so  much  pra ise  and subsequent  to  these meet ings  

or  subsequent  to  these road shows…[ in tervene]  

ADV SELEKA SC:     You mean on the  bas i s  o f  the 

presenta t ion  you made,  you rece ived so  much p ra ise?  

MS GOODSON:    100% and l i ke  I  sa id ,  i t  i s  p robab ly  one o f  

the  poorest  p ieces o f  work  tha t  I  have ever  made.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     So  who  was pra i s ing  you,  Mr  

Mohammed Bobat?  

MS GOODSON:    No,  Mr  Van Rooyen.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     The Min i s te r?  10 

MS GOODSON:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  do  no t  leave the  meet ing  as  ye t .  

MS GOODSON:    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:    The presenta t i on  o f  the  o ther  peop le  

tha t  you were  w i th ,  what  was i t s  g is t ,  were  they jus t  te l l ing 

the  Min is te r,  what  they do  as  a  company and how good 

they were ,  and the  t rack  reco rd  they had…[ in te rvene ]  

MS GOODSON:    Yes,  abso lu te ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  a imed a t  ge t t ing  what  k ind  o f  work  

as  you unders tood i t?  20 

MS GOODSON:    The Min i s te r  to ld  us  what  k ind  o f  work  we  

cou ld  propose fo r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MS GOODSON:    So  the  Min i s te r  t o ld  us  what  k ind  o f  work  

we cou ld  propose  fo r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Oh.  

MS GOODSON:    So ,  the  Min i s te r  suggested tha t  we look 

a t  the  back to  bas i cs  p rogram and look a t  op t im is ing  tha t  

and a lso ,  Mr  Er i c  Wood was there  so  he  was ta lk ing  about  

some sor t  o f  debt  s t ruc tures ,  some f inanc ia l  ins t ruments  

tha t  a re  beyond me,  and so  th is  back to  bas i cs  p rog ram 

and then there  was a l so  ge t t ing  ready fo r  the  e lec t ions.   

The Min i s te r  p roposed tha t  we put  fo rward  proposa ls  on  

those bases.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  d id  the  Min i s te r  no t  speak a f te r  they 10 

had made the i r  p resenta t ions?  

MS GOODSON:    Yes,  the  presenta t ion  was exact ly  as  you 

desc r ibed,  i t  i s  very  gener ic  in  genera l ,  bas i ca l l y  say ing  

th is  i s  who we are ,  th is  i s  what  we have done,  th is  i s  what  

our  reco rd  is .   I  p resented someth ing ,  tha t  was a  l i t t le  b i t  

more ,  th is  i s  what  we hope to  become and then the  

Min is te r  says,  we l l ,  he  th inks  tha t  there 's  oppor tun i t ies  in  

these areas.  

CHAIRPERSON:    How many employees d id  you say,  

Tr i l l i an  has?  20 

MS GOODSON:    As  on  tha t  day,  i t  was me and my COO.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  d id  you say how many?  

MS GOODSON:    No,  I  cou ld  no t  because I  wou ld  be  ly ing ,  

I  go t  the  tempta t ion  i f  you  fo l low my annexures  i t  i s  so 

embarrass ing .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    D id  you say make what  exper ience you  

had as  a  company?  

MS GOODSON:    Yes,  bu t  I  am ta lk ing  about  -  the  on ly  

th ing  I  cou ld  pu t  in  there  was my persona l  exper ience.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MS GOODSON:    So  I  was bas i ca l l y  pu t t ing  my CV in  there .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay a l r igh t  Mr  Se leka.   Okay,  so  

you are  in  th is  meet ing  the  Min i s te r  make suggest ions o f  

what  a reas or  what  k ind  o f  work  cou ld  be  you cou ld  look a t  

and make proposa ls  about  and then what  happens a f te r  10 

tha t  a t  the  meet ing?  

MS GOODSON:    And then we leave.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MS GOODSON:    We leave.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MS GOODSON:    I  th ink  there  was there  was some so r t  o f  

d iscuss ions be tween them but  th is  was so  long ago I  do  

no t  know a l l  the  spec i f i cs ,  bu t  what  I  do  know tha t  

happened subsequent  to  tha t  meet ing ,  o r  subsequent  to  

the  road show i f  the  case,  I  cou ld  ra ther  do  tha t .   20 

The Ol ive r  Wyman d i rec to rs  went  back to  Duba i  and 

as  soon as  they go t  back home,  so  i t  was probab ly  the  next  

day they had s tar ted  emai l ing  me to  s ta r t  a r rang ing  tha t  we  

move on these oppor tun i t ies ,  r igh t .   E r ic  had ins t ruc ted  me 

to  ge t  to  a r range another  meet ing  w i th  Mr  Pete r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  Mr  Wood .  

MS GOODSON:    Mr  -  fo rg i ve  me,  Mr.  Wood,  had ins t ruc ted  

me to  ar range a  meet ing  w i th  Mr  Peter,  wh ich  I  reached out  

and I  sent  h im an emai l ,  bu t  I  never  go t  a  response.   

However,  Mr  Bobat  had emai led  me or  he  had sent  

someth ing  bu t  he  gave me a  copy o f  the  back to  bas i cs  

program,  so  tha t  a t  leas t  we had some bas is  to  s ta r t  

compi l ing  a  p roposa l  fo r  COGTA.  

And the  O l iver  Wyman d i rec tors  had sent  th rough to  

me a  proposa l  on  the  nuc lea r  p rogram and they were  10 

a l ready d iscuss ing  the  change management  s tu f f .  So my 

re la t ionsh ip  w i th  O l ive r  Wyman d i rec to rs  remained fo r  my  

ent i re  tenure ,  an  en t i re  tenure  be ing  th ree  months  and we  

were  work ing  on  these proposa ls ,  two fo r  Eskom,  and one 

fo r  COGTA.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     D id  you ever  rece ive  any messages 

f rom Mr  Bobat  by  way o f  enve lopes?  

MS GOODSON:    Yes,  I  rece ived a  few messages f rom Mr  

Bobat .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     How many?  20 

MS GOODSON:    What  I  have l i s ted  in  my a f f idav i t  i s  what  

I  -  remember  I  w ro te  th is  a  long t ime ago s t ra igh t  a f te r  I  

le f t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Yes.  

MS GOODSON:    So  I  be l ieve  my a f f idav i t  more .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:     No I  thought  you ment ioned the  

number.  

MS GOODSON:    No a  few.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Oh,  a  few.  

MS GOODSON:    The one was rea l l y,  rea l l y  funny.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You ta lk ing  about  tex t  messages,  

WhatsApp messages?  

MS GOODSON:    No,  I  am go ing  to  exp la in  now,  the  one 

was rea l l y  funny.  I t  was a  Gmai l…[ in te rvene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry  hang on,  a re  you ta lk ing  10 

about  tex t  messages,  WhatsApp messages,  te lephone 

messages,  o r  some le t te rs .  

MS GOODSON:    I  am go ing  to  -  t he  one was an emai l  and 

the  one was an enve lope.   So I  am go ing  to  exp la in .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  ja  so  i t  i s  no t  SMS’s  o r  WhatsApp 

messages?  

MS GOODSON:    No.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MS GOODSON:    So  the  one was an emai l  to  my Gmai l  

account ,  my persona l  Gmai l  account ,  f rom a  person  by  the 20 

name o f  Mika [? ]  Peroz as  in  Span ish ,  P-e- r -o -z ,  and then I  

ge t  i t ,  and I  am l ike ,  I  thought  i t  i s  spam,  r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry  jus t  repea t  tha t?  

MS GOODSON:    I  thought  i t  was spam,  you know how you  

get  junk  mai l  bu t  I  go t  a  phone ca l l  f rom Mr  Boba t  say ing  
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d id  you get  my emai l?   And I  sa id ,  what  emai l?   He says,  i t  

i s  the  one some Peroz,  and I  was l i ke ,  oh ,  i s  tha t  f rom 

you? And I  do  no t  reca l l  what  was in  tha t  spec i f i c  emai l  bu t  

I  s t i l l  have the  emai l ,  so  you can take  a  look a t  i t .   Bu t  tha t  

i s  the  one way tha t  he  communica ted  w i th  me,  wh ich  was  

b iza r re ,  comple te ly  unexpec ted.   The  o ther  

was…[ in te rvene]  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Bu t  be fo re  you move to  the  o ther,  

what  does he say  in  tha t  one?  

MS GOODSON:    I  cannot  remember.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  be fore  you go to  the  o ther  one,  

comple te  your  conversa t ion  w i th  h im when he ca l led  you to  

ask  whether  you rece ived h i s  emai l .  

MS GOODSON:    That  i s  a l l  tha t  I  remember,  I  jus t  want  to  

check in  my a f f idav i t  under  the  Mohammed Bobat  sec t ion  i f  

I  ac tua l l y  ment ioned i t  there .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     That  i s  on  –  we l l  you have h im  

d iscussed on page 441,  paragraph 34.  

MS GOODSON:    Okay,  no  I  do  no t  ment ion  i t  here .   Cha i r,  

I…[ in te rvene]  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry  whereabouts  in  th is  a f f idav i t  

a re  you now Mr  Se leka?  The las t  t ime I  knew we  were  a t  

page 451.   

ADV SELEKA SC:     Yes,  Cha i r.   We are  now rea l l y  ta lk ing  

about  the  pos i t ion  o f  Mr  Bobat ,  she ta lks  about  h im on  
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page 441.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  we have gone back.  

MS GOODSON:    We do not  have to  go  there  because I  see 

in  my a f f idav i t  tha t  I  have not  men t ioned th i s  Mika [? ]  Peroz 

bu t  I  have got  the  emai l .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l ,  i f  you  are  ta lk ing  about  wha t  i s  the 

we need to  go  there ,  okay a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     No,  she is  exp la in ing  tha t  she d id  no t  

ment ion  the  emai l  in  the  a f f idav i t ,  bu t  she has the  emai l .  

MS GOODSON:    And I  can g i ve  i t  to  you.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:     Ja .  

MS GOODSON:    I f  i t  wou ld  be  eas ier.   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry ;  i t  is  impor tan t  tha t  we get  

th ings as  they  happened.   D id  you say tha t  in  the 

te lephone conversa t ion  when he ca l led  tha t  i s  Mr  Bobat  to  

ask  you whether  you rece ived h i s  message or  h is  emai l  o r  

tha t  happened was tha t  you asked h im to  conf i rm i f  tha t  

was f rom h im and  he sa id  yes,  and  tha t  was the  end  o f  the 

conversa t ion?  

MS GOODSON:    That  was the  end o f  i t ,  i t  was ve ry  br ie f  20 

and I  do  no t  remember  the  conten ts  o f  tha t  emai l .   I  th ink  

the  contents  o f  the  emai l  was h im g iv ing  me h i s  p r iva te  

phone number,  I  do  no t  remember  the  de ta i l s  o f  i t ,  bu t  I  am 

happy to  share  tha t  emai l  w i th  you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  you –  ja  tha t  i s  what  I  -  you have got  
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the  emai l?  

MS GOODSON:    Yes,  I  s t i l l  have i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  i t  in  the  bund le  Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:     No,  i t  i s  no t  in  the  bund le ,  Cha i r.  

MS GOODSON:    No I  w i l l  sha re  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  how come you d id  no t  g ive  i t  to  us?  

MS GOODSON:    Because I  d id  no t  th ink  -  I  somet imes 

quest ion  what  is  impor tan t  and what  w i l l  he lp  you  

and…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  s imp ly  f rom what  you are  te l l ing  10 

me on the  face  o f  i t ,  i t  looks  l i ke  he  was h id ing  h is  ident i t y,  

tha t  he  was the  person f rom whom the  message was,  the  

emai l  was coming .   

MS GOODSON:    Yes,  abso lu te ly.   

CHAIRPERSON:    And,  obv ious ly,  w i th  what  you knew,  a t  

the  t ime you wro te  th is ,  you s igned  th is  a f f idav i t ,  you wou ld  

tha t  tha t  wou ld  be  impor tan t .  

MS GOODSON:    Th i s  a f f idav i t  to  a  la rge  ex ten t  was  

ac tua l l y  s t ruc tured fo r  the  pa r l iamentary  inqu i ry  and I  t rus t ,  

and I  have rea l l y  t r ied  -  my vers ion  o f  h is to ry  has no t  20 

changed and the re  was a  few changes tha t  I  made,  tha t  I  

had to  cor rec t  fo r  th is  submiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  i t  was deposed in  September  2020,  

I  guess what  you  may be mean ing  is  tha t  i t  was s t ruc tu red  

a long the  l ines  o f  whatever  o ther  a f f idav i t  you may have  
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made,  bu t  i t  was done in  2020 and by  then sure ly,  you  

knew tha t  there  w i l l  be  some impor tance  in  a t tached to  h im 

not  pu t t ing  h is  name to  tha t  emai l .  

MS GOODSON:    I  am happy to  submi t  a  supp lementa ry  

a f f idav i t  i f  I  have to ,  and cer ta in ly  w i l l  sha re  a l l  the 

in fo rmat ion  tha t  I  have.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Thank you,  Cha i r.   I  asked tha t  

quest ion ,  because we heard  Ms Mothepu ta lk  about  you 

rece iv ing  an  enve lope…[ in tervene]  10 

MS GOODSON:    I  am get t ing  there  s t i l l .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Ja ,  so  tha t  i s  why I  asked tha t  

quest ion .  

MS GOODSON:    Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  i s  there  anyth ing ,  i s  the re  any o ther  

documents  tha t  you have or  tex t  message or  WhatsApp  

message tha t  you have not  g iven  i t  to  the  lega l  team or  

to ld  them about  tha t  i s  impor tan t  based on what  you know,  

now? 

MS GOODSON:    I  rea l l y  quest ion  my unders tand ing  o f  20 

what  i s  impor tan t ,  what  I  can te l l  you  I  have i s  tha t  I  have  

got  a  fo lder  w i th  qu i te  a  lo t  o f  hardcopy th ings tha t  I  

rece ived du r ing  my tenure  there  a t  Tr i l l i an  and I  o r ig ina l l y  

gave i t  fo r  sa fekeep ing  to  my a t to rney,  and I  am happy to  

g ive  tha t  fo lder  to  the  Commiss ion  in  case you f ind  
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someth ing  in  there .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MS GOODSON:    And I  have not  looked a t  i t  in  four  years ,  

bu t  I  s t i l l  have tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  I  th ink  you  must  do  tha t  g ive  them 

cop ies  o f  what  you have.  

MS GOODSON:    Bu t  i t  i s  an  en t i re ly  la rge  f i le ,  you can  

take  the  who le  f i le  I  do  no t  need i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  f ine ,  no ,  you might  need i t  some 

o ther  t imes so  I  th ink  the  Commiss ion  can make cop ies  and 10 

then g i ve  you back the  or ig ina l .  

MS GOODSON:    Okay,  one th ing  tha t  i s  in  tha t  f i l e  i s  the 

second message f rom Mr  Bobat .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   

MS GOODSON:    And tha t  was one morn ing  I  come to 

work…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  but  le t  me a lso  ge t ,  so  the  emai l  that  

Mr  Bobat  had sen t  you under  a  name you d id  no t  –  under  a  

Span ish  name,  I  th ink  you sa id  was s imp ly  tha t  he  was 

g iv ing  you a  number,  and he sa id  tha t  i s  the  number  you  20 

must  use to  con tac t  h im o r  to  communica te  w i th  h im or  

what?  

MS GOODSON:    Yes,  tha t  i s  what  I  reca l l  Cha i r  bu t  

because I  have not  looked a t  the  emai l  in  such a  long t ime,  

I  am under  oa th ,  I  wou ld  ra ther  jus t  g ive  i t  to  you as  I  say  
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la te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

MS GOODSON:    I  have not  looked a t  i t  in  such  a  long 

t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  no tha t  i s  f ine ,  then you can go to  the  

o ther  message.  

MS GOODSON:    Okay.   So tha t  is  the  f i rs t  message as  I  

exp la ined,  the  second message is  one day I  come to  work  

and on my desk is  a  wh i te  enve lope,  a  wh i te  A4 enve lope  

but  one o f  those th ick  ones,  you know,  can you pr in t  a  pack  10 

o f  paper  so  i t  i s  a  b ig  enve lope and i t  has  go t  my name on 

i t  and I  was I  was qu i te  ear ly  a t  work .   So there  were  no t  a  

lo t  o f  peop le  I  th ink  I  was one o f  the  f i rs t  peop le  a t  work  

tha t  morn ing .   I  was very  surpr i sed about  where  d id  th is  

enve lope come f rom.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You say ing  you  were  the  f i r s t  were  you 

not  a lone,  were  you not  the  on ly  one? 

MS GOODSON:    No,  t rue  s to ry,  no  I  was the  on ly  one fo r  

TMC,  bu t  remember  tha t  Mark  Pamensky was there  fo r  

p roper t ies ,  fo r  example ,  r igh t  bu t  I  was the  on ly  one and I  20 

ge t  th is  enve lope…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    And th is  i s  a round about  what  January,  

February,  March?  

MS GOODSON:   I  do not  put  a date in here.   I  suspect  i t  was 

March because the person who… 
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CHAIRPERSON:   2015.  

MS GOODSON:   2016 just  before my resignat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   2016 ja.  

MS GOODSON:   Just  before my resignat ion.    

ADV SELEKA SC:   No Chai r  she is on page 458.  

MS GOODSON:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Sorry.   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   There – there one such envelope is 

ment ioned paragraph 66.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay so just  go back to how you came to 

– to work – you were the f i rst  one and what happened? 

MS GOODSON:   And I  see this  envelope on my desk wi th my 

name on.   

CHAIRPERSON:   A big envelope? 

MS GOODSON:   A big envelope – a big A4 whi te.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MS GOODSON:   B ig whi te envelope.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS GOODSON:   The contents of  that  envelope are in th is  20 

f i le that  I  wi l l  g ive to you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MS GOODSON:   But  i t  is basical ly  – i t  is a copy of  – of  a 

tender something about the back to basics thing as wel l .  I  

d id not  – i t  was a lot  of  paperwork and I  d id not  go through 
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a l l  of  i t  and then I… 

ADV SELEKA SC:   But  that  – that  would have rang a bel l  

because i t  was proposed by Minister Van Rooyen.  

MS GOODSON:   One hundred percent  but  I  d id  not  go 

through the deta i ls of  i t  I  was so busy wi th other work as 

wel l .   I  compi l ing this proposal  at  the t ime was not  my 

pr ior i ty.   I  had other th ings to do but  I  get  a phone cal l  f rom 

Mr – Mr Bobat saying d id you get  my del ivery? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   You get  a what? 

MS GOODSON:   Did you get  my del ivery? 10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Is i t  the same day that  you got  the emai l  

f rom him? 

MS GOODSON:   No,  no.  

CHAIRPERSON:   These are di fferent  days? 

MS GOODSON:   Di fferent  days.  

CHAIRPERSON:   How far apart  were the two? 

MS GOODSON:   I t  cannot be more three months because I  

… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  no,  no.   I  mean is – was i t  in March as 

wel l  when you got  the emai l  or was i t  January? 20 

MS GOODSON:   I  cannot – i t  could have been February.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.  

MS GOODSON:   I t  could have been February.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  we wi l l  see f rom the emai l  because you 

have got  i t .  



04 MARCH 2021 – DAY 355 
 

Page 109 of 361 
 

MS GOODSON:   Yes and I  wi l l  g ive i t  to you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.   So he phones you on the morning 

when you found – you f ind this  envelope on your desk.   Was 

i t  on your desk? 

MS GOODSON:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   He phones you before you open i t  or af ter  

you have opened i t?  

MS GOODSON:   Before I  even opened i t  and he says did you 

get  my del ivery? 

CHAIRPERSON:   And what did you say? 10 

MS GOODSON:   And I  said yes is  th is f rom you?  He says 

yes i t  is for  you i t  should help you put  together  the proposal .   

So I  was confused.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Now, now how did you know i t  was the 

envelope that  you were seeing on your desk which you had 

not  opened was f rom him? 

MS GOODSON:   Because as soon as I  d id open i t  you could 

see the Department of  CoGTA. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MS GOODSON:   And he – he was at  CoGTA.  I  knew no one 20 

else at  CoGTA. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay.  

MS GOODSON:   So there was no logical  reason for anybody 

else g iving me this.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  
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MS GOODSON:   At  al l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  The envelope was i t  wr i t ten your  

name or addressed to you? 

MS GOODSON:   I t  just  had my name wr i t ten on i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  had your name – in handwri t ing? 

MS GOODSON:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Do you know whether i t  was his 

handwri t ing? 

MS GOODSON:   I  have no idea.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You do not  know.  10 

MS GOODSON:   I  have no idea.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And the documents inside did they have 

any handwri t ing or s ignature? 

MS GOODSON:   I  d id not  look.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You did not  look.  

MS GOODSON:   Chair  but  I  wi l l  g ive you everything.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .  

MS GOODSON:   But  I  do not  recal l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   There was no let ter addressed to you 

inside? 20 

MS GOODSON:   No there was no – nothing formal.  

CHAIRPERSON:   There were just  documents.   Ja.   Okay 

al r ight .    

MS GOODSON:   I f  Mr Bobat did not  phone me and expla in 

that  envelope to me I  would have thought i t  was t rash 
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because I  would not  have had the context .   There was 

nothing explaining why this has got  my name on i t .   I  would 

have probably just  thrown i t  away.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So CoGTA of  course is the Department of  

Cooperat ive Governance and Tradi t ional  Leaders and this 

was you say March 2016 and you say this – the documents 

appeared to be connected wi th back to basic – the back to  

basic program and 2016 was the year when there were going 

to be local  government elect ions.   No,  no I  am saying.   Ja I  

am not  asking you.   Ja that  is  the year  when there were 10 

going to be local  government elect ions in – I  do not  know 

whether they were in May or August  but  – okay al r ight .   So – 

so you received this – he cal ls you and apart  f rom asking 

you to conf i rm whether you received his del ivery what else 

did you talk about  in that  te lephone conversat ion? 

MS GOODSON:   Nothing he just  said this should help you 

put  together the proposal .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MS GOODSON:   And that  was the end of  the cal l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Pr ior to  that  had there been a 20 

discussion that  you would put  together a proposal? 

MS GOODSON:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Within Tr i l l ian? 

MS GOODSON:   At  the meet ing wi th the Minister wi th Ol iver 

Wyman di rectors.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MS GOODSON:   The Minister said these are the areas that  

you could propose in.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  no,  no I  remember that  but  I  am just  

th inking – the Min ister could say – could have said whatever  

and – but  you would make – Tr i l l ian could make a decision 

what to do and what not  to do.  

MS GOODSON:   No in between the meet ing wi th the Minister 

and receiving this  envelope f rom Mr Bobat there were a few 

communicat ions between mysel f  and Ol iver Wyman but  there 10 

were no communicat ions between mysel f  and the 

Department.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Okay.   You may cont inue Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes so Mr Bobat phones you and 

explains to you the contents of  the envelope.   I  see there is 

– did you prepare the proposal? 

MS GOODSON:   The proposal  was being draf ted – so by the 

t ime I  resigned on the 19t h of  March there were a few 

proposals that  were being draf ted between Tr i l l ian and Ol iver  

Wyman. By the t ime I  had resigned though there were 20 

nothing – there was nothing submit ted.   Everyth ing was st i l l  

in a – being worked on.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Hm. 

MS GOODSON:   And there are st r ings of  emai ls  that  you can 

see in terms of  that  communicat ion wi th these proposals.   I  
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could not  possibly reference al l  o f  them here but  as you 

know I  have got  a  copy of  my computer f rom Tri l l ian and I  am 

happy to give that  copy of  the computer to you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Ja no you should do that .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So the st r ing of  emai ls is i t  between you 

and Mr Bobat? 

MS GOODSON:   No between mysel f  and the Ol iver Wyman 

di rectors about the 00:06:33 at  CoGTA.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

MS GOODSON:   And at  Eskom 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry the emai ls  involve 

correspondence between or among who and who? 

MS GOODSON:   Mysel f .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MS GOODSON:   And the Ol iver Wyman di rectors.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS GOODSON:   For the opportuni t ies at  both Eskom and 

CoGTA.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   As far  as you can recal l  would those 

emai ls  or anyone of  them ref lect  a discussion that  would say 

whether these documents came f rom Mr Bobat? 

MS GOODSON:   Not  that  I  recal l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Nothing l ike that .  
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MS GOODSON:   Mr Bobat  did  not  – f rom what I  understand 

Mr Bobat did not  communicate wi th the Ol iver Wyman 

di rectors i t  was more l ike I  was that  channel .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.   Okay.   Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  see in paragraph 67 of  your aff idavi t  on 

that  page 458 you wri te:  

“ In addi t ion I  would receive t imel ine 

expectat ions and valuable budget informat ion 

f rom Bobat – Mr Bobat to ensure that  the 

proposal  was receiving – was being – wel l  10 

was received favourably.”  

MS GOODSON:   Correct .   So Annexure U that  I  re ference 

here is an emai l  thread I  th ink that  is between mysel f  and Mr 

Bobat.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  see.    

MS GOODSON:   I f  I  remember this correct ly.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

MS GOODSON:   That  is what i t  is.   So you have that  but  i f  I  

g ive you a copy of  my computer you wi l l  have that  as wel l  

anyway.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   So this  communicat ion t imel ine 

expectat ions and avai lable budget  informat ion Mr Bobat is 

sending that  to you by emai l?  

MS GOODSON:   I f  I  recal l  correct ly  I  th ink so.   I  th ink what I  

have done i f  I  remember correct ly I  th ink we had a st ructure 
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of  a proposal  and I  sent  to him and he commented on i t  and 

he sent  the comments back and in those comments was this  

informat ion.   I f  I  remember correct ly.   So yes to answer your  

quest ion i t  was by emai l .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And at  60 – paragraph 68 you say:  

“ I  rea l ised that  securing the work at  CoGTA had nothing to 

do wi th  TMC’s his tory nor lack of  employees to do the work. ”  

What d id i t  have to do wi th? 

MS GOODSON:   That  – I  guess that  is mainly sl ight ly 

speculat ive because by the t ime I  lef t  there was not  10 

necessari ly work secured at  CoGTA but  al l  indicat ions were 

that  i t  – i f  we had submit ted a proposal  when i t  was in  a f inal  

state there was no indicat ions that  i t  would not  be met wi th 

favourably.   So I  – I  cannot answer your quest ion di rect ly I  

can just  te l l  you this f rom what I  know Tri l l ian was just  real ly 

lucky so that  even i f  you do not  have employees and you do 

not  even have work history you can st i l l  go and work in a 

Minist ry l ike CoGTA.  I  know that  when I  t ry and sel l  my 

serv ices as a person I  have to demonstrate previous 

achievements and Tr i l l ian did not  have that  and yet  the 20 

progression of  his proposals has so much momentum.  In 

none of  the feedback that  you received was negat ive to 

suggest  that  you did not  have a shot .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   My recol lect ion of  Ms Mothepu’s 

evidence was that  pr ior to Mr Bobat being appointed as the 
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Special  Advisor to Minister  Van Rooyen a group of  them or 

the off ic ia ls of  Regiments as i t  was becoming – or  moving 

away to become Tr i l l ian out  of  i t  by Mr Eric Wood they were 

told that  Mr Bobat  wi l l  be placed in that  off ice of  the Minister 

to ensure that  work comes to Tr i l l ian.   Did – did you – what  

was your observat ion of  the si tuat ion? 

MS GOODSON:   So I  – I  e luded to something l ike this ear l ier  

and I  to ld you that  when Mr Bobat was at  Treasury Mr Angel  

did not  say anyth ing to me.   However when Mr Bobat had 

moved to CoGTA and I  spoke to Mr Angel  numerous t imes in  10 

one day so I  cannot te l l  you the t ime and the date because 

we l i teral ly spoke numerous t imes on one day every day wi th  

the except ion of  Saturday.   And in  one of  the phone cal ls I  

d id ask Mr Angel  why do we need Mr Bobat?  Why can we 

not  just  do what other people do reply to an 00:11:32 you 

know do what normal companies do to get  work.   And Mr 

Bobat did say that  he is posi t ioned there to open the taps for 

us.   Sorry Mr Angel  said that  Mr Bobat is posi t ioned there to 

open the taps and create opportuni t ies for Tr i l l ian.   But  I  

must  appreciate that  Tr i l l ian does not  have people and i t  20 

does not  have a h istory and we can only ever do this  work i f  

we partner wi th Global  organisat ions such as McKinsey and 

Ol iver Wyman.  So Mr Angel  did expl ic i t ly say that  to  me but  

not  when Mr Bobat was at  Treasury but  rather when he was 

at  CoGTA.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   You – wel l  you reference instances 

where you would interview candidates I  th ink for Tr i l l ian – for  

TMC and that  you would do so wi th Mr Bobat.   Now my 

quest ion is  and i f  he is now an employee of  the state what 

did he have to do wi th Tr i l l ian or TMC? 

MS GOODSON:   No.   No.   So – can I  – would you mind i f  I  

correct  th is? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  no please do so.  

MS GOODSON:   My statement sl ight ly.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  10 

MS GOODSON:   My understanding was that  before Mr Bobat  

moved he was in fact  looking af ter the Management 

Consul t ing area of  Regiments.   So hence had he not  moved 

he would have taken my job at  Tr i l l ian r ight .   So he knew the 

people that  would be t ransi t ion ing to Tr i l l ian and he had a 

few i f  I  may cal l  them sort  of  favour i tes so to say.   

 During my relat ionship wi th McKinsey I  was aware of  

the people that  would be coming.   So i t  was not  a  surpr ise 

for me on the 1s t  of  March there was a l ist  that  I  received 

f rom the HR Director  of  Regiments saying that  these are the 20 

people that  would be t ransi t ioning and in around about 

February I  was working wi th  McKinsey to t ry  and – to be 

ahead of  the curve and be proact ive and t ry and al ready get  

placements for these people on the Eskom work r ight .   And 

McKinsey would not  take these people.   They kept  on saying 



04 MARCH 2021 – DAY 355 
 

Page 118 of 361 
 

that  some of  these people were incompetent ;  they have 

worked wi th them before at  Transnet  they do not  want to 

work wi th them again.   And I  was stuck because I  had no 

working history wi th these individuals that  would be coming 

over.   So I  d id reach out  to Mr Bobat.   I  th ink I  f i rst  reached 

out  to the HR lady at  Regiments and she suggested or  

recommended that  I  reach out  to Mr Bobat to get  a view f rom 

him.   

 And Bobat would get  involved in those types of  – he 

would give me that  feedback but  there was one speci f ic 10 

example that  I  th ink i t  worth not ing.    

 There was a gent leman and I  do not  recal l  h is  

surname that  was promised a promot ion when he moved to 

Tr i l l ian.   This speci f ic gent leman I  t r ied to place him in the 

projects of  McKinsey and every single partner  at  McKinsey 

refused to work wi th him.  They sent  me performance 

rev iews of  th is gent leman; they wanted him nowhere.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   He is a South Af r ican gent leman? 

MS GOODSON:   Yes I  th ink i t  was Mr Masego – Mr Maseko 

with a k.   And I  – I  then compi led the organogram for what 20 

Tr i l l ian would  look l ike and I  d id not  promote this gent leman 

because everybody came to Tr i l l ian on the levels that  they 

were at  Regiments.  

 And this  gent leman was so upset  that  he phoned him 

– he was very clear wi th me saying to me I  was promised a 
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promot ion by – we cal led Mr Bobat Mo so I  am just  saying 

verbat im to you – Mo promised me a promot ion.   I  said yes 

but  I  am not  Mo.  I  am Bianca.   I  need to see 00:15:23 before 

I  can promote you Tr i l l ian Management Consul t ing is my 

company i t  is not  Mo’s.   He was so fur ious at  me he phoned 

Mo – Mr Bobat and Mr Bobat phoned me to say how dare I  

not  do i t .   

 So Mr Bobat was – al though he did not  work for 

Tr i l l ian he somet imes fel t  that  he knew more about  Tr i l l ian 

than I  even knew about i t .    10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Oh he did not  work for Tr i l l ian – for  TMC? 

MS GOODSON:   Not  that  – I  certainly d id not  employ any 

contracts – sign any employment contracts wi th him.  Mr 

Bobat was not  one of  my employees.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Oh.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And would you know whether he was on 

TMC’s payrol l?  

MS GOODSON:   Did I  know that? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Would you know – would you have known? 

MS GOODSON:   No because I  could not  see the f inances 20 

because remember the f inances were handled cent ral ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MS GOODSON:   And the CEO’s were not  al lowed to see this.   

I  knew al l  the employees that  came from Regiments I  have 

got  al l  those deta i ls and who would be coming into my team 
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and Mr Bobat was not  on that  l ist .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Do you know about the bonus payment 

that  was made to him? 

MS GOODSON:   No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You do not  know.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Could he have been your boss wi thout  you 

knowing? 

MS GOODSON:   Yes I  know.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .   Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes let  us – let  us deal  now with  TMC’s 10 

re lat ionship wi th Eskom.  Unless you have – I  mean i f  we 

can move there unless i f  you have anything else to  add to 

what we have done? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wi l l  that  start  wi th the – wi th the part  of  

the road show as you cal led i t  that  involved the CFO of  

Eskom? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The reason why I  am asking i t  is because 

you said the road show was going to involve meet ing the 

CFO of  Transnet,  the Minister  of  CoGTA and the CFO of 20 

Eskom and you have told me about the two but  not  about  

meet ing the CFO of  Eskom as far as I  recal l .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So I  am expect ing you to complete the 

road show.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Yes I  th ink as we go into your  

re lat ions wi th Eskom we need to touch on that .  

MS GOODSON:   Okay.   Can I  – you wi l l  lead me there? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja.  Chair  we are two minutes away f rom 

lunch t ime.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay maybe let  us take the lunch 

break so when we come back then she can tel l  us about 

Tr i l l ian and Eskom. 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Eskom.  

CHAIRPERSON:   We wi l l  adjourn and we wi l l  resume at  two.   10 

We adjourn.  

REGISTRAR:   A l l  r ise.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you Cha i rperson.   Ms Goodson,  

jus t  be fore  we ad jou rned we were  about  to  go  in to  TMC’s  

re la t ionsh ip  w i th  Eskom.   And as we do tha t ,  p lease  

exp la in  wh ich  o f f i c ia ls  o f  Eskom do you remember  meet ing  

w i th ,  in  what  con tex t  and what  ge ts  to  be  d iscussed.   Le t  20 

us  s ta r t  w i th  the  one we ment ioned in  the  morn ing  wh ich  

was Mr  Ano j  S ingh.  

MS GOODSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .   And the  road show you ment ioned.   

I  mean,  you can s tar t  wherever.   
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MS GOODSON:    Okay.   I  have a l ready exp la ined tha t  I  met  

Mr  Ano j  S ingh in  what  I  ca l l  the  road show for  the  very  f i r s t  

t ime.   I  have no t  met  Mr  S ingh pr io r  to  tha t .   The next  

in te rac t ion  tha t  I  had w i th  Mr  S ingh must  have been  – and I  

s tand to  be  co r rec ted  aga in  on  the  t ime –  i t  was somet ime  

in  February  o f  2016 and . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Can I . . .   Sor ry.   Sor ry  to  in te r rup t  you.  

MS GOODSON:    H ’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  th ink  i t  w i l l  be  impor tan t  a lso  to  te l l  

us  who in t roduces to  them and  how do you meet  w i th  10 

them? 

MS GOODSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Because i t  w i l l  no t  be  ou t  o f  nowhere .  

MS GOODSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .   There  must  be  some 

ar rangements .   Who ar ranges these meet ings?  

MS GOODSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .  

MS GOODSON:    So  w i th  Mr  S ingh.   I  met  Mr  S ingh fo r  the  

f i rs t  t ime,  as  I  ment ioned,  dur ing  the  road show and 20 

Mr  Wood in t roduced me to  Mr  S ingh as  the  new CEO of  

Tr i l l i an  Management  Consu l t ing .   And the  in t roduct ion  was 

very  cord ia l :   N ice  to  meet  you.   Good luck  in  your  

pos i t ion .   And so  fo r th .    

 In  tha t  spec i f i c  meet ing  w i th  ou r  leve l  1  and  
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d i rec tors  I  d id  no t  speak a t  a l l  because I  had noth ing  to  

say.   So in  tha t  f i rs t  in te rac t ion  w i th  Mr  S ingh I  cannot  te l l  

you anyth ing  e lse  about  i t  except  fo r  what  I  have to ld  you  

a l ready.  

 The next  t ime tha t  I  met  w i th  Mr  S ingh was a  

S teer ing  Commi t tee  meet ing .   I  s tand to  be  cor rec ted  but  I  

th ink  i t  was somet ime in  February  2016.   The S teer ing  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    In  what  meet ing? 

MS GOODSON:    The S tee r ing  Commi t tee  meet ing .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh.  

MS GOODSON:    And the  S teer ing  Commi t tee  meet ing  was 

compel led  fo r  the  Top Eng ineers  Programme.   So in  tha t  

meet ing  were  qu i te  a  few sen ior  managers  and some 

execut ives  f rom Eskom.   McK insey was rep resented,  qu i te  

a  few peop le  and  then Tr i l l i an  was  represented by  myse l f ,  

Ms Matshepo.   In  one case i t  was Mr  Wood.   And there  was 

a  few.    

 So,  and in  dur ing  my tenure  a t  Tr i l l i an  I  th ink  I  

a t tended a t  most  th ree  S tee r ing  Commi t tee  meet ings fo r  20 

the  Top Eng ineer  Prog ramme.   And  a t  one spec i f i c  meet ing ,  

I  do  reca l l  tha t  Mr  S ingh was cha i r ing  tha t  meet ing .   And i t  

was ve ry  ear ly  on  in  the  programme,  tha t  i s  why I  seem to  

reca l l  be ing  in  February.    

 And I  reca l l  tha t  McK insey had p resented the  – 
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had prepared the  deck w i th  a l l  the  d i f fe ren t  c l ien t s .   And 

there  was one spec i f i c  s l ide  tha t  came up tha t  bas i ca l l y  

showed the  be l i eves f rom the  cont rac tor ’s  pe rspect ive  o f  

the  d i f fe ren t  work  s t reams.   So tha t  i s  four  tha t  I  have  

ment ioned f i ve .    

 And i t  was qu i t e  funny because the  Tr i l l i an  

rep resenta t i ve  fo r  each o f  the  work  s t reams,  the  name put  

down on tha t  p resenta t ion  was me.    

 And Mr  S ingh s topped a t  tha t  s l ide  and he 

looked around the  room and he says:   A re  you guys  crazy?  10 

You come here  w i th  –  and re fer r ing  to  McK insey  –  you 

come here  w i th  a  team o f  a  hundred and B ianca must  be  

the  one person on a l l  these th ings .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry.   Wi th  a  team o f  hundred  

and. . .?  

MS GOODSON:    A hundred peop le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  and then what?  

MS GOODSON:    And then B ianca  must  be  the  one  person  

f rom Tr i l l i an  on  a l l  these th ings.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh.  20 

MS GOODSON:    So  Mr  S ingh  was cha l leng ing  McKinsey,  

say ing  where  is  your  supp ly  deve lopment  demonst ra t ion ,  

so  to  say.   P r io r  to  th is ,  however,  I  had an in te rac t ion  w i th  

Mr  Matshe la ,  Mr  Koko and to ld  h im about  the  ac tua l  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON:    O f  course ,  jus t  to  conf i rm.   You are  

re fer r i ng  to  you when he sa id  B ianca? 

MS GOODSON:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MS GOODSON:    Cor rec t .   P r io r  to  th is  spec i f i c  S teer ing  

Commi t tee  I  had  a l ready met  w i th  Mr  Matshe la  Koko and 

had vented the  acr imony in  the  re la t ionsh ip  be tween  

Tr i l l i an  and McKinsey.    

 So I  unders tood tha t  Mr  S ingh had got ten  w ind  o f  

th is  acr imony somehow but  in  my mind I  thought  i t  was 10 

f rom Mr  Koko,  Mr  Matshe la  Koko.   When Mr  S ingh s topped 

the  S teer ing  Commi t tee  meet ing  a t  tha t  po in t ,  he  was  

say ing  tha t  rea l l y  there  has someth ing  b roken  down 

between McKinsey and Tr i l l i an  and we need to  sor t  i t  ou t .   

I  cannot  be  the  on ly  pe rson represent ing  the  supp ly ing  

deve lopment  pa r tner  mov ing  fo rward .    

 So he put  qu i te  a  lo t  o f  p ressure  on  McKinsey a t  

tha t  po in t  to  s ta r t  becoming a  lo t  more  inc lus ive  o f  Tr i l l i an .   

I  reca l l  ve ry  much tha t  were  one o f  the  very  few t imes in  

my tenure  a t  Tr i l l i an ,  I  ac tua l l y  fe l t  suppor ted .   I  was a  b i t  20 

surpr i sed because I  d id  no t  vent  my concerns to  Mr  S ingh 

d i rec t l y.    

 So  I  am s i t t ing  in  th is  meet ing ,  go ing  th rough the  

agenda fee l ing  as  an  outcast  a l ready because  tha t  was the 

re la t ionsh ip  w i th  McK insey but  Mr  S ingh s tands up  in  my  
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de fence and rea l l y  pu t  h is  foo t  down to  the  ex ten t  tha t  

McK insey s ta r ts  ac t ing  on  i t  the  next  day.    

 That  i s  the  ex ten t  o f  my re la t ionsh ip  w i th  

Mr  S ingh.   I  obv ious l y  saw h im in  pass ing  somet imes 

dur ing  Megawat t  Park  bu t  we never  rea l l y  communica ted  

o therwise .    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Which  o the r  o f f i c ia l?   Wel l ,  you have  

ment ioned Mr  Koko.   You . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS GOODSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    . . . re la te  . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

MS GOODSON:    . . .Mr  Koko?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  p lease.  

MS GOODSON:    Aga in ,  i t  was somet ime obv ious l y  ear ly  in  

the  year  and I  do  no t  remember  the  da te  bu t  I  know tha t  in  

my a f f idav i t  I  have got  the  da tes  exact ly  co r rec t .   Mis te r  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Sor ry.   Sor ry,  Ms Goodson.   I  am so 

sor ry.   When Mr  S ingh ra i sed tha t  concern ,  was  i t  ever  

addressed by  McK insey?  

MS GOODSON:    Yes.   Seeming ly  so .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS GOODSON:    Can I  exp la in  tha t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Can you. . .   Yes,  p lease exp la in  to  the  

Cha i rperson.  

MS GOODSON:    Seeming ly  so ,  r igh t .   So McKinsey,  
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Mr  Sagar  ca l led  me and sa id :   Look,  B ianca.   We rea l l y  do  

–  we rea l l y  a re  invested  in  deve lop ing  Tr i l l i an .   S ince re l y  

we are .   To  the  ex ten t  tha t  we wan t  you,  myse l f ,  to  bu i ld  an  

in te rnat iona l  p ro f i le .    

 And I  remember  look ing  a t  Mr  Sagar. . .   Wel l ,  

sor ry,  I  was on the  phone.   So I  d id  no t  look  a t  h im but  I  

remember  shak ing  my head and say ing  to  h im:   Dude,  I  

have got  a  young ch i ld .   I  do  no t  want  to  t rave l .   I  have  

t rave l led  a l ready.   You t ry  and say tha t  we are  inc lus ive .   

Make us  do  the  work .   Do not  p romise  me je t  se t t ing  here  10 

and there .   Get  us  invo lved in  the  work .    

 And Mr  Sagar  sa id  f ine  and then I  s ta r ted  

work ing  w i th  Mr  Lawrence J ink l ing  who was o r  a  par tner,  a  

p r inc ipa l  a t  McK insey,  work ing  on  the  KPI ’s  where  

McK insey cou ld  demonst ra te  tang ib le  the  i nc lus ion  o f  us  as  

an  SDL par tne r  and I  was d r iv ing  tha t  p rocess in  te rms o f  

what  those KPI ’s  shou ld  be .  

 And the  in ten t ion  a t  tha t  t ime is  tha t  we wou ld  

present  th is  work  a t  the  next  S tee r ing  Commi t tee  meet ing .   

So they d id  sor t  o f  come to  the  pa r ty  a  l i t t le  b i t  bu t  no th ing  20 

ac tua l l y  fo rmal ly  ac t ioned f rom i t .   They jus t  spoke about  

the i r  in ten t ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .   But ,  I  mean,  they were  to ld  tha t  

they are  a  hundred and you are  one.   They are  a  hundred  

f rom McKinsey,  you are  one f rom TMC.   D id  you increase  
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your  numbers?  

MS GOODSON:    We d id ,  obv ious ly,  ge t  some peop le  on  

the  1 s t  o f  March  when the  Reg iment  cont ingent  came over  

to  Tr i l l i an  and we were  ac t ive l y  t ry ing  to  recru i t  bu t  the  

rec ru i tment  p rocess takes a  wh i le  because i t  takes about  a  

month  to  in te rv iew someone and then tha t  person has to  go  

th rough the  res ignat ion  per iod .    

 So the  –  so  we never  rea l l y  increased our  

numbers  dramat ica l l y.   I  th ink  we  fo rmal ly  employed th ree  

o f  four  peop le  a t  most  wh i le  we were  s t i l l  there  and the  10 

res t  o f  the  team o f . . .  came f rom Reg iments .    

ADV SELEKA SC:    And the  cont rac t  i s  no t  ye t  s igned?  

MS GOODSON:    The cont rac t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    You have not  s igned . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS GOODSON:    A t  the  t ime I  had res igned what  I  knew 

and be l ieved a t  the  t ime was tha t  the  MSA was never  

s igned.   That  i s  what  I  be l ieved.   I  cou ld  be  wrong but  I  

have never  seen a  s igned copy wh i le  I  was a t  Tr i l l i an .   And 

the  subcont rac to r ’s  agreement  w i th  McK insey was  never  

s igned e i the r.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  was never  s igned.   D id  you know o f  

McK insey ’s  dec is ion  no t  to  have Tr i l l i an  –  I  do  no t  wh ich  

Tr i l l i an ,   TMC as the i r  supp ly  deve lopment  pa r tner?  

MS GOODSON:    I  on ly  found out  about  tha t ,  I  th ink  i t  was 

th rough the  pub l i c ,  because –  I  mean,  keep in  m ind tha t  I  
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res igned on the  19 t h  o f  March and a f te r  tha t  I  cu t  o f f  

contac t  w i th  –  I  s topped do ing  –  I  d id  no t  have to  work  

th rough a  res ignat ion  pe r iod  because I  was on ly  there  fo r  

th ree  months .   So I  know tha t  they were  concerned about  

the  re la t ionsh ip  and McKinsey d id  express the i r  concern  

about  the  shareho ld ing  o f  Tr i l l i an ,  even to  me 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  i s  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS GOODSON:    . . .dur ing  the  tenure  bu t  I  d id  no t  know o f  

the  dec is ion  to  te rm inate  wh i le  I  was the re .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    H ’m.   You are  go ing  to  the  next  o f f i c ia l  

bu t  le t  me pursue th is  po in t  because McKinsey had ra ised  

be ing  rea l l y  concerned. . .  concerns about  TMC’s  BEE 

s ta tus .  

MS GOODSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Do you know tha t?  

MS GOODSON:    No,  Mr  Sagar,  Mr  Wise  and a lso  

Mr  J ink l ing  o f  McK insey very  o f ten  asked me what  was the  

shareho ld ing  o f  Tr i l l i an .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  20 

MS GOODSON:    And I  a lways looked a t ,  espec ia l l y  to  

Mr  Sagar,  in  comple te  shock because I  have met  h im a t  a  

meet ing  w i th  Mr  Essa and I  was,  l i ke ,  bu t  you know 

Mr  Essa owns 60% of  th is .   What  e lse  do  you want  now?  

The minor i t y  sha reho lders?    
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 And he is ,  l i ke :   No,  we need to  know who your  

major  shareho lde r  i s .   And I  kept  on  –  I  jus t  found i t  b iza r re  

because you know tha t  somebody is  ask ing  a  quest ion  tha t  

they know the  answer  to .   So wha t  were  they l ook ing  fo r,  

you know?   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  bu t  I  thought  I  came across a  

re ference in  your  a f f idav i t . . .   Ja ,  on  page 448.   Eskom 

Bund le  -14(A) .  

MS GOODSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Page 448,  pa rag raph 51.4 ,  51 .5 .   Do 10 

you see tha t?  

MS GOODSON:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Can you read tha t?  

MS GOODSON:    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    P lease read tha t .  

MS GOODSON:    Okay.   So 51.4 .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS GOODSON:    Yes.  

“My COO engaged w i th  the  few o f  the  exper ts  

b rought  ou t  f rom Ind ia  to  f ind  tha t  they were  20 

brought  onboard  shor t l y  be fore  ar r i v i ng  in  

South  A f r i ca ,  d id  no t  have the  requ i red  pe rmi ts  

to  work  in  South  A f r i can and were  no t  pa id  on  

t ime.  

Not  a l l  the  representa t i ves  o f  eGateway had 
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company branded in fo rmat ion ,  fo r  example ,  

emai ls ,  bus iness cards ,  e t  ce tera . ”  

ADV SELEKA SC:    H ’m.  

MS GOODSON:    15 .5 :  

“A l l  ind iv idua ls  tha t  I  have met  f rom the 

organ isa t ion  were  e i the r  Ind ian  o f  Emi ra te ,  no t  

South  A f r i can.  

Th is  caused content ion  w i th  McK insey as  the  

leadersh ip  team,  quest ion  team and the  South  

A f r i can BEE par tne r. ”  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS GOODSON:    So  there  were  two quest ions on  BEE.   

The one is  the  shareho lde r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS GOODSON:    The major i t y  shareho lde r.   And then the  

o ther  was obv ious ly  the  representa t ion  on  teams.    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS GOODSON:    They expected the  peop le  tha t  we put  on  

teams to  be  re f l ec t i ve  o f  the  South  A f r i can demograph ic  

bu t  the  peop le  tha t  we had on teams a t  th is  po in t ,  l i ke  I  20 

ment ioned,  were  f rom eGateway,  were  e i the r  Emi ra te  or  

Ind ian  na t iona ls .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    H ’m.  

MS GOODSON:    And McKinsey,  as  much as  they sa id  tha t  

they wanted the  techn ica l  exper t i se  were  a lso  push ing  
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back on  us  and say ing  bu t  they are  no t  South  A f r i can.   How 

can you mor tgage yourse l f  as  a  p roud ly  BEE South  A f r i can  

company?  That  was the  contex t  o f  th is .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   D id  they no t  make  spec i f i c  

requests  to  TMC in  regard  to  the  BEE s ta tus?  

MS GOODSON:    To  me spec i f i ca l l y  when. . .   L ike  I  sa id ,  

when Mr  Weiss  and Mr  Sagar  ra ised concerns w i th  me  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS GOODSON:    . . . they  ra ised the  concerns on  the  BEE 10 

ownersh ip .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.  

MS GOODSON:    The pa r tne rs  and the  ind iv idua ls  tha t  

were  s l igh t ly  more  opera t iona l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS GOODSON:    . . . in  the  management  meet ings  wou ld  

push back to  me  a t  the  BEE representa t ions o f  the  teams 

do ing  the  work .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    H ’m,  h ’m.  

MS GOODSON:    So  those are  the  two e lements  o f  BEE 20 

compl iance.   The  one i s  ownersh ip  and the  one was the  

rep resenta t ion .    

ADV SELEKA SC:    H ’m.   So I  know you gave us  a  

response tha t  you were  su rpr i sed why they are  ask ing  

because they knew Mr  Sa l im Essa was the  major i t y  
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shareho lde r.   But  what  was your  response to  them? 

MS GOODSON:    So my fo rmal  response. . .   So th is  i s  

in te res t ing .   I s  tha t  Mr  Sagar  and Mr  Weiss  wou ld  ask  me 

th is  when we had  meet ings.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS GOODSON:    They wou ld  ask  me to  my face.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   The reason I  am ask ing .   I  th ink  I  

came across an  averment  in  docto r. . .   I s  i t  Dr  Weiss? 

MS GOODSON:    Dr  Weiss ,  ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  in  Dr  Weiss ’ a f f idav i t .   He was w i th  10 

McKinsey,  i s  i t  no t?  

MS GOODSON:    Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .   That  you prov ided them 

in format ion  on  BEE or  tha t  you sa id  TMC is  BEE compl ian t .   

You have any reco l lec t ion  o f  tha t?  

MS GOODSON:    I  do  no t  reca l l  tha t  fo r  a  few reasons.   

The one is .   I  never  ever  app l ied  fo r  a  BEE cer t i f i ca te  fo r  

TMC.   I  th ink  one was sent  to  me f rom Mr  Mark  Ch ipk in  

who was a  d i rec tor  a t  In tegra ted  Cap i ta l .    

 There  were  a  few emai ls  where  they were  ask ing  20 

me about  the  ownersh ip  s t ruc ture  and then I  wou ld  speak 

to  Mr  Ange l  and I  wou ld  say to  Mr  Ange l :   What  mus t  I  g ive  

them tha t  they do  not  know?   

 And Mr  Ange l  had a  very  bas i c  o rganogram tha t  

showed the  ownersh ip  s t ruc tures  wh ich  was not  in  a  lo t  o f  
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de ta i l .   I t  was very,  very  h igh  leve l .    

 So  fo r  example ,  i t  wou ld  jus t  say  60% b lack  

owned,  40% owned by  o the r.   You know,  i t  was not  in  a lo t  

o f  de ta i l  and Mr  Ange l  wou ld  say:   Jus t  send th is  to  me.   

So I  am not  sure  i f  they  are  re fe r r i ng  to  tha t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I s  tha t  what  you gave them? 

MS GOODSON:    I f  I  reca l l  cor rec t l y.   I  th ink  so .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    H ’m.   Wha t  was your  response to  

them?  You were  about  to . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS GOODSON:    My response to  them wou ld  have  been –  10 

verba l l y  my response to  them wou ld  be :   But  Vikas ,  i t  i s  

Sa l im.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Say aga in?  

MS GOODSON:    I  wou ld  say to  Vikas:   But  Vikas,  you  

know i t  i s  Sa l im.   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Oh.  

MS GOODSON:    You know in  te rms . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Can you look th is  s ide  so  tha t  I  can 

hear?  

MS GOODSON:    Forg i ve  me.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m? 

MS GOODSON:    I  wou ld . . .   When  Mr  Sagar  wou ld  ask  me:   

Who is  th is . . .   P lease can you  te l l  us  who the  major  

shareho lder  i s?   I  wou ld  rep ly  to  h im and I  am go ing  to  say 

th is  to  you ve rba t im so  i t  i s  in fo rmal .   I  wou ld  say :   Vikas,  
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you know i t  i s  Sa l im.    

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  i s  Mr  Sa l im Essa?  

MS GOODSON:    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   H ’m.    

ADV SELEKA SC:    H ’m.   Okay.   And what  wou ld  he  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS GOODSON:    He wou ld  then rep ly  and he wou ld  say:   

Okay but  we need i t  in  wr i t ing .   And I  thought  –  wou ld  say:   

Okay coo l ,  I  w i l l  g ive  i t  to  you.   You know.   And when we 

needed to ,  I  wou ld  ra ise  the  concerns o f  C l i ve  aga in .    10 

 And I  wou ld  be  l i ke :   C l i ve ,  why a re  they ask ing  

me th is  when they know?  And C l ive  wou ld  say:   But . . .   

Everyone ca l l s  me B .   C l i ve  wou ld  say:   B ,  jus t  send them 

the  th ing  tha t  I  sent  you.   Which  was the  ve ry  h igh  leve l  

o rganogram s t ruc ture  w i thout  any de ta i l  in  i t  and I  wou ld  

sent  tha t .    

 So  i t  con fused me why C l ive  –  why the re  wou ld  

be  KG(?)  w i th  th ings tha t  a re  very  we l l -known between 

them.   And I  know th is  because  I  was a t  a  mee t ing  w i th  

Sa l im,  w i th  Mr  Sagar  . . .  w i th  Mr  Essa and Mr  Sagar  and 20 

w i th  Mr  Ange l .   So we a l l  knew th is  bu t  fo r  some reason  

put t ing  i t  in  paper  seemed to  be  a  we i rd  th ing .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .  

MS GOODSON:    I  do  no t  unders tand.    

ADV SELEKA SC:    D id  . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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MS GOODSON:    And I  cou ld  no t  g ive  tha t  de ta i l  because I  

d id  no t  know the  o the r  shareho lders .   I  knew about  the  

60% because o f  th is  –  I  was to ld  by  Mr  Essa.   I  d id  –  and I  

knew the  25% was Mr  Wood but  I  d id  no t  know the  o ther  

15%.    

ADV SELEKA SC:    D id  tha t  no t  concern  you?  

MS GOODSON:    I  thought  i t  was very  b izar re  because  

when I  asked the  quest ion  to  the  person who was my 

leader,  who was Mr  Ange l ,  I  wou ld  ge t  th is  we i rd  response.   

I  d id  no t  quest ion  h im more .   I  p robab ly  shou ld  have.   But  I  10 

thought  i t  was b izar re .   I s  b izar re  the  same as concern?  I t  

cou ld  –  i t  i s .   I  th ink  i t  i s .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Wel l ,  maybe not .   [ laughs]   I  th ink  i t  i s  

an  concern .   I t  does not  s i t  we l l  w i th  you.   I f  i t  i s  b izar re ,  i t  

may jus t  be  s t range.    

MS GOODSON:    Ja ,  bu t  I  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    . . .aga ins t  the i r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS GOODSON:    No,  no .   Then i t  i s  concern .   I t  d id  no t  s i t  

we l l  w i th  me.   I t  d id  no t  make sense.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .   So you a re  i n  TMC which  i s  20 

supposed to  be  a  supp ly  deve lopment  par tne r  to  McK insey,  

a  BEE par tne r  to  McK insey.   McK insey is  ask ing  these 

quest ions and the  quest ions seem to  be  d i rec ted  to  you o r  

i f  no t  a l l  o f  them but  some o f  them.   And my ques t ion  is .   

D id  tha t  no t  concern  you?  That  i s  my quest ion .  



04 MARCH 2021 – DAY 355 
 

Page 137 of 361 
 

MS GOODSON:    I t  d id  concern  me.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .   D id  you do anyth ing  about  i t?  

MS GOODSON:    Apar t  f rom br ing ing  i t  up  w i th  C l i ve .   No,  I  

d id  no t  ac t  on  i t  fu r the r.    

ADV SELEKA SC:    H ’m.   Okay le t  us  go  to  t he  next  

o f f i c ia l .   The nex t  o f f i c ia l  wh ich  I  th ink  you were  about  to  

te l l  us  about  i s  Mr  Koko.  

MS GOODSON:    Yes.    

ADV SELEKA SC:    How you came to  know h im,  to  be 

in t roduced to  h im and under  what  c i rcumstances  you met  10 

w i th  h im?  

MS GOODSON:    Mr  Se leka,  wou ld  you mind he lp ing  me 

wi th  the  page number  o f  tha t  sec t i on  in  my a f f idav i t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  i s  a t  page 439.   Four,  th ree ,  n ine .   I f  

tha t  i s  what  you want .  

MS GOODSON:    Yes,  cor rec t . . .   Cha i r,  I  jus t  was re fer r i ng  

to  my a f f idav i t  because I  have got  the  da tes  in  my a f f idav i t  

more  co r rec t l y  than I  remember  them r igh t  now.    

 On the  10 t h  o f  February,  I  met  Mr  Koko fo r  the  

f i rs t  t ime.   The meet ing  was ar ranged by  one o f  the  PA’s  o f  20 

In tegra ted  Cap i ta l .   She contac ted  Mr  Koko ’s  PA d i rec t l y  

and the  agreement  was. . .  

 Sor ry.   Am I  ta lk ing  about . . .   Yes,  the  agreement  

was tha t  I  wou ld  meet  Mr  Koko,  I  th ink  i t  was a f te r. .   No,  

sor ry.   I  am get t ing  confused.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    You can read the  paragraph.  

MS GOODSON:    Okay.    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .   32 .1 .  

MS GOODSON:    32 .1 :  

“Essa ar ranged fo r  me to  meet  Mr  Koko on the  

10 t h  o f  February  2016 a t  two o ’c lock  to  d iscuss  

issues tha t  I  was  encounte r ing  w i th  McK insey.   

And my work ing  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  the  McK insey 

par tners  have become s t ra in  and I  fe l t  tha t  

Tr i l l i an  Management  Consu l t ing  was not  be ing  10 

inc luded in  the  dec i s ion  mak ing  in  re la t ion  to  

the  Eskom p rogramme.    

A t  tha t  t ime,  I  d id  no t  unders tand the  

res i s tance on the  par t  o f  McK insey to  inc lude 

TMC in  dec i s ion  mak ing . . . ”  

 I  am sor ry.   I  am go ing  to  sk ip  to  32 .3 :  

“The meet ing  was ar ranged by  Mr  Samey-

Shane ’s  execut ive  ass i s tan t  and once the  

meet ing  was conf i rmed I  was ins t ruc ted  by  

Ange l  on  beha l f  o f  Essa to  convey a  message 20 

to  Mr  Koko,  a r t i cu la t ing  Tr i l l i an ’s  request  fo r  

invo i ces. . . ”  

 So one o f  the  th ings tha t  I  do  no t  ment ion  in  

here  bu t  I  want  to  fu l l y  d isc lose  every  s ing le  in te rac t ion  

tha t  I  have had w i th  Mr  Koko.   The  very  f i rs t  t ime I  met  w i th  



04 MARCH 2021 – DAY 355 
 

Page 139 of 361 
 

Mr  Koko I  was ac tua l l y  i ns t ruc ted  by  Mr  Ange l  to  go  and  

a t tend a  press  conference a t  Megawat t  Park .  

 And I  obv ious l y  had no quest ions  because I  am 

not  pa r t  o f  the  press .   So I  jus t  sa t  in  the  aud ience.   And  

the  ins t ruc t ion  tha t  I  go t  f rom Mr  Ange l  was tha t  when  the  

press conference  is  f in ished I  shou ld  go  up to  Mr  Koko and  

I  shou ld  in t roduce myse l f  as  the  new TMC CEO which  I  d id .    

ADV SELEKA SC:    When was th is?  

MS GOODSON:    Th is  was before  th is  meet ing .   So i t  must  

have been somet ime e i ther  towards the  end o f  January  or  10 

very  ear l y  February.   But  no th ing  substant ia l  was  

d iscussed.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    H ’m 

MS GOODSON:    I  l i t e ra l l y  in t roduced myse l f  to  Mr  Koko 

as . . .   Sor ry,  my surname was Smi th  then.   B ianca  Smi th.   

The I  am the  CEO of  TMC and I  wou ld  l i ke  to  meet  you  

because I  be l ieve  tha t  we w i l l  be  work ing  togethe r.    

 Mr  Koko was very  gent lemanl i ke  and he sa id :   I t  

i s  n ice  to  meet  you.   I  have heard  about  you.   P lease w i l l  

you  make ar rangements  to  come and see me somet ime?   20 

And tha t  was the  end o f  i t .    

 The next  meet ing  tha t  I  had w i th  Mr  Koko is  th is  

meet ing  tha t  i s  descr ibed in  my a f f idav i t .   And th is  meet ing  

was,  as  I  ment ioned he re ,  i t  was a t  two o ’c lock  on  the 

10 t h  o f  February.   I  went  to  th is  meet ing  w i th  a  spec i f i c  
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agenda in  m ind.    

ADV SELEKA SC:    H ’m.  

MS GOODSON:    R igh t .   I t  was s t ruc tured.   I  ca l led  to  the  

meet ing .   I t  was  ar ranged by  ICM(?)  and when I  go t  to  

Megawat t  Park ,  Mr  Koko was expect ing  me.   As Mr  Koko 

had tes t i f ied  what  he  –  ins tead o f  meet ing  in  h is  o f f i ce . . .    

 The way tha t  the  Megawat t  Park  execut ive  w ing  

is  s t ruc tured is ,  i t  i s  in  the  cent re  o f  the  w ing  o f  –  l i ke  were  

couches.   So s l igh t ly  in fo rmal .   We sa t  in  the  cent re  o f  the 

w ing .   And Mr  Koko inv i ted  Mr  Mabe lane to  jo in  us .    10 

 So tha t  was the  very  f i rs t  t ime tha t  I  met  

Mr  Mabe lane.   And then Mr  Koko  asked me:   So what  do  

you –  why do you want  the  meet ing?  How are  th ings 

go ing?  He a lso  asked me a  l i t t le  b i t  about  myse l f ,  my 

h is to ry.  

 So I  to ld  h im I  came f rom the  min ing  sector  and 

so  fo r th .   He spec i f i ca l l y  wanted  to  know what  was my  

invo lvement  in  Pr imary  Energy and before  I  cou ld  answer  

h im,  I  dec ided to  take  h im to  what  my agenda po in ts  were .   

And the  f i r s t  agenda po in t  tha t  I  had to  d iscuss w i th  h im 20 

was the  acr imony  between Tr i l l i an  and McKinsey.    

 And I  had deta i led  and had examples  o f  a l l  the  

t imes tha t  I  was  t ry ing  to  l i te ra l l y  bu i ld  up  Tr i l l i an  and  

every  s ing le  t ime I  was t ry ing  to  do  i t ,  McK insey wou ld  s top  

i t  and I  was exhausted.    
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 I ,  i f  I  remember  cor rec t l y,  I  had no t  s lep t  fo r  two 

days because I  was work ing ,  no t  because I  had insomnia .   

So I  was phys i ca l  exhausted.   The f igh t ing  or  the  ac r imony 

w i th  McK insey was imposs ib le  to  dea l  w i th .    

 And when I  to ld  Mr  Koko th is ,  bo th  h imse l f  and 

Mr  Mabe lane came ac ross ve ry  empathet ic .   And tha t  I  d id  

no t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry,  jus t  repeat  tha t  sentence.  

MS GOODSON:    They came across ve ry  empathet ic .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Imp l ica ted  in  what?  10 

MS GOODSON:    Empathet ic .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Empathy.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.   [ laughs]  

MS GOODSON:    And I  d id  no t  expect  tha t .   And because  

they were  so  unders tand ing ,  I  s ta r ted  cry ing  and  tha t  i s  

what  I  de ta i l  and I  do  ment ion  tha t  in  my a f f idav i t .   Mr Koko 

gave me the  assurance tha t  i f  I  had any p rob lems w i th  th is  

mov ing  fo rward ,  tha t  Mr  Mabe lane as  h i s  r igh t -hand man  

and he w i l l  he lp  me address these  issues.    

 I  t r ied  to  compose myse l f  a  b i t  and tha t  I  needed  20 

to  dea l  w i th  the  second agenda i tem which  was an  invo i ce  

tha t  Mr  Ange l  sa id  –  I  do  no t  know i f  i t  was. . .   Le t  me come 

back to  tha t .  

 There  were  two th ings.   The one was payment .   

Mr  Ange l  knew about  th is  meet ing ,  obv ious ly,  and Mr  Ange l  
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sa id :   Befo re  you go to  th i s  mee t ing  there  are  two th ings 

tha t  you have got  to  d iscuss w i th  Mr  Koko.    

 The one be ing  tha t  Eskom mus t  pay Tr i l l i an  

d i rec t l y.   Eskom must  no t  pay Tr i l l i an  v ia  McK insey.   And I  

asked Mr  Ange l  why.    

 And Mr  Ange l :    

“B ianca,  you fo rge t  tha t  we are  a  s ta r t -up .   We 

cannot  wa i t  fo r  McK insey to  ge t  the  funds and 

then wa i t  90-days fo r  them to  pay us .   We 

need to  main ta in  our  cash f low.   So we need to  10 

ge t  pa id  the  same t ime tha t  McK insey gets  

pa id .   So p lease  can you jus t  go  and ask  h im 

can we get  pa id  d i rec t l y?  

 And then he. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  mean,  tha t  par t ,  tha t  conversa t ion  

be tween yourse l f  and Mr  Ange l ,  i t  i s  a  conversa t ion  tha t  

happened befo re  the  10 t h  o f  February?  

MS GOODSON:    Be fore  the  meet ing .    

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MS GOODSON:    I  am pre t ty  sure  i t  was  on the  20 

10 t h  o f  February  v ia  phone ca l l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS GOODSON:    . . . jus t  be fore  two o ’c lock .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.    

MS GOODSON:    Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    And par t  o f  the  ob jec t i ve  o f  the  meet ing  

was to  ta lk  about  payment?  

MS GOODSON:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r igh t .    

MS GOODSON:    And so  be fore  the  meet ing  ended w i th  

Mr  Koko and Mr  Mabe lane,  I  b rought  up  the  issue o f  

payments  and I  asked Mr  Koko ,  I  sa id :   I  have been 

requested to  ask  you can we get  pa id  d i rec t l y  as  opposed 

to  Eskom pay ing  McKinsey.  

 Mr  Koko rep l ied  to  me and he sa id  to  me:   But  10 

B ianca. . .   Sor ry,  I  am say ing  verbat im,  so  I  los ing  

fo rmal i t ies .   He sa id :   B ianca,  we do not  have a  cont rac t  

w i th  Tr i l l i an .   I  d id  no t  d ispute  i t  and I  d id  no t  push i t  

because to  me tha t  was ra t iona l .   And I  sa id  . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry?  

MS GOODSON:    To  me tha t  was ra t iona l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m? 

MS GOODSON:    And I  sa id :   Okay.   Thank you.   And the  

meet ing  ended.   From tha t  po in t  on  fo r  the  res t  o f  my 

tenure ,  my contac t  person w i th  the  Eskom execut ives  had  20 

ac tua l l y  become Mr  Mabe lane.   So a l l  the  dea l ings tha t  I  

had to  dea l  w i th  when i t  came to  the  execut ives  was not  

w i th  Mr  Koko d i rec t l y,  i t  was th rough Mr  Mabe lane.    

ADV SELEKA SC:    H ’m.   The r igh t -hand man,  you sa id .  

MS GOODSON:    I  beg your  pardon? 
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ADV SELEKA SC:    The one in t roduced to  you as  the  r igh t -

hand man?  

MS GOODSON:    I  beg. . .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The one in t roduced as  the  r i gh t -hand  

man?  

MS GOODSON:    Cor rec t .   Cor rec t .    

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  Mr  Koko sa id  i s  h is  r i gh t -hand 

man?  

MS GOODSON:    Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And he was then ass igned. . .   Wel l ,  in  10 

response . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am not  sure  whethe r  you r  answer  

wou ld  have been captured.    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Oh,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Your  answer  was yes?  

MS GOODSON:    My answer  i s  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MS GOODSON:    And Mr  Mabe lane was Mr  Koko ’s  r igh t -

hand man.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  tha t  i s  what  Mr  Koko to ld  you? 20 

MS GOODSON:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   And you were  exp la in ing  tha t  tha t  

was in  response to  you compla in ing  about  the  b roken down 

re la t ionsh ip  be tween TMC and McKinsey.  
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MS GOODSON:    Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  d id  Mr  Mabe lane so r t  i t  ou t?  

MS GOODSON:    He t r ied  to .   I  thought  he  went  above and  

beyond.   So Mr  Mabe lane sa id  tha t  I  need to  take  a  look. . .   

He asked me the  quest ion  i n  tha t  meet ing :   Have I  seen the  

MSA?  And I  sa id  no .   Because I  th ink  I  had seen  

annexures o f  the  MSA a t  the  t ime but  no t  the  ac tua l  MSA.   

 So he wro te  down h is  Gmai l  account ,  h is  Gmai l  

emai l  account  and my notebook –  so  I  had a  no tebook w i th  

me –  and he sa id :   Okay emai l  me and I  w i l l  send i t  to  you.    10 

 So i t  was e i ther  tha t  even ing ,  la te r  tha t  even ing  

or  the  next  day  bu t  somet ime very  shor t l y  a f t e r  th is  

meet ing .   I  d id  in  fac t  emai l  Mr  Mabe lane and I  summar i sed  

what  happened in  the  meet ing  and what  was go ing  to  be  

next .  

 Mr  Mabe lane,  th rough the  co r respondents ,  then 

sent  me the  ve rs ions o f  the  MSA wi th  the  suppor t ing  

annexures and as  they were  a t  the  t ime and sa id  tha t  I  

shou ld  l ook a t  t he  SN & S ,  SD Annexures,  the  Supp ly  

Deve lopment  Annexure  and make the  changes  tha t  I  20 

wanted to  in  tha t .   And I  thought  tha t  was wow,  I  was lucky  

to  be  ab le  to  in f luence th is  cont rac t  tha t  was negot ia ted  

f rom,  you know,  the  prev ious years ,  so  to  say.   

 But  co inc ident ly  I  had a l ready s ta r ted  work ing  on  

these KPI ’s  fo r  supp ly  deve lopment  anyway.   So I  d id  use  
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t rack  changes and I  sent  i t  back to  Mr  Mabe lane.    

 And I  wou ld  l i ke  to  be l ieve ,  w i thout  any lega l  

exper ience tha t  I  had a t  leas t  t r ied  to  pu t  some c lauses 

in to  tha t  annexure  tha t  wou ld  encourage and take th i s  

bu i ld ing  up  o f  a  smal le r  par tne r.    

 However,  I  do  no t  know whatever  happened w i th  

those annexures bu t  I  d id  make changes and I  d id  send i t  

back.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And th is  i s  a f te r  10  February  2016.  

MS GOODSON:    Cor rec t .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Do you know tha t  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Sor ry,  tha t  w i l l  no t  be  reco rded,  Ms  

Goodson,  i s  tha t  a  yes?  

MS GOODSON:    Yes,  i t  i s  a  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  i t  i s  impor tan t  tha t  you ar t i cu la te 

your  answers  so  tha t  i t  wou ld  be  recorded.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I f  you  nod,  i t  does not  ge t  reco rded,  i f  

you  shake your  head i t  does not  ge t  recorded.  

MS GOODSON:    I  know,  Cha i r,  I  have watched so  many o f  20 

these sess ions a t  home.  

CHAIRPERSON :    A l r igh t .  

MS GOODSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay,  thank  you.   Do you know tha t  

there  is  a  reason by  –  I  th ink  i t  i s  Mr  Mabe lane  tha t  the 
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MSA was conc luded in  January  2016? 

MS GOODSON:    No,  I  have heard  th rough Commiss ion .   

What  I  know now is  no t  what  I  knew then and I  have heard  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  le t  us  jus t  take  i t  s tep  by  s tep .   

When you say no ,  a re  you say ing  no ,  you do not  know tha t  

there  is  such a  vers ion  or  a re  you  say ing  i f  there  i s  such a  

vers ion  or  a re  you say ing  no ,  you do not  know tha t  there  is  

such a  vers ion  or  a re  you say ing  i f  there  i s  such a  vers ion  

i t  i s  no t  t rue .  10 

MS GOODSON:    No,  no ,  no ,  sor ry,  know as in  k -n -o-w,  I  

am aware  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  you know? 

MS GOODSON:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.    

MS GOODSON:    I  am aware  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    And what  you know is  the  vers ion  or  the  

vers ion  and the  fac t .  

MS GOODSON:    Yes,  what  I  knew back then was not  –  

was tha t  an  MSA was not  s igned.   What  I  have come to  20 

know now through th i s  Commiss ion  and th rough the  

par l iamentary  –  th rough many th ings is  tha t  there  was a  

s igned MSA.   I  have not  seen any  o f  them.   The las t  MSA 

tha t  I  had eve r  seen was tha t  doss ie r  tha t  I  sent  back to  Mr  

Mabe lane and I  have never  seen  any o the r  vers ion  s ince  
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then.   So I  do  no t  d isagree w i th  the  s ta tement  tha t  Mr  

Se leka is  mak ing ,  I  jus t  have not  seen i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay,  we l l  then in  tha t  case  you do  

not  know whether  i t  ex is ts  bu t  i f  somebody says i t  ex i s ted ,  

a  s igned vers ion ,  you do not  want  to  d ispute  tha t ,  tha t  i s  

what  you say.  

MS GOODSON:    One hundred percent .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja .   Wel l ,  tha t  i s  a  s to ry  how i t  came to  

be  s igned and we w i l l  dea l  w i th  i t  when we come to  i t .   10 

Apparent ly  i t  was  –  was i t  p redated?  

MS GOODSON:    Or  post -da ted .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Post -da ted .  

MS GOODSON:    So  i t  i s  s igned now but  post -da ted  to  a  

few months be fore .  

MS GOODSON:    Post -da ted ,  yes .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   so  you may no t  be  inco r rec t  tha t  as  fa r  

as  you are  concerned you were  work ing  on  what  was a t  the 

t ime and uns igned document  busy  mak ing  changes  to  tha t  

document ,  you wou ld  no t  have known o f  an  ex is tence o f  20 

any o the r  document  apar t  f rom tha t  as  an  MSA.  

MS GOODSON:    Abso lu te ly  no t  because the  unders tand ing  

both  be tween myse l f ,  Mr  Pepu,  Mr  Leba l lo  and the  

McKinsey d i rec to rs  were  tha t  the  MSA was not  s igned.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja  because the  on ly  …[ in tervenes]  
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MS GOODSON:    Because even in  the  s teer ing  commi t tee  

meet ings the  agenda po in t  was when i s  the  MSA go ing  to  

ge t  s igned.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Le t  me te l l  you  th is  a lso  fo r  the  

benef i t  o f  the  Cha i rperson.   CDH,  wh ich  C l i f fe  Dekker  

Hofmeyr,  a t to rneys fo r  Eskom at  a  t ime,  they had  to  g ive  

adv ice  to  Eskom whethe r  o r  no t  the  MSA shou ld  be  

te rm inated and whethe r  Eskom shou ld  make a  se t t lement  

w i th  McK insey and Tr i l l i an ,  TMC.   They u l t imate ly  gave an  

op in ion  tha t  there  are  suspens ive  cond i t ions  in  the  MSA 10 

tha t  were  supposed to  have been fu l f i l l ed  in  January  2016  

but  i t  appears  tha t  they had not  been fu l f i l l ed .   Now th is  

op in ion  is  g iven u l t imate ly  in  February  2017 and the  e f fec t  

o f  tha t  i s ,  in  the  f i rs t  p lace  there  is  no t  an  ag reement  to  

te rm inate ,  in  the  second p lace  you a re  no t  l iab le  to  

McK insey Tr i l l i an ,  bu t  Eskom had  a l ready pa id .   D id  you  

know tha t?  

MS GOODSON:    I  knew tha t  Eskom had pa id  Tr i l l i an  

spec i f i ca l l y  because I  d id  suppor t  Mr  Bud lender  in  h is  

invest iga t ions and tha t  i s  when I  saw tha t  a  few  o f  the 20 

invo i ces were  pa id .   I  a lso  suppor ted  Bowmans in  the i r  c iv i l  

c la im aga ins t  McK insey and Tr i l l i an  so  I  know f rom those  

…[ in tervenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Those processes.  

MS GOODSON:    Bu t  what  you are  ment ion ing  now about  
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CDH I  have a l so  lea rn t  th rough th is  Commiss ion  by  

watch ing .   I  d id  no t  know th is  a t  the  t ime and i t  i s  

d is tu rb ing .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Now le t  us  go  back to  the  invo ice ,  

wh ich  i s  your  second top ic  i n  the  meet ing  on  the  10  

February.   Which  invo ice  is  th is  tha t  you were  be ing  asked  

to  request  tha t  i t  be  pa id  d i rec t l y?  

MS GOODSON:    I t  i s  an  invo ice  fo r  R30.6  m i l l ion ,  I  th ink  

tha t  i s  exc lud ing  VAT and i t  i s  for  the  corpora te  p lan  and  

th is  spec i f i c  invo i ce ,  i f  I  remember  cor rec t l y,  the  ve ry  f i rs t  10 

t ime tha t  I  ever  saw a  copy o f  th is  invo ice  was ac tua l l y  on  

the  24  February.   I  th ink  when I  went  in to  th is  meet ing ,  i f  I  

remember  cor rec t l y,  the  invo ice  had a l ready been  

submi t ted  and I  was ins t ruc ted  to  fo l low up on the  invo ice 

tha t  was a l ready  submi t ted ,  I  had  not  seen i t  by  th is  da te  

on  the  10  February,  so  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I t  was not  in  your  possess ion .  

MS GOODSON:    I t  was not ,  i t  eventua l l y  came in to  my 

possess ion  bu t  on ly  14  days la te r,  okay?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So  who had the  invo ice  been sen t .  20 

MS GOODSON:    To?  A t  the  t ime o f  the  meet ing  or  a re  we  

jus t  ta lk ing  about  the  invo i ce  now? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   No,  p r io r  –  you say i t  was se t  p r io r  to  

the  meet ing .  

MS GOODSON:    Yes and I  d id  no t  know,  I  was not  cop ied  
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on  i t ,  I  d id  no t  know anyth ing  abou t  i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.  

MS GOODSON:    I  was jus t  to ld  tha t  there  is  an  invo ice  

and we need tha t  invo ice  pa id  bu t  no t  pa id  to  McK insey,  

pa id  to  Tr i l l i an .   I  conveyed the  message and I  accept  tha t  

i t  was naïve  o f  me to  jus t  convey the  message.   I  conveyed  

the  message,  Mr  Koko ’s  rep l y  was but  we cannot  pay  

because you do not  have a  cont rac t .   Subsequent  to  th is  

meet ing  I  went  to  Mr  Leba l lo  and I  asked h im  – sor ry,  I  am 

go ing  to  verbat im aga in ,  p lease  fo rg ive  me be ing  so  10 

in fo rmal ,  tha t  I  re fe r red  to  Mr  Tebogo Leba l lo  as  Dude and  

I  phoned h im and I  was l i ke  Dude,  what  invo i ce  i s  th is?   

What  a re  they ta l k ing  about?   And  he says do  not  wor ry  B ,  

I  w i l l  send i t  to  you and he subsequent ly  fo rwards the  

emai l  to  me much la te r  in  the  month  and f rom tha t  emai l  

you can see tha t  the  invo i ce  was sent  to  Mr  S ingh – I  th ink  

i t  was f rom Leba l lo ,  I  do  no t  remember  a l l  the  de ta i l s ,  you  

cou ld  probab ly  he lp  me.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja ,  I  th ink  i t  i s  f rom Mr  Leba l lo .  

MS GOODSON:    To  Mr  S ingh.   I  was not  cop ied  on i t  bu t  I  20 

d id  eventua l l y  see i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  unders tand Mr  Koko was cop ied?  

MS GOODSON:    I t  cou ld  be ,  yes .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   No,  i t  i s  f ine ,  I  have –  ja ,  so  you 

rece ived when?  
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MS GOODSON:    I  rece i ved –  persona l ly  I  saw i t  fo r  the  

t ime,  i t  was on the  24  February.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   24  February?  

MS GOODSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   2016?  

MS GOODSON:    Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay,  so  he  is  send ing  i t  to  you  

because you are  ask ing  what  invo i ce  is  th is?  

MS GOODSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Upon rece iv ing  i t ,  what  do  you do?  10 

MS GOODSON:    I  jus t  keep i t ,  I  th ink .   I  do  no t  th ink  I  do 

anyth ing  w i th  i t ,  in  h inds igh t  I  know tha t  I  shou ld  have 

done a  lo t  o f  d i f fe ren t  th ings w i th  th is  invo ice  bu t  ja ,  bu t  I  

th ink  when Mr  Leba l lo  sent  to  i t  to  me,  I  jus t  he ld  on to  i t ,  i f  

I  remember  cor rec t l y.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes bu t  w i l l  you  not  te l l  the  Cha i rperson 

a  l i t t le  more  because apparent ly  there  was a  cover ing 

le t te r  wh ich  bo re  you s ignature  and the  invo ice  i t se l f  a lso  

bore  your  s ignatu re .   You co r rec t  me.  

MS GOODSON:    There  was a  cover ing  le t te r,  I  jus t  cannot  20 

remember,  cou ld  you he lp  me re f resh my memory  was th is  

the  cover ing  le t te r  about  Mohamed Bobat  o r  was  th is  the 

cover ing  le t te r  request ing  payment  d i rec t l y?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Request ing  payment  d i rec t l y,  yes .  

MS GOODSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Yes,  so  I  had an e lec t ron ic  
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vers ion  o f  my s ignature  and on the  9 t h  o r  the  9  February,  i t  

i s  par t  o f  my annexures,  the  emai l  i t se l f  i s  pa r t  o f  my 

annexures.   I  have emai led  tha t  s ignature  to  Mr  Ange l .  I  

was on my way home f rom work  and Mr  Ange l  asked me to  

come to  the  o f f i ce  to  s ign  an  invo i ce  bu t  I  do  no t  l i ve  

anywhere  near  Mel rose Arch ,  I  l i ve  in  the  so r t  o f  Fourways  

area and t ra f f i c  i s  ho r rendous and I  was not  go ing  to  go  

back to  s ign  and I  asked h im what  invo ice  is  i t  and why do  

I  need to  s ign  i t  and he sa id  tha t  we need to  pay or  we 

need to  re lease payment  fo r  the  ren ta l  o f f i ces  tha t  we had 10 

a t  the  t ime,  so  we need the  invo ice ,  we need tha t  to  be  

s igned so  we can ac tua l l y  make th is  payment .   So I  sa id  

look ,  C l i ve ,  I  am not  coming back to  Mel rose,  I  w i l l  j us t  

send you my s ignature ,  can you p lease jus t  s ign  i t?   That  

i s  my unders tand ing  and I  emai led  my s ignatu re  to  Mr  

Ange l .  

 When I  saw th is  emai l  on  the  24  February  w i th  the  

cover  le t te r  and the  invo ice  fo r  30 .6  m i l l ion ,  bo th  o f  wh ich  

have my s ignature  on ,  I  was very  d is tu rbed because I  d id  

no t  compi le  tha t  le t te r.   I  th ink  I  d id  ac tua l l y,  I  th ink  I  20 

compi led  a  dra f t  bu t  I  cer ta in l y  d id  no t  s ign  i t  and I  

compi led  a  dra f t  as  a  fo l low-up f rom a  meet ing  w i th  Mr  

Koko because I  knew tha t  I  was requested to  sor t  ou t  th is  

payment  d i rec t l y  to  Tr i l l i an  bu t  I  d id  no t  s ign  th is  and I  d id  

no t  s ign  tha t  invo ice  and what  i s  very  c lear  when you look  
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a t  those s ignature  i s  tha t  you can see tha t  those 

s ignatures  are  a lmost  ident ica l  and i t  i s ,  in  my op in ion ,  i t  i s  

the  p ic tu re  tha t  I  sent  to  Mr  Ange l .   I  d id  no t  s ign  e i ther  

one o f  those le t te rs ,  the  invo ice  no r  the  le t te r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  you ta lk  about  th is  on  paragraph  

48.2  o f  your  a f f idav i t ,  page 444.   A re  you there?  

MS GOODSON:    Yes,  I  am.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  so  on  24 February  2016 I  rece ived 

an emai l  f rom Leba l lo  tha t  conta ined an invo i ce  and cover  

le t te r  da ted  29 January  2016 addressed to  Ano j  S ingh,  10 

CFO of  Eskom.   A copy o f  the  emai l  a t tach ing  the  invo i ce  

and the  le t te r  i s  a t tached.   That  i s  on  page 459.149.  

MS GOODSON:    Okay,  I  have tha t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You have tha t?  

MS GOODSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I s  tha t  the  emai l?  

MS GOODSON:    That  i s  the  ema i l  tha t  –  the  f i rs t  t ime I  

saw i t ,  cor rec t ,  and tha t  i s  the  24  February.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So  i t  i s  fo rwarded to  you on the  24 t h?  

MS GOODSON:    Yes and you a re  cor rec t ,  Mr  Se leka,  Mr  20 

Leba l lo  sent  i t  to  bo th  Mr  S ingh and Mr  Matshe la .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And Mr  Koko,  CEO.  

MS GOODSON:    And Mr  Ange l .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And Mr  Ange l?  

MS GOODSON:    Ja .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   On the  3  February  2016?  

MS GOODSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Be fore  the  mee t ing  on  the  10 t h?  

MS GOODSON:    Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So  on the  10 t h  you are  to ld  fo l low-up on  

th is  invo i ce?  

MS GOODSON:    Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Then the  le t te r  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Se leka?  Wi l l  you  p lease a r range fo r  

your  team or  somebody to  make  sure  tha t  the  annexures  10 

are  eas i l y  ident i f iab le  o r  recogn isab le .    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Oh yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Do you see what  they have done,  i t  i s  

jus t  in  regard  to  some,  they run  annexure  so  and  so  and 

wr i te  on  the  ins ide  o f  the  prev ious page.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  see  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  when you a re  look ing  fo r  the  

annexure  you s t rugg le  and i t  i s  h idden.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Shou ld  no t  be  l i ke  tha t .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  do  no t  know who d id  i t  and why,  so  i f  

you  can get  somebody to  make sure  tha t  cer ta in l y  m ine is  

sor ted  ou t  bu t  a l l  o f  them shou ld  be  so r ted  ou t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    What  you normal ly  do  is  to  wr i te  on  the  

f i rs t  page o f  the  document  annexure  so  and so .   I f  you  do  

not  do  tha t ,  what  they do  is  to  pu t  page tha t  shows tha t  the 

next  document  i s  annexure  so  and so ,  bu t  no t  th is  way,  i t  

makes i t  d i f f i cu l t  to  f ind  the  annexure .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   That  sha l l  cer ta in ly  be  cor rec ted ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So  tha t  i s  the  emai l  and then on page  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink  I  may have los t  ou t  on  what  you  10 

were  say ing ,  you  had sa id  page 459 – page 149,  i s  tha t  

r igh t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Le t  us  s ta r t  a t  459 and 149.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  tha t  i s  where  I  am.   But  I  do  no t  th ink  

I  heard  what  you asked he r  about  th is .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So ,  Ms Goodson,  tha t  i s  the  ema i l .  

MS GOODSON:    Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes and the  emai l  i s  sent  to  you on the  

24  February  2016 .  

MS GOODSON:    Cor rec t .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    From Mr  Leba l lo .  

MS GOODSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And you were  say ing  I  am cor rec t  

about?  

MS GOODSON:    You are  cor rec t  in  tha t  th is  emai l  was  



04 MARCH 2021 – DAY 355 
 

Page 157 of 361 
 

sen t  to  bo th  Mr  S ingh and Mr  Koko .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And Mr  Koko.    

MS GOODSON:    And seeming ly  a lso  to  Mr  Ange l .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And Mr  Leba l lo  was connected w i th  what  

aga in?  

MS GOODSON:    Mr  Leba l lo  was the  Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  

Off i cer  o f  the  Tr i l l i an  Ho ld ing  Company.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay,  okay and the  annexure  tha t  he  

was send ing  to  Mr  S ingh and to  Mr  Ange l  and to  Mr  Koko is  10 

the  one a t  page 459.151? 

MS GOODSON:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  cont inue Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   So th is  –  i t  says :  

“P lease f ind  a t tached the  invo i ce  f rom Tr i l l i an  fo r  

Eskom Corpora te  P lan  de l i verab le .   We have a lso  

a t tached a  le t te r  fo r  your  cons ide ra t ion . ”  

The emai l  i s  sen t  on  the  3  February  2016.    So tha t  i s  

c lea r ly  be fore  your  meet ing  w i th  Mr  Koko on the  10  

February.  20 

MS GOODSON:    Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And th is  i s  the  emai l  you were  asked to  

fo l low up on w i th  Mr  Koko.  

MS GOODSON:    Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So  tha t  d i rec t  payment  can be made to  
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Tr i l l i an .  

MS GOODSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Then there  is  the  le t te r  on  what  shou ld  

be  the  next  page  and page 459.151,  i t  i s  addressed to  Mr  

Ano j  S ingh.  

MS GOODSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    D id  you say i t  i s  29  February  –  29  

January  2016?  

MS GOODSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Do you recogn ise  th is  le t te r?  10 

MS GOODSON:    As  in  I  rece ived in  the  emai l ,  yes ,  I  do  no t  

recogn ise  th is  le t te r  as  in  I  compi led  i t ,  I  d id  no t  compi le  

th is  le t te r  and I  d id  no t  s ign  th is  le t te r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So  you are  ne i the r  the  au tho r  ne i the r  

the  s ignatory  to  th is  le t te r.  

MS GOODSON:    No,  I  d id  no t  make th is  le t te r,  I  d id  no t  

comple te  th is ,  no r  d id  I  au thor  th is  le t te r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja ,  bu t  now i t  bea rs  your  name a t  the 

end o f  i t .   Ms B ianca Smi th .   

MS GOODSON:    Yes.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Was tha t  yourse l f  a t  the  t ime? 

MS GOODSON:    Yes,  tha t  was me,  yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  CEO Tr i l l i an  management  

consu l t ing .   Exp la in  to  the  Cha i rperson why do you  say you 

are  no t  the  au tho r  nor  the  s ignatory  to  th is  le t te r.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Be fore  do ing  tha t  do  you want  to  conf i rm  

tha t  –  whether  the  pos i t ion  is  tha t  a t  a  cer ta in  s tage,  

inc lud ing  th i s  t ime,  you were  us ing  the  surname Smi th  bu t  

you no longer  use the  su rname.  

MS GOODSON:    Ja ,  I  subsequen t ly  go t  marr ied ,  Smi th  i s  

my maiden name.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay,  bu t  were  you us ing  the  

surname Smi th  a t  tha t  t ime? 

MS GOODSON:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  bu t  subsequent ly  you have  10 

changed?  

MS GOODSON:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t ,  so  where  we see  B ianca  

Smi th  we must  know i t  i s  you?  

MS GOODSON:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t ,  cont inue?  

MS GOODSON:    I  d id  no t  compi le  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes I  was  say ing  exp la in  to  the 

Cha i rperson why do you say you a re  ne i ther  the  au thor  nor  

the  s ignatory  to  th is  le t te r?  20 

MS GOODSON:    I  cannot  exp la in  i t  beyond say ing  to  you  

under  oa th ,  Cha i r,  I  d id  no t  compi le  th is  le t te r  and I  d id  no t  

s ign  th i s  le t te r.   There  is  no  fu r ther  exp lanat ion  I  can g ive  

you,  I  d id  no t  do  th is .  

CHAIRPERSON :    The s ignatu re  tha t  appears  above your  



04 MARCH 2021 – DAY 355 
 

Page 160 of 361 
 

name,  wou ld  i t  have been the  one tha t  you sent  to  

…[ in tervenes]  

MS GOODSON:    Mr  Ange l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Ange l?  

MS GOODSON:    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   You sa id  tha t  you had sent  i t  to  

h im to  use i t  fo r  what?  

MS GOODSON:    He sa id  tha t  we needed to  pay an  invo ice  

fo r  the  ren ta l  o f f i ces  tha t  we were  us ing  a t  the  t ime.   In  as  

par t  o f  my annexures as  we l l ,  the  emai l  tha t  I  sen t  to  Mr  10 

Ange l  inc lud ing  th is ,  so  you can see – I  th ink  he  got  th is  – 

cannot  remember  the  exact  da te  bu t  you can see the  da te  

tha t  he  go t  a  copy o f  my s igna ture .   And tha t  was my  

unders tand ing ,  tha t  he  wou ld  on l y  use tha t  s igna ture  fo r  

th ings tha t  I  approve and I  be l ieved tha t  we needed  to  pay  

fo r  the  o f f i ce ,  the  ren ta l  o f f i ce  spaces tha t  we had  a t  the  

t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON :    In  o rder  to  pay,  why wou ld  he  need your  

s ignature ,  exp la in  tha t  par t?  

MS GOODSON:    I  am assuming to  s ign  o f f  a  payment ,  I  20 

mean tha t  w i l l  be  some o f  the  governance processes tha t  I  

am used to  f rom coming f rom Ang lo  Amer ican,  fo r  example .   

I f  I  am author is ing  a  payment ,  I  wou ld  have to  s ign  fo r  tha t  

payment .  

CHAIRPERSON :    And you say when you sent  the  s ignature  
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you sent  i t  together  w i th  a  no te?  

MS GOODSON:    No,  I  d id  no t .   I t  is  jus t  an  emai l  tha t  says  

as  d i scussed.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  bu t  i t  d id  no t  say  –  i t  d id  no t  revea l  

the  purpose fo r  wh ich  you are  send ing  the  s ignatu re .  

MS GOODSON:    Unfor tunate l y  no t ,  I  was not  tha t  spec i f i c  

on  tha t  day.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Thank you,  Cha i r.   The emai l  i s  –  we l l ,  

check whether  th i s  i s  the  emai l ,  page 459.154.  10 

MS GOODSON:    154?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja .  

MS GOODSON:    Yes,  I  had sent  i t  to  my COO Ben Burnard  

on  the  2  February  and then I  fo rwarded tha t  ema i l  to  Mr 

Ange l  on  the  2  February.   So Mr  Ange l  had a  copy o f  my 

s ignature  f rom the  2  February  and  I  reca l l  a lso  send ing  a  

copy o f  my s ignature  to  Mr  Burnard  because a t  the  t ime we 

were  t ry ing  –  we were  mak ing  emp loyment  o f fe rs  to  one or  

two ind i v idua ls  tha t  we had in te rv iewed and he jus t  needed  

to  s ign  the  employment  o f fe r,  so  tha t  i s  why my COO had a  20 

copy.   We wanted to  send out  o f fe r  le t te rs  o f  emp loyment  

bu t  the  reason why I  sent  i t  to  C l i ve  was fo r  a  comple te ly  

reason.   Sor ry,  reason why I  sent  i t  to  Mr  Ange l  was  

d i f fe ren t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  the  da te  when i t  sent  i t  was i t  no t  in  
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February?  

MS GOODSON:    I t  i s  the  2  February,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  so  i t  i s  c lose  to  the  29 t h?  

MS GOODSON:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ms Goodson,  I  do  no t  th ink  we have 

the  a t tachment  to  your  emai l .  

MS GOODSON:    I  can  a lways g i ve  i t  to  you.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The one tha t  shows your  s ignature .  

MS GOODSON:    Yes,  I  can a lways  g ive  i t  to  you.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Because I  see the  emai l  says  a t t ached.  

MS GOODSON:    Yes and i t  shou ld  be ,  i t  was a t tached as  a  

JPEG.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

MS GOODSON:    So  I  cou ld  a lways fo rward  i t  to  you in  i t s  

na ture  fo rmat .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.   Tha t  invo ice  re la ted  to  the  

corpo ra te  p lan ,  you say?  

MS GOODSON:    Sor ry,  can I  jus t  ra ise  one po in t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  cer ta in ly.  20 

MS GOODSON:    I f  you  go to  annexure  pages 459.151,  tha t  

i s  the  le t te r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja .  

MS GOODSON:    The le t te r  i s  da ted  29 January.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes?  
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MS GOODSON:    Okay?  However,  i f  you  go to  the  p rev ious 

page 459.149.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes?  

MS GOODSON:    You can see tha t  th is  was sent  on  the  3  

February.   So a l though the  le t te r  i s  da ted  the  29 t h  i t  i s  

ac tua l l y  on l y  sen t  th rough on the  3 r d  and I  sent  my emai l  

s ignature  to  Mr  Ange l  on  the  2n d ,  so  I  do  no t  be l i eve  tha t  

the  da te  o f  th is  le t te r  i s  in  fac t  the  29  January,  I  ac tua l l y  

th ink  tha t  i t  was an updated and sent  th rough on the  3 r d .   

That  i s  my hypothes i s .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  i t  may we l l  be  tha t  i t  was  wr i t ten  

or ig ina l l y  on  the  29 t h  and the  da te  has no t  changed.  

MS GOODSON:    And on ly  s igned or  inc luded la te r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MS GOODSON:    Bu t  techn ica l l y  the  da te  be fo re  th is  

invo i ce  is  sent  th rough to  Eskom is  the  day tha t  I  g ive  my  

s ignature  to  my manager.   Sor ry,  I  am go ing  o f f  top ic .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   No,  no ,   you need  to  exp la in  yourse l f ,  

o f  course .   I  see  Tr i l l i an  Management  Consu l t ing ’s  address 

is  4 t h  f loor,  23  Mel rose Bou levard ,  Me l rose Arch  on tha t  20 

le t te r.  

MS GOODSON:    Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   That  was the  o f f i ces  you opera ted  f rom.  

MS GOODSON:    Yes,  i t  was ren ta l  o f f i ces ,  we were  ren t ing  

o f f i ces  f rom a  company ca l led  Ext ra  Space,  i t  was not  the  
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fo rmal ised o f f i ces  o f  Tr i l l i an  wh ich  they moved to  la te r,  

a lso  i n  the  Mel rose Arch  p rec inc t  bu t  fo r  my ent i re  tenure  

a t  Tr i l l i an  we were  us ing  these temporary  o f f i ces .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Le t  me take th is  oppor tun i ty  to  ask  you  

some quest ions  tha t  a re  no t  re la ted  to  th i s ,  to  your  

ev idence.   We have heard  –  I  have heard  a  l o t  o f  ev idence 

about  peop le  a l leged ly  meet ing  w i th  Mr  Sa l im Essa a t  

Me l rose A rch .   Now do you know whether  there  were  

o f f i ces  a t  Me l rose Arch  tha t  he  used where  he  cou ld  be  

found?  10 

MS GOODSON:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And where  he  may have met  w i th  

peop le?  

MS GOODSON:    Yes,  I  have met  h im –  when he 

in te rv iewed me,  I  met  Mr  Essa a t  Mr  Essa ’s  o f f i ces  in  

Mel rose  Arch  .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS GOODSON:    I t  was a lso  i n  those o f f i ces  tha t  Mr  Essa  

in t roduced to  Mr  Abram Masango who was –  a t  tha t  t ime he 

was the  execut ive  head o f  Transmiss ion  a t  Eskom.   I  met  20 

h im in  those o f f i ces .   I  met  Mr  Sagar  a t  those o f f i ces .   Ja ,  

i t  i s  very  l i ke ly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And those o f f i ces  were  the  o f f i ces  o f  

wh ich  o f  the  en t i t ies  w i th  wh ich  he  may have been  

assoc ia ted .  
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MS GOODSON:    Yes,  I  can exp la in  a l l  o f  tha t  to  you.   So  

Mel rose Arch  is  obv ious ly  a t  the  prec inc t ,  r igh t?   And i f  you 

are  fami l ia r  w i th  Mel rose A rch ,  I  am go ing  to  t ry  and use 

the  gym as a  cent ra l  so r t  o f  landmark ,  r igh t?   The  

temporary  o f f i ces  o f  Tr i l l i an ,  every th ing  in  Tr i l l i an ,  Tr i l l i an  

Management  Consu l t ing ,  Asset  management ,  a l l  the 

subs id ia r ies ’ temporary  o f f i ces  were  oppos i te  the  gym,  was  

a lmost  above Woolwor ths  when Woolwor ths  was there  and 

tha t  was the  ex t ra  space o f f i ces ,  r igh t?   In tegra ted  Cap i ta l  

Management  o f f i ces  and Mr  Sa l im Essa ’s  o f f i ces  were  on  10 

the  o ther  s ide  o f  the  prec inc t  a lmost  as  i f  you  were  go ing  

onto  A tho l  Oak lands,  so  a lmost  by  the  ex i t  there  was  

another  separa te  corpora te  bu i ld ing  the re ,  the  bu i ld ing  o f  

bus inesses.   On  the  ground f loo r  i s  In tegra ted  Cap i ta l ’s  

o f f i ces  o f  th is  spec i f i c  bu i ld ing ,  i t  i s  wh i te  w i th  b lack  

w indows and on  the  f i rs t  f loor  o f  tha t  same bu i l d ing ,  so  

d i rec t l y  above In tegra ted  Cap i ta l  i s  Mr  Sa l im Essa ’s  

o f f i ces .   So get  f rom one p lace to  the  o ther  was very  –  i t  i s  

jus t  a  wa lk .   So when I  had a  meet ing  w i th  Mr  Essa,  I  

wou ld  wa lk  ou t  o f  where  temporary  o f f i ces  were  by  the  gym 20 

and jus t  wa lk  across  –  a lmost  l i ke  across the  road.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  so  what  d id  you say was the  name 

o f  the  en t i t y  tha t  had the  o f f i ces  where  he  cou ld  be  found? 

MS GOODSON:     In tegra ted  Cap i ta l  Management .  

CHAIRPERSON :    In tegra ted  Cap i ta l  Management?  
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MS GOODSON:     Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  there  were  o ther  en t i t ies  connected 

w i th  Tr i l l i an  around as  we l l .   TCM was there  or  was i t  no t  

there?  

MS GOODSON:    TCM was not  in  tha t  bu i ld ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MS GOODSON:    We were  in  a  d i f fe ren t  bu i ld ing  bu t  in  the 

prec inc t  you cou ld  wa lk .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  in  Mel rose A rch  .  

MS GOODSON:    Hundred percent ,  yes .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes ,  yes .   So he –  and d id  you say 

h is  o f f i ce  was on the  f i rs t  f loor?  

MS GOODSON:    Mr  Sa l im Essa ’s  o f f i ce  was on the  f i rs t  

f loor  o f  the  same bu i ld ing  as  In tegra ted .  

CHAIRPERSON :    O f  the  same bu i ld ing?  

MS GOODSON:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  okay.  

MS GOODSON:    So  i t  i s  someth ing  l i ke ,  Cha i r,  we were  44  

Mel rose Bou leva rd ,  they were  someth ing  l i ke  2  Mel rose  

Bou leva rd .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  okay.  

MS GOODSON:    Bu t  a l l  in  the  same road.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay,  okay.   No,  thank you.   Mr  

Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja .  Wel l ,  you ment ioned Mr  Abram  
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Masango be ing  in t roduced to  you.   When about  was th is?  

MS GOODSON:    I  have i t  in  my a f f idav i t ,  I  am su re  –  Mr  

Koko even re ferences the  fac t  tha t  i t  i s  in  my a f f idav i t ,  I  

have got  the  exac t  da te  tha t  I  ment ion  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    In  your  a f f idav i t  you ta lk  about  –  I  th ink 

you ta lk  about  November  or  December  2016.  

MS GOODSON:    Jus t  le t  me see under  Mr  Essa?   

ADV SELEKA SC:    On page 431,  parag raph 18.3 .2 .   

MS GOODSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Dur ing  or  abou t  week 50,  2015,  6  to  12  10 

December  2016 and a t  Essa ’s  o f f i ce ,  I  was in t roduced by  

Essa to  Abram Masango.   So tha t  is  December.  

MS GOODSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You went  there  in  March 2015.  

MS GOODSON:    2016.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   No,  I  am ta lk ing  March 2015,  I  am 

de l ibe ra te l y  ask ing  you tha t  quest ion .  

MS GOODSON:    No,  in  March 2015 I  d id  no t  know 

anyth ing  about  Tr i l l i an  or  Reg iments  or  Eskom,  I  jus t  

worked fo r  Ang lo .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Oh.   Who e lse  f rom Eskom – we l l ,  le t  

me put  i t  d i f fe ren t ly,  d id  you see anybody e lse  f rom Eskom 

and Mel rose  Arch  in  the  per iod  tha t  you were  there?  

MS GOODSON:    No.   The on ly  o ther  peop le  tha t  I  saw 

qu i te  f requent ly  was Mr  Sagar  f rom McKinsey  and Mr 
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Pamensky was there .   I  cannot  remember  i f  he  was on the  

board  a t  the  t ime.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Mr  who?  

MS GOODSON:    Mr  Mark  Pamensky.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You saw h im there?  

MS GOODSON:    Ja ,  f requent ly.   Sor ry,  I  have got  a  bad 

hab i t  cha i r,  I  am a  smoker  and Mr  Pamensky was a  smoker  

as  we l l  so  we o f ten  were  in  the  same p lace tha t  i s  smok ing .   

Mr  Pamensky was a lways between  the  d i f fe ren t  bu i l d ings.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    He was on the  Eskom board  in  2015.  10 

MS GOODSON:    No,  I  saw h im –  okay,  we l l  then tha t  i s  

another  person I  have met  f rom Eskom,  to  answer  your  

quest ion  and there  is  nobody e l se  tha t  I  can th ink  about .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  he  is  no t  f rom Eskom but  he  

served on the  board  o f  Eskom.  

MS GOODSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   He is  a  non-execut ive  d i rec to r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Can I  a lso  ask  on  the  f loor  where  Mr  

Sa l im Essa ’s  o f f i ce  was,  was there  a  ba lcony?   

MS GOODSON:   Yes,  bu t  i t  was one o f  those ba lcon ies ,  the  20 

way the  o f f i ce  was conf igured  was tha t  the re  was  l i ke  a  

cent ra l  cour t  yard ,  and a l l  the  o f f i ces  were  around the  

cour t  yard .   So there  was a  ba lcony tha t  over looked in to  

the  in te rna l  cour t  yard ,  i f  tha t  makes sense.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  
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MS GOODSON:   When you look,  I  have never  been . . .  I  

have on ly  been to  the  board  room in  tha t  spec i f i c  o f f i ce .   I  

have never  been beyond i t ,  bu t  when you dr i ve  on  the  N1,  

because I  know exact ly  where  th is  bu i ld ing  is  and  wh ich  

o f f i ce  i t  i s ,  i t  does look to  be  a  smal le r  ba l cony tha t  looks  

ou t  on to  the  M,  fo r  mothe r,  1  f rom tha t  bu i ld ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  you can see i t  f rom the  road?  

MS GOODSON:   You can see i t  f rom the  M1,  the  one  

ba lcony.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  10 

MS GOODSON:   And then on the  o ther  s ide  o f  the  o f f i ce ,  

the  ba lcony l i ke  I  sa id  faces ins ide  towards the  cent ra l  

cour t  ya rd .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  okay.    

ADV SELEKA SC:   I f  you  are  on  the  ou ts ide  go ing  to  those 

o f f i ces ,  where  wou ld  you pa rk?  

MS GOODSON:   Oh,  i t  was easy.   You want  me to  exp la in  

th is?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I s  there  a  basement  park ing  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

MS GOODSON:   Yes.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Or  ou ts ide .   A lso  ou ts ide  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS GOODSON:   Bo th .   The outs ide  pa rk ing  is  a  lo t  smal le r.   

I  th ink  i t  can  on ly  accommodate  about  ten  cars  or  so ,  bu t  i t  

i s  d i rec t l y  on  the  ground f loo r  as  you can wa lk  in to  the  
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bu i ld ing .   The basement  park ing  i f  I  remember  cor rec t l y  i t  

was not  even rea l l y  access cont ro l led .   You jus t  had to  te l l  

the  secur i t y  guard  I  am go ing  to  th is  company and  he 

wou ld  jus t  open fo r  you and then the  basement  park ing  was  

jus t  one leve l  beneath  and was s l igh t ly  more  ex tens ive .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja .   The ba lcony tha t  you say you can  

see f rom the  h ighway,  i s  i t  access ib le  when you a re ,  when  

you are  in  Mr  Sa l im Essa ’s  o f f i ce?  

MS GOODSON:   I  th ink  i t  i s  on ly  access ib le  i f  you  are  in  

the  o f f i ce .   The ba lcony tha t  looks in to  the  in te rna l  cour t  10 

yard  is  access ib le  to  anybody.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   

MS GOODSON:   Ja .   I  d id  no t  inc lude th is  t ype o f  s tu f f  in  

my a f f idav i t .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   You d id  no t  inc lude i t?  

CHAIRPERSON:   [ ind is t inc t ]  

MS GOODSON:   I  am ta lk ing  about  ba lcon ies .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  you know about  i t .   Whi le  you were  

there ,  was i t  usua l  to  see peop le  on  the  ba lcony by  any  

chance?   20 

MS GOODSON:   I  do  no t  know Cha i rman.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You do not  know tha t .   

MS GOODSON:   Because every  t ime I  have went ,  I  have 

a lways met  Mr  Essa in  the  board  room.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   
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MS GOODSON:   And the  board  room was as  you came 

th rough the  f ron t  door,  the  board  room was r igh t  the re .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MS GOODSON:   So  you d id  no t  rea l l y  nav iga te  th rough the  

res t  o f  the  o f f i ce  to  ge t  to  the  board  room.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MS GOODSON:   So  I  wou ld  no t  know.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   The in teg ra ted  cap i ta l  

management ,  so  on ly  Mr  Abraham Masango you were  10 

in t roduced to?  

MS GOODSON:   I  beg your  pardon? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   On ly  Mr  Abraham Masango,  you were  

in t roduced by  Mr  Sa l im Essa?   

MS GOODSON:   Yes,  yes .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   D id  he  te l l  you  anyth ing  about  h im? 

MS GOODSON:   He,  Mr  Essa in t roduced Mr  Masango as  

the  group execut ive  o f  t ransmiss ion  and then in t roduced  

me as the  CEO o f  Tr i l l i on  Management  Consu l t ing  and tha t  

was i t .   I t  was very  br ie f .   20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Mr  Pamensky . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am so r ry.   So  you were  no t  hav ing  a  

meet ing  w i th  the  two o f  them? 

MS GOODSON:   No,  I  was ac tua l l y  go ing  to  meet  w i th  Mr  

Essa,  so  as  I  was meet ing  w i th  Mr  Essa Mr  Masango was 
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leav ing .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Mr  Pamensky was there ,  and what  was 

h is  pos i t ion  you say?  

MS GOODSON:   Mr  Pamensky was around a  lo t .   He was  

w i th ,  he  was the  CEO of  Tr i l l i on  Proper t ies .   In  the  

beg inn ing  when I  f i rs t ,  f i rs t ,  f i rs t  s ta r ted  w i th  in  January  o f  

2016,  Tr i l l i on  had a  subs id ia ry  ca l led  Tr i l l i on  Proper t ies  

and Mr  Ange l  to ld  me tha t  the  CEO of  Tr i l l i on  Proper t ies  

was Mr  Pamensky.    10 

 Dur ing  my tenure  a t  Tr i l l i on  the  proper ty  d iv is ion  

s tayed but  Mr  Pamensky was rep laced by  another  

gent leman whose  name I  cannot  remember  r igh t  now.   But  

i t  was Mr  Pamensky,  so  we . . .  Mr  Pamensky and I  wou ld  

smoke on the  same ba lcony.    

 So we wou ld  bo th  be  s tand ing  look ing  a t  the  gym 

and very  o f ten  when I  wou ld  go  and meet  w i th  Mr  Ange l ,  Mr  

Pamensky was a l so  in  t ha t  bu i ld ing .   But  Mr  Pamensky he 

was jus t  a  regu la r  fea ture .   So he somet imes do not  wr i te  

about  th ings tha t  you jus t ,  you know,  they were  jus t  20 

normal .  

 I  d id  no t  inc lude i t  so  much in  here  I  do  no t  th ink .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja ,  no  i t  i s  f ine .   He was a  regu lar  

fea ture .   So what  do  you mean,  he  was there  every  day?  

MS GOODSON:   Every  t ime I  was in  the  o f f i ce  I  saw h im,  I  



04 MARCH 2021 – DAY 355 
 

Page 173 of 361 
 

mean and somet imes I  wou ld  no t  a lways go to  the  o ff i ce .   I  

wou ld  somet imes go to  Megawat t  Park ,  somet imes I  worked  

f rom home,  bu t  every  s ing le  t ime I  was in  the  o f f i ce  I  

wou ld ,  no t  every  t ime.    

 Most ly  I  wou ld  see h im,  ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And you were  go ing  to  the  o f f i ce  every  

day?  

MS GOODSON:   Most ly,  and i f  i t  was not  h im i t  was  h is ,  he  

a lso  had l i ke  a  COO by the  name o f  Mr  Michae l  Shap i ro ,  

Michae l  Shap i ro .   So i f  Mr  Pamensky was not  there ,  Mr  10 

Shap i ro  was the re ,  bu t  Tr i l l i on  Proper t ies  had a  very  

separa te  sect ion  o f  the  ren ted  o f f i ces .   

 So i f  ever  I  wanted to  go  and see Ms Matsepo fo r  

example ,  I  wou ld  wa lk  past  the  Tr i l l i on  Proper t ies  and you 

wou ld  a lways see  somebody in  the re .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  see  you ta lk  about  Mr  Pamensky  

ask ing  you to  rev iew h i s  CV.  

MS GOODSON:   Yes,  we were  hav ing  a  smoke one day and  

he asked me to  take  a  look a t  h i s  CV and I  thought  h is  CV  

was rea l l y  bad.    20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   You thought  what?  

MS GOODSON:   H is  CV was rea l l y  bad.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   You know you cannot  say  tha t  about  

h im?  

MS GOODSON:   Sor ry?  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   You know you cannot  say  tha t  about  

h im?  

MS GOODSON:   No,  h is  CV was . . .  i t  was a  one pager  CV 

and I  d id  c r i t i c i ze  th is  to  h im.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.  

MS GOODSON:   Because he wanted my feedback,  so  I  

gave h im my feedback and my feedback was qu i te  c r i t i ca l .   

I t  d id  no t  rea l l y  have much about  exper ience and the  u t i l i t y,  

I  do  no t  unders tand why anybody wou ld  want ,  he  sa id  tha t  

he  was app ly ing  fo r  a  board  pos i t ion .  10 

 I  d id  no t  know what  board  and I  jus t  sa id  th is  i s ,  

you do not  show any manager ia l  pos i t ions  or  any o ther  

execut ive  exper iences.   I  wou ld  no t  employ  you  on my  

board  and as  fa r  as  I  know he went  and he a f fec ted  the  

changes tha t  I  recommended.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   So  you knew each o the r  qu i te  we l l?  

MS GOODSON:   Smokers  genera l l y  have a  good rappor t  

w i th  each o the r,  and a  lo t  o f  the  t imes when I  wou ld  go  and 

have a  c iga re t te ,  he  wou ld  be  there  you know.   So we 

wou ld  a lways sor t  o f  jus t  speak about  s tu f f .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   D id  you know tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   D id  you,  d id  you  te l l  h im you recommend 

tha t  he  shou ld  inc lude in  h is  CV some exper ience  tha t  he 

had fo rgo t ten  tha t  he  had?  

MS GOODSON:   I  jus t  to ld  h im tha t  I  thought  i t  was  th in .   I  
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jus t  sa id  i s  th i s  a l l  you  have got .   

CHAIRPERSON:   And then he put ,  he  pu t  some more?  

MS GOODSON:   And he sa id  we l l  g ive  me an example ,  and  

I  jus t  ra t t led  o f f  some s tu f f  tha t  I  cou ld  th ink  about .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

MS GOODSON:   And he was l i ke ,  okay.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Mr  Se leka?   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  thank you Cha i r.    

CHAIRPERSON:   D id  you subsequent ly  see the  rev ised CV  

by any chance?  10 

MS GOODSON:   No.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh,  thank you.   we l l ,  i f  you  saw one tha t  

he  may have submi t ted  to  the  Depar tment  o f  Pub l ic  

Enterp r ises ,  be fore  he  was appo in ted  to  the  Board  o f  

Eskom,  wou ld  you know whethe r  i t  i s  the  same as the  one  

you cr i t i c i zed o r  no t?  

MS GOODSON:   I  rea l l y  wou ld  no t  remember.   I t  was such  

a  long t ime ago Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  okay.  

MS GOODSON:   And i t  was ove r  a  c igare t te .   You know,  20 

you are  no t  rea l l y  pay ing  a t ten t ion  a t  the  t ime,  and  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  okay.   A l r igh t .    

ADV SELEKA SC:   D id  you o r  d id  you not  know tha t  in  

January  2016 he was serv ing  on  the  Board  o f  Eskom? 
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MS GOODSON:   I  d id  no t  know tha t .   When the  f i r s t  t ime 

Mr  Pamensky became very  s ign i f i can t  to  me,  was in  March.   

I t  was the  week a f te r  I  res igned and I  th ink  i t  was the  Mai l  

and Guard ian .   The Mai l  and Guard ian  had th is  p i c tu re  o f  

Mr  Essa and the  Guptas ,  and a l l  these min i s te rs  on  boards.    

 I t  was Eskom on  the  one s ide  and Transnet  on  the  

o ther  s ide ,  and a t  the  bo t tom a re  a l l  these peop le  tha t  

were  connected and the re  was a  p ic tu re  o f  Mr  Pamensky,  

there  was a  p ic tu re  o f  Mr  Sandy  Shane f rom In terc red i t  

Cap i ta l .    10 

 There  was a  p ic tu re  o f  Mohammed Bobat .   So the  

on ly  t ime th i s  concept  o f  s ta te  capture  rea l l y  h i t  me,  was 

when I  looked a t  th is  p ic tu re ,  th is  schemat ic  and there  

were  way too  many peop le ’s  faces  tha t  I  recogn ized  on tha t  

schemat ic  and tha t  i s  when the  s ign i f i cance,  and tha t  i s  

when I  rea l i sed,  bu t  tha t  was in  March.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   March  2016?  

MS GOODSON:   2016,  ja .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Bu t  be fore  you went ,  there  is  a 

quest ion  I  wanted  to  ask  and I  wan t  her  to  f low in  tha t  one.   20 

Le t  me get  to  th is ,  because I  wan t  to  end w i th  tha t .   The 

corpo ra te  p lan ,  you sa id  TMC d id  no t  render  serv ices  in  

respect  o f  corpo ra te  p lan .  

MS GOODSON:   Categor ica l l y  no t .   Tr i l l i on  Management  

Consu l t ing  d id  no  work  fo r  the  corpora te  p lan .   I t  d id  no t  
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p lan ,  d id  no t  do  i t ,  d id  no t  env i sage i t ,  i t  d id  no th ing .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   D id  you know anyth ing  about  the  

corpo ra te  p lan?  

MS GOODSON:   No,  I  knew noth ing  about  the  corpora te  

p lan .   Abso lu te ly  no th ing .   I  am so  emphat ic  about  th is .   I t  

has  been my pos i t ion  f rom f i ve  years  ago and i t  i s  s t i l l  my 

pos i t ion  today and I  know the  peop le  may have op in ions 

about  i t ,  bu t  Tr i l l i on  Management  Consu l t ing  o f  wh ich  I  was  

the  CEO had noth ing  to  do  w i th  the  corpora te  p lan .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  th ink  Ms Matsepo d id  say  tha t  the 10 

corpo ra te  p lan ,  serv i ces  re la t ing  to  the  corpora te  p lan  were  

rendered by  [ ind i s t inc t ] .    

MS GOODSON:   Okay,  and I  wou ld  no t  have known tha t  

because I  was a t  Ang lo  Amer i can.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   

MS GOODSON:   R igh t ,  I  d id  no t  work  fo r  R iggermans,  so  i f  

they  d id  do  the  work ,  aga in  my s ta tement  i s  s t i l l  cor rec t  

tha t  Tr i l l i on  Management  Consu l t ing ,  o f  wh ich  as  fa r  as  I  

know,  I  was the  f i rs t  Employee,  d id  no t  work  fo r  th is .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Much less  so  in  February  2016 when  20 

there  was on ly  two o f  you?  

MS GOODSON:   Abso lu te ly.   I t  was jus t  myse l f  and Mr  

Bernard ,  and we  were  t ry ing  to  se t  up  the  company.   We 

cou ld  no t  do  any b i l lab le  work .    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   
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MS GOODSON:   We were  s t re tched so  th in .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You know,  Ms Goodson,  in  tha t  contex t  

I  am reminded o f  what  Mr  Koko sa id  when he was here .   He  

sa id  there  was a  workshop g iven by  McK insey and  Tr i l l i on  

a t  Eskom,  and I  th ink  he  sa id  on  the  10 t h  o f  February,  the 

day when he met  w i th  you.  

MS GOODSON:   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Wel l ,  two quest ions.   Were  you,  you 

were  the  CEO at  the  t ime.   

MS GOODSON:   I  am the  on ly  one o f  two Employees .   10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   

MS GOODSON:   I  can  assure  you tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Th is  i s  the  quest ion ,  were  you aware  o f  

the  workshop?  

MS GOODSON:   No,  because  the  f i rs t  . . .  look ,  as  I  

ment ioned I  had  met  Mr  Koko before  the  10 t h ,  a f te r  the  

press  conference ,  r igh t .   But  on  the  10 t h  there  was no 

workshop,  there  was noth ing  l i ke  tha t .   I  parked a t  

Megawat t  Park .   I  went  s t ra igh t  to  the  execut ive  when I  sa t  

on  the  couches w i th  Mr  Koko and Mr  Mabu len i .   20 

 I  d id  no t  do  work .   L ike  as  in  a  workshop,  r igh t .   So 

i t  ca tegor ica l l y  was not  me.   I  do  no t  remember  my  COO’s  

ca lendar  bu t  I  do  no t  remember  us  be ing  opera t iona l  a t  

tha t  po in t ,  bu t  I  s tand to  be  co r rec ted .   Abso lu te l y  and i t  

cou ld  no t  have been anybody e l se  because i t  was on ly  me.    
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 I f  i t  was not  me ,  i t  was Mr  Bernard .   So Tr i l l i an  

cer ta in ly  was not  represented in  p lu ra l  because the re  were  

on ly  two and i f  i t  was p lu ra l  i t  wou ld  have been me and Mr  

Bernard .   Maybe Mr  Bernard  was there  bu t  I  cannot  

remember.   

 But  i t  cer ta in ly  was not  me and when I  met  Mr  Koko 

on the  10 t h ,  he  d id  no t  even ment ion  tha t  to  me.    

CHAIRPERSON:   I  mean the  workshop was supposed to  

have been when Mr  Se leke?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  th ink  Mr  Koko  sa id  on  the  10 t h ,  on  the  10 

day he  met  w i th  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The 10 t h  o f  February  2016.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l ,  sure ly  i f  TMC had on ly  two  

Employees,  one o f  whom was the  CEO there  i s  no  way tha t  

the  CEO,  there  wou ld  be  workshop a t tended by  somebody  

f rom TMC tha t  the  CEO wou ld  no t  know about?  

MS GOODSON:   Imposs ib le .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  because even i f  i t  was your  COO,  so  

you were  the  CEO and the  COO but  you,  d id  you  have a  20 

messenger?  

MS GOODSON:   I t  was honest ly  jus t  the  two o f  us .   So I  do  

no t  know,  maybe there  was anothe r  Employee f rom Tr i l l i an ,  

I  do  no t  know but  as  fa r  as  Tr i l l i an  Management  Consu l t ing  

is  concerned,  i t  cer ta in l y  was not  me.   I f  i t  was Mr  Bernard  
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who was my COO,  maybe and I  jus t  cannot  remember.  

 But  i f  tha t  was the  case I  wou ld  have expected Mr  

Koko to  say bu t  I  met  Mr  Bernard  th is  morn ing .   Or  you  

know,  the  workshop went  we l l ,  bu t  tha t  meet ing  o f  t he  10 t h  

was on ly  about ,  we on ly  d iscussed what  I  exp la ined to  you  

wh ich  was the  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  McKenz ie  and the  

payments .   

 We d id  no t ,  I  d id  no t  know about  the  workshop.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Or  maybe tha t  I  am meet ing  Mr  Bernard  

a f te r  th is  meet ing  or  tha t  there  is  a  workshop a f te r  my 10 

meet ing  w i th  you.  

MS GOODSON:   Ja ,  bu t  okay,  ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   No,  d id  he  men t ion  tha t?  

MS GOODSON:   No.   No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Was there  an  ind ica t ion  f rom h im tha t  

he  w i l l  go  to  Mel rose Arch  and  sor t  ou t  the  issue o f  

payments .  

MS GOODSON:   No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Or  k i l l  the  issue o f  payments  w i th  TMC? 

MS GOODSON:   The,  the  issue o f  the  payments  was very  20 

succ inc t .   I  asked Mr  Koko wou ld  they cons ider  pay ing  us  

d i rec t l y  and Mr  Koko rep l ied  very  succ inc t l y  we cannot  

because you do not  have a  cont rac t .   End o f  s to ry.   I  d id  

no t  push tha t  because tha t  was reasonab le .   

 But  there  was no t  a  debate  or  a  d iscuss ion .   Th is  



04 MARCH 2021 – DAY 355 
 

Page 181 of 361 
 

was not  p ro longed.   I t  was very,  ve ry  succ inc t .    

ADV SELEKA SC:   So  tha t  i s  in  February  2016.   Was th i s  

payment  o f  30 .6  m i l l ion  rand made  dur ing  your  t ime?   

MS GOODSON:   No.   No.   No,  bu t  i f  i t  was I  wou ld  no t  

have even seen i t ,  because I  d id  no t  have access to  the  

f inances.   But  i f  I  reca l l  the  in fo rmat ion  tha t  I  go t ,  tha t  I  

had been work ing  w i th  Mr  Bud lender,  I  th ink  i t  was pa id ,  

bu t  la te r.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   I t  was pa id  on  the  14 t h  o f  Apr i l  2016.   

MS GOODSON:   Ja .   But  so  no ,  no t  dur ing  my t ime.   10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   So  why d id ,  why d id  you leave  on the  

19 t h?   D id  you leave?  D id  you res ign?  D id  you,  what?   D id 

they chase you away?  What  happened? 

MS GOODSON:   I  res igned  under  rea l l y  d i f f i cu l t  

c i rcumstances.   But  i f  I  cou ld  ask  you,  I  know you are  

go ing  to  read my res ignat ion  le t te r,  so  le t  us  ra ther  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:   No,  I  have tha t .   Le t  me ask you th is  

quest ion  be fore  I  go  there .   Ms  Matsepo tes t i f ied  here  

about  you be ing  present  w i th  her  when Mr  Lebe lo  you have  20 

ment ioned.  

MS GOODSON:   Yes.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   That  her  no tes ,  on  her  no tebook.  

MS GOODSON:   Yes.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   The words . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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MS GOODSON:   They are  go ing  to  f inance the  m in i s te r,  the 

F inance Min is te r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   For  change o f  m in is te r.   

MS GOODSON:   Ja .   Someth ing  l i ke  tha t .   Yes,  I  remember  

i t  very  spec i f i ca l l y.   I t  was Wednesday,  the  16 t h  o f  March  

2016 and I  know tha t  because  tha t  i s  Ms Matsepo ’s  

b i r thday.    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Which  da te?  

MS GOODSON:   The 16 t h  o f  March .    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.  10 

MS GOODSON:   2016,  and i t  was a  Wednesday morn ing .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I t  was th ree  days be fore  you res igned.   

MS GOODSON:   Yes,  and i t  was Ms Matsepo ’s  b i r thday and 

she shared an o f f i ce  w i th  Mr  Lebe lo  and I  had jus t  come 

in to  the  o f f i ce  and as  you do,  you make a  cup o f  co f fee  and  

you wa lk  a round  the  o f f i ce  and you say good morn ing  to  

peop le ,  and befo re  you s ta r t  you  know s i t t ing  w i th  your  

compute r,  and I  d id  exact ly  tha t .   

 My o f f i ce  was on qu i te  a  d i f fe ren t  s ide .   Ms  

Matsepo ’s  o f f i ce  was a  lo t  c lose r  to  the  Tr i l l i an  Proper ty ’s  20 

o f f i ce ,  so  i t  was on the  o ther  s ide  o f  the  bu i ld ing .   Made a  

cup o f  co f fee  and I  went  to  the  o f f i ce  and Mr  Lebe lo  was 

there ,  Ms Matsepo was the re  and the  f i rs t  th ing  tha t  I  

asked as  I  wa lked in to  th is  o f f i ce  was Mr  Lebe lo ,  I  ca l led  

h im Tebogs.    
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  I  sa id  Tebogs,  what  i s  happen ing  w i th  the  MSA.   I s  

i t  s t i l l  no t  s igned ,  and I  say  th i s  bu t  I  am walk ing  towards 

Ms Matsepo and he gets  up  and he says ja ,  i t  i s  s t i l l  no t  

s igned.   You know,  so  the  th ree  o f  us  are  s i t t ing  there  w i th  

our  co f fee ,  and . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Was th is  go ing  to  be ,  was th is  a  p lanned 

meet ing?  

MS GOODSON:   No.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Or  you jus t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS GOODSON:   No,  i t  was j us t  what  you do in  the 10 

morn ing ,  ca tch ing  up .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MS GOODSON:   Say ing  good morn ing  to  peop le .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MS GOODSON:   I t  was not  schedu led ,  no th ing ,  and 

because I  rea l l y  go t  a long very  we l l  w i th  Mr  Lebe lo  and Ms 

Matsepo,  we re fe r red  to  each o ther  as  s is te rs  somet imes,  

you know.   So I  was jus t  go ing  to  say good morn ing  and  

they were  bo th  there .   

 I  sa id  so  Ms Matsepo says bu t  how are  we go ing  to  20 

ge t  pa id .   How are  we go ing  to  pay,  because now 

remember  a l l  the  R iggermans ’s  peop le  had come over  

a l ready,  and I  mean,  Ms Matsepo and I  were  very  

concerned tha t  th is  MSA was not  s igned because ou r  

unders tand ing  was as  long as  the  MSA is  no t  s igned we 
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a re  no t  ge t t ing  revenue and i f  we are  no t  ge t t ing  revenue,  

how can the  bus iness susta in  i t se l f .   

 Then Mr  Lebe lo  sa id  bu t  there  is  b igger  p rob lems.   

Someth ing  a long those l ines  and tha t  i s  when he wro te  in  

the  no tebook.   So every th ing  tha t  Ms Matsepo sa id  in  he r  

tes t imony is  100% cor rec t .   He wro te ,  I  do  no t  remember  i t  

exact ly.  

 She remembers  i t  be t te r  than me,  they are  go ing  to  

change the  m in i s te r.    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Wel l ,  le t  me read i t  to  you.  10 

MS GOODSON:   Ja ,  so r ry.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You might  be  upset .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l ,  be fore  you  read i t ,  i t  m igh t  be  good  

to  know what  i s  her  reco l lec t ion  o f  what  was wr i t ten .  

MS GOODSON:   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Oh,  okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  bu t  jus t  say  on  your  reco l lec t i on  what  

was wr i t ten .   

MS GOODSON:   So  what  Mr  Lebe lo  wro te  was they are  

go ing  to  change the  m in i s te r,  the  F inance Min is te r.   I t  was 20 

very  spec i f i c .   I t  was not  jus t  any m in is te r,  they  a re  go ing  

to  change the  F inance Min is te r,  and I  remember  what  I  

remember  was Ms Matsepo a lmost  shr iek ing .  

 Say ing  are  they  mad?  Who?  Mr  Lebe lo  was  

po in t ing  in  the  d i rec t ion  o f  Mr  Wood ’s  o f f i ce ,  wh ich  was 
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more  in  the  d i rec t ion  o f  where  my  o f f i ce  was,  and then Ms 

Matsepo jus t  goes crazy.   She is  l ike  bu t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Was tha t ,  the  po in t ing  towards Mr  

Woods ’s  o f f i ce .  

MS GOODSON:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   What  was tha t  meant  to  say?  

MS GOODSON:   I t  was meant  to  suggest  tha t  the  

leadersh ip  are  go ing  to  be  chang ing  the  F inance Min is te r.   

The leadersh ip  o f  th is  o rgan isa t ion  b igger  than us ,  tha t  a re  

a l ready CEO’s ,  bu t  b igger  than us  are  go ing  to  change the  10 

F inance Min is te r.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh,  so  as  he  when he was po in t ing ,  when  

you sa id  they . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS GOODSON:   He was po in t ing  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   He was po in t ing  in  the  d i rec t ion  o f  Mr  

Woods ’s  o f f i ce?  

MS GOODSON:   Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MS GOODSON:   And Ms Matsepo,  Ms Matsepo jus t  go t ,  

she got ,  c razy  is  no t  the  r igh t  word ,  bu t  she got  so  angry.   20 

Angry  i s  p robab ly  the  r igh t  word  and she jus t  kept  on  

say ing  d id  they no t  see what  happened a t  [ ind is t inc t ] .    

 Who do these peop le  th ink  they  are?  She was  

rea l l y  upset .   I  jus t  looked a t  bo th  o f  them and I  jus t  sa id  I  

cannot  dea l  w i th  th is ,  goodbye and I  remember  fee l ing  
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s ick .   I  was fee l ing  l i ke  I  was,  l i ke  you are  about  to  ge t  the  

f lue .   

 Because we were  in  Mel rose I  wen t  to  the  mal l  and I  

went  to  C l i cks  to  go  ge t  some Corenza,  and before  I  went  

in to  C l icks  and I  remember  very  d is t inc t l y  s tand ing  by  the  

door  o f  C l i cks ,  and I  phoned my f iancée a t  the  t ime and I  

jus t ,  and I  to ld  h im what  had happened and I  sa id  to  h im,  I  

sa id  I  do  no t  know i f  I  am go ing  mad,  bu t  I  jus t  need to  te l l  

someone about  th is ,  in  case i t  happens and I  do  no t  want  

to  fo rge t ,  and I  sa id  I  do  no t  know i f  th is  w i l l  happen.  10 

 I  do  no t  know i f  i t  i s  nonsense,  bu t  I  jus t  need to  

te l l  somebody what  jus t  happened and I  remember,  and my  

f iancée was a t  work  and he was l i ke  okay,  I  am mak ing  a  

no te  o f  th is  and he remembered.   So he was a lways l i ke  in  

case I  go  crazy  and th is  ac tua l l y  happens,  I  have got  l i ke  

some sor t  o f  va l ida t ion .   

 Ja ,  tha t  i s  . . .  what  Ms Matsepo  had sa id  to  you 

Cha i r,  I  agree w i th  comple te ly.   You may have s l igh t ly  

d i f fe ren t  vers ions o f  what  was exact ly  sa id ,  how i t  was  

sa id ,  bu t  what  she sa id  i s  100% cor rec t .   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  wou ld  le t  Mr  Se leka read you the  ac tua l  

no te  now,  bu t  be fore  he  does so ,  I  need you to  te l l  me what  

you to ld  your  f iancée.   

MS GOODSON:   I  to ld  h im tha t  I  was in  the  o f f i ce  w i th ,  I  

am go ing  to  ve rbat im,  okay.   As  much as  I  can remember.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

MS GOODSON:   I  phoned h im and I  sa id  babe,  I  was in  the  

o f f i ce  w i th  Tebogo and Mas i lo .   The MSA is  s t i l l  no t  s igned,  

so  I  do  no t  know what  i s  go ing  to  happen w i th  th is  

company,  i f  i t  i s  even go ing  to  ex is t  o r  anyth ing ,  bu t  the  

reason why I  am rea l l y  phon ing  you is  because Tebogo jus t  

to ld  us  tha t  the  F inance Min is te r  i s  go ing  to  be  rep laced 

aga in ,  and I  cursed and I  sa id  can  you be l ieve  th is .   

 He sa id  are  you  sure ,  and I  jus t  sa id  to  h im . . .  I  

sa id  I  do  no t  know,  bu t  jus t  remember  today.   Can you  10 

p lease jus t  remember  what  I  am say ing  to  you now?  

Because I  may fo rge t  and then we jus t  see th is  a f te rnoon  

how am I  do ing ,  and I  to ld  h im I  am go ing  to  ge t  some 

meds and tha t  i s  i t .   

 That  i s  the  best  tha t  I  can remember  l i ke  what  I  sa id  

to  h im,  and as  fa r  as  I  know,  tha t  i s  what  he  remembers  me 

say ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Do you know whethe r,  do  you remember  

whethe r  he  ever  subsequent ly  ta lked to  you about  what  you 

to ld  h im on tha t  day?  Subsequen t ly  whethe r  same year  o r  20 

the  fo l low ing year?    

MS GOODSON:   Unfo r tunate ly  no t ,  because as  qu ick l y  as  

we got  marr i ed ,  we a lso  go t  d ivorced.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

MS GOODSON:   So  no,  we never  rea l l y  spoke abou t  th ings  
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l i ke  tha t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .   I t  i s  jus t  tha t  the  

Min is te r  o f  F inance a t  the  t ime was Mr  Prav in  Gordhan,  bu t  

he  was not  f i red  dur ing  2016.  

MS GOODSON:   I t  was a  year  la te r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   He was f i red  in  March 2017.  

MS GOODSON:   I t  was a  year  la te r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   So I  was wonder ing  whether  when 

Mr  Gordon was f i red  in  March 2017,  he  m ight  have sa id  

we l l  i t  took  long,  bu t  I  see i t  i s  happen ing  or  someth ing  l i ke  10 

tha t .   

MS GOODSON:   By  2017 in  March ,  I  was I  th ink  I  was s t i l l  

work ing  a t  Mr  Bud lender.   Because I  s ta r ted  he lp ing  Mr  

Bud lender  and h i s  repor t  in  January  o f  2017.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MS GOODSON:   And I  remember  speak ing  to  Mr  Bud lender  

about  tha t ,  and I  was in  such a  s ta te  o f  t rauma,  because  

the  rea l i za t ion  o f  what  was happen ing  a t  Tr i l l i an  was very  

ev ident  to  me then.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  20 

MS GOODSON:   And I  th ink  as  much as  I  cou ld  I  ac tua l l y  

jus t  t r ied  to  ignore  these th ings,  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  a l r igh t .   Mr  Se leka,  you can  . . .  you  

may read the  no te  now.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   You,  i t  i s  your  
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handwr i t ing .   I t  reads:  

 “Chang ing  F inance Min is te r. ”  

MS GOODSON:   Yes.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  I  am sor ry.   P lease repeat?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I t  reads:  

 “Chang ing  F inance Min is te r. ”  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  okay.    

ADV SELEKA SC:   I t  i s  in  the  bund le .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .    10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Here  we have obta ined Mr  Lebe lo ’s  

a f f idav i t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  can  read i t  ou t  to  the  Cha i rpe rson.   

For  the  record  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  do  so ,  ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  wou ld  p lace i t  where  i t  i s .   I t  i s  Eskom 

Bund le  14(C)  on  page,  I  am go ing  s t ra igh t  to  the  

parag raphs.   Page 877 po in t  102 and i t  reads under  the  

head ing  response to  the  a l legat ions remova l  o f  fo rmer  20 

F inance Min is te r  Gordon.    

 Paragraph 21:  

 “ I  have dea l t  w i t h  Ms Matsepo ’s  a l legat ions tha t  I  

a l leged ly  had p r io r  knowledge o f  the  f i r ing  o f  the  

fo rmer  F inance Min is te r,  P rav in  Gordon. ”  
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 And he g ives  the  parag raph numbers :  

 “ I  request  tha t  the  contents  o f  the  sa id  pa ragraphs  

be incorpo ra ted .   G iven the  contents  o f  Ms 

Matsepo ’s  s ta tement  and her  o ra l  ev idence,  I  am 

ob l iged to  say more  on  the  mat te r. ”  

 Paragraph 23:  

 “Hav ing  now had  s i te  o f  the  re levant  page o f  Ms  

Matsepo ’s  no tebook,  I  recogn ize  the  handwr i t ing  on  

Annexure  MM3. ”  

 That  i s  to  Ms Matsepo ’s  a f f idav i t :  10 

 “As my own.   Th i s  no tw i ths tand ing  I  deny tha t  I  had 

any pr io r  knowledge tha t  fo rmer  F inance Min i s te r  

Gordon wou ld  be  removed o r  tha t  the  Pres ident  

wanted to  remove  h im.   No re ference is  made to  the 

Pres ident  in  MM3,  nor  i s  th is  document  da ted. ”  

 Then he goes on to  say,  he  pu ts  contex t  to  tha t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Bu t  I  th ink  the  impor tan t  par t  here  is  

what  the  Cha i rperson had wanted us  to  do ,  wh ich  is  to  

conf i rm whose handwr i t ing  i t  i s .   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  yes .   Yes,  thank you.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   Wel l ,  then le t  us  go  

to  why you res igned.   Ms Goodson?   

MS GOODSON:   Must  I  exp la in  o r  w i l l  you  read my 

res ignat ion  le t te r?  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Shou ld  I  go  to  your  res ignat ion?  

MS GOODSON:   Ja .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.  

MS GOODSON:   Sor ry  Cha i r,  i t  i s  a  very  emot iona l  le t ter  

and I  wou ld  ra ther  answer  quest ions than have to  exp la in .   

I f  tha t  i s  okay.    

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   That  i s  to  be  found in  Eskom 

Bund le  14 (B) .   ja ,  B .   I  th ink  you have,  you know the  

contents .   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Keep your  m ike  on  a t  a l l  t imes Ms 

Goodson.  

MS GOODSON:   Okay.   So I  was jus t  say ing  I  know the  

contents  o f  the  le t te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

MS GOODSON:   L ike  the  back o f  my hand.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  tha t  i s  f ine ,  bu t  ra ther  remind me 

where  i t  i s  Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I t  i s  Eskom bund le  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  I  have got  i t  I  th ink .   I  have got  i t .   20 

459 po in t  26 .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   That  i s  cor rec t .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.   Th is  i s  a  re la t i ve l y  long le t te r.  

MS GOODSON:   Must  I  go  th rough i t  qu i ck ly?   Must  I  

exp la in  what  happened? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  p lease.   

MS GOODSON:   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That ,  we l l  there  i s  no  need to  read i t ,  bu t  

what  can be done  is  h igh l igh t  the  impor tan t  fea tures .   

MS GOODSON:   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Because we can read i t .   

MS GOODSON:   Bu t  Cha i r,  le t  me g ive  you the  contex t  tha t  10 

led  up  to  me wr i t ing  th is  le t te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

MS GOODSON:   So  I  have exp la ined to  you what  happened 

on the  16 t h  o f  March.   I t  was,  par t i cu la r l y  i t  as  Ms  

Matsepo ’s  b i r thday,  bu t  i t  i s  the  same day tha t  Mr  Lebe lo  

in fo rmed us  about  the  F inance Min is te r.   On the  Fr iday,  

wh ich  was the  18 t h  o f  March,  o f  tha t  week,  Mr  Ange l  . . .  a t  

th is  po in t  in  t ime Tr i l l i an  Management  Consu l t ing  had  

moved tempora ry  o f f i ces ,  because the  R iggermans ’s  

peop le  had come on board .    20 

 We were  no t  a t  the  ex t ra  space o f f i ces  in ,  I  do  no t  

even know tha t  a rea .   I t  i s  on  the  o ther  s ide  o f  the  N1,  bu t  

i t  was not  in  Mel rose Arch  anymore .   I t  was in ,  wha t  do  you  

ca l l  tha t  a rea?  On Greystone,  bu t  on  the  o ther  s ide  o f  the  

N1.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l ,  I  wanted to  jus t  say  someth ing .  

MS GOODSON:   Sor ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Be fore  you proceed.   To  say when you  

were  the  on ly  Employee o f  TMC,  you know jus t  you and  

your  COO,  were  you or  was the  COO the  recept ion is t  as  

we l l?    

MS GOODSON:   There  was no one  to  phone.   

CHAIRPERSON:   There  was no one  to  phone.  

MS GOODSON:   No c l ien ts ,  no  one was phon ing .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  a l r igh t .   Jus t  go  back to  the  le t te r,  10 

how the  res ignat ion  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MS GOODSON:   Yes,  the  Fr iday.   Anyway,  so  because we 

had grown on the  1s t  o f  March ,  now i t  i s  qu i te  a  lo t  o f  

peop le ,  Tr i l l i an  Management  Consu l t ing  was moved to  

ex t ra  space o f f i ces ,  bu t  on  the  o ther  s ide  o f  the  N1.   R igh t ,  

so  i t  was not  in  Mel rose A rch  anymore .   

 Whi le  I  was in  those o f f i ces ,  I  ge t  a  phone ca l l  f rom 

Mr  Ange l  on  my ce l l  phone and Mr  Ange l  ins t ruc t s  me,  he  

says B ,  you are  go ing  to  ge t  an  emai l .   You need  to  s ign  

these le t te rs  and s ign  i t  back very  qu ick ly.   R igh t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   I s  th is  now on the  19 t h  o f  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS GOODSON:   I t  i s  the  Fr iday,  the  18 t h .  

CHAIRPERSON:   The 18 t h?  

MS GOODSON:   I  res igned the  nex t  day.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  
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MS GOODSON:   And because I  had not  rece ived the  emai l  

ye t  I  d id  no t  care  about  i t  and I  jus t  sa id  okay,  you know 

whatever.   I  w i l l  dea l  w i th  i t  when i t  comes th rough.   So the  

emai l  comes th rough and there  is  a  Word  document  

a t tached to  i t ,  and i t  ta lks  about  a  Bank o f  Baroda 

accounts  and i t  has  p laces fo r  s ignature  fo r  bo th  myse l f  

and my COO and  the  contents  o f  the  le t te r  ta lk  about  my 

COO and I  hand ing  over  the  r igh t s  o f  th is  accounts  to  Mr  

Mark  Ch ipk in  f rom In tegra ted  Cap i ta l  Management ,  so  

shar ing  and oppos i te  my COO,  and he –  so  I  ca l l ed  h im,  10 

and I  sa id  Ben have you ever  heard  o f  the  Bank o f  Baroda  

and both  o f  us  are  l i ke  no ,  you know so we go,  and we  

Goog le ,  and you  know l i ke  what  i s  th is ,  l i ke  you know in  

South  A f r i ca  you have got  ABSA,  Nedbank,  S tandard  Bank,  

FNB,  you ’ve  j us t  go t  the  bas ic  four  k ind  o f  

th ing…[ in te rvenes] .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     No. ,  there ’s  a  Bank o f  A f r i ca .  

MS GOODSON:    Sor ry?  

ADV SELEKA SC:     There ’s  a l so  a  Bank o f  A f r i ca .  

MS GOODSON:    Okay but  Bank o f  Baroda was  a  very  20 

unknown bank name.   So,  we goog led  i t  and I ’m l i ke ,  why  

must  we s ign  th i s ,  I  had a l ready  opened,  in  January  o f  

2016 I  had opened a  bus iness bank account  w i th  Absa fo r  

Tr i l l i on  Management  Consu l t ing ,  and I  was comfor tab le  to  

do  tha t ,  as  a  s ignato ry  r i gh t  bu t  th is  Bank o f  Baroda  
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account  i s  jus t  we i rd .   So,  I  rep l ied  to  Marc  Ch ipk in ,  Mr  

Marc  Ch ipk in  and I  asked  h im ,  I  sa id ,  what  i s  th is  

about…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:     Who sent  you  the  emai l ,  I  thought  i t  

was…[ in te rvenes] .  

MS GOODSON:    Mr  Ange l  bu t  Mr  Ch ipk in  was a lso  cop ied  

r igh t ,  so  I  rep l ied  to  bo th…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:     And who was he?  

MS GOODSON:    Mr  Ch ipk in  was jus t  another  D i rec tor  o f  

In tegra ted  Cap i ta l  Management .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:     Oh Okay.   

MS GOODSON:    He was pe r fo rming se rv i ces  tha t  wou ld  

suggest  tha t  he  was l i ke  the  company sec re tary.   He was 

get t ing  a l l  the  documents ,  the  BEE cer t i f i ca tes  and tax  

reg i s t ra t ions  and  s tu f f  l i ke  tha t .   Mr  Ange l  rep l ies  to  my 

emai l  and says,  

“B ianca,  we need th is  bank account  to  fac i l i ta te 

payments  to  E  Ga teway” ,   

So,  remember  now the  E  Ga teway was the  

Genera t ions Spec ia l i s t  in  Duba i  and Ind ia ,  and I ’m  l i ke  bu t  20 

why,  Absa can do the  exact  same th ing ,  why do we need 

another  one?  So,  anyway I  speak to  my COO,  My COO 

looks a t  me and says,  I ’m  not  do ing  tha t ,  I ’m  not  s ign ing  i t ,  

fo rge t  about  i t .   I  phoned Mr  Ch ipk in  I  sa id ,  l i s ten  Ben ’s  no t  

go ing  to  do  i t ,  I  am go ing  to  come to  your  o f f i ces ,  and we 
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can  ta lk  about  i t  la te r  and he says,  okay f ine ,  we need you  

here  a t  4  o ’c lock .   So,  4  o ’c lock  on  a  Fr iday a f te rnoon I  go  

to  Mel rose Arch ,  I  go  to  In tegra ted  Cap i ta l  and as  I  wa lked  

in ,  there  is  a  representa t i ve  f rom the  Bank o f  Baroda in  the  

board room wi th  a l l  the  paperwork  to  s ign ,  to  open th is  

account .  

CHAIRPERSON:     Who were  you go ing  to  meet  in  the 

board room? 

MS GOODSON:    In  the  boardroom was my –  i t  was myse l f ,  

the  rep resenta t i ve  f rom the  Bank o f  Baroda  and Mr  10 

Ch ipk in .  

CHAIRPERSON:     Yes,  bu t  when you le f t  your  o f f i ce  to  

tha t  meet ing ,  d id  you know tha t  there  wou ld  be  somebody 

f rom the  Bank o f  Baroda o r…[ in tervenes] .  

MS GOODSON:    No,  I  jus t  thought  I  was go ing  to  d iscuss 

th is  i ssue w i th…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:     Wi th  Mr  Ch ipk in?  

MS GOODSON:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:     Okay,  a l r igh t ,  cont inue.  

MS GOODSON:    So ,  I  ge t  there  and I  don ’ t  compla in  tha t  20 

the  Bank o f  Baroda gent leman is  there  because  a t  leas t  

now I  can unders tand what  i t  i s  about  and th is  gent leman  

has a l l  the  fo rms  tha t  you need to  f i l l  ou t  to  c rea te  a  bank 

account  and a f f idav i t s  and a  who le  bunch o f  s tu f f  and  I  – 

so  I  go  and I  s ign  the  le t te rs  and I  look  a t  each page and I  
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read each page and I  s ign  i t  and mark  i t  there  and  there ’s  

no th ing  we i rd  about  i t ,  I  d idn ’ t  f ind  anyth ing  d is tu rb ing  

about  i t  un t i l  I  saw tha t  the  overdra f t  fac i l i t y  o f  th is  account  

i s  R300mi l l ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:     How much?  

MS GOODSON:    R300mi l l ion ,  so  I  push back on  Marc  and  

I  say,  Marc  why do we need th is ,  the  overdra f t  fac i l i t y  fo r  

Absa is  R3mi l l ion ,  Absa ’s  our  main  t ransact iona l  account  

why do we need R300mi l l ion  fo r  a  sub-cont rac to r,  a re  you 

mad but  I  though t ,  okay,  whatever  and I  car ry  on  read ing  10 

th rough these th ings and then the re  comes th is  le t te r  tha t  

says tha t  I  must  now s ign  ove r  a l l  au tho r i t y  o f  th is  account  

to  Mr  Ch ipk in  and I  jus t  laughed a t  i t  and the  

rep resenta t i ve  f rom the  Bank o f  Baroda sa id ,  a re  you sure  

you want  to  s ign  th is  and I  looked a t  h im and I  sa id ,  no .   

So,  I  changed the  le t te r,  I  phys i ca l l y  wro te  t ha t  a l l  

t ransact ions on  th is  account  need  the  approva l  o f  bo th  Mr  

Ch ipk in  and I .   So,  ins tead o f  mak ing  i t ,  I ’m  g iv ing  i t  away I  

t r ied  to  pu t  in  more  cont ro l s .   Mr  Ch ipk in  wasn ’ t  happy w i th  

the  le t te r  and the  Bank o f  Baroda representa t i ve  asked i f  20 

the  le t te r  cou ld  p lease be typed ou t  ra ther.  

 So,  Mr  Ch ipk in  takes i t  to  the  back  o f f i ce ,  and I  can  

hear  Mr  C l ive  –  Mr  Ange l  sc reaming,  say ing ,  who does she 

th ink  she is .   Some t ime passes,  Mr  Ch ipk in  comes back 

w i th  the  le t te r  tha t ’s  co r rec ted ,  as  I  had made the  changes 
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and I  s igned tha t  le t te r…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:     And d id  t he  le t te r,  i s  w i thout  the  

changes you had made? 

MS GOODSON:    Wi th  the  changes .  

CHAIRPERSON:     Oh,  i t ’s  w i th  the  changes?  

MS GOODSON:    Wi th  the  changes .  

CHAIRPERSON:     Okay.  

MS GOODSON:    Say ing  tha t ,  the  on ly  peop le  tha t  can  

t ransact  on  th i s  account  –  and I  was very  spec i f i c ,  I  d idn ’ t  

say  myse l f  o r  Marc ,  I  sa id  myse l f  and Marc  and the  Bank o f  10 

Baroda representa t i ve  espec ia l l y  asked me,  he  sa id ,  th is  i s  

go ing  to  make i t  d i f f i cu l t  because both  o f  you need to  

a lways have i t  togethe r,  I  sa id ,  exact ly,  i t  was very  

de l ibe ra te  on  my  s ide .   C l i ve  was fu r ious w i th  me and I  

s igned i t ,  I  opened th is  bank account  and I  le f t ,  i t  was 

probab ly  now,  an  hour  la te r  so  i t  was about  5  o ’c lock  on  a  

Fr iday a f te rnoon  and the  t ra f f i c  was crazy  go ing  f rom 

Mel rose to  the  pa r t  o f  Joburg  where  I  l i ve  and I  phoned my 

f iancé and I  jus t  to ld  h im what  happened and I  jus t  c r ied  

the  who le  way home and I  to ld  h im,  I  sa id ,  by  the  t ime I  ge t  20 

home,  jus t  don ’ t  even ta lk  to  me,  jus t  make sure  we have  

w ine .   I  ge t  home and I  d rank qu i t  a  lo t  o f  w ine ,  I  th ink  I  

had about  th ree  g lasses and I  d idn ’ t  speak to  anyone,  I  

went  to  bed.   I  woke up a t  2  o ’c lock  on  Satu rday morn ing ,  

now i t ’s  the  19 t h ,  I  woke up my f iancé and I  to ld  –  and my  
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f iancé had jus t  le f t  work ing  a t  De  Beer  so  he  was  s tay ing  

a t  home he was tak ing  a  b i t  o f  a  h ia tus  and I  woke h im up  

and I  sa id ,  I  have  to  res ign  and he sa id  why,  and I  to ld  h im,  

I  sa id ,  someth ing  is  go ing  on  and  I  don ’ t  know what  i t  i s  

bu t  I ’m  res ign ing  and we had a  very  br ie f  conversa t ion  

about ,  oh  my God,  i f  you  res ign  then our  fami ly ’s  go t  no 

income and he sa id ,  okay do  i t  and I  sa id ,  okay you go 

back to  s leep,  I ’m  go ing  to  do  i t .  So ,  I  wake up and I  s ta r t  

t yp ing  ou t  th is  res ignat ion  le t te r  tha t ’s  a  b i t  lengthy  and i t  

took  me a  long t ime to  wr i te  i t  and jus t  to  le t  you know,  10 

Cha i r,  every  t ime I  res ign ,  I  a lways  wr i te  one paragraph,   

 “Thank you fo r  t he  oppor tun i ty  bu t  i t ’s  w i th  regre t  

tha t  I ’ ve  go t  to  move…”,  

 You know,  very  to  the  po in t .   Th is  i s  a  much longer 

res ignat ion  le t te r,  and i t  was probab ly  my ten th  vers ion  

because no mat te r  what  I  wro te ,  I  wasn ’ t  happy w i th  the  

message tha t  was coming ac ross.   Eventua l l y  my  f iancé 

woke up a t  6  o ’c lock  in  the  morn ing  and I  was jus t  f in ished  

th is  le t te r,  he  read th rough i t ,  he  asked me,  a re  you su re  

you want  to  send  i t ,  I  sa id  yes,  I  sent  the  le t te r  and tha t  20 

was i t .   I  sw i tched o f f  my phone  and the  le t te r  is  very  

damning and wha t  I  t r ied  to  do  in  th is  res ignat ion  le t te r  i s ,  

I  d idn ’ t  wr i te  the  res ignat ion  le t te r  to  Er ic  who had now 

become the  CEO of  the  ho ld ing  company,  because ,  Er ic ,  I  

d idn ’ t  have a  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  Mr  Wood,  I  had a  
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re la t ionsh ip  w i th  Mr  Ange l  and my res ignat ion  was to  Mr  

Ange l  because I  be l ieve  tha t  Mr  Ange l  was the  person 

put t ing  me in  a  s i tua t ion  tha t  was compromis ing  so  I  was  

res ign ing  f rom h im.  

 So,  my res ignat ion  le t te r  i s  addressed to  h im and 

i t ’s  a  very  angry  le t te r  bu t  a t  the  same t ime I  d idn ’ t  want  to  

res ign  based on susp ic ion  I  wanted to  res ign  on  th ings tha t  

I  knew I  cou ld  re ference.   So,  I  re fe renced the  fac t  tha t  Mr  

Ange l  and I  had  an ongo ing  debate  about  remunera t ion ,  

when I  on  boarded w i th  Tr i l l i on  I  had ac tua l l y  taken  qu i te  a  10 

s ign i f i can t  cu t  in  my sa la ry  as  we l l  as  my COO,  I  

re fe renced tha t ,  I  re fe renced the  fac t  tha t  I  thought  tha t  

there  were  Gupta  l inks  w i th  some o f  the  en t i t ies  tha t  we  

were  work ing  w i th  and I  re fe renced the  fac t  tha t  these guys 

are  expect ing  me to  take  r i sks  bu t  tha t  they take  the  

benef i t .   In  the  case o f  the  Bank o f  Baroda accoun t ,  I  must  

open the  accoun t  and I  must  have the  l iab i l i t y  fo r  tha t  

account  wh i le  somebody e lse  t ransacts  on  i t ,  i t ’s  l ike ,  a re  

you c razy  you know,  so  tha t  was the  res ignat ion  le t te r  and  

I  le f t  w i th  immedia te  e f fec t .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:     You re ference the  fac t  tha t  they have 

Gupta  l inks ,  i s  tha t  what  you sa id?  

MS GOODSON:    I  ment ioned tha t  –  I  th ink  I  g i ve  f i ve  

reasons fo r  me leav ing  and one o f  them is  Gupta  l inks  and  

tha t  was susp ic ions I  d id  no t  ca tegor ica l l y  know.   What  has 
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happened,  I  jus t  want  to  le t  you know what  had happened 

is ,  i t  was tha t  t ime –  tha t  so r t  o f  t ime o f  year  when your  

Easte r  ho l idays a re  towards the  end o f  March and not  jus t  

in  Apr i l ,  so  I  had p lanned to  go  away fo r  tha t  fo l low ing  

week anyway.   My fami ly  and I  had gone away,  and I  

sw i tched o f f  my phone because I  knew tha t  peop le  wou ld  

be  phon ing  me to  say what  happened.   When I  eventua l l y  

came back to  Johannesburg  Mr  Ange l  wanted to  see me 

and Mr  Wood wanted to  see me,  and they wanted to  know 

what  had happened.   Mr  Wood  asked me i f  there  was  10 

anyth ing ,  he  cou ld  do  to  make me s tay  and I  sa id  yes,  you  

can change the  bus iness processes,  you can g ive  me 

access to  the  f inances o f  th is  company and you can make  

me negot ia te  my  own cont rac ts ,  so  le t  me manage th is  

bus iness as  a  CEO wou ld  and he sa id ,  tha t  w i l l  never  

happen,  so  I  shook h i s  hand and I  sa id  goodbye.  

 Wi th  Mr  Ange l ,  I  d idn ’ t  wa i t  to  hear  what  he  sa id  I  

jus t  –  then shouted a t  h im say ing ,  how dare  he  put  me in  

such a  compromis ing  pos i t ion  and  I  th ink  one o f  the  th ings  

tha t  I  even sa id  to  h im is ,  I  sa id ,  i t  seems as though  you ’ve  20 

put  me in  a  pos i t ion  where  my  daughter  cou ld  lose  a  

mother,  what  about  you and your  ch i ld ren ,  how cou ld  you 

do th is  to  me and I  was in  tears  and I ’ ve  never  seen or  

spoken to  any o f  them s ince.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Ja ,  I  w i l l  go  th rough some o f  the 
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parag raphs in  the  le t te r,  the  le t te r  f rom you,  i s  i t  an  emai l  

–  i t ’s  an  emai l .  

MS GOODSON:    I t  i s  an  emai l .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     From yourse l f  da ted  19 March 2016 a t  

5h58 addressed  to  Mr  C l ive  Ange l ,  “ reasons  fo r  my 

res ignat ion” ,  and I  s ta r t  read ing  f rom paragraph 3 ,  i t  says ,  

“My res ignat ion  i s  pe rsona l  because I  have taken 

r i sks”…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  the  un-numbered parag raph 3  

because there ’s  a  parag raph 3  tha t ’s  numbered on the  10 

fo l low ing page.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Yes,  cor rec t ,  Cha i r  sor ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Yes,  fo r  the  record ,  the  paragraphs  

are  no t  numbered  I  w i l l  count ,  the  th i rd  paragraph,  

“Mr  res ignat ion  is  persona l  because I  have taken 

r i sks  and endeavour  tak ing  r i sks  and  suppor t  you.   

Our  re la t ionsh ip  can be summed up as  a  square  peg 

in  a  round ho le  and I  cannot  suppor t  you nor  the  

company fu r ther ” ,  20 

 What  r i sks  were  you re fer r ing  to  here ,  wh ich  you  

cont inued to  take? 

MS GOODSON:    The  b iggest  r i sk  was th is  –  to  me,  the  

most  s ign i f i can t  one was th is  Bank o f  Baroda account .   I f  

somebody –  i f  I  open th is  accoun t ,  I  can ’ t  imag ine  pay ing  
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back R300mi l l ion  in  my l i fe t ime.   R300mi l l ion  i s  so  much  

money tha t  I ’m  pre t ty  sure  tha t  my daughter ’s  ch i ld ren  

wou ld  have to  be  pay ing  o f f  a  debt  l i ke  tha t .   So,  why  

wou ld  I  take  on a  respons ib i l i t y  o f  R300mi l l ion  and g ive  i t  

to  somebody e l se ,  tha t  was the  f i rs t  and b iggest  r i sk .   

There  were  a  l o t  o f  o ther  th ings tha t  were  concern ing ,  the  

re la t ionsh ip  w i th  Mr  Bobat  and Mr  Bobat ’s  invo lvement  in  

Tr i l l i on  was very  concern ing .   You know,  by  my s tandards i t  

wasn ’ t  e th ica l ,  my quest ion  was never  answered,  why cou ld  

we not  jus t  respond to  RFP’s  l i ke  everybody e l se  and have 10 

a  fa i r  f igh t ,  a  compet i t i ve  chance  o f  see ing  i f  our  serv i ces  

are  good,  you know,  so  there  were  jus t  these issues and 

then the  Wednesday pr io r  to  tha t ,  you get  the  CFO say ing  

to  you,  tha t  a  F inance Min is te r  i s  go ing  to  ge t  rep laced,  no ,  

those were  r i sks  to  me I  don ’ t  want  to  be  assoc ia ted  w i th  

peop le  l i ke  tha t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     There ’s  a  paragraph in   your  le t te r  to  

the  e f fec t  tha t ,  the  money is  no t  wor th  the  r i sk .  

MS GOODSON:    Hundred percent  because I  d id  take  a  

s tep  back in  my sa la ry,  I  honest ly  d id .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:     Ja ,  so  wh ich  means tha t  you thought  

they were  no t  pay ing  you what  the  r i sks  were  wor th ,  so  

they were  pay ing  you less  than what  you…[ in tervenes] .  

MS GOODSON:    What  I  d id  say to  the  DCJ was tha t  I  d id  –  

I  d idn ’ t  want  to  come across  comple te ly  based on  
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specu la t ion  and I  d id  want  to  re fe rence th ings tha t  was a  

long s tand ing  d iscuss ion  be tween Mr Ange l  and  I  and 

remunera t ion  was one o f  those.   I  know tha t  peop le  have  

sa id  tha t  I  was i n  i t  fo r  the  money and the  t ru th  o f  the  

mat te r  i s ,  i s  tha t ,  i f  I  was earn ing  enough as  in ,  I  d idn ’ t  

lose  when I  jo ined Tr i l l i on  and i f  I  was f inanc ia l l y  

comfor tab le  there  was a  par t  o f  me tha t  p robab ly  wou ld  

have s topped to  say,  le t  me wa i t  and see i f  I ’m  imag in ing  

th is .   There  was a  pa r t  o f  me tha t  wou ld  have recons ide red 

put t ing  my fami l y  a t  r i sk  the  way tha t  I  have,  and I  wou ld  10 

have thought ,  p robab ly,  about  be ing  pragmat ic  more  than  

shoot ing  f rom the  h ip .   I ’m  not  say ing  tha t  I  wou ld  cont inue 

do ing  th ings tha t  were  wrong fo r  money because i f  I  

wanted to ,  when  I  spoke to  Mr  Wood,  I  wou ld  have to ld  

h im,  yes,  pay me more  and tha t ’s  no t  what  I  sa id ,  

so…[ in tervenes] .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Yes,  because tha t ’s  exac t ly  what  

we ’ re  t ry ing  to  unders tand,  whether  was your  vent ing  ou t  

meant  to  say,  look ,  i f  you  g ive  me more  money,  I  w i l l  s tay.  

MS GOODSON:    No.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:     And s tomach the  r i sks .  

MS GOODSON:    In  the  event  tha t  i t  was misunders tood  

tha t  way,  I  d id  de f in i te ly  c lear  i t  up  w i th  Mr  Wood ,  l i ke  I  

sa id .   Mr  Wood exp l i c i t l y  asked me,  what  can we do to  

make you say.   I  responded by  say ing ,  change the  bus iness 
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p rocesses,  g ive  us  access to  our  f inances,  he  responded  

and sa id ,  tha t ’s  never  go ing  to  happen,  so  I  shook h is  hand  

and I  wa lked away.   My cond i t ion ,  p recedent ,  so  to  say 

were  two th ings tha t  were  no t  f inanc ia l l y  l inked.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Yes,  jus t  exp la in  th is  because  a  th i rd  

par t y  read ing  the  le t te r  sees how you conclude i t  says ,  

“ I t  i s  w i th  regre t ,  f rom my s ide  tha t  th is  has no t  

worked out ” .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I ’m  sor ry,  wh ich  par t  o f  the  le t te r?  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Oh,  the  next  page o f  the  le t te r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  be fore  we go to  the  next  page,  I  see  

on the  4 t h  parag raph,  un-numbered paragraph,  Ms 

Goodson,  you say in  the  f i ve  months  tha t  we have been 

work ing  together…[ in tervenes] .  

MS GOODSON:    I  counted December  because a l t hough I  

was s t i l l  work ing  a t  Ang lo ,  I  was so  ac t ive  w i th  meet ings  

tha t  I  had,  what  I  deemed a  work ing  re la t ionsh ip ,  unof f i c ia l  

bu t  a  work ing  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  Mr  Ange l .  So,  I  counted i t ,  

inc lud ing  December  and a  l i t t le  b i t  o f  November.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  even w i th  December  i t  wou ld  be  20 

four  months  no t  f ive  months ,  i sn ’ t  i t?  

MS GOODSON:    Bu t  i t  counted a  l i t t le  b i t  o f  November  as  

we l l ,  I  round th ings up ,  Cha i r,  so r ry  I  a lways th ink ,  le t  me 

g ive  the  wors t  case scenar io  than the  best .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t ,  okay Mr  Se leka,  you sa id ,  
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wh ich  paragraph is  i t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Yes,  the  paragraph –  i f  you  tu rn  the  

page,  r igh t  a t  the  end where  –  l i ke  your  g reet ings,  you say,  

 “ I t ’s  w i th  reg re t ,  f rom my s ide  tha t  th is  

i s…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I ’m  sor ry,  i f  you  go to  the  next  paragraph 

the  –  the  next  page,  the  parag raphs are  numbered,  wh ich  

parag raph number?  

ADV SELEKA SC:     A re  you paragraphs numbered,  m ine  

are  no t  –  r igh t  a t  the  end Cha i r,  jus t  be fore…[ in tervenes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    The le t te r  o f  res ignat ion ,  the  one tha t  

s ta r ts  a t  page 459.26?  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Wel l ,  m ine  is  on  page 566,  I ’m  look ing  

i t  a t  page…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Does i t  s ta r t  l i ke ,   in  a  work ing  

env i ronment?  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Cor rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    “H i  C l i ve ,  in  a  work ing  env i ronment ”?  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  tha t  i s  the  f i rs t  page and up to  the 20 

las t  two sentences o r  l ines ,  i t ’s  no t  numbered,  then i t  

s ta r ts  to  be  numbered then – where  she ’s  g iv ing  reasons,  

she says,  

“ I  w i l l  no t  be  pursu ing  my ca reer  bo th  in  Tr i l l i on ,  fo r  

the  fo l low ing reasons” ,  
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 Then she has got  s ix  reasons ,  those are  the  

parag raphs I  am say ing  are  numbered.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Yes,  m ine is  un-numbered th roughout .  

CHAIRPERSON:    How is  tha t  poss ib le?  

MS GOODSON:    No,  I  d id  –  there  was number ing  when I  

wro te  the  emai l ,  there  was def in i te ly  number ing .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     I  th ink ,  even her  f i l e ,  has  an  un-

numbered one.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  you  don ’ t  have –  so   your  one is  

no t  au thent ic ,  she says they were  numbered.  10 

MS GOODSON:   I t  wasn ’ t  every  paragraph,  bu t  I  th ink  t he  

reasons…[ in tervenes] .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  where  you se t  ou t  the  reasons,  

the  parag raph wh ich  conta ins  the  reasons a re  numbered.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     I ’m read ing  jus t  above her  name 

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  i s  the  –  how does i t  s ta r t ,  the 

parag raph,  f rom where  you are  read ing?  

ADV SELEKA SC:     She wr i tes ,  

 “ I t ’s  w i th  regre t ” ,  20 

 That ’s  a t  the  end o f  the  le t te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Yes,  

“ I t ’s  w i th  regre t ,  f rom my s ide  tha t  th is  has no t  

worked out .  I  have t r ied ,  bu t  my e f fo r ts  a lone w i l l  
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no t  rec t i f y  th is .   I  am not  a r rogant  to  th ink  tha t ,  

shou ld  expect  an  investment  f rom you,  so  I ’m  out ” .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So ,  what  was the  quest ion  there?  

ADV SELEKA SC:     The quest ion  –  i t  reads l i ke  a  person  

who,  as  you say,  you regre t  hav ing  to  leave,  you wou ld 

ra the r  want  to  s tay.  

MS GOODSON:    The v is ion  o f  Tr i l l i on ,  spec i f i ca l l y  when I  

was in te rv iewed by  Mr  Essa back  in  November ish  o f  2015  

and what  he  sa id  to  me in  tha t  in te rv iew was echoed a  lo t  

by,  a lso  the  McK insey ind iv idua ls  as  we l l  as  Mr  Ange l ,  tha t  10 

the  in ten t ion  o f  th is  p rogramme was to  change Eskom and  

to  make Eskom in to  a  f i rs t  wor ld  u t i l i t y  because i t  had the  

po tent ia l  to  be  tha t  way because years  ago i t  used to  be .  

Coming f rom the  min ing  indust ry,  I  apprec ia te  the  impact  

tha t  th ings l i ke  l oad shedd ing  and a  fa i l ing  f lee t  o f  power  

s ta t ions  can have on the  economy.  I  wanted to  be  par t  o f  

tha t  d i f fe rence tha t  made i t  –  I  wanted to  be  pa r t  o f  the  

team tha t  wou ld  make th is  count ry  be t te r  and tha t  is  what  I  

reg re t .   I  regre t  tha t ,  tha t  never  happened and c lear l y  by  

the  t ime I  le f t ,  i t  seemed as though tha t  was never  the  20 

in ten t ion  and i t  was very  reg re t tab le  up  unt i l  today.   I  th ink  

Eskom shou ld  ge t  tha t  he lp  and peop le  tha t  a re  in  a 

pos i t ion  to  he lp  shou ld  he lp  bu t  no t  to  ex tor t  money f rom i t .  

So,  I  do  regre t  tha t ,  what  I  in i t ia l l y  s igned up fo r,  d id  no t  

rea l i se  and up to  today,  years  la te r,  I  car ry  tha t  reg re t .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:     Ja ,  now,  I  have a  cha l lenge w i th  the  

numbers ,  Cha i r,  because there ’s  another  paragraph I  want  

to  read f rom.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You must  jus t  make su re  tha t  you –  

every  bund le  has  go t  the  vers ion  tha t  where  the  reasons,  

the   …[ ind is t inc t ]  reasons are  numbered.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Yes,  there ’s  …[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Because we now know f rom the  author  

tha t  the  le t te r  tha t  she wro te  had pa ragraph numbers  in  

respect  o f  the  reasons.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:     Yes,  i f  we move f rom where  I  read,  

las t  Cha i r,  a  pa ragraph,  one,  two ,  th ree  up wh ich  s ta r ts  

w i th ,  

 “Owing to  the  na ture  in  wh ich  we get  bus iness ” .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  tha t ’s  pa ragraph –  tha t ’s  reason 

number  four,  tha t ’s  pa rag raph fou r  o f  the  reasons.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Yes,  Ms Goodson i t  reads,  

“Owing to  the  na ture  in  wh ich  we get  bus iness,  the 

r i sk  o f  exposure  and reputa t ion  o f  damage is  more  

than I  can absorb ” .  20 

 The r i sk  he re  i s  d i f fe ren t  f rom,  what  i s  i t ,  the  Bank 

o f  Baroda.  

MS GOODSON:    Yes,  the  r i sk  i s  d i f fe ren t  here ,  the  r i sk  

tha t  I ’m  re fer r ing…[ in tervenes] .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Th is  i s  more  the  type o f  –  the  way in  
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wh ich…[ in tervenes] .  

MS GOODSON:    Th is  ta lks  to ,  fo r  example ,  the  road show.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Yes.  

MS GOODSON:    Th i s  ta lks  to  the  fac t  tha t  you ’ve  go t  an  

ind iv idua l  tha t  –  and th is  ind iv idua l  be ing  Mr  Wood,  in  the  

span o f  two days in t roduced me to  a  Min i s te r  o f  the  count ry  

and two CFO’s  o f  two o f  the  la rgest  u t i l i t i es  in  the  count ry  

w i th  ease.   That  in  o rde r  to  secure  work  a t  the  back o f  a  

rea l l y  bad presen ta t ion ,  we have to  work  w i th  someone l i ke  

Mr  Bobat .   There  shou ld  never  have been tha t  sense o f  10 

success and in  COGTA because I  know what  I  p resented 

and what  I  p resented was –  i t  was ho r r ib le  bu t  the re ’s  the  

sense o f  success and prog ress ion  and we ’ re  a l ready 

open ing  bank accounts  because we ’ re  go ing  to  be  pay ing ,  

what ,  R300mi l l ion  p lus  to  some peop le  in  the  Emi ra tes .   

The cash f low is  R10b i l l i on ,  these th ings were  no t  mesh ing  

up.  I  know,  f rom Ang lo  Amer ica ,  and I ’m sor ry  tha t  I  keep 

re ferenc ing  i t ,  bu t  the  Ang lo  Amer i ca ,  to  earn  R10b i l l i on  in  

revenue,  I  unders tand and apprec ia te  the  ex ten t  o f  work  

tha t ,  tha t  equates  to  and i t ’s  a  l o t  o f  work ,  i t ’s  a  lo t  o f  20 

m in ing ,  i t ’s  a  lo t  o f  peop le ,  i t ’s  a  lo t  o f  e f fo r t .  Th is  jus t  

seemed –  i t  was –  th is  jus t  seemed too  easy and i t  seemed 

wrong and I  a lways main ta ined tha t  I  res igned on the  bas i s  

o f  susp ic ion ,  tha t  susp ic ion  was conf i rmed a  few days la te r  

and subsequent  to  tha t ,  s ince ,  a lmost  every  month ,  there ’s  
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news th ings on  S ta te  Captu re  and  I  –  the  susp ic ions were  

jus t  my va lue  base and what  my pa rents  had ins t i l l ed  in  me 

as what  i s  r igh t  and wrong,  and th is  fe l t  wrong.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     In  one sentence,  what  was your  

susp ic ion?  

MS GOODSON:    Now even?  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Then,  the  susp ic ion  tha t  led  you to  

res ign?  

MS GOODSON:    The concept  o f  tenderpreneurs  ge t t ing  

work  tha t  you don ’ t  deserve ,  so  you ’ re  jus t  ge t t ing  work  10 

w i thout  rea l l y  add ing  va lue ,  so  i t ’s  tak ing  money f rom the  

S ta te ,  to  pu t  i t  b lun t ly.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     You cont inue to  say,  in  tha t  same 

paragraph,   

“ I  am not  s i l l y  to  know tha t  contac t  w i th  the  Eskom 

Execut ives ,  peop le  in  COGTA,  and  o ther  compan ies  

are  p reca r ious.   I  f ind  i t  most  incons is ten t  tha t  I ’m 

the  condu i t  to  ge t  work  done w i th  these ind i v idua ls  

ye t ,  s t i l l  ge t  your  ins t ruc t ion  on  what  to  say,  when 

to  say i t  and v ia  wh ich  med ium.   The las t  I  checked ,  20 

I  can manage my own re la t ionsh ips ,  be  par t  o f  

d iscuss ions in  wh ich  the  ru les  o f  engagement  a re  

de termined and t rus ted ,  enough to  execute  aga ins t  

them even in  the  most  p recar ious s i tua t ions ” ,  

 So,  you fe l t  tha t  you were  jus t  a  condu i t?  
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MS GOODSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     When d id  you  rea l i se  tha t?  

MS GOODSON:    Bank o f  Baroda was the  s t raw tha t  b roke 

the  camel ’s  back.   I  had a  lo t  o f  susp ic ions,  the  susp ic ions 

very  gent ly  s ta r ted  growing a t  th ings l i ke  the  road show 

when you wou ld  s i t  in  a  meet ing  and say no th ing  bu t  

apparent ly,  you ’ re  impor tan t .   I  mean,  you know,  why d id  I  

even need to  be  there ,  you know but  the  Bank o f  Baroda  

was the  –  was ind isputab le .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     You were  say ing  ear l ie r  tha t  i t  has  10 

been sa id  tha t  you were  in  th is  fo r  the  money.  

MS GOODSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     I f  a  comment  i s  a lso  made or  an  

observa t ion  is  a lso  made,  tha t  –  in  the  manner  in  wh ich  

you are  wr i t ing  here ,  you e i the r  knew or  ought  to  have 

known tha t  someth ing  was amiss  i n  th is  a r rangement ,  what  

wou ld  be  your  comment?  

MS GOODSON:    I  can  on ly  answer  tha t  quest ion  now in  

h inds igh t  and w i th  what  I  know.   I  can ’ t  p re tend l i ke  I ’ ve  

no t  watched the  Commiss ion  over  the  past  two years ,  I  20 

can ’ t  p re tend tha t  I  d idn ’ t  fo l low the  Par l iamentary  Inqu i ry  

in to  Eskom.   So,  what  I  know now,  I ’m  ashamed tha t  I  d id  

no t  do  more .  I  shou ld  have pushed back on  C l ive ’s  

ins t ruc t ions more .   I  shou ldn ’ t  have taken tha t  invo ice  o f  

R30.6mi l l ion  to  Mr  Koko and spoke to  them about  pay ing  
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Tr i l l i on  d i rec t l y.   I  shou ldn ’ t  have opened the  Bank o f  

Baroda account  because I  know i t  was used to  s iphon 

Transnet ’s  money  o f f  to  Tegeta .   There ’s  a  lo t  o f  th ings tha t  

I  shou ldn ’ t  have  done,  I  was in  th is  company fo r  th ree  

months  too  long  and i t ’s  ru ined  my l i fe .  I  shou ld  have 

spoken up more  bu t  whenever  I  th ink  about  i t ,  I  am 

comfor ted  by  the  fac t  tha t  i t  was on ly  th ree  months .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     I t  was what?  

MS GOODSON:    I t  was on ly  th ree  months ,  so  i t ’s  d i f f i cu l t .   

There ’s  a  lo t  more  tha t  I  p robab ly  cou ld  have done to  s top  10 

th is .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     I  have a lso  observed or  ra ther  read  

your  le t te r  o r  emai l  to  Mr  C l ive  Ange l  and Tebogo  Leba l lo  

wh ich ,  Cha i r,  you  f ind  on  page 566 .6 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Jus t  te l l  me the  page number  aga in ,  jus t  

te l l  me the  page number  aga in?  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Oh no,  tha t ’s  no t  the  document  I ’m  

look ing  fo r,  no  i t ’s  no t  the  document  I ’m  look ing  fo r.   When  

your  went  to  –  a t  th is  t ime,  th is  i s  2015 when you are  

headhunted and you,  u l t imate ly,  ge t  employed,  the re  were  20 

med ia  repor ts ,  news,  about  the  Gupta ’s ,  Mr  Sa l im Essa ’s  

re la t ions  w i th  the  Gupta ’s .  

MS GOODSON:    I  don ’ t  know about  Mr  Sa l im Essa  but  the  

Guptas  fo r  sure ,  the  Wate rk loo f  land ing  was in  the  pub l i c  

domain  a t  the  t ime.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:     The what?  

MS GOODSON:    The Wate rk loo f  land ing .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Yes.  

MS GOODSON:    Was in  the  pub l i c  domain  bu t  Mr  Essa –  I  

reca l l ,  spec i f i ca l l y,  even t ry ing  to  Goog le  h im  before  

meet ing  h im and there  wasn ’ t  a  lo t  about  h im in  the  pub l i c  

domain  when I  on  boarded.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Yes.  

MS GOODSON:    A t  the  t ime I  res igned,  there  was.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     By  the  t ime you res igned?  10 

MS GOODSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     So ,  p r io r  to  you res ign ing  there  was?  

MS GOODSON:    There  were  smal l  –  p r io r  to  me res ign ing ,  

fo r  example ,  the  ar t i c les  about  the  spec ia l  adv iso rs  was in  

the  pub l i c  domain ,  fo r  example .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Yes,  you d idn ’ t  go  in to  th is  job ,  we l l  

knowing what  was go ing  on?  

MS GOODSON:    No,  I  d idn ’ t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sorry I  am – there is something I  am 

looking at ,  at  the res ignat ion let ter.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   No.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes I  may have missed something please 

tel l  me.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   No I  am giving you t ime Chair  to 

. . . [ intervenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON:   Oh.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  no I  was just  t ry ing to fo l low something 

on the – on the let ter here.   Ms Goodson on some parts of  

the let ter and I  have not  f in ished checking.   On some parts  

of  the let ter i t  seems – one gets the impression that  the most  

important  considerat ion that  led to your resignat ion was that  

you were feel ing that  you were not  given space to 

meaningful ly part ic ipate in decision making.   Is that  correct? 

MS GOODSON:   That  is correct .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS GOODSON:   I  was told what to  do.   I  was instructed.   I  

thought I  was coming into new posi t ion of  leadership where 

my ski l ls and expert ise would be used to bui ld the company.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS GOODSON:   And that  did not  happen.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS GOODSON:   I  was – I  bel ieve I  was l ied to.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Yes.   Ja because that  comes across 

on certain parts.   You say at  page 459.26 you are unaware of  20 

what mot ivates me.  Oh no,  no,  you start  ear l ier on by 

saying:  

“My st rength – my strengths experience,  

abi l i ty,  loyal ty and competence have not  yet  

come to – come out  in th is organisat ion 
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because through you my opinion,  

recommendat ion and views are not  

requested. ”  

MS GOODSON:   Correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   And in the next  paragraph you say in part :  

“You are – that  is  now you are talk ing to – you are wri t ing to 

him – Mr Angel .  

“You are unaware of  what mot ivates me nor  

what causes concern because our  

discussions are mere receiving instruct ions 10 

and feedback f rom you.   I  have t r ied to 

establ ish a relat ionship wi th you wi th no 

success.”  

And then – and then in paragraph 459.27 that  is the reason 

you g ive for your decision to resign.   Af ter the few l ines you 

say:  

“ I  be l ieve in  the opportuni ty  but  I  have very 

l i t t le fa i th at  leadership.   Would you not  care 

for  my opinion wi l l  care to put  my interest  

f i rst .   Tr i l l ian has shown thei r  hand.   This is 20 

not  a pr ior i ty.   In f ive months th is should 

have been a pr ior i ty to retain and mot ivate 

me and knowing that  I  took on this job for the 

incent ive.   How long can I  be expected to  

work on fai th?  For me that  t ime has come 
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and I  am done.”  

Maybe there are more.   But  the reason why I  ask th is whi le  

obviously i t  is important  i t  does not  come across as saying I  

do not  want to be involved in the k ind of  act iv i t ies that  I  th ink 

this company is involved in.   That  is  why I  am leaving.  

MS GOODSON:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  i t  may wel l  be that  looking at  th is  

paragraph or these excerpts l ike that  is unfai r  when one has 

regard to the other reasons you g ive.  So – but  I  am just  

put t ing that  to you to say what – what would you say i f  10 

somebody says wel l  those parts at  least  do not  come across 

l ike you are saying I  have experienced the type of  business 

you are engaged in.   I  do not  want to be part  of  i t  even i f  you 

were to seek my opinion to seek me to be part  of  decision 

making i f  th is is the type of  business you do I  wi l l  not  be part 

of  i t .   I t  comes across as i f  at  least  I  fe l t  that  I  was – my 

opinions were respected and I  was given a meaningfu l  role in  

decision making then maybe I  would stay.  What would you 

say i f  somebody says that  is how i t  comes across? 

MS GOODSON:   I  th ink the way that  you say i t  is a hundred 20 

percent  correct .   I  th ink that  – I  agree wi th you that  there is  

a dis jo int  between what I  have to ld  you my reasons were for  

leaving and what my resignat ion let ter says and that  dis jo in 

is del iberate and with intent ion.   And the reason for  that  is  

because in my res ignat ion let ter  I  could only reference 
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th ings that  I  knew.    

I  d id not  – I  suspected that  the business act iv i t ies of 

Tr i l l ian were wrong but  I  d id not  have proof .   I  have later  

come to real ise things that  were very,  very wrong with this 

company and everything e lse that  i t  has done I  later come to 

real ise what th is  Bank of  – th is Bank of  Baroda account took 

pensioner ’s money f rom Transnet to  pay for Tegeta.    

I  had been admit ted into a psychiat r ic hospi tal  when I  

found that  out .   I  d id  not  know that  when I  opened the 

accounts.   I  d id not  know Mark Pamensky was on the Eskom 10 

board unt i l  later.   I  d id not  know that  th is company was used 

to siphon money out  to Gupta ent i t ies.   I  d id not  know.    

And I  fe l t  that  i f  I  just  put  a l l  my suspicions in a 

res ignat ion let ter  and even I  read i t  to mysel f  I  fe l t  that  I  

would sound crazy.   So the only th ing that  I  could reference 

to mot ivate me leaving and I  a lso was very strategic in that  I  

d id not  want them coming back to saying I  d id not  want to  

give them a reason where they could say okay but  Bianca i f  

we give you this  then you must  stay.   That  is why there is  a  

f ive or s ix reasons there.   They could never address al l  20 

those concerns.    

I  was never going to come back no matter what they 

offered me.  But  I  have to  use examples of  th ings that  I  knew 

at  the t ime only and that  is why there is th is dis join.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay Mr Seleka.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You said you were done or there is  

something ar is ing? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja let  me just  add to that  Ms Goodson.  I t  

is a spl i t  screen image here.   You get  one reason and then 

you get  the other.    

MS GOODSON:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   L ike this paragraph I  th ink where the 

Chairperson was reading just  before your reasons i t  says:  

“ I f  our relat ionship was more respect fu l  and 10 

t ransparent  my percept ion towards the issues 

l isted below would have been deal t  wi th  

wi thin the boundaries of  a t rustworthy 

re lat ionship and in al l  l i kel ihood not  even 

perceived as r isk.   With a good relat ionship I  

would almost  bl indly support  you as my 

leader. ”  

MS GOODSON:   Chair  absolute ly p lease can I  explain? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

MS GOODSON:   I f  there was – i f  – because I  am talking 20 

about a hypothet ical  example there.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

MS GOODSON:   I f  there was a t ransparent  relat ionship.   I f  

there was a t ransparent  relat ionship and somebody told me 

that  Tr i l l ian was being used to siphon money out  I  would 
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have pushed back.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   No you said to a bl ind support .  

MS GOODSON:   No not  under any ci rcumstances.   I  said i f  I  

knew. I t  is predicated on i t  being t ransparent .   I t  does mean 

that  the t ransparency must  be some forms of  i l legal i ty and I  

wi l l  be okay wi th i t .   Absolutely not .   So i f  I  knew … 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

MS GOODSON:   I  could at  least  have had a conversat ion 

wi th Cl ive to say but  why can we not  t ry  the r ight  way?  Why 

can we not  t ry and just  do RFP’s?  Why can we not  work in  10 

the pr ivate sector?  Why is i t  only  publ ic sector?  I  could 

have pushed back.   I  could have actual ly said this is total ly  

i l legal  are you aware of  what  you doing?  I f  i t  was a 

t ransparent  relat ionship.   I  could have – but  i t  was not .   And 

i f  those answers – this is me giving him the benef i t  of  the 

doubt – i f  the answers were legi t imate to those quest ions 

that  I  would have raised I  would have and I  accepted the 

reason as being something that  I  maybe just  did not 

understand or something that  I  maybe just  did not  get  or  

there is more informat ion that  I  d id not  have I  would have 20 

been loyal  to the cause.   I  am st i l l  g iv ing them the benef i t  of  

the doubt that  there was no corrupt ion at  th is point  because I  

personal ly could not  prove i t .   And i f… 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

MS GOODSON:   My suspicions – i f  there was a rat ional  and 
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reasonable reason which there could have been maybe or  

why these things happened we could have had a 

conversat ion about i t  and i f  i t  was reasonable we could have 

moved on.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja.  

MS GOODSON:   No i l legal .   I  d id  not  say I  would bl indly 

fo l low them i f  i t  was i l legal .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Hm.  Ja you see.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  let  me tel l  you what my understanding 

of  the phrase almost  b l indly supports is and you can tel l  me 10 

what you have to say about i t  or you may offer a  di fferent  

meaning.   You say I  would almost  bl indly support  you as my 

leader.    

 I f  you did not  put  in the word almost  there you would 

have said I  would bl indly support  you as my leader.   Now 

that  would have meant in my book that  no mat ter what 

weaknesses,  no matter what bad things the leader did you 

would just  support  i f  you d id not  put  in  almost  okay because 

i t  seems to me i t  says I  would overlook whatever you did that  

I  might  not  otherwise have been happy wi th and just  support  20 

you bl indly.  

 Now your let ter does not  say bl ind ly support  i t  says 

almost  and I  want to say to you that  seems to come very 

close to bl indly support  wi thout  almost .  

MS GOODSON:   True.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   And that  seems to suggest  there would be 

lots of  th ings you could overlook.  

MS GOODSON:   Sure.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Would you agree wi th that  interpretat ion? 

MS GOODSON:   I  would agree wi th  that  interpretat ion and I  

am so grateful  that  I  am here to provide context .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes,  ja.  

MS GOODSON:   For that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   P lease do that  ja.  

MS GOODSON:   But  I  do agree wi th your interpretat ion i f  I  10 

am al lowed to give you an example?  In my previous posi t ion 

in Anglo American my manager,  my direct  manager was not  

based here she was based in  London and she had access to 

the Invesco and the board of  Anglo American I  d id a lot  of  

work that  was presented to those commit tees and I  

presented them mysel f .   

 There was a lot  of  t imes when my manager would 

come to me and she would say something l ike Bianca you 

need to do th is is South America and I  would ask why and 

she was l ike look I  cannot explain to you now but  please just  20 

t rust  me and I  would do i t .   I  would t rust  her.   And i t  would 

eventual ly come out  and she says okay now I  can explain.   

This is what the plan was.   There was a strategy behind i t ,  

we could not  share the informat ion at  the t ime but  ul t imately  

that  informat ion would come back and there would al  – or 
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somet imes you cannot know everything beforehand and you 

somet imes do have to t rust  people that  are your leaders and 

I  have done that  and I  have always worked for  highly 

integrous people.   People wi th the utmost  – utmost  integr i ty 

and ethics and I  had no reason to ever th ink that  my 

employer would ever,  ever put  me in a posi t ion that  would be 

bad for me.  I  have never ever worked for anybody l ike that  

unt i l  I  worked for Tr i l l ian.    

 So the context  of  the word bl indly  is assuming that  

you are working wi th eth ical  people and people wi th integr i ty 10 

which I  a lways had and I  have been very fortunate to have 

unt i l  th is.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  of  course i f  i t  is  bl ind support  you wi l l  

not  see even when there is no integr i ty.  

MS GOODSON:   No a hundred percent  but  l ike I  d id  I  mean 

you know in my previous example there were things that  my 

– my technical  d i rector of  Anglo would say Bianca please do 

this for me I  wi l l  explain to you later.   And you bl indly do i t  

wi thout  understanding or somet imes al l  of  the context  

because you t rust  the relat ionship.   That  was not  the case 20 

here.   But  that  is  the way that  I  meant i t .   I  am not  – I  am 

saying that  your  assessment of  reading i t  l i teral ly is a  

hundred percent  correct  Chai r  but  the way that  I  intended i t  

was di fferent  and I  am grateful  that  I  can explain i t  to  you.   I  

would never ever  look the other eye for something that  has 
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cost ing this country bi l l ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The – perhaps the last  one also to g ive 

you a chance to explain is the reason in  the paragraph 

numbered 2 on the next  – numbered 9 so i t  would be the 

next  page and i t  reads:  

“The r isks associated wi th th is posi t ion and 

speci f ical ly wi th  the shareholders of  th is  

company are except ional ly  high succinct ly 

put  my career would be over  i f  there was 10 

ever a publ ic associat ion between mysel f ,  Mo 

Bobat,  Gupta ’s and or Sal im.  These r isks 

are not  worth tak ing wi thout  having sight  on 

reward.”  

MS GOODSON:   A hundred percent .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    

“So I  am prepared I  am not  prepared to 

absorb them anymore. ”  

You understand? 

MS GOODSON:   Yes absolutely.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   So the r isks… 

MS GOODSON:   I  am standing by my resignat ion let ter one 

hundred percent .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The r isks… 

MS GOODSON:   So I  wi l l  g ive you my context .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Chai r  d id you see that  one.   The 

r isk are not  worth taking wi thout  having sight  on reward.  

MS GOODSON:   One hundred percent .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   But  here you knew about the Gupta ’s.   

Mo Bobat,  Gupta’s and or Sal im.  

MS GOODSON:   Ja so by this t ime by the t ime that  I  was 

res igning in March.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.  

MS GOODSON:   The media had picked up momentum.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Let  me say this.   Ja before you answer.  10 

MS GOODSON:   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Let  me say this.   The way you make i t  

sound there is the carrot  you are giving me is not  big  enough 

to make me take the r isk.  

MS GOODSON:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You give me a bigger one I  wi l l  take the 

r isk.  

MS GOODSON:   ( Inaudible).  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  wi l l  stay and take the r isks and almost  

bl indly fo l low you also let  us st ick to  th is one.  20 

MS GOODSON:   Gee 00:17:29 have you ever thought th is 

would happen at  th is resignat ion let ter when I  wrote i t  that  

morning.   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Is that  what you were meaning there? 

MS GOODSON:   No.    
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ADV SELEKA SC:   I f  I  g ive you – i f  you up my reward I  wi l l  

take the r isk.  

MS GOODSON:   That  is not  what I  mean.  That  is not  what I  

mean and again I  demonst rated in the fact  that  i f  I  wanted 

more money I  would have asked Eric when he offered me 

what can we do to keep you.   I  would have just  sa id okay 

give me R4mil l ion a year.   I  had that  opportuni ty and I  d id  

not  do i t .   What I  meant in th is speci f ic c lause or  in th is  

speci f ic paragraph was that  the scales are not  balanced and 

I  am not  saying that  the scales should be balanced I  was 10 

t ry ing to art icu late the fact  that  th is was just  completely  

ludicrous.    

 At  that  t ime the r isk associated wi th the Gupta’s was 

very wel l  establ ished in the media and there was in my 

opinion there was no reward ever that  could actual ly  make 

that  r isk worth i t .   I  d id say that  i t  is not  worth i t  because i t  

was not .   For me part icular ly I  lost  so much.  I  had taken a 

salary cut  I  subsequent ly lost  my career.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You took a salary cut  when? 

MS GOODSON:   When I  jo ined Tr i l l ian.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   So why then did you jo in? 

MS GOODSON:   Because I  bel ieved in the opportuni ty.   I  

honest ly thought that  th is  company and I  bel ieve that  th is  

company was going to make a di fference at  Eskom. 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Did you real ly be l ieve that? 
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MS GOODSON:   I  real ly did and very soon af ter I  jo ined I  

real ised that  that  was not  – i t  d id not  look l ike i t  was going to  

happen and i t  started show – that  started showing me for  

example through the acr imony wi th McKinsey.   But  the 

intent ion to reduce or to create 00:19:23 and procurement to  

increase the eff ic iencies of  the power plant  those are not  

unreal ist ic.   That  is – Eskom st i l l  has that  issue now with 

maintenance and I  thought that  there was a chance where I  

could be part  of  the team who actual ly could effect  that 

change and I  – I  have said th is to the commission al ready i t  10 

was me being naïve I  guess.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  let  me read to you one or two parts  

that  you may l ike bet ter  than maybe some of  the ones that 

we have been rais ing.  

MS GOODSON:   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Under your ad-reason for resigning you 

say:  

“Original ly I  thought that  th is job would 

culminate in networks that  could be leverage 20 

because my tenure at  Tr i l l ian.   I t  is obvious 

to me now that  those networks wi l l  be 

pol i t ic ised al though not  much may humble 

career history has been establ ished on 

bloody hard work and integr i ty.   I  would 
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rather have a future career def ined by those 

at t r ibutes than a pol i t ical ly connected one.   

So f rom my side this job in effect  is more 

detr imental  for my future and the networks 

that  I  wi l l  come – that  wi l l  come from this  

posi t ion.   I  am not  networks that  I  wi l l  

wi l l ingly 00:21:14 future.”  

Wel l  in the – in reason number 4 there seems to be qui te a 

bi t  which – which you say there that  seems to relate to your  

complaint  that  you were not  –  your opinion was not  10 

appreciated or you were not  being al lowed to take part  in  

decision making.   You say in part :  

“ I  f ind i t  most  inconsistent  that  I  am the 

condui t  to  get  work done with these 

individuals yet  st i l l  get  your instruct ion on 

what to say,  when to say i t  and via which 

medium.  The last  I  checked I  can manage 

my own re lat ionships.   The part  of  

d iscussions in which the roles of  engagement 

are determined and t rusted enough to 20 

execute them even in the most  precarious 

si tuat ions. ”  

And then you say:  

“ I  am more than someone who gets the tai l  of  

d iscussions and then is responsib le for the 
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h igh r isk and h igh exposure work to get  

th ings moving.  I  am resigning because I  do 

not  bel ieve that  you are looking out  for me 

through this r isky re lat ionships.”  

That  part  might  be more in l ine wi th what we have been 

ra ising wi th you.  

MS GOODSON:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Because i t  seems to say i f  only you can do 

what is necessary to ensure that  these r isks that  you expect  

me to take are manageable.  10 

MS GOODSON:   Ja I… 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am just  put t ing my understanding to 

them.  

MS GOODSON:   P lease just  also remember i t  took me four 

hours to wri te that  let ter.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  No,  no.  

MS GOODSON:   And i t  was ten versions.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no I  understand.  

MS GOODSON:   Ten I  have t r ied al l  these permutat ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  understand and then the last  one I  th ink 20 

or two that  I  want  to read.   The one is in reason number 5 

towards the end i t  says:  

“My completely  00:23:57 team has 

shareholding in  TCP you and thei r  r isk 

reward offered is di fferent  to  mine.   So 
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p lease know that  I  wi l l  not  be legal ly 

responsible for other people’s act ions.   I f  my 

leadership expects th is of  me my reward has 

to be of  such a nature that  my fami ly wi l l  be 

supported in the event  that  I  am not  able to  

do i t .  This reward st ructure has not  been 

approached as a pr ior i ty al though the r isks 

are immediate.   I  wi l l  not  be absorb ing this 

r isk any longer.”  

Yes and I  th ink in  paragraph 6 you – or in reason 6 at  least  10 

in part  you go back to not  being included in  decis ion making.   

I  guess the – you have said what you – what you can say or  

is there anything you want to say? 

MS GOODSON:   There is a lot  of  th ings that  can be read into 

my resignat ion Chair  that  was emot ive.   That  was not  

planned.  In one day my fami ly .  

CHAIRPERSON:   And I  see that  … 

MS GOODSON:   A l l  over 00:25:22.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And I  see that  i t  ref lects 5:58 am.  

MS GOODSON:   I  to ld you I  woke up at  two o ’clock in  the 20 

morning.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS GOODSON:   And I  sent  – ( inaudible).  

CHAIRPERSON:   And you sa id i t  was – the one you sent  was 

vers ion number 10.  
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MS GOODSON:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MS GOODSON:   I t  was not  easy to  wri te that .   I  have never  

ever lef t  a company on that  basis .  I  have never ever only 

worked for three months.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MS GOODSON:   Even now I  st i l l  get  emot ional  when I  th ink 

about  th is  experience was horrendous.   So I  guess what I  

can say is  th is  there is a lot  of  th ings that  could be read into 

the resignat ion let ter but  what you certainly can do is look at  10 

my act ions instead.   I  never went back to  Tr i l l ian.   I  d id not  

wai t  for them to push out  I  resigned.   And I  went – I  walked 

away and as soon as I  could I  helped law enforcement 

agencies.    

 The f i rst  person that  I  helped that  approached me 

was the Publ ic Protector.   Af ter that  i t  was Mr Budlender,  

af ter that  i t  was the Parl iamentary Inqui ry.   I  have become a 

walking evidence docket  ever since blowing the whist le and 

my l i fe has been ruined.   So as much as people may want to 

look at  the resignat ion let ter and tear i t  apart  what I  20 

subsequent ly done s ince res igning speaks a lo t  more 

volumes than what can be misinterpreted in that  let ter.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  part  of  what you are saying is whoever 

reads the let ter must  have regard to the ent i re context  and 

background.  
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MS GOODSON:   The background and also subsequent 

act ions af ter submit t ing i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   And the subsequent act ions.  

MS GOODSON:   One hundred percent .  

CHAIRPERSON:   And you woke up at  two am, you woke up 

your partner,  you had made up your mind you wanted to  

res ign.  

MS GOODSON:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And you – you worked – so you must  have 

worked on i t  for  10 

MS GOODSON:   Four hours.  

CHAIRPERSON:   For qui te a few hours.   Ja.  

MS GOODSON:   And I  could not  f ind the r ight  th ing to say 

because I  could not  prove i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Ja and you have to f ind – f ind words 

to express yoursel f  to your sat isfact ion on why you were 

res igning.  

MS GOODSON:   One hundred percent .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes and – and u l t imately th is is the vers ion 

that  you sent .  20 

MS GOODSON:   Chair  I  would l ike to just  remind you that  

when I  came back f rom Durban and I  met wi th  Mr Wood he 

asked me what could he do to make me stay.   I  d id  not  ask 

him for money,  I  d id not  ask him for anything that  would 

elevate my status in  any way.   I  asked him to change the 
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business processes.   And he sa id emphat ical ly that  wi l l  

never happen.  I  shook his hand and I  lef t .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MS GOODSON:   There is a procedural  issue which – wi th  

Tr i l l ian that  was an issue and i f  they had people l ike me in 

their  leadership doing the r ight  k ind of  work this would never  

have ever have happened.  Because people wi th integr i ty  

l ike me do not  do things l ike this to the country.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  Thank you.   Are you? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  am done.   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   You are done? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  am done.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you very much Ms Goodson for  

making t ime to come and assist  the commission.  

MS GOODSON:   Chair  can I  say two th ings before we end? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS GOODSON:   Just  one thing sorry.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  20 

MS GOODSON:   That  I  would just  l ike to use the opportuni ty  

to just  ask you very sincerely and respect ful ly.   Yesterday 

there was a repor t  that  was released by an inst i tut ion cal led 

the IBA which is the Internat ional  Bar  Associat ion.   And they 

did a survey on – global  survey on whist leblower protect ion 
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laws across the world  and South Afr ica is  ranked incredibly  

low on that  survey and i ts made publ ic and I  could send you 

guys the l ink.   And as somebody who blew the whist le both 

publ ic ly as wel l  as anonymously to help the f ight  against  

corrupt ion and state capture I  real ise and I  have l ived 

through what a huge impact  i t  can have on whist leblowers 

and I  just  say just  respect fu l ly just  would l ike to ask you to  

consider that  in your recommendat ions when you are done.   

That  is the f i rst  th ing.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  I  am sure Mr Seleka wi l l  t ry and get  to  10 

that  publ icat ion for the commission.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  you – now that  you have said that  you 

remind me and I  wi l l  say to you what I  said to Ms Mothepu 

when she appeared before the commission I  am very 

interested in looking at  the adequacy or otherwise of  

protect ion or whist leblowers in South Afr ica.  

MS GOODSON:   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And i t  seems to me that  providing a lot  of  

protect ion to whist leblowers is a cr i t ical  p i l lar  to meaningful  20 

f ight  against  corrupt ion.    

MS GOODSON:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I f  – i f  you – i f  you have a very good regime 

of  protect ion of  whist leblowers as a count ry you stand a 

good chance that  people who want to blow the whist le when 
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they are aware of  corrupt ion wi l l  f ind i t  easy to do so.  

MS GOODSON:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And i f  people who want to engage in 

corrupt ion know that  there are good chances that  somebody 

wi l l  b low the whist le that  does cont r ibute to deterrence.  

MS GOODSON:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So you – the country needs to have good 

and a st rong regime of  protect ion of  whist leb lowers because 

1.  That  wi l l  enable people to blow the whist le in regard to 

corrupt ion.  10 

2.  I t  wi l l  serve – i t  w i l l  cont r ibute to a deterrence for those 

who want to engage in corrupt ion.   The next  th ing you 

want is that  those who get  involved in corrupt ion must 

know that  when the whist le has been blown by 

somebody the law enforcement  agencies have a good 

chance of  doing a proper job to  invest igate and to 

catching them – of  catching them.  

And then the thi rd  th ing is that  they wi l l  be prosecuted.  

MS GOODSON:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And i f  found gui l ty sent  to ja i l .   So that  is 20 

very cr i t ical .   I f  any of  these pi l lars is weak i t  compromises 

the f ight  against  corrupt ion.   So I  do have people wi thin the 

commission or people that  are looking into this issue.  

MS GOODSON:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And just  as I  inv i ted Ms Mothepu I  would 
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invi te you and anyone else l istening or watching who would 

l ike to make submissions as to the adequacy or  otherwise of  

our regime for the protect ion of  whist leblowers and what 

proposals can be made to the commission to say this is what  

i t  should propose should change in the law or in some 

pract ices and so on and so on so that  in the report  we could 

have a sect ion that  deals wi th how the pi l lar  of  protect ion of  

whist leblowers can be strengthened i f  i t  needs that  

st rengthening.   So you can also make a cont r ibut ion by 

sending submissions to the commission.  10 

MS GOODSON:   Thank you very much.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MS GOODSON:   I f  that  was in – i f  that  was in place when I  

b lew the whist le.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MS GOODSON:   My l i fe would be very di fferent  r ight  now.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MS GOODSON:   But  Chai r  there is  just  one last  th ing that  I  

would just  l ike to say.   I  am have to represent  my fami ly I  am 

00:03:41 si t  here and I  just  do want to say that  on behal f  of  20 

my fami ly and especial ly in l ight  o f  the business day report  

or  the business day headl ine that  came out  today I  would 

just  l ike to thank you and your commission for what you are 

al l  doing.   I  th ink you wi l l  have a thankless job and I  – i f  I  

was in your posi t ion I  would have fat igue by now and I  just  
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want  to  encourage you to  carry on and I  just  want  to say 

thank you for what you are doing.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you very much.  Thank you.   Mr  

Seleka who are the wi tnesses for tomorrow just  for the 

benef i t  of  the publ ic? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   This is… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Or is i t  – is i t  another work stream? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   I t  is a di fferent  work st ream tomorrow 

Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay I  wi l l  have to check.   Can you 10 

remember which work st ream? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  am asking Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  normal ly know.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes I  know.  I  am asking my … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay and where I  am sure the – the 

Secretar iat  has issued a media statement or something 

advising the publ ic – that  is  f ine.   Oh I  th ink Reverend 

Stamela might  be … 

ADV SELEKA SC:   But  I  understand Chai r  you have an 

evening session.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes I  do have an evening session ja.   Oh I  

th ink – I  thought the Reverend might  have been conveying.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Not  to that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no that  is f ine.   We are going to  

adjourn tomorrow wi l l  – the commission wi l l  be s i t t ing but  I  
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am going to have an evening session start ing at  I  th ink at  

f ive.   We adjourn.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Chai r.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am so r ry.   I  thought  i t  was go ing  to  

take  jus t  a  few minutes .   I t  tu rned out  tha t  i t  was 

someth ing  tha t  needed more  t ime.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  we may proceed.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Cha i r,  a t  th is  s tage,  may we draw 

your  a t ten t ion ,  p lease,  to  the  fac t  tha t  the  supp lementa ry  

s ta tement  I  ment ioned ea r l ie r,  has now come to  hand? 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    May I ,  w i th  your  leave,  hand tha t  up  

to  you?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And ask  tha t  i t  be  added to  Bund le  

Dene l  8  a t  page  483.1?  Perhaps the  reg is t ra r  wou ld  be  

ab le  to  ass i s t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   Thank you.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you Cha i r.   Mr  Mantsha ,  may I  

ask  i f  you  cou ld  p lease look in  tha t  bund le  a t  page 483.1? 

MR MANTSHA:    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    You have tha t?  
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MR MANTSHA:    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  483.1 .   You need to  swi tch  on  

your  m ic rophone as  we l l  when you get  the  chance.  

MR MANTSHA:    Thank you.   I  see  483.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  I  sa id  483.1 .   I t  i s  no t  483.   I t  i s  

483.1 .   I  was to ld  i t  i s  in  your  bund le  immedia te ly  a f te r  

483.  

MR MANTSHA:    I s  i t  number  35  by  the  marker?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Page 483  has got  somebody has 

marked i t  as  35 .   Yes,  tha t  i s  483.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Remember  to  look  a t  the  top  le f t  b lack  

numbers  on  the  page.  

MR MANTSHA:    Thank you Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Ja ,  bu t  jus t  a f te r  tha t  document .   Do 

you have a  document  marked Dene l -08-483.1?  

MR MANTSHA:    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I t  i s  a  s imp le  quest ion .   Do you have  

tha t  o r  no t  Mr  Mantsha?  

MR MANTSHA:    483.1?  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:    I  see  the  supp lementary  s ta tement .   I s  

th is  the  one?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  we are  go ing  to  dea l  w i th  what  i t  

i s  in  a  moment .   Have you got  483 .1?  
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MR MANTSHA:    Yes,  I  do .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you.   And tha t  i s  headed  

supp lementary  s ta tement .   Cor rec t?  

MR MANTSHA:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And i t  goes fo r  th ree  pages  and on  

page 483.3 ,  i t  bears  your  s ignatu re .   I s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR MANTSHA:    That  i s  co r rec t .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   And I  see you swore  i t  be fore  a  

commiss ioner  o f  oa ths  on  Monday,  the  1s t  o f  March .   I s  tha t  

r igh t?  10 

MR MANTSHA:    That  i s  co r rec t .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  have not iced,  in  a l l  your  a f f idav i t s ,  

the  commiss ioner  has recorded tha t  your  swore  the  oa th  

bu t  in  your  o ra l  ev idence you have g i ven an a f f i rmat ion .    

A re  we c lea r  tha t  whether  you took an  oath  or  an  

a f f i rmat ion?  You  have conf i rmed on your  consc ience tha t  

a l l  o f  the  ev idence,  bo th  in  the  a f f idav i t ,  the  s ta tements  

and in  your  o ra l  ev idence are  the  t ru th?  

MR MANTSHA:    Indeed Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   Thank you.   And then Cha i r  I  20 

am not  p ropos ing  to  take  the  w i tness th rough a l l  o f  the  

contents .   But  jus t  ind ica te ,  Mr  Mantsha,  cor rec t  me  i f  I  am 

wrong . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Do you want  me –  be fo re  tha t  

Mr  Kennedy.   Would  you l i ke  me to  adm i t  th is  
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. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  was about  to  ge t  to  tha t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I f  I  may jus t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay a l r igh t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    . . . ind ica te  to  you what  i t  con ta ins?  

CHAIRPERSON:    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I t  jus t  conta ins  re ferences to  a  

coup le  o f  passages in  h is  ear l ie r  a f f idav i t ,  the  very  f i rs t  

one,  wh ich  is  . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    . . . i s  now cor rec ted .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And I  do  no t  p ropose to  take  h im 

th rough . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   No,  no ,  no .   I ,  when I  was look ing  a t  

h is  ear l ie r  s ta tement  las t  n igh t ,  I  saw the  no tes  I  have  

made where  he  made cor rec t ions  and I  remember  tha t  the 

past  two supp lementary  a f f idav i t s  to  e f fec t  those 

cor rec t ions.  20 

ADV KENNEY SC:    I  am a f ra id  your  vo ice  keeps go ing  o f f  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ah ,  okay.   I  th ink ,  I  am say ing ,  you do 

not  need to  go  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    . . . take  me th rough them.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  remember  the  cor rec t ions.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  we w i l l  no t  take  h im th rough i t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  i t  i s  no t  necessary.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    May I  then fo rmal ly  move fo r  you r  

leave Cha i r  to  admi t  th is  as  an  exh ib i t  f rom page 483.1  in  10 

Bund le-03 and tha t  i t  shou ld  be  admi t ted  as  Exh ib i t  W-

22.4?  

CHAIRPERSON:    The supp lementary  a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  S imon 

Dan ie l  Mantsha,  s ta r t ing  a t  page 483.1  i s  admi t ted  and w i l l  

be  marked as  Exh ib i t  W-22.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    22 .4 .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you ve ry  much Cha i r.  

SUPPLEMENTARY AFFIDAVIT  OF SIMON DANIEL 

MANTSHA,  STARTING AT PAGE 483.1  IS  ADMITTED AND 20 

WILL BE MARKED AS EXHIBIT  W-22  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now Mr  Mantsha,  jus t  be fore  the  

ad journment  I  had to  –  I  was re fer r ing  you to  a  passage in  

one o f  you r  s ta tement .   I f  you  cou ld  tu rn ,  p lease ,  in  the 

same bund le  to  page 334? 
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MR MANTSHA:    I  am there  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now I  was read ing  out ,  i f  I  reca l l  

cor rec t l y,  the  top  par t  o f  tha t  page and tha t  was dea l ing  

w i th  a  ca l l  tha t  you had wh i le  you  were  in  London w i th  Mr  

Sa loo jee  and you  had a  ca l l  tha t  members  o f  the  Aud i t  and 

R isk  Commi t tee  were  hav ing  a  p rob lem.   They t r ied  to  

convene a  meet ing  o f  a  commi t tee  bu t  they were  re fused  

access to  the  board room by the  Company Secre ta ry.   You 

reca l l  rece iv ing  tha t  ca l l?  

MR MANTSHA:    Indeed Cha i rpe rson.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   And you sa id  a t  the  top  o f  your  

a f f idav i t  a t  332,  you reco l lec t ion  is  tha t . . .   I  beg your  

pardon.   Jus t  a  moment .   I  am sor ry  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And then I  read out  to  you the  next  

passage tha t  they ca l led  you and  you in te rvened and you 

had a  d iscuss ion  w i th  Mr  Sa loo jee .   I s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR MANTSHA:    I t  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And in  the  next  paragraph i t  says :  

“The Company Secre tary. . .  20 

 We are  ta lk ing  about  Ms A f r i ca ,  co r rec t?  

MR MANTSHA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    “ . . . tha t  she was ins t ruc ted  by  

someone not  to  a l low the  Aud i t  and R isk  Commi t tee  to  do  

i t s  work . . . ”  
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MR MANTSHA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I s  tha t  the  percept ion  tha t  you p icked 

up or  i s  tha t  what  you were  to ld?  

MR MANTSHA:    Wel l ,  Cha i rperson,  I  ac tua l l y  found i t  very  

s t range tha t  the  person in  a  pos i t ion  o f  a  Company  

Secre tary  wou ld  re fuse access  o f . . .   You know,  the  

Company Secre ta ry  i s  bas i ca l l y  an  employee o f  the  board .   

Would  re fuse access o f  members  o f  the  board  to  have 

access to  a  meet ing  room on her  own.   So I ,  you know,  my 

percept ion  was she probab ly  –  she is  no t  a lone.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And so  d id  you unders tand tha t  she 

had been ins t ruc ted  by  somebody  in  par t i cu la r  to  re fuse  

them access?  

MR MANTSHA:    Wel l ,  I ,  o f  course ,  d id  no t  have any  

spec i f i c  name who might  have ins t ruc ted  he r  to  re fuse  

access.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Bu t  you be l ieved tha t ,  because i t  

seemed to  you tha t  she must  have been ins t ruc ted  by  

someone.   A re  you re fer r i ng  here  to  Mr  Sa loo jee?  

MR MANTSHA:    Wel l ,  I  was seated next  to  Mr  Sa loo jee .  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:    And when I  go t  th is  ca l l  I  sa id :   Mr  

Sa loo jee ,  th is  i s  the  s i tua t ion .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  my quest ion  is .  D id  you th ink  

tha t  th is  someone  tha t  you are  re fe r r ing  to  . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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MR MANTSHA:    No.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    . . .was Mr  Sa loo jee?  

MR MANTSHA:    No,  I  had no reason to  th ink  i t  was Mr  

Sa loo jee .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    You do not  know who i t  was?  

MR MANTSHA:    I  do  no t  know who i t  was.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay.   But  –  wou ld  you agree  though  

tha t  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  Ms A f r i ca  apparent ly  re fuse  access 

to  members  o f  the  Aud i t  and R isk  Commi t tee  to  the 

board room tha t  sounded ser ious.   That  i s  why you  10 

in te rvened.   Cor rec t?  

MR MANTSHA:    O f  cou rse ,  very  ser ious.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   And then,  i f  I  can  jus t  

comple te  read ing  the  passage.   I t  says :  

“A f te r  i t ,  I  exp la ined the  s i tua t ion  to  Mr  

Sa loo jee .  

He then spoke to  the  Company Secre tary. . . ”  

 Was tha t  on  the  phone? 

MR MANTSHA:    On the  phone,  yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  20 

“ . . .and i t  was then tha t  the  members  o f  the  

Aud io  and R isk  Commi t tee  were  g iven access  

to  a  meet ing  room. ”  

MR MANTSHA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now is  th i s  the  inc ident  tha t  in fo rms 
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us  when we see on the  o ther  page we looked a t  a  moment  

ago,  the  insubord ina t ion  compla in t  aga ins t  Ms A f r i ca .   I s  

th is  what  i t  has  to  do  w i th?  

MR MANTSHA:    I t  was in te r  a l ia  one o f  the  a l legat ions.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  see .  

MR MANTSHA:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  there  were  o ther  a l legat ions o f  

insubord ina t ion  as  we l l  aga ins t  her?  

MR MANTSHA:    Wel l ,  indeed Cha i r  because . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Try  to  lean fo rward ,  p lease.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  do  no t  move  away f rom the  mic .  

MR MANTSHA:    Thank you Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MANTSHA:    Thank you Cha i rperson.   Yes,  there  were  

severa l  a l legat ions.   One o f  i t ,  the  records  o f  the  meet ing  

o f  the  10 t h  o f  September,  we had to  scramble  th rough.   So 

there  were  a  number  o f  compla in ts  and the re  were ,  you 

know in  genera l ,  she was very  d i smiss i ve  o f  the  members  

o f  the  board .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON:    What  was the  da te  o f  the  meet ing?  Was 

i t  10  September,  the  meet ing  where  you say members  o f  

the  R isk  and Aud i t  Commi t tee  were  den ied  access to  the  

board room?  Was  tha t  on  the  10 t h  o f  September?  

MR MANTSHA:    No,  Cha i rperson,  the  10 t h  o f  September  i s  
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where  members  o f  the  R isk  and  Aud i t  Commi t tee  were  

mandated by  the  board  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh.  

MR MANTSHA:    . . . to  invest iga te  the  t ransact ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  okay.  

MR MANTSHA:    And thereaf te r  they ar ranged the i r  

meet ings.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:    I  do  no t  have a  spec i f i c  da te  bu t  a t  tha t  

t ime . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:    . . .when they convened tha t  meet ing  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MANTSHA:    . . . I  and Mr  Sa loo jee ,  we were  no t  a round.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You were  in  London?  

MR MANTSHA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  okay.   I  th ink  i t  may have been 20 

someth ing ,  maybe,  bu t  I  am not  su re .   Okay a l r igh t .   Maybe 

I  may as  we l l  ask  th is  quest ion .   In  te rms o f  the  h ie ra rchy  20 

o f  the  employees in  the  company,  where  wou ld  the  

Company Secre tary ’s  p lace  be in  te rms o f  the  h ie ra rchy,  

sen ior i t y?  

MR MANTSHA:    Wel l ,  in  te rms o f  the  s t ruc tu re ,  the  

Company Secre ta ry  i s  an  employee  o f  the  board .   So i t  i s  a  
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boa rd ,  non-execu t ive  members  and execut ive  members  o f  

the  board  and then there  is  Company Secre tary.   The  

board ’s  non-execut ive  and execut ive ,  they cons t i tu te  a 

board .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR MANTSHA:    And then the  ch ie f  execut ive  and CFO and 

o ther  execut ives ,  they const i tu te  a  Management  Team.   So 

Company Secre ta ry  i s  an  employee  o f  the  board .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:    So  i t  wou ld  be  incor rec t  to  say the  10 

Company Secre tary  repor ts  to  the  Ch ie f  Execut ive  Off i cer  

bu t  because o f  the  na ture  o f  the  work  s i tua t ion  where  the  

Company Secre tary  res ides w i th in  the  company and the  

Ch ie f  Execut ive  Off i cer  be ing  the  u l t imate  head  o f  the  

company.  

 S  there  is  regu la r  contac t  in  te rms o f  p repar ing  

the  board  presenta t ions,  submiss ions,  conven ing  the  board  

meet ings,  ca l l ing  fo r  meet ings and a l l  o f  tha t .   So I  do  no t  

know whethe r  Cha i r  I  answered your  quest ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You t r ied .   [ laughs]   And maybe you t r ied  20 

your  best .   No,  what  I  was th ink ing  is .   When you were  

suspect ing  tha t  she had been ins t ruc ted . . .   I  th ink  i t  was a  

she,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MANTSHA:    Indeed Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   She was ins t ruc ted  –  I  am t ry ing  to  
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th ink  who you –  who cou ld  have had the  power  to  ins t ruc t  

her  i f  the  Group Ch ie f  Execut ive  was not  the  one but  f rom 

what  you say,  I  am not  sure  whether  she is  be low the 

Group Ch ie f  Execut ive .    

 You seem to  suggest  tha t  she might  no t  be  bu t  

fo r  p rac t ica l  purposes,  maybe i t  looks  l i ke  tha t .   So in  

re la t ion  to  the  Group Ch ie f  Execut ive ,  where  wou ld  the  

Company Secre ta ry  be ,  i f  you  know? 

MR MANTSHA:    Wel l ,  in  te rms o f  tha t  d i rec t  l ine  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MANTSHA:    . . . f rom the  Ch ie f  Execut ive  Off i cer.   So 

the  Company Secre tary  does  not  fea ture  because  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MANTSHA:    . . . she  is  on  another  l ine  tha t  comes f rom 

the  board .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay so  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MANTSHA:    She comes f rom the  Execut ive  Author i t y,  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MANTSHA:    . . . the  board ,  the  Company Secre tary  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:    . . .and then i t  ge ts  to  the  Ch ie f  Execut ive  
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O f f i cer  and a l l  so r ts  o f  th ings.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   Would  i t  be  cor rec t  then to  say,  a t  

leas t  on  your  unders tand ing  o f  the  h ie ra rchy  or  the  

sen ior i t y,  the  on ly  peop le  who cou ld  ins t ruc t  her  cou ld  on l y  

be  peop le  f rom the  board ,  board  members  o r  o therw ise  

nobody wou ld  have the  power  to  ins t ruc t  he r  as  such?  

MR MANTSHA:    I  th ink  Cha i r,  w i th  respect ,  i f  I  can  jus t  

g ive  a  l i t t le  b i t  o f  contex t?  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m?  

MR MANTSHA:    The meet ing  o f  the  10 t h  o f  September,  i t  10 

ac tua l l y  go t  very  tense when ac tua l l y  board  members  

rea l i sed tha t  they  are  s i t t ing  on  a t ime bomb because they  

had to  pay 455 in  a  week or  two.   So i t  ac tua l l y  go t  very  

tense.    

 And o f  cou rse ,  as  even o ther  repor t s  have  

ind ica ted ,  the  demeanour  o f  the  execut ive ,  I  am re fer r ing  

to  CFO and CE and the  Company Secre tary,  they were  no t  

in  the  op in ion  o f  the  board  members  tak ing  the  board  

members  who were  new,  by  the  way,  hav ing  the i r  f i rs t  

meet ing  in  conf idence.    20 

 So tha t  was the  fee l ing  and the re  were  a  number  

o f  quest ions why  you have a  s i tua t ion  l i ke  th is .   So i t  go t  

very  tense.    

 So when myse l f  and Mr  Sa loo jee  le f t ,  we le f t  a  

very  tense s i tua t ion  where  we ac tua l l y  rea l i sed  tha t  i f  
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someth ing  is  no t  done w i th in  these two weeks,  we are  

go ing  to  have a  very  ca tas t roph ic  s i tua t ion  in  the  count ry  

because we were  go ing  to  be  fau l t  to  pay the  R 455 mi l l ion .  

 And tha t  wou ld  mean,  any bond ho lder  in  these  

s ta te-owned compan ies ,  they can  ca l l  upon the i r  board  

because the  resu l t  o f  tha t  wou ld  be  a  c ross  de fau l t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay I  am go ing  to  in te r rup t  you 

Mr  Mantsha.   I t  may be tha t  tha t  contex t  and tha t  

background is  impor tan t  bu t  I  am not  sure  tha t  i t  he lps  me 

to  unders tand who cou ld  have g iven the  Company 10 

Secre tary  –  who had power  to  g ive  the  Company Secre tary  

ins t ruc t ions because tha t  i s  my quest ion  because you sa id  

you thought  o r  suspected tha t  she had been ins t ruc ted  or  

someth ing  l i ke  tha t .    

 So  now I  was wonder ing  i f  –  who i t  i s  who cou ld  

ins t ruc t  her  and you have exc luded the  Group CEO f rom 

peop le  who might  have done tha t .    

MR MANTSHA:    Wi th  respect  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR MANTSHA:    I f  I  jus t  pu t  these  fac tua l  s i tua t ion  be fore  20 

you.   A ca l l  i s  then made to  the  Company Secre tary  by  the  

then Group Ch ie f  Execut ive  Off i ce r  to  say:   Wel l ,  there  i s  a  

compla in t  tha t  you are  s topp ing  peop le  f rom access ing  the  

board room.   And the  consequence o f  tha t ,  peop le  were  

g iven access.    
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 So  I  th ink  –  I  am not  go ing  to  specu la te  on  

bas ica l l y  who bu t  the  impress ion  I  go t  wh ich  I  s t i l l  have,  

even as  I  am ta lk ing  to  you,  she cou ld  to  have done tha t  

w i thout  ta lk ing  to  someone e lse .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  you do not  know who tha t  pe rson is .  

MR MANTSHA:    I  cannot  take  i t  fu r ther,  more  than tha t  

Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   Mr  Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Wou ld  I  be  cor rec t  in  unders tand ing  

tha t  the ,  tha t  th is  compla in t  and the  re la ted  compla in ts  o f  10 

insubord ina t ion  on  the  par t  o f  Ms  A f r i ca  were  a  mat te r  o f  

ser ious concern?  Th is  was not  a  m inor  i ssue,  cor rec t?  

MR MANTSHA:    Indeed Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   Thank you.   And jus t  to  

comple te  our  re fe rence to  th is  page 334.  In  paragraph 12,  

you re fer  to  the  acqu is i t ion  o f  LSSA for  the  R 855  mi l l ion .   

And in  paragraph 13,  you say and I  th ink  th is  bears  ou t  

what  you gave ev idence on a  moment  ago:  

“The Aud i t  and R isk  Commi t tee  was mandated 

by  the  board  to  u rgent ly  address the  emanate  20 

defau l t  by  Dene l  to  pay R 455 mi l l ion  br idg ing  

f inance to  Nedbank wh ich  was du r ing  a  week 

or  two a f te r  the  board  meet ing  o f  the 

10 t h  o f  September  2015. . . ”  

 Does th i s  re fe r  to  what  you ment ioned ea r l ie r  
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tha t  the  board  had the  f i rs t  meet ing  on  the  

10 t h  o f  September  2015,  mandated the  Aud i t  and R isk  

Commi t tee  to  invest iga te  th is?  

MR MANTSHA:    Indeed Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And then you  cont inue:  

“ . . .and Dene l  was not  in  a  pos i t ion  to  pay tha t  

amount  when due  and payab le  and  i t  was tha t  

R 400 mi l l ion  wh ich  was bor rowed f rom 

Nedbank as  b r idg ing  f inance and pa id  in to  

LSSA which  by  en large cont r ibu ted  to  the 10 

l iqu id i t y  p rob lems a t  Dene l . . . ”  

 On your  la tes t  supp lementary  a f f idav i t ,  tha t  has 

jus t  been admi t ted  by  the  Cha i rpe rson,  you have co r rec ted  

the  R 400 mi l l ion  to  read R 455 mi l l ion  wh ich  is  cons i s ten t  

w i th  what  you sa id  ear l ie r  about  th is  was the  shor t fa l l .  

MR MANTSHA:    Thank you Cha i rperson.   I t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    A l r igh t .   So le t  me jus t  sum up and  

my unders tand ing  o f  you r  ev idence so  fa r  then  on th is  

po in t  i s  th is ,  tha t  the  suspens ion  o f  Mr  Sa loo jee  and  

Mr  Mhlonth lo  re la ted  to  the  LSSA t ransact ion  and the  20 

te r r ib le  r i sks  tha t  i t  was b r ing ing  about  in  re la t ion  to  

hundreds o f  m i l l i ons  o f  rands tha t  were  shor t  and tha t  led  

Dene l  in to  a  l iqu id i t y  c r i s is  o r  cont r ibu ted  la rge ly,  you sa id 

e lsewhere ,  to  a  l iqu id i t y  c r i s i s .   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MANTSHA:    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i rperson.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    And tha t  was a  very  se r ious concern  

on  your  par t .  

MR MANTSHA:    Indeed Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    In  the  case o f  Ms A f r i ca ,  the  

compla in t  aga ins t  her  was not  in  re la t ion  to  the  LSSA 

cont rac t .   I t  had to  do  w i th  the  insubord ina t ion  compla in t s  

o r  concerns re la t ing  to  keep ing  the  Aud i t  and R isk  

Commi t tee  members  f rom not  access ing  the  boardroom and 

o ther  concerns tha t  were  exe rc i sed in  your  m ind  a t  tha t  

s tage.   Cor rec t?  10 

MR MANTSHA:    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And tha t  i t  was ser ious.  

MR MANTSHA:    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay thank you.   Now I  want  to  d raw 

fo r  a  moment  on  tha t  f i rs t  board  meet ing  o f  

10 t h  o f  September  2015.   You are  cor rec t .   Our  in fo rmat ion  

bears  ou t  your  po in t  tha t  the  Aud i t  and R isk  Commi t tee  

were  asked to  invest iga te  the  LSSA t ransact ion .  

 But  a t  tha t  meet ing  o f  the 

10 t h  o f  September  2015,  what  was a lso  ra i sed was the  20 

poss ib i l i t y  tha t  Dene l  m ight  ge t  in to  a  bus iness  venture  

invo l v ing  the  As ian  cont inent .   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MANTSHA:    Cor rec t  Cha i rperson.    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now Mr  Sa loo jee  has g i ven ev idence.   

H is  wr i t ten  s ta tements  and h is  o ra l  ev idence are  to  th is  
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e f fec t  on  th is  po in t .   The f i rs t  person who proposed the  

idea o f  a  venture  to  exp lore  market  oppor tun i t ies  in  As ia 

together  w i th  VR Laser  was Mr  Ntshepe who repor ted  

Mr  Sa loo jee .   Do  you know about  tha t  o r  do  you d i spute  i t  

o r  do  you not  know? 

MR MANTSHA:    Wel l ,  Cha i rperson,  le t  me g ive  contex t  to  

my answer.   I  th ink  on  my ear l ie r  ev idence I  had ind ica ted  

tha t  Dene l  went  to  Ind ia  24 -years  be fore ,  I  th ink  tha t  2015.   

There  were  p rob lems cor rup t ion  a l legat ion .   Then the  

company was b lack l i s ted  then.   And the re  were  l i t iga t ion  10 

f rom the  author i t ies  in  Ind ia  aga ins t  Dene l .  

 And o f  course ,  the  government  o f  the  repub l ic  

go t  invo lved to  t ry  to  reso lve  the  mat te r.   So when –  dur ing  

the  induct ion ,  I  do  no t  remember  who,  I  th ink  I  have s ta ted  

i t  be fore ,  I  was  then g i ven because i t  was par t  o f  the 

presenta t ion  by  the  Execut ive  Team as par t  o f  the  induct ion  

o f  the  new board  members  where  a re  the  oppor tun i t ies  and  

a l l  sor t  o f  th ings.   So I  was g iven the  –  a  no te  fo r  tha t .  

 But  the  ev idence went  fu r ther  tha t  dur ing  

February,  I  am not  m is taken,  o f  2015,  Dene l  sent  a  team to 20 

Ind ia  to  ac tua l l y  exp lo re ,  s ince  now the  mat te r  has been 

reso lved,  to  t ry  exp lore  the  en t ry  and o f  course  a t  tha t  

t ime,  Mr  Sa loo jee  was in  charge and a t  tha t  t ime 

Mr  Ntshepe was the  head o f  Bus iness Deve lopment .  

 Of  course ,  na tura l l y,  as  Mr  Ntshepe as  the  Head 
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o f  Bus iness Deve lopment ,  he  wou ld  then be invo lved in  a l l  

the  bus iness ac t iv i t ies  because there  was a  company Ch ie f  

Market ing  Off i cer.   So he wou ld  be  the  one to  even survey 

a  market  and you know exp lore  the  market  and make 

recommendat ion  to  h is  Ch ie f  Execu t ive  Off i ce r.  

 H is  Ch ie f  Execut ive  Off i cer  wou ld  then d i scuss i t  

w i th  h im,  the  Execut ive  Team and i f  the  Execut ive  Team 

fee ls  tha t  the  mat te r  requ i res  the  board ’s  a t ten t ion  or  seek 

an approva l  in  way or  the  o ther,  then they wou ld  present  to  

the  board .  10 

 So in  th is  ins tance,  when we had tha t  meet ing  o f  

the  10 t h  o f  September  2015,  one o f  the  requests  by  the  

Execut ive  was they needed a  mandate  to  go  and exp lore  

the  poss ib i l i t y.   I  ind ica ted  p rev ious l y  tha t  a  reso lu t ion  to  

tha t  ex ten t  was g iven.  

 So the  board  then agreed to  say:   Look,  le t  us  go  

and exp lore  i t .   O f  course ,  there  was deta i led  in fo rmat ion  

f rom the  Execut ive .   They had wen t  there .   They gave us  a  

fu l l  b lown background o f  what  happened in  the  las t  25-

years  and a lso  a  c lea r  bus iness case wh ich  then sa id  to  us  20 

the  fas t  –  the  fas tes t  g rowing defence market  in  the  wor ld  

a t  tha t  t ime,  2015 ,  was an Ind ian  market  in  par t i cu la r.  

 So any ser ious  de fence company wou ld ,  you 

know,  want  to  t ry  to  ge t  in to  tha t  market .   So to  be  d i rec t  to  

the  quest ion .   Whether  tha t  was suggested by  Mr  Ntshepe 
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o r  was suggested  by  somebody e lse ,  as  a  board  we wou ld  

no t  know tha t  because what  comes to  the  board  is  the  

submiss ion  a l ready wh ich  has gone th rough the  i n te rna l  

p ro toco ls ,  gone  th rough the  board  commi t tees and i t  comes 

as  a  submiss ion ,  p resented e i ther  by  the  Ch ie f  Execut ive  

Off i cer  o r  by  the  CFO o r  by  any person tha t  the  Ch ie f  

Execut ive  Off i cer  wou ld  inv i te .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.   Wel l ,  I  must  jus t  say  Mr  Mantsha.   

Try  and jus t  g i ve  d i rec t  answers  to  some o f  these 

quest ions wh ich  are  qu i te  d i rec t  and s imp le  because on  10 

th is  answer  you cou ld  have sa id :   I  was not  aware  who  

brought  up  the  idea or  whatever.   So t ry  and do tha t .  

MR MANTSHA:    I  am indebted to  the  Cha i rman.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you Cha i r  and thank you 

Mr  Mantsha.   So. . .   Ja ,  the  quest i ons was.   D id  th is  idea 

or ig ina te  f rom Mr  Ntshepe been g iven to  Mr  Sa loo jee  or  the  

o ther  way a round?  You do not  know,  as  I  unders tand your  

ev idence who in i t ia ted  the  d iscuss ions about  the  jo in t  

venture  fo r  the  As ian  bus iness.  20 

MR MANTSHA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Bu t  i t  was  –  bu t  the  poss ib i l i t y  o f  

such a  venture  was ra i sed a t  your  very  f i rs t  board  meet ing  

on  the  10 t h  o f  September  2015?  

MR MANTSHA:    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]   
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    On the  10 t h  o f  September  2015,  the  

poss ib i l i t y  o f  a  venture ,  jo in t l y  w i th  VR Laser  fo r  the  As ian  

market ,  was ra i sed.  

MR MANTSHA:    Indeed Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Cor rec t .   And the  upshot  o f  tha t  was 

tha t  the  CEO was then mandated by  the  board  to  look  in to 

th is  poss ib le  venture  the reaf te r.  

MR MANTSHA:    Cor rec t  Cha i rperson.    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    A l r igh t .   And tha t  was one o f  the  

reso lu t ions taken  on the  10 t h  o f  September  2015.  10 

MR MANTSHA:    Cor rec t  Cha i rperson.    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   Now Mr  Sa loo jee  has sa id  tha t  

when Mr  Ntshepe  had in i t ia l l y  suggested to  h im tha t  Dene l  

shou ld  ge t  invo lved w i th  a  jo in t  venture  w i th  VR Laser  fo r  

the  As ian  market ,  Mr  Sa loo jee  was not  en thus ias t i c .   In  

fac t ,  he  was –  he  sa id  tha t  th is  was prob lemat ic  and in  any  

event  p rematu re .  

 I f  tha t  had to  be  exp lored,  i t  wou ld  under take –  

they wou ld  have to  under take ana lys i s  and research  and so  

fo r th  bu t  he  was not  en thus ias t i c  overa l l .   Aga in ,  20 

presumable ,  you  were  no t  aware  o f  d iscuss ions be tween  

Mr  Ntshepe and Mr  Sa loo jee  tha t  took p lace befo re  you  

s ta r ted  cha i r ing  the  board?  

MR MANTSHA:    Cor rec t  Cha i rperson.    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   But  what  Mr  Sa loo jee  has 
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tes t i f ied  to  i s  tha t  a t  the  meet ing  tha t  you d id  cha i r  on  the  

10 t h  o f  September  2015,  he  ind ica ted  tha t  i f  th is  was to  be  

exp lored a t  a l l  i t  wou ld  need a  great  dea l  o f  work  and 

research  and so  fo r th  and he conveyed tha t  he  fe l t  tha t  i t  

was not  a  par t i cu la r ly  p romis ing  or  pos i t i ve  pro jec t  tha t  

was be ing  p roposed.   Do you d i spu te  tha t?  

MR MANTSHA:    Wel l ,  I  do  no t  reca l l  Mr  Sa loo jee  mak ing  

those comments .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes because he was ve ry  spec i f i c  

about  tha t  in  h is  s ta tements  and you have responded to  h is  10 

s ta tements  in  your  own s ta tements  where  you pa r t i cu la r l y  

ra ised ind i v idua l  i tems o f  d isagreement  bu t  th is  was not  

one o f  them so I  wou ld  suggest  to  you tha t  p resumably  you  

d id  no t  ra ise  i t  in  you r  a f f idav i t  because you do not  reca l l  

such a  negat ive  a t t i tude f rom Mr  Sa loo jee  on  the  10  

September  2015.   I  hope you have been l i s ten ing  to  the 

quest ion  wh i le  you are  look ing  th rough the  f i le ,  Mr  

Mantsha?  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink  he  is  l i s ten ing  bu t  he  wan ts  some 

document  to  he lp  h im to  answer.  20 

MR MANTSHA:    I  am sor ry,  Cha i rperson.   I  am wi th  you.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes,  I  unders tand.   Am I  cor rec t  in  

what  I  say  to  you,  i s  the  reason why you have no t  sa id  in  

your  a f f idav i t  I  d i sagree w i th  Mr  Sa loo jee  tha t  he  was not  

par t i cu la r l y  pos i t i ve  about  the  As ian  pro jec t  when he sa id  
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tha t  in  s ta tement .   You d id  no t  say  you d isagreed w i th  h im 

in  your  a f f idav i t  because you cannot  reca l l  i s  he  sa id  tha t .   

I s  tha t  fa i r  fo r  me to  in fe r?  

MR MANTSHA:    Wel l ,  Cha i rperson,  on  my prev ious  

appearance I  ac tua l l y  in t imated about  the  ex t rac t  o f  the 

reso lu t ion  o f  the  10  September.   I  th ink  i t  i s  impor tan t  fo r  

me to  read in to  record  what  was  presented by  the  Group  

Ch ie f  Execut ive  Off i cer  a t  tha t  meet ing .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:    I t  says  the  Ch ie f  Execut ive  Off i cer  10 

…[ in tervenes]  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Sor ry  jus t  be fore  you get  to  tha t ,  jus t  

so  tha t  we can a l l  ident i f y  what  you are  read ing  f rom.   A re 

you read ing  f rom an ex t rac t  o f  the  m inutes  o f  the  board  

meet ing  on  the  10  September  wh ich  was sent  to  me du r ing  

the  course  o f  today I  th ink  by  your  a t to rney?  

MR MANTSHA:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Cha i r,  we w i l l  take  s teps to  have tha t  

in t roduced in to  the  bund le  in  due course .  

. . .do  you d ispute  tha t?  20 

MR MANTSHA:    Wel l ,  I  do  no t  reca l l  Mr  Sa loo jee  mak ing  

those comments .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes because he was ve ry  spec i f i c  

about  tha t  in  h is  s ta tements  and you have responded to  h is  

s ta tements  in  your  own s ta tements  where  you pa r t i cu la r l y  
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ra ised ind i v idua l  i tems o f  d isagreement  bu t  th is  was not  

one o f  them so I  wou ld  suggest  to  you tha t  p resumably  you  

d id  no t  ra ise  i t  in  you r  a f f idav i t  because you do not  reca l l  

such a  negat ive  a t t i tude f rom Mr  Sa loo jee  on  the  10  

September  2015.   I  hope you have been l i s ten ing  to  the 

quest ion  wh i le  you are  look ing  th rough the  f i le ,  Mr  

Mantsha.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   Yes,  car ry  on  Mr  Mantsha .  

MR MANTSHA:    Thank you.    10 

“The CE ind ica ted  tha t  the  comprehens ive  repor t  

submi t ted  to  the  board  was taken  as  read.   I t  was  

s t ruc tured spec i f i ca l l y  to  p rov ide  de ta i led  

in fo rmat ion  by  the  Group Ch ie f  Execut ive  Off i ce r,  

the  Group F inanc ia l  D i rec to r  and the  Ch ie f  

Opera t ing  Off i ce r.   In  a  g loba l  contex t  i t  i s  

impor tan t   to  no te  tha t  Dene l  has  recent ly,  fo r  the 

f i rs t  t ime,  been  ranked among  the  top  hundred  

defence compan ies  wor ldwide.   Compara t ive ly  

speak ing ,  South  A f r i ca  as  an  indust ry  has spend  20 

smal l  amount  and i t  i s  c r i t i ca l  fo r  Dene l  to  ob ta in  

o ther  ex te rna l  sources o f  revenue to  susta in  the  

indust ry  as  a  who le  and to  p rov ide  sovere ign  

capab i l i t ies .   Such in i t ia t i ve  wou ld  inc lude exp lor i ng  

oppor tun i t ies  in  South  Easte rn  As ia  reg ion .   Aga ins t  
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the  above background the  fo l low ing was 

recommended to  the  board  fo r  cons idera t ion  and 

approva l  to  g ive  the  execut ive  the  go-ahead to  

exp lore  the  poss ib i l i t y  o f  es tab l i sh ing  a  s t ronger  

foo tho ld  in  South  Eastern  –  East  As ian  reg ion  and  

in  te rms o f  ac t ion  the  recommendat ion  to  approve  

the  mandate  was  g iven to  the  execut ive ,  wou ld  be  

d iscussed a t  the  in -commi t tee . ”  

So,  Cha i rperson,  in  sho r t ,  th is  i s  what  the  Group Ch ie f  

Execut ive  Off i cer  p resented a t  the  board  meet ing  o f  the  10  10 

September  and tha t  pos i t ion  a t  the  t ime was occup ied  by  

Mr  Sa loo jee .   So I  am sure  i f  there  was any ind ica t ion  o f  

h im not  –  o f  h im be ing  hes i tan t ,  I  suppose maybe  those  

d iscuss ions took  p lace w i th in  h is  management  team and 

what  he  has presented to  the  board  is  a  pos i t ion  as  

approved by  h is  management  team and requested the  

board  to  g ive  them the  permiss ion  to  do  tha t  and o f  course  

there  was a  s t rong bus iness case  fo r  tha t .   So tha t  i s  the 

answer  to  my quest ion .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   When you say there  was a  s t rong  20 

bus iness case fo r  tha t ,  s t rong bus iness case fo r  what?   For  

the  proposed jo in t  venture  w i th  VR Laser  As ia?  

MR MANTSHA:    There  was a  s t rong bus iness p ropos i t ion .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   For  what?  

MR MANTSHA:    To  go  to  the  East  As ian  market .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    yes  bu t  my quest ion  was  spec i f i c  

about  the  proposed jo in t  venture  w i th  VR Laser  fo r  the  

As ian  market  and  Mr  Sa loo jee  has  g iven ev idence tha t  he  

was not  pos i t i ve  about  the  proposa l .   Can you  reca l l  

whethe r  he  ind i ca ted  he was pos i t i ve  or  negat ive  o r  neut ra l  

about  tha t  p roposa l  on  the  10  September  2015? 

MR MANTSHA:    Wel l ,  I  th ink  c lear ly  on  the  10  September  

2015 there  was no VR Laser  ment ioned because what  the 10 

execut ive  reques ted was to  exp lore  the  poss ib i l i t y.   So 

there  was no VR Laser  ment ioned in  tha t  meet ing .   So i f  Mr  

Sa loo jee  had reserva t ion  and he has expressed tha t  to  h is  

execut ive  team inc lud ing  Mr  Ntshepe,  we l l ,  such was not  

expressed in  tha t  board  meet ing .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   May I  jus t  ind ica te  what  you read out  

a  moment  ago f rom the  m inute  does not  cor respond w i th  

the  document  I  was sent  by  Mr  Denga ear l ie r  today.   I  am 

not  say ing  the  content  i s  comple te ly  cont rad i c to ry  bu t  the 

word ing  is  no t  the  same.   May we ask th rough your  lega l  20 

team you make ava i lab le  a  copy o f  the  document  tha t  you  

have jus t  re fe r red  a f te r  th is  hear ing  is  over?   Mr  Mantsha,  

i t  i s  a  s imp le  request ,  i t  i s  a  s imp le  request .  

MR MANTSHA:    Yes,  I  am wi th  you.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Wi l l  you  p lease get  your  l ega l  team to  
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p rov ide  us  w i th  a  copy o f  wh ich  you have jus t  read? 

ADV CILLIERS :    We wi l l  look  in to  the  mat te r,  Mr  Cha i r,  

and we w i l l  comply  w i th  the  reques t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  wanted to  check,  i t  may we l l  be  tha t  

the  s ta f f  m ight  be  ab le  to  make a  copy wh i le  we are  

cont inu ing .   Wi l l  tha t  be  poss ib le?   Ja ,  i t  w i l l  be  poss ib le  

so  i f  Mr  Mantsha is  ab le  to  make the  document  ava i lab le  to  

the  reg i s t ra r  then a  copy can be  made or  maybe  she is  

go ing  to  ge t  the  document  f rom somebody e l se .   But  they 

can make those a r rangements  wh i le  we p roceed.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:     Yes,  thank you,  I  w i l l  l eave tha t  to  

the  s ta f f  o f  the  Commiss ion  and our  lea rned f r iend,  I  am 

gra te fu l  fo r  h i s  in te rvent ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  do  no t  be l ieve  i t  w i l l  be  necessary  

fo r  me to  come back and cross-examine on i t .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  w i l l  l ead the  w i tness in  re la t ion  to  

the  two vers ions.   But ,  Mr  Mantsha,  where  you not  aware  a t  

some s tage –  maybe not  on  the  10  September  2015 but  20 

perhaps some la te r  s tage tha t  there  was in  fac t  a  

d i f fe rence o f  op in ion  be tween Mr  Sa loo jee  and Mr  N tshepe  

as  to  the  v iab i l i t y  and the  su i tab i l i t y  o f  a  p roposed jo in t  

venture  w i th  VR Laser?  

MR MANTSHA:    Cha i rperson,  I  have no knowledge o f  tha t .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   And were  you  ever  made aware  o f  the  

fac t  tha t  Mr  Sa loo jee  had a  conversa t ion  w i th  Mr  Tony 

Gupta  in  the  presence o f  Sa l im Essa where  he  was le f t  w i th  

the  impress ion  tha t  he  was not  coopera t ing  su f f i c ien t ly  w i th  

the i r  p roposa ls  fo r  bus iness dea ls  w i th  Dene l  inc lud ing  the  

VR Laser  dea l  fo r  As ia .   Were  you ever  made aware  o f  

tha t?  

MR MANTSHA:    I  am not  aware ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And were  you eve r  aware   -  made  

aware  tha t  Mr  Sa loo jee  accord ing  to  h is  ev idence was in  10 

fac t  a lmost  rep r imanded by  Mr  Tony Gupta  a t  tha t  meet ing  

a t  Mr  Gupta ’s  res idence in  Saxonwold ,  why do you not  take  

money l i ke  the  res t  o f  them are  tak ing  money?  Were  you  

ever  made aware  o f  tha t  a l legat ion  by  Mr  Sa loo jee  aga ins t  

Mr  Gupta?  

MR MANTSHA:    Not  a t  a l l .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay.   You see,  Mr  Sa loo jee  

suggests  in  h is  ev idence tha t  the  rea l  reason why he was 

suspended on the  23  September  2015 was tha t  you and 

those work ing  w i th  you were  t roub led  by  the  fac t  tha t  Mr  20 

Sa loo jee  was in  fac t  no t  keen about  the  As ian  dea l  w i th  VR 

Laser  a t  a l l  and  tha t  the  who le  re ference to  the  LSSA 

t ransact ion  was a  smokescreen.   That  essent ia l l y,  as  I  

unders tand i t ,  i s  rea l l y  the  th rus t  o f  h is  ev idence.  

MR MANTSHA:    I  comple te ly  d isagree w i th  tha t  ev idence,  
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Cha i rperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay,  thank  you.   Now I  wan t  to  jus t  

take  you th rough  a  br ie f  sequence o f  events ,  jus t  so  tha t  

we can put  the  fac tua l  contex t  be fore  the  Cha i rpe rson.   So 

we have a l ready dea l t  w i th  the  meet ing  o f  the  10  

September  and then we have a  l e t te r  f rom the  aud i t  and 

r i sk  commi t tee .   I  want  to  p lease ask  you,  do  you have a  

bund le  the re ,  I  may have to  ask  my learned jun io r  to  he lp  

you loca te  i t  bu t  there  shou ld  be  a  bund le  the re  marked 

W4B.  10 

MR MANTSHA:    Yes,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t ,  thank you.   Cha i rperson,  may I  

ask  your  learned reg i s t ra r  to  f ind  tha t  f i l e  fo r  you? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  they w i l l  f ind  i t  fo r  me.   Wha t  i s  the  

page number?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I t  i s  440.   Now in  th is  bund le  I  am not  

sure  because I  was not  invo lved in  the  team a t  tha t  s tage,  

here  they had a  d i f fe ren t  pag ing  sys tem,  here  the re  was a  

very  s imp le  sys tem on the  r igh t  hand s ide  o f  the  top  the  

page nu appears .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And Mr  Mantsha and Cha i r,  may I  ask  

you p lease to  tu rn  to  page RS440? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  page 440,  yes ,  tha t  was befo re  they 

came up w i th  the  b lack  numbers .    
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   The new sys tem,  mul t i -co loured.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Mr  Mantsha ,  may I  ask  you,  do  you  

have tha t  document  in  f ron t  o f  you? 

MR MANTSHA:    Indeed,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  am go ing  to  here  jus t  re fe r  to  the  

page number  by  the  ac tua l  number  no t  the  in i t i a ls  RS,  

okay?  So i f  you look a t  the  top  do  you see RS440,  

somebody has p r in ted  there .  

MR MANTSHA:    Yes,  I  can see.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Somebody has a l ready wr i t ten  there  

in  th ick  Kok i  pen  RS29.   You do not  need to  wor ry  about  

those numbers ,  okay?  Now 440 i s  a  le t te r  f rom the  aud i t  

and r i sk   commi t tee ,  i t  i s  Cha i rperson Mpho Omonghe(?)  I  

th ink  h is  name a t  page 444,  i t  i s  a  le t te r  da ted  22 

September  2015 addressed to  Mr  Sa loo jee .   Do you see  

tha t?  

MR MANTSHA:    Yes,  Cha i rperson,  I  can see.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   Now the  head ing  is  th is :  

“You a re  requested to  p rov ide  reasons why the  aud i t  20 

and r i sk  commi t tee  shou ld  no t  recommend to  the  

board  fo r  your  u rgent  suspens ion  and d isc ip l ina ry  

ac t ion  to  be  taken aga ins t  you rse l f .  

1 .  The aud i t  and r i sk  commi t tee  he ld  meet ings as  

mandated by  the  board  to  cons ider  what  
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t ransp i red  dur ing  the  board  meet ing  o f  the  10  

September  2015  where  in fo rmat ion  sur faced,  

amongst  th ings,  tha t  the  Ch ie f  Execut ive  Off i cer  

and the  Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  Of f i cer,  m is led  the  new 

board ,  the  Min i s te r  o f  Pub l i c  Enterp r ises  and  

Min is te r  o f  F inance and fu r ther  tha t  PFMA and  

Dene l  MOI  was cont ravened. ”   

Now were  you made aware  tha t  th i s  le t te r  had been  sent  to  

Mr  Sa loo jee ,  Mr  Mantsha?  

MR MANTSHA:    Yes.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t  and th is  appears  to  re la te  in  

parag raph 1  to  the  m is lead ing  re la t ing  to  the  LSSA 

t ransact ion ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?   I s  tha t  your  unders tand ing? 

MR MANTSHA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay,  thank you.   Now a  s im i la r  

le t te r  was sent  to  Mr  Mhlont lo ,  I  do  no t  need to  take  you to  

tha t  a t  th is  s tage but  a re  aware  tha t  a  s im i la r  le t te r  was 

sent  to  Mr  Mhlont lo?  

MR MANTSHA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And th is  ca l led  on  Sa loo jee  and  20 

Mhlont lo  to  g ive  reasons why the  aud i t  and r i sk  commi t tee 

shou ld  no t  recommend to  your  board  o f  wh ich  you were  the  

cha i r  the  fo l low ing day on  the  23  September  tha t  they 

shou ld  be  suspended and face d isc ip l inary  ac t ion .   I s  tha t  

your  unders tand ing  o f  what  they  were  they were  ca l led  
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upon to  do?  

MR MANTSHA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now they then g i ve  some reasons,  I  

am not  go ing  to  take  your  th rough the  de ta i l  o f  the  reasons  

but  may I  jus t  ind ica te  my unders tand ing  o f  the  le t te r  and  

jus t  see i f  we are  on  the  same page.   E f fec t i ve ly,  there  a re  

a l legat ions f rom the  aud i t  and r i sk  Cha i rpe rson tha t  Mr  

Sa loo jee  and l i kewise  Mr  Mhlont lo  m is led  the  board  on  a  

who le  lo t  o f  d i f fe ren t  aspects  wh ich  were  a f fec ted  by  

sect ions o f  the  PFMA,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  10 

MR MANTSHA:    Wel l ,  jus t  fo r  co r rec t ion ,  Cha i rpe rson,  i s  

the  le t te r  f rom the  Cha i rperson  o f  the  aud i t  and r i sk   

rep resent ing  the  aud i t  and r i sk  commi t tee.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:    The ins tances  c i ted  in  th is  le t te r  as  

grounds o f  m isconduct ,  o r  whatever,  they a l l  re la te  to  tha t  

t ransact ion  tha t  we a re  ta lk ing .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes,  I  thought  tha t  was my quest ion  

and I  am g lad  tha t  you have conf i rmed the  pos i t i ve  answer  

to  tha t  and in  fac t ,  fo r  example ,  in  paragraph 3  i t  re fe rs  to  20 

the  t ransact ion  be tween LSSA and Dene l  tha t  th is  

cont ravened the  fo l low ing lega l  ins t ruments  and then  

deta i l s  a re  se t  ou t  o f  the  sect ions o f  the  PFMA and the  way  

in  wh ich  i t  was a l leged tha t  Mr  Sa loo jee  and Mr  Mhlont lo  

had mis led  the  board  and had cont ravened var ious 



04 MARCH 2021 – DAY 355 
 

Page 270 of 361 
 

p rov is ions o f  the  PFMA.    

 I f  I  can  take  an example ,  page 442 ,  parag raph 8 :  

“You have cont ravened Sect ion  54(2 ) (c )  o f  the  

PFMA by fa i lu re ,  re fusa l /omi t ted  to  d isc lose  the  fu l l  

and mate r ia l  f inanc ia l  aspects  o f  the  acqu is i t ion  o f  

LSSA by Dene l  to  the  Min is te r  o f  F inance and  

Min is te r  o f  Pub l i c  Enterp r ises .   So th is  was one o f  

the  a l legat ions tha t  was made aga ins t  them by the  

aud i t  and r i sk  commi t tee ,  cor rec t?  

MR MANTSHA:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i rpe rson.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And am I  cor rec t  in  say ing  you took 

th is  in  account  when you dec ided the  fo l low ing day  on  the 

23  September  to  suspend Mr  Sa loo jee  and Mr  Mhlont lo?  

MR MANTSHA:    Indeed,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t .   Now the  –  then the re  is  an  

a l legat ion  fo r  example  in  paragraph 10 tha t  there  was 

fa i lu re  by  Sa loo jee  to  comply  w i th  cond i t ions  o f  approva l  

f rom the  Min i s te r  o f  Pub l ic  Enterpr ises .   The Min is te r  a t  

tha t  s tage was Malus i  G igaba,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR MANTSHA:    Fo r  co r rec t ion  sake,  Cha i rperson ,  i t  was 20 

Min is te r  Lynne Brown.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Sor ry,  jus t  say  tha t  aga in?  

MR MANTSHA:    I t  was Min is te r  Lynne Brown a t  the  t ime.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Lynne Brown,  a t  tha t  s tage was she  

a l ready in  o f f i ce?   Thank you.   So these a re  ser ious 
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a l legat ions,  you w i l l  agree w i th  me? 

MR MANTSHA:    I  agree,  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t .   Now i f  I  can  take  you to  the 

foo t  o f  page 443,  parag raph 18,  i t  says  th is> 

“The aud i t  and r i sk  commi t tee  in tend to  recommend 

to  the  board  tha t  you be suspended w i th  immedia te  

e f fec t  pend ing  fu r ther  invest iga t ion  in to  the  above  

and your  d isc ip l inary  hear ing  wh ich  sha l l  commence  

as  soon as  the  invest iga t ion  i s  comple ted ,  the  aud i t  

and r i sk  commi t tee  w i l l  fu r ther  recommend tha t  you 10 

be suspended w i th  pay and fu r the r,  tha t  your  per iod  

o f  suspens ion  shou ld  no t  exceed th ree  months . ”  

Then i t  says  paragraph 19.  

“You are  fu r ther  hereby not i f ied  tha t  you shou ld  

prov ide  the  aud i t  and r i sk  commi t tee  w i th  reasons  

why the  aud i t  and r i sk  commi t tee  shou ld  no t  

recommend to  the  board  fo r  your  suspens ion .   You 

reason shou ld  be  emai led  to  the  Cha i rperson o f  the  

aud i t  and r i sk  commi t tee  on  or  be fore  15h00 on the  

23  September  2015.   K ind ly  take  not ice  fu r ther  tha t  20 

you are  inv i ted  to  a t tend a  board  meet ing  schedu led  

fo r  17h00 the  23  September  2015 a t  the  group ’s  

head o f f i ce  where in  you a re  fu r ther  inv i ted  to  

p resent  your  reasons why the  aud i t  and r i sk  

commi t tee  shou ld  no t  ask  the  board  to  suspend  
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you. ”  

So you were  made aware  tha t  th is  communica t ion  was sent  

by  the  aud i t  and r i sk  commi t tee .  

MR MANTSHA:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   To  Sa loo jee  and a lso  to  Mhlont lo .    

MR MANTSHA:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   You were  no t  a  member  o f  the  

aud i t  and r i sk  commi t tee ,  I  th ink  you have ind i ca ted  in  your  

ev idence prev ious ly.   Your  were  no t  a  member  o f  the  aud i t  

and r i sk  commi t tee  yourse l f ,  no t  so? 10 

MR MANTSHA:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t .   Now i f  I  can  take  you to  page 

–  fo l low ing page  445,  th is  i s  a  le t te r  jo in t l y,  i f  we look a t  

page 448,  i t  was  sent  jo in t l y  by  Mr  Mhlont lo ,  Mr  Sa loo jee  

and Ms A f r i ka  and jus t  fo r  the  record ,  Ms A f r i ka  was sent  a 

s im i la r  le t te r  a l though i t  may no t  have dea l t  spec i f i ca l l y  

w i th  the  LSSA t ransact ion .   Were  you made aware  o f  th is  

le t te r  tha t  was in  fac t  addressed to  the  board  a t  the  top  o f  

page 445.   Do you see tha t?  

MR MANTSHA:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i rpe rson.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes and  presumably  you wou ld  

acqua in ted  yourse l f  w i th  th is  le t te r.   The bot tom l ine  o f  the  

le t te r  seems to  be  -  the  essence o f  what  they seem to  be 

say ing  in  the  le t te r  i s  tha t  the  procedure  tha t  i s  be ing  

fo l lowed is  comple te ly  un reasonab le  and unfa i r  to  them 
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because they expected to  dea l  w i th  a  complex  mat te r  by  

g iv ing  wr i t ten  rep resenta t ions w i th in  a  day wh ich  they say 

was unfa i r l y  sho r t .   Do you  reca l l  tha t  they made tha t  

compla in t  to  the  board?  

MR MANTSHA:    Ja ,  tha t  compla in t  was made,  

Cha i rperson,  and  i t  was d i smissed .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   In  fac t  in  paragraph 3  on  page 

445 they say:  

“We are  no t  in  a  pos i t ion  to  address the  A &  R  

commi t tee  o f  the  board  today. . . ”  10 

And one shou ld  no t ice  tha t  the  da te  o f  th is  le t te r  a t  the  top  

o f  445 is  the  23  September.  

“Th is  t runcated t imef rame is  g ross ly  un fa i r  and  

cont rary  to  co rpo ra te  governance. ”  

And then they g ive  reasons why they make tha t  compla in t .   

Now the  mat te r  was then ra i sed  when you convened as  

Cha i rperson,  the  board  meet ing  on  the  23 r d  i t se l f ,  i s  tha t  

r igh t?  

MR MANTSHA:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And d id  the  Cha i rperson o f  the  aud i t  20 

and r i sk  commi t tee  repor t  to  you tha t  th is  cor respondence 

had passed between h im on beha l f  o f  h is  commi t tee  and  

the  th ree  ind iv idua l  employees,  Sa loo jee ,  Mh lont lo  and 

A f r i ka .   

MR MANTSHA:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i rpe rson.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   And d id  he  repor t  tha t  the  on ly  

rep resenta t ions tha t  had been rece ived f rom those th ree  

ind iv idua ls  was the  le t te r  tha t  we have jus t  looked a t  

compla in ing  tha t  we do not  have enough t ime? 

MR MANTSHA:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   Now the  board  under  your  

Cha i rpersonsh ip  then p roceeded to  dea l  w i th  the  mat te r  

and dec ided then to  suspend them desp i te  the i r  p ro tes ts  

tha t  they have not  been g iven enough oppor tun i ty,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?  10 

MR MANTSHA:    We d ismissed the  p ro tes t ,  i t  was 

d is ingenuous,  the  mat te r  wh ich  the  board  or  the  aud i t  and  

r i sk  commi t tee  ra ised w i th  them is  the  mat te r  w i t h in  the i r  

knowledge,  they par t i c i pa ted  in  the  t ransact ion,  there  was  

noth ing  they d id  no t  know so the  board  d i smissed tha t  

because i t  was d is ingenuous on the i r  par t .   We d i smissed 

i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  tha t  what  the  board  thought  be fore  

they made the  dec is ion?  What  you have jus t  sa id ,  does i t  

re f lec t  the  board ’s  a t t i tude to  the i r  request  o r  the i r  p ro tes t .  20 

MR MANTSHA :    Wel l ,  Cha i rperson,  i f  I  can  jus t  g ive  a  

contex t  a  l i t t le  b i t .   There  was a  lo t  o f  med ia t ion  because  

f i rs t l y,  the  th ree  ind iv idua ls  had to  s i t  w i th  the  aud i t  and  

r i sk  commi t tee  to  t ry  to  f ind  a  way to  hand le  th is  mat te r  

p roper ly  and tha t  was not  resu l t ing  to  anyth ing  and the  
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aud i t  and r i sk  commi t tee  gave a  repor t  to  the  board  and 

gave the  fu l l  account  o f  what  happened.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   May I  s top  you fo r  a  moment  and I   

p lease beg your  pardon fo r  do ing  so .   I  jus t  want  to  make 

sure  I  am on the  same page as  you in  unders tand ing .   You 

say they submi t ted  a  repor t .   There  was a  wr i t ten  repor t ,  

was there  no t ,  a t  page 449.   I s  tha t  the  repor t  tha t  you 

have jus t  re fe r red  to?  

MR MANTSHA:    Indeed,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And a t  page 457,  i f  I  can  read in to  the  10 

record  the  conc lus ion ,  paragraph 7 ,  the  conc lus ion :  

“The aud i t  and r i sk  commi t tee  has cons idered the  

submiss ions made by  the  CFO and company 

secre tary.   In  l igh t  o f  the i r  submiss ions we are  o f  

the  v iew tha t  mat te rs  ra i sed in  the  le t te rs  wh ich  

were  g iven to  them a re  mat te rs  w i th in  the i r  

knowledge and  they are  in  possess ion  o f  a l l  

re levant  documents ,  there  i s  no  reason why they  

shou ld  no t  answer  by  today the  request  to  have the  

response to  the  30  September  in  unreasonab le  20 

under  the  c i r cumstances.   The commi t tee  

recommends tha t  the  execut ive  d i rec tors  shou ld  

tender  the i r  res ignat ion  w i th  immedia te  e f fec t  and  

be pa id  one month ,  namely  the  month  o f  October  

2015,  fo r  them to  res ign  w i th  immedia te  e f fec t . ”  
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Then i t  says :  

“The aud i t  and  r i sk  commi t tee  recommends the  

fo l low ing:  

7 .1  The two execut i ve  d i rec tors  be  suspended 

w i th  immedia te  e f fec t . ”  

E tce tera .   I s  th is  the  repor t  tha t  you were  re fer r i ng  to  tha t  

came before  you?  

MR MANTSHA:    Indeed,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And i t  was on  the  bas is ,  am I  r igh t  in  

unders tand ing  you ear l ie r,  you accepted the  v iew o f  the  10 

aud i t  and r i sk  commi t tee  tha t  the  request  fo r  a  week ’s  

de lay  fo r  them to  prepare  more  de ta i led  wr i t ten  

rep resenta t ion  was unreasonab le  in  the  c i r cumstances?  

MR MANTSHA:    Indeed,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t ,  now …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  hang on Mr  Kennedy,  he  was s t i l l  

answer ing  my quest ion .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  am sor ry,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You remember  what  my quest ion  or  have 

you fo rgo t ten  in  the  meant ime? 20 

MR MANTSHA:    I f  you  can remind  me,  Cha i rperson .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I f  you  have fo rgo t ten ,  Mr  Kennedy is  

respons ib le .   You  have fo rgo t ten?  

MR MANTSHA:    Indeed,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .   You had to ld  me tha t  the 
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boa rd  d i smissed the i r  p ro tes ta t ion  tha t  they needed more 

t ime because the  board  because you thought  tha t  they  

knew exact ly,  as  I  unders tood wha t  you say and what  you  

sa id  and you must  te l l  me i f  I  m isunders tood,  they knew 

exact ly  what  they  had done,  you know?  And there fore  the  

board  d i smissed the i r  p ro tes ta t ion  or  p ro tes t .   So then my 

quest ion  was whether  when you sa id  tha t ,  you were  

re f lec t ing  the  v iew o f  the  board ,  so  i t  was not  jus t  you who 

thought  l i ke  tha t  bu t  the  board  who was  exact ly  tha t ,  tha t  i s  

what  I  asked.  10 

MR MANTSHA:    Cha i rperson,  thank you,  i t  was board .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Yes,  Mr  Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank  you,  I  apo log ise  fo r  

d is t rac t ing ,  I  do  apo log ise ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no ,  tha t  i s  a l r igh t .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now –  i f  I  m igh t  jus t  have a  moment  

to  f ind  a  re ference?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Le t  me ask  th is  quest ion  wh i le  Mr  

Kennedy is  look ing  a t  th is  documents .   Accord ing  to  the 

memo or  no te  or  le t te r  tha t  the  th ree  execut ives  wro te  to  20 

the  board  on  23 September  2015,  wh ich  is  a t  page 445,  we 

looked a t  i t  a  few minutes  ago,  they say they were  g iven  

about  24  hours  o r  so  no t ice  to  make representa t ions why  

they shou ld  no t  be  suspended.   I s  tha t  more  o r  less  cor rec t  

in  te rms o f  how much t ime they were  g iven?  
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MR MANTSHA:    Wel l ,  Cha i rperson,  I  wou ld  no t  rea l l y  

reca l l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:    The t ime pe r iod .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:    Because i t  was i t  was the  mat te r  wh ich  

was be ing  hand led  by  the  aud i t  and r i sk  commi t tee .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:    So  I  wou ld  no t  [ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  

vo i ce ]  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   But  as  I  unders tand i t ,  they  were  

asked to  make  representa t ions  and i f  I  unders tand  

cor rec t l y,  they  were  asked to  make those representa t ions 

the  fo l low ing day,  so  maybe 24 hours  i s  no t  o f f  the  mark .   

I s  your  unders tand ing  the  same tha t  when they were  asked  

to  p rov ide  reasons why they shou ld  no t  be  suspended they 

were  expected to  p rov ide  the i r  reasons the  fo l low ing day or  

i s  your  unders tand ing  d i f fe ren t  o r  you cannot  remember?  

MR MANTSHA:    Wel l ,  Cha i rperson,  I  rea l l y  cannot  

remember  because I  was not  hand l ing  tha t  mat te r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MANTSHA:    Bu t  what  I  can say to  the  Cha i rpe rson is  

tha t  there  were  d iscuss ions be tween the  members  o f  the  

aud i t  commi t tee  and the  execut ive  invest iga t ing  the  

t ransact ion  and fo rg i ve  me,  Cha i rperson,  to  repeat  myse l f  
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aga in ,  i t  was a  mat te r  o f  a  na t iona l  c r i s i s  and as  I  sa id 

ear l ie r,  the  board  had no t ime.   When I  s i t  here  today,  in  

fac t  I  th ink  the  cor rec t  dec is ion  shou ld  have been  to  f i re  

them a t  the  spot ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    You th ink  the re  was enough ev idence to  

f i re  them on the  spot?  

MR MANTSHA:    More  than enough,  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Okay,  a l r igh t .   Mr  Kennedy?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Now o f  course  we  

know tha t  Mr  Sa loo jee  la te r  cha l lenged the  c i rcumstances  10 

o f  h is  te rm inat ion  o f  employment  and took i t  to  the  CCMA 

but  tha t  d ispute  was reso lved so  there  is  no  l i ve  d ispute  in  

any fo rum as to  whethe r  o r  no t  he  was fa i r l y  t rea ted ,  e i ther  

in  re la t ion  to  suspens ion  or  the  te rm inat ion  o f  h is  

employment .  

MR MANTSHA:     Cor rec t  s i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And we w i l l  ge t  to  these se t t lements  

o f  tha t  a  l i t t le  la te r,  bu t  o f  course  what  i s  re levant  fo r  th is  

Commiss ion ’s  pu rposes is  no t  so  much the  mer i t s  o f  a  

labour  d ispute  wh ich  was reso lved,  bu t  what  was  rea l l y  20 

go ing  on w i th in  the  m inds o f  yourse l f  and your  co l leagues  

a t  the  leve l  o f  the  Board  i n  how Mr  Sa loo jee  and h is  

co l leagues were  t rea ted  and tha t  i s  why,  I  am jus t  t ry ing  to  

exp la in  to  you why I  am go ing  in to  th is  in  a  l i t t le  de ta i l .  

MR MANTSHA:     I  apprec ia te  Cha i rperson.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    And as  I  unders tand i t  f rom your  

remark  a  moment  ago to  the  Cha i rperson th is  was a  mat te r  

o f  na t iona l  c r i s i s  wh ich  requ i red  immedia te  ac t ion  to  be 

taken.  

MR MANTSHA:   Indeed s i r.     

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Wou ld  tha t  exp la in  why you d idn ’ t  

fee l  tha t  the i r  request  fo r  a  week to  pu t  in  the i r  

rep resenta t ions by  the  30 t h  o f  September  why you  fe l t  no 

tha t  wou ld  be  too  long,  we need to  dea l  w i th  th is  

immedia te ly,  am I  unders tand ing  your  . . . [ in te rvenes ]   10 

MR MANTSHA:     Cor rec t  s i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    F ine  thank  you ve ry  much.    Now i f  

we look a l so  a t  the  same repor t  f rom the  Aud i t  &  R isk  

Commi t tee  tha t  you have based  your  dec i s ion  on ,  page 

456,  paragraph 6  says 6 .1 :  

“The Aud i t  &  R isk  Commi t tee  is  o f  the  op in ion  tha t  

the  t rus t  re la t ionsh ip  be tween the  board  and the  two  

execut ive  d i rec to rs  i s  i r re t r ievab ly  b roken down. ”  

I f  I  can  jus t  s top  fo r  a  moment ,  p resumably  am I  r igh t  in  

unders tand ing  the i r  re fe rence to  the  two execut ive  20 

d i rec tors  re fe r  to  Mr  Sa loo jee  and  Mr  Mhlont lo ,  they were  

bo th  execut ive  d i rec tors  a t  the  t ime.  

MR MANTSHA:     Cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Ms A f r i ca  wasn ’ t  a  d i rec tor,  she was  

a  d i f fe ren t  ro le  p layer  as  Company  Secre tary.  
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MR MANTSHA:     Indeed Cha i rperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  so  the  Aud i t  &  R isk  Commi t tee  

are  say ing  tha t  the  t rus t  re la t ionsh ip  i s  i r re t r ievab ly  b roken 

down and then they g ive  reasons  why among o the r  th ings  

so  then they g i ve  a  l i s t  o f  reasons wh ich  inc lude fo r  

example  tha t  the re  were  breaches  o f  the  PFMA in  re la t ion  

to  the  LSSA t ransact ion  and tha t  they had mis led  the  board  

as  we l l  as  the  m in is te rs  concerned .  

MR MANTSHA:     Cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And you presumably  cons idered th is  10 

when you dec ided on the i r  suspens ion?  

MR MANTSHA:     Cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  now Mr  Mantsha can you –  do  

you have any comment  on  the  fac t  tha t  the  Aud i t  &  R isk  

Commi t tee  tha t  were  mot iva t ing  fo r  the  recommended  

suspens ion  and the  bas i s  why tha t  suspens ion  had been 

done,  do  you have any v iew on the  fac t  tha t  be fore  any o f  

these th ree  employees had ac tua l l y  been heard  by  way o f  

e i ther  wr i t ten  or  o ra l  representa t ions your  Aud i t  &  R isk  

Commi t tee  was  a l ready say ing  to  you as  Board  20 

Cha i rperson we  be l ieve  tha t  the  t rus t  re la t ionsh ip  has  

broken down.   Do you th ink  i t  was appropr ia te  fo r  them to 

have sa id  tha t?  

MR MANTSHA:   I t  was indeed on  the  fac ts  be fore  them i t  

was cor rec t  Cha i rperson.      
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    I t  was co r rec t ,  and in  fac t  you have 

ind ica ted  ear l ie r  tha t  you fe l t  tha t  there  was enough  

ev idence r igh t  then and there  on  the  23 r d  o f  Sep tember,  

more  than enough ev idence as  you put  i t ,  to  f i re  them on 

the  spot .  

MR MANTSHA:    Cor rec t .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And are  you a l so  w i l l i ng  to  accept  

tha t  our  Labour  Law is  a  l i t t le  more  compl ica ted  and  

invo lved than tha t  bu t  i t  i s  no t  up  to  an  employer  whethe r  

the  –  a  sen io r  person l i ke  yourse l f  as  Cha i rperson  o f  the  10 

Board  or  anyone  e lse ,  to  take  a  dec is ion  to  f i re  on  the  

spot ,  you need to  g ive ,  you need to  have a  hear ing  no t  so?  

MR MANTSHA:     Cha i rperson tha t  i s  p rec i se l y  why there  

was tha t  k ind  o f  a  p rocess,  I  suppose Cha i rperson wou ld  

know tha t  the  f ie ld  o f  law . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  most  o f  us .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  now I  wou ld  l i ke  i n  the  same 

bund le  p lease to  go  to  page 460 and we have what  appears  

to  be  the  f i rs t  o f  a  long ser ies  o f  cor respondence,  I  am 

on ly  go ing  to  touch on a  coup le  o f  examples  o f  th is ,  page  

460,  do  you have  i t?  20 

MR MANTSHA:     Cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And tha t  is  a  le t te r  f rom Ms Zar ina  

Wale le  who prac t ices  as  an  a t to rney,  spec ia l i s i ng  in  labour  

law,  and th is  le t te r  was sent  on  beha l f  o f  Mr  Sa loo jee  as  

we l l  as  the  o thers ,  Nk lon t lo  and A f r i ca ,  and i t  cha l lenged  
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the  suspens ion  end ing  the  d isc ip l inary  ac t ion ,  and she 

compla ined in  th is  le t te r,  i t  was ac tua l l y  addressed to  you,  

tha t  there  was not  a  fa i r  and reasonab le  oppor tun i ty  to  be  

heard  be fore  the  dec is ion  was taken to  suspend h im.   You 

reca l l  rece iv ing  th is  le t te r?   

MR MANTSHA:     Yes,  we d id  rece ive  i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And presumably  you don ’ t  ag ree tha t  

i t  was unfa i r,  you fe l t  in  the  c i rcumstances i t  was fa i r  

because i t  was a  na t iona l  c r i s i s .  

MR MANTSHA:     I t  was fa i r.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  o f  course  I  wou ld  expect  you to  

concede tha t  i t  cou ldn ’ t  be  fa i r  fo r  the  Aud i t  &  R isk  

Commi t tee  to  have made  up  i t s  m ind tha t  the  t rus t  

re la t ionsh ip  had broken down even before  they cou ld  hear  

what  the  execut ives ,  the  employees,  had to  say,  because I  

unders tood you a  few minutes  ago  to  accept  tha t  the  Aud i t  

&  R isk  Commi t tee  had reached tha t  po in t  about  the  t rus t  

re la t ionsh ip  even before  the  execut ives  cou ld  show 

reasons.  20 

MR MANTSHA:     Wel l  Cha i rpe rson here  we are  dea l ing  

w i th  a  fac tua l  s i tua t ion ,  documents ,  there  were  p rev ious  

engagement  be tween the  Execut ive  and the  members  o f  

the  Aud i t  Commi t tee .   As  I  sa id  the  Execut ive  appeared not  

to  take  the  members  o f  the  Aud i t  Commi t tee  in  con f idence  
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and Cha i rperson t rus t  i s  earned and what  we see here  on  

the  ve ry  f i r s t  week,  on  the  very  f i rs t  board  meet ing  o f  my  

Board  and a t  the  very  f i rs t  meet ing  o f  the  Aud i8 t  & R isk  

Commi t tee  w i th  the  Execut ive  p repar ing  fo r  the  Board  

Meet ing  there  are  i ssues l i ke  th i s  and the  Execut ive  were  

no t  coming fo r th  and tak ing  the  Aud i t  &  R isk  Commi t tee  in  

conf idence.  

 The t rus t  re la t ionsh ip  was never  earned.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  quest ion  is  we do know tha t  the  

execut ives  were  g iven an oppor tun i ty  to  e f fec t i ve l y  show 10 

cause why they shou ld  no t  be  suspended,  to  g ive  reasons.   

That  i s  an  oppor tun i ty  to  be  heard ,  okay.   

 Now what  i s  the  po in t  o f  do ing  tha t  i f  you  mean i t ,  

how can you mean tha t  oppor tun i ty  genu ine ly  i f  you  have  

a l ready dec ided the  t rus t  re la t ionsh ip  i s  f in ished? 

MR MANTSHA:     Wi th  respect  Cha i rperson the  Aud i t  &  

R isk  Commi t tee  was not  a  dec is ion  maker,  i t  was a  

recommending en t i t y.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:   A sub-commi t tee  o f  the  Board .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:     The dec is ion  was o f  the  Board  and the  

Board  a lone.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:    I t  const i tu ted  as  a  Board .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:    So  they r igh t ly  fe l t  tha t  the  t rus t  

re la t ionsh ip  has been broken.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR MANTSHA:   And I  say  be fore  you Cha i rperson the  

c i rcumstances,  the  ev idence was  overwhe lm ing tha t  tha t  

t rus t  re la t ionsh ip  was broken.    

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR MANTSHA:   I  don ’ t  see anyth ing  wrong fo r  the  Aud i t  &  

R isk  Commi t tee  to  have even fo rmed tha t  op in ion  be fore  10 

the  two execut ives  had made the  presenta t ion ,  because as  

I  ind ica ted  ear l ie r  th is  t ransact ion  is  the  t ransact ion  wh ich  

they pres ided in ,  they knew every  s ing le  te rm,  eve ry  s ing le 

fu l l  s top ,  comma o f  th is  t ransact ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR MANTSHA:   There  was noth ing  tha t  s topped them in  

the  very  same manner  to  say look th is  i s  what  we have  

done,  a re  you accus ing  us  o f  no t  te l l ing  the  Min i s te r  o f  

Pub l ic  Ente rpr i se  tha t  the  te rm sheet  f rom f i ve  years  has  

changed to  s ix  months ,  no ,  no ,  no  th is  i s  the  le t te r  tha t  we 20 

have sent  to  the  Depar tment ,  th is  i s  our  engagement  w i th  

the  Nat iona l  Treasury,  there  was noth ing  to  s top  them to  do 

tha t .   I t  was a  fac tua l  s i tua t ion  based on documents .  

CHAIRPERSON:    The Board  cons is ted  o f  about  how many  

peop le ,  i f  you  are  ab le  to  remember.  
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MR MANTSHA:   Chai rperson I  can ’ t  remember.  

CHAIRPERSON:    About  ten / twe lve ,  o r  i s  tha t  too  much? 

MR MANTSHA:    I  th ink  around ten  or  so ,  bu t  fo rg ive  me i f  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no  tha t  i s  f ine ,  I  won ’ t  ho ld  you to  i t ,  

I  jus t  wanted an es t imate  and wou ld  you have reco l lec t ion  

o f  how many peop le  the  Aud i t  &  R isk  Commi t tee  cons is ted  

o f?  

MR MANTSHA:    The members  o f?  

CHAIRPERSON:    O f  the  Aud i t  and R isk  Commi t tee ,  wou ld  10 

tha t  have been th ree  peop le ,  four  peop le ,  f i ve  peop le?  

MR MANTSHA:   I f  I  am not  m is taken Cha i rperson  I  th ink  

there  were  four  members  o f  the  Commi t tee .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .    Wou ld  they  have fo rmed par t  

o f  the  Board  la te r  on  when the  Board  made the  dec i s ion  on  

th is  i ssue or  wou ld  they have recused themse lves,  do  you 

know?  

MR MANTSHA:   Wel l  they were  par t  o f  the  Board  when the  

Board  is  fu l l y  const i tu ted .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.   So I  guess you and I  can 20 

agree tha t  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  they wou ld  have made  up the i r  

m ind on tha t ,  on  the  issue o f  the  t rus t  re la t ionsh ip  be ing  

broken down tha t  par t  o f  the  Board ,  even i f  the i r  

rep resenta t ions came they had made up the i r  m inds ,  those  

were  ou t  o f  the  commi t tee .  
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MR MANTSHA:    Wel l  they  have made up the i r  m ind and  

they made a  recommendat ion  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  no  tha t ’s  f ine ,  tha t ’s  f ine .    Mr  

Kennedy?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you .   Mr  Mantsha we have  

heard  a l ready tha t  the  th ree  employees and la te r  the i r  

a t to rney,  Ms Wale le ,  had compla ined a t  var ious t imes,  bo th  

be fore  and a f te r  the  board  meet ing  o f  the  23 r d  o f  

September  2015 ,  about  the  process tha t  was  be ing  

fo l lowed.   I s  i t  no t  co r rec t  tha t  in  add i t ion  to  those  10 

compla in t s  one o f  your  Board  Members ,  Ms Mang ind i ,  in  

fac t  expressed concerns about  the  process tha t  was be ing  

fo l lowed.   You reca l l  tha t  she ra i sed such concerns  a t  your  

board  meet ing?  

MR MANTSHA:   I  don ’ t  remember,  and I  th ink  she ac tua l l y  

–  I  am sub jec t  to  cor rec t ion  Cha i rperson,  I  th ink  she le f t  

the  meet ing  ea r ly.     

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:    Be fore  the  Board  d i scuss ions  

commenced,  tha t  i s  my reco l lec t ion  Cha i rpe rson.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    In  fac t  she has g iven ev idence and i f  

I  can  ask  you p lease to  tu rn  to  a  le t te r  tha t  you sent  you.   

I f  you  cou ld  look  p lease a t  Bund le  1 ,  Dene l  01 ,  i f  you  can 

jus t  pu t  the  o the r  bund le  as ide  now.    

MR MANTSHA:    Bund le  1?  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    Bund le  1  yes .   Dene l  Bund le  01 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Kennedy can we take a  shor t  b reak 

wh i le  Mr  Mantsha  is  look ing ,  ten  m inutes  th i s  t ime.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   We ad journ .  

REGISTRAR:   Al l  r i se .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay let  us cont inue.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Chai r  Mr Mantsha was about to show 10 

you before the adjournment  was taken a document f rom Ms 

Mandindi  and Chair  I  understand you should have the bundle 

now p laced before you by your Registrar.   I t  is in Bundle 1 

and i t  is… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes I  have got  i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I t  starts at  page 12.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes I  have got  i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Unfortunately for  some reason the – the 

logist ics people d id not  br ing that  bundle for the wi tness so 

my learned junior has made her  bundle avai lable to the 20 

wi tness i f  that  is in order.  

CHAIRPERSON:   A lr ight .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   This is  a let ter  Mr Mantsha dated the 

25t h of  September two and a bi t  pages of  a let ter f rom Ms 

Mandindi .   She was a member of  your board correct? 
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MR MANTSHA:   Indeed Chairperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   One of  the non-execut ive members of  

the board.  

MR MANTSHA:   Indeed Chairperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And you recal l  that  she sent  you this 

let ter? 

MR MANTSHA:   I  do not  necessari ly have the recol lect ion 

but  probably she did send i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   You cannot dispute i t?  

MR MANTSHA:   No,  no.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   You just  cannot recal l .  

MR MANTSHA:   No,  no,  no I  cannot dispute.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay thank you.   And I  am not  going to 

take you through the detai l  of  the let ter but  in essence she 

indicates a number of  concerns and misgiv ings about the 

process that  was fol lowed leading to the suspension of  the 

three senior employees and she says for example at  the foot  

of  page 13 r ight  the fourth last  l ine.  

“Final ly Chai r  I  do understand that  i t  may be 

necessary to change the execut ive di rectors.   20 

What I  am chal lenging is the manner in which 

these th ings get  done.   Is i t  possible to par t  

in amicable ways leaving the dign i ty,  

reputat ion of  those part ies etcetera. ”  

So she is making – making i t  c lear that  she is not  saying that  
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there may not  prove to be a good reason to remove them 

eventual ly  but  she complains in the rest  of  the let ter  as to 

the speed with which i t  took place not  s imply f rom the point  

of  v iew of  the employees but  even for her as an execut ive – 

sorry a non-execut ive board member.  She says for example 

at  the beginning page 12 she refers to  the fact  that  th is was 

not  on the agenda – had not  been g iven any documents,  had 

not  been given any opportuni ty beforehand to consider th is.  

And then later in  her  let ter she says wel l  are we in  a posi t ion 

as newly appointed members of  the board including yoursel f  10 

who was newly appointed to rea l ly be able to form an 

impression as to whether these ind ividuals that  we have not  

even had a chance to get  to know properly should now be 

removed so suddenly.   That  is the sort  of  complaint  that  she 

made.  Do you recal l  at  least  that  sort  of  concern being 

ra ised by her? 

MR MANTSHA:   Wel l  Chairperson that  is what is raised in  

the let ter.   Can I  just  say a l i t t le bi t  wi th – wi th respect  to – 

to Ms Mandindi .   I  must  say Chairperson that  she cont r ibuted 

a lot  to the board and even when she lef t  the board because 20 

she was being appointed somewhere else we actual ly  fe l t  her 

absence.   But  i f  you look at  the f i rst  l ine of  her let ter of  

course she said I  had lef t  the meet ing ear ly so she of  course 

did not  get  the benef i t  of  a l l  the discussion that  happened in  

the board meet ing.   
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 So as Chairperson you wel l  aware that  in a board 

operates on democrat ic pr inciples the major i ty members of  

the board take a decision and i t  becomes the decision of  the 

board.   Unfortunately Ms Mandindi  was not  there to actual ly 

ra ise the issues which she has raised in th is let ter.  

 I  th ink post  th is  si tuat ion because we worked very 

closely.   I  th ink apart  f rom the le t ter I  th ink we probably 

discussed this between mysel f  and her but  wi th  – wi th 

respect  to her she – she made a very good cont r ibut ion to 

the board.   Unfortunately the major i ty members of  the board 10 

who remained that  day took a decision and convinced and I  

am st i l l  convinced i t  was a correct  decision.   Thank you 

Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right  thank you Mr Mantsha.   In fact  

she gave evidence oral ly in which she told the Chai rperson 

that  she had in fact  part ic ipated in some of  the discussions 

not  al l  she had to leave – she had a – had a commitment and 

there was a delay as a resul t  of  a l l  of  th is.   But  she said that  

she d id t ry to raise issues such as the points that  th is is  

rushed and that  she as a brand new member of  the board 20 

l ike the other members of  the board would not  be in a 

posi t ion to take such a – a sudden decision to suspend both 

the CEO and CFO as wel l  as the Company Secretary there 

and then but  she indicated that  she did not  feel  that  she was 

taken ser iously.   That  her advice was actual ly going to be 
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fo l lowed and of  course we know ul t imately i t  was not  

fo l lowed.  Correct? 

MR MANTSHA:   Chai rperson the decision of  the major i ty 

was taken.  The – as I  said the issues raised in  th is i t  would 

have been appropriate i f  she had remained but  unfortunately  

she could not  remain – to have raised al l  these issues wi th 

other members of  the board.   So I  respect  a l l  she says here 

but  as you know Chairperson there are rules and procedure 

and processes how decisions are arr ived at .   And decision in  

these instances they bind every member of  the col lect ive as 10 

a resolut ion.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes I  do not  th ink that  Ms Mandindi  was 

suggest ing that  th is was not  a binding resolut ion because i t  

was taken by a major i ty of  the board.   She accepted that  but  

what she t r ied to  explain to the Chairperson i f  I  recal l  her 

evidence correct ly is that  she fe l t  very uncomfortable about 

the fai rness of  the process and the fact  that  ul t imate ly i t  d id  

– the major i ty did go against  her  – her wishes but  she 

accepted that  i t  was a major i ty decision.   As you si t  here 

now of ten wi th the benef i t  of  h indsight  and a lot  of  t ime 20 

having gone by and having set t led and so forth do you feel  

now in retrospect  that  – that  Mr Saloojee and Mr Mhlont lo  

and Ms Afr ica’s  process was unfai r  and unduly hasty or you 

sat isf ied that  i t  was done correct ly? 

MR MANTSHA:   I  am sat isf ied under the ci rcumstances i t  
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was done correct ly.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   I t  was part  of  Saloojee and 

Mhlont lo ’s evidences be that  th is process was in fact  rushed.   

I t  was much too fast .   I t  was not  fa i r  and in  fact  they say that  

i t  is  consistent  wi th thei r  version that  they were actual ly  

being k icked out  of  the company through a sham of  a  

process – through a sham of  a charge relat ing to LSSA and 

that  you was simply going through some –some mot ions and 

even when you were advised by one of  your col leagues on 

the board do not  move that  fast  you just  steamed rol led 10 

ahead and so Mr Saloojee and Mr Mhlont lo have suggested 

that  wel l  th is bears the – thei r  point  that  th is was just  a rush 

process wi th a hidden agenda.  Any comment on that? 

MR MANTSHA:   Wel l  – wel l  Chai rperson as also 

corroborated by the evidence given by the act ing Chief  

Execut ive of  Denel  as we speak.   These was ser ious 

violat ions and the reports  which I  looked through the 

evidence of  the current  chair  concurred that  these were 

ser ious misconducts.   These were ser ious violat ions and i f  I  

can t ry to quote not  verbat im he said they are actual ly  20 

processing whatever  form of  act ion to t ry to see whatever 

they can recover as a resul t  of  th is .   So – so this was not  by 

any chance a smoke screen to t ry to get  these people out  of  

the company.   They were deal ing wi th th is t ransact ion as 

ear ly as 2014.  They knew everything.   As I  said ear l ier they 
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were advised by Nedbank according to my informat ion that  

you are highly in debt  you cannot afford these pr ices.   

Please ask the sovereign to put  money for these th ings.   

That  is why both ABSA and Nedbank were not  wi l l ing to 

f inance this  t ransact ion to  an extent  where ABSA demanded 

securi ty of  R400 000.00 and Nedbank when they real ised 

they were not  being given securi ty  then they conver ted the 

loan for s ix months or less per iod.   So you can imagine i f  

your bankers are taking that  posi t ion.   So i t  says to you that  

you have misrepresented to them.  So this was a ser ious 10 

act ion – there was no rush.   The very same execut ive knew 

that  at  that  stage col lect ively the debt  to ABSA and Nedbank 

i t  was close to R8 bi l l ion.   In fact  R4 mi l l ion and a l l  the debts 

col lect ively was around R8 bi l l ion.   And they knew very wel l  

the condi t ions given by the Nat ional  Treasury that  we had to 

get  out  of  the guarantee.   So al l  I  am saying to  you is  

anyone who wi l l  suggest  that  taking act ion as we did was 

premature,  was a smoke screen that  is absolutely 

unfounded, not  t rue.   I t  is not  based on the facts.  The case 

against  them is c lear ly set  out  in the paper,  is c lear ly what 20 

the evidence before this commission there were reports 

which Denel  commented about  i t  wi th f indings in relat ion to 

th is t ransact ion.   I t  was not  a smoke screen.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   A l r ight  thank you.   Now can we take 

you please now to page 378 in  bundle – back to – you can 
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put  away the Bundle 1 that  I  have just  taken you to and can 

we go back to Bundle W4(B)?   

MR MANTSHA:   Thank you Chairperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You ta lk about  going back to  Bundle 

W4(B)? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   B yes B for Barry.   I t  is the one where 

we had the RS numbers on the top r ight  hand corner.   And 

Chair  i f  you have that  bundle may I  refer the wi tness to the 

page? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I t  is RS378.  Do you have that  Mr 

Mantsha? 

CHAIRPERSON:   You may keep your microphone on at  al l  

t imes Mr Mantsha.    

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Sorry Mr Mantsha did she ask you to 

put  the … 

MR MANTSHA:   I  do have Chairperson thank you.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right  thank you.   So at  378.   Chai r  may 

I  just  conf i rm you have the r ight  bundle and page.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes I  have got  that .   Ja.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   378 is the let ter on the Denel  

let terhead dated the 14t h of  December 2015 addressed to Mr 

Saloojeee.   Is that  what you have in f ront  of  you? 

MR MANTSHA:   Indeed Chairperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I f  I  can take you to the end of  that 
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let ter  page 383 i t  is s igned with your signature and name as 

Chairperson of  the Denel  board,  is that  r ight? 

MR MANTSHA:   Correct  Chairperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   So i f  one reads the let ter i tsel f  i t  is 

headed Misconduct  in terms of  Sect ion 51(1)E.   This is in 

fact  a charge sheet  and a not ice to at tend a discipl inary 

hearing.   We see that  in paragraph 1.   Correct? 

MR MANTSHA:   Correct  Chairperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And then i t  says:  Gravon – Gravamen 

of  the al legat ions.   And then you – then you say:   I t  is  10 

contended that  you have missed – that  you have commit ted 

gross misconduct  and then you set  out  some instances of  

that .   You were grossly negl igent  and or fa i led to comply wi th  

your statutory and or contractual  ob l igat ions.  

214 you fa i led to  conduct  yoursel f  in a manner which Denel  

expected of  an employee that  occupies the posi t ion of  CEO. 

221 I t  is contended that  you did not  meet the appl icable 

compl iance requi rements for the LSSA acquisi t ion including 

the PFMA requi rements and Denel  Supply Chain 

Management Pol ic ies.  20 

So here you were start ing to  explain what the charges were.   

This was a formal charge sheet  that  you issued as board 

Chairperson.   Correct? 

MR MANTSHA:   Correct  Chairperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And would I  be correct  in understanding 
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that  the nature of  these al legat ions is very ser ious in your  

view? 

MR MANTSHA:   Correct  Chairperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And then paragraph 3 sets out  a  further 

charge that  goes beyond just  negl igence i t  says;  gross 

dishonesty al ternat ive ly gross negl igence al ternat ive ly 

misrepresentat ion further al ternat ively fa i lure to comply wi th  

Sect ion of  the PFMA 00:15:22.   Now you then set  out  detai ls 

of  that  in a fo l lowing few pages,  correct? 

MR MANTSHA:   Correct  Chairperson.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   For example on page 380 paragraph 

314 in  that  you have fa i led to disclose to  the board and the 

shareholders the possible – sorry the potent ia l  impl icat ions 

of  matur i ty of  the Nedbank loan on the 20t h of  September 

2015.   This was a mater ia l  omission in d isclosure.   And then 

on page 281 paragraph 318 another example.   You have 

mislead Nedbank and ABSA by refusing that  they conduct  

due di l igence on the f inancial  posi t ion of  LSSA as a 

standalone business etcetera.  

MR MANTSHA:   Correct .  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   So there is – there are al legat ions al l  of  

them seemingly very ser ious and they include not  just  

negl igence al though negl igence is part  of  i t  but  also 

del iberate act ion,  misleading,  misrepresent ing th ings both to  

you as the board and to bankers in part icular Nedbank.  
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MR MANTSHA:   Correct  Chairperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .   And a lso elsewhere there is – 

there are al legat ions that  there were misrepresentat ions to  

the var ious Ministers involved.  

MR MANTSHA:   Correct  Chairperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And there had to be – there had to be 

submissions to the Ministers for compl iance wi th the PFMA 

because this involved a f inancial  t ransact ion involving 

overseas funding etcetera,  correct? 

MR MANTSHA:   Correct  Chairperson.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Again i t  seems qui te clear f rom this Mr 

Mantsha that  you viewed these al legat ions in a very ser ious 

l ight .  

MR MANTSHA:   Correct  Chairperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .   And then on the last  page of  the 

let ter  383 you refer  to – in fact  382 you refer to the – the 

r ights that  Mr Saloojee would have in the discipl inary 

hearing.   This is paragraph 4 for the page 382 to 383 and 

paragraph 5 that  th is – that  representat ions could be made 

through by himsel f  or through h is legal  representat ives 20 

etcetera.  

MR MANTSHA:   Correct  Chairperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .   So here i t  was c lear that  you 

were going to fo l low the process for a discipl inary hearing 

la id down in labour law and in the discip l inary proceedings 
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code of  Denel ,  correct? 

MR MANTSHA:   Correct  Chairperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .   What happened then when you 

were issuing this  to your point  ear l ier that  you actual ly 

bel ieved on the 23r d  of  September 2015 before they had 

even made representat ions but  there was more and -   more 

than enough evidence al ready to f i re them on the spot .  

MR MANTSHA:   You wi l l  repeat  yoursel f?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes certainly.   I  am just  repeat ing in  

quest ion what you gave as ev idence to the learned 10 

Chairperson ear l ier.   On the 23r d  of  September 2015 you 

test i f ied that  when you decided to suspend these employees 

you in fact  bel ieved that  there was more than enough 

evidence to f i re them on the spot .  

MR MANTSHA:   Correct  Chairperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And yet  we have here three months 

later you are sending them a charge sheet  for the – for the 

holding of  a d iscipl inary process.    Presumably you did not  

f i re them on the spot  in – on the 23r d of  September 2015 you 

were persuaded that  i t  has to go through the process of  a 20 

discipl inary hearing.  

MR MANTSHA:   Correct  Chairperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   With a l l  of  these r ights know what the 

charges are,  have legal  representat ion,  be able to ask 

quest ion of  wi tnesses etcetera,  etcetera.  
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MR MANTSHA:   Correct  Chairperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .   Why d id i t  take three months – 

almost  three months f rom the decision to suspend them and 

to – and to br ing disc ipl inary charges against  them as the 

Audi t  and Risk Commit tee had recommended in thei r  

memorandum to you that  we have looked at  – why did i t  take 

almost  three months to actual ly get  to the stage to issue a 

charge sheet  and to g ive not ice of  a  discipl inary hearing? 

MR MANTSHA:   Chairperson as I  indicated on my ear l ier  

evidence the f i rs t  t ime I  came here the – the board was 10 

overwhelmed with  the quest ion of  gross defaul t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Of  what sorry? 

MR MANTSHA:   Of  gross defaul t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:   In case we do not  serv ice the laws.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry – I  am sorry I  th ink I  am – I  a lso 

missed that  word.   Was overwhelmed with? 

MR MANTSHA:   With the possib i l i ty that  there wi l l  be a 

gross defaul t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh.  20 

MR MANTSHA:   Across the state owned companies.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay.  

MR MANTSHA:   In the event  Denel .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:   Cannot pay Nedbank the br idging f inance or 
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f ind sui table arrangements.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MANTSHA:   So what then happened the Audi t  and Risk 

Commit tee they were – they were very busy wi th  meet ing 

Nedbank together  wi th the execut ive to t ry to f ind a sui tab le 

arrangement.   I t  was – i t  was very di ff icul t  and – and those 

negot iat ions consumed the – the at tent ion of  the board.   As 

you know Chairperson the – these processes are run at  

administ rat ive level .   The disc ipl inary processes are run at  

administ rat ive level .   There was an act ing Company 10 

Secretary to process al l  of  th is  and I  th ink they appointed 

lawyers to represent  the company in th is process.   The 

reason why i t  took the t ime as Mr Kennedy has indicted the 

at tent ion of  the board was consumed with the issue relat ing 

to the impl icat ion of  gross defaul t .   And we paid less 

at tent ion to th is because af ter the decision was taken i t  was 

up to  the execut ive – the relevant  people in the legal 

department of  the company to process th is process.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Can I  take you now please to  page 389 

which is another let ter that  you sent .  This t ime i t  is  dated 20 

17t h of  December 2015.  So this is in fact  a day pr ior to your 

signing the let ter to Mr Saloojee wi th the charge sheet  

because you signed that  on the 18t h of  December.   This 

let ter is addressed to Ms Legwabe I  th ink i t  is who was then 

the act ing Company Secretary,  correct? 
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MR MANTSHA:   Correct  Chairperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And you ask her in paragraph 1 to 

furnish you wi th the draf t  charge sheet  so that  we can set t le  

i t  as we need to have the charges served upon the 

suspended employees before close of  business tomorrow the 

18t h of  December 2015.  Am I  r ight  in assuming that  she then 

sent  you the f ina l ised charge sheet  who – which you then 

f inal ised and signed and issued on the 18t h.  

MR MANTSHA:   Correct  Chairperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Then the next  requested in paragraph 10 

2.    

“We further request  you to instruct  our lawyers to  draf t  a  

set t lement proposal  of  three months’ payment in fu l l  and 

f inal  to the three suspended employees.”  

Now is that  correct  – did you ask her to do that? 

MR MANTSHA:    I t  is correct  Chai rperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And in fact  we have in the docket  – in 

the bundle of  documents var ious le t ters relat ing to proposed 

set t lements – set t lement offers that  were made and rejected 

by di fferent  part ies,  counter proposals and the l ike.    20 

MR MANTSHA:   Correct  Chairperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   What had happened to your bel ief  on 

the 23r d of  September 2015 that  th is – you had more than 

enough evidence to f i re them on the spot  and yet  you leave 

three months to go by before you even start  issuing them the 
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charge sheet  – you have t r ied to explain that  a moment ago.    

But  now you also say let  us give them a ful l  and f inal  

set t lement offer to pay – pay them off  for three months.   I  

mean surely these were very ser ious issues.   You have said 

that  yoursel f .  

MR MANTSHA:   Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And I  understand your evidence 

completely you are accusing Mr Saloojee and Mr Mhlont lo  

and 00:24:06 and to an extent  Ms Afr ica of  ext remely gross 

and ser ious misconduct  fa ls i fy ing things,  mis leading the 10 

board,  v io lat ing the PFMA, misleading the Ministers to get  

approval .   Why did you not  just  have the courage of  the 

st rength of  your – your case against  them?  Why pay them 

off?  

MR MANTSHA:   Wel l  what  is  – what is c lear here 

Chairperson is there is – you can clear ly see that  these 

proceedings have moved 00:24:41.   And at  that  stage… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Sorry you can c lear ly see what? 

MR MANTSHA:   Wel l  the posi t ion when the set t lement 

proposals were made as captured by this lady.   I  th ink wi th 20 

the experience of  the Chairperson that  I  am sure Mr Kennedy 

as wel l  in th is f ie ld of  f low you – you obviously t ry  to take 

the bet ter devi l .   We were faced wi th a si tuat ion here where 

clear ly these proceedings – these discipl inary proceedings 

give an at t i tude of  the employees were going to be 
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prolonged.  And on the other hand we talk ing wi th the 

bankers to say look let  us have this kind of  arrangement.   

And as you know the – the people you are deal ing wi th in  

business are very sensi t ive as what author i ty do you have.   

So i t  was always in the interest  of  the board to  have a 

speedy resolut ion of  th is matter.   So as we were preparing to  

go to the discipl inary hearing at  the same t ime we were also 

ready to t ry to get  th is matter off  the way so that  we are able 

to cont inue to negot iate wi th the bankers,  cont inue to  

negot iate wi th the investors wi th a team that  the bankers and 10 

the investors know that  whatever decision they reach wi th  

them they wi l l  be there tomorrow and no one is going to 

come tomorrow in a foreseeable future to then change the 

decision and start  a l l  over f rom zero.   So i t  was always in the 

interest  of  the company,  interest  of  the business of  the 

company to always have the door  to set t le for the bigger 

interest  of  the company.   So that  is why there is th is 

paragraph in th is let ter.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Mr Mantsha I  understand your evidence 

but  let  me – let  me put  to  you a possible di ff icul ty  that  one 20 

can have wi th i t .   A discipl inary inquiry  was a process that  

could and should be handled by an independent chairperson,  

no so? 

MR MANTSHA:   Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I t  could not  be handled by you – you 
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would not  be chai r ing the inqui ry.  

MR MANTSHA:   Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Fi rst ly because i t  is not  what the 

Chairperson of  the board should do.  

MR MANTSHA:   Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Correct .   Secondly you had already 

formulated a view on the 23r d of  September 2015 that  they 

should be f i red on the spot  there is more than enough 

evidence.    

MR MANTSHA:   Correct .  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   And the intent ion was never to 

hold the d iscip l inary inqui ry chai red by you or  any other  

member of  the board.  

MR MANTSHA:   Correct .  

MR MANTSHA:   Not  so.   So why would the need for the 

board to be involved in negot iat ing wi th the bankers to t ry 

and solve the f inancial  s i tuat ion mean that  the discipl inary 

process would be delayed.  

MR MANTSHA:   I  th ink the point  I  am making clear ly 

Chairperson is al ready the at t i tude of  the employees was to 20 

prolong this matter  as much as possible.   And the company 

was not  in a posi t ion to get  drawn in  a prolonged l i t igat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No that  – hang on Mr Mantsha.   You just  

to ld me that  the reason why i t  took three months before you 

moved was because the board was busy wi th whatever  other 
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matters.   You did not  say i t  was because the execut ives,  the 

employees were the ones who were delay ing.  

MR MANTSHA:   I  th ink Chai rperson can I  just  t ry to  correct  

the… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MANTSHA:   The understanding of  the Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:   I  th ink what I  am responding to Chai rperson 

here is the second paragraph of  the let ter which Mr Kennedy 

just  read which say let  us prepare a set t lement for three 10 

months as wel l .   This is the let ter at  the same t ime asking 

that  please f inal ise the charge for a  discipl inary hearing.   So 

what I  am trying to explain I  am t rying to explain the basis of  

th is paragraph that  th is paragraph the intent ion to put  th is  

paragraph was – there was always desi re f rom the board to  

short  c i rcui t  the pro longed discipl inary process for the bigger  

interest  of  the company.   So my explanat ion is conf ined to 

this paragraph number 2 on this.    

CHAIRPERSON:   But  you – you accept  do you not  that  up to 

that  point  the employees themselves had not  done anything 20 

to unduly delay the convening of  the discipl inary inquiry.  

MR MANTSHA:    You obv ious ly  look  a t  the  –  what  i s  be ing 

contes ted .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry,  I  am ta lk ing  about  September  

when they were  suspended and mid-December  when you  
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wro te  tha t  le t te r.   I  am ta lk ing  about  jus t  tha t  t ime not  

a f te r.  

MR MANTSHA:    Wel l ,  Cha i rperson,  a l ready Mr  Kennedy 

read a  le t te r  f rom the  lega l  rep resenta t i ve  o f  these 

employees wh ich  a l ready ra ised issues and you can  c lear l y  

see tha t  there  are  number  o f  i ssues be ing  contended.   So 

the  process wou ld  be  p ro longed because the re  is  d ispute  

on  a  number  o f  i ssues.   So i t  was in fo rmed by  those  

cons idera t ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  o ther  than the  fac t  tha t  they  ra ised  10 

cer ta in  i ssues,  had not  done anyth ing  to  undu ly  de lay  the  

cont inu ing  o f  th is  then inqu i ry  a t  tha t  t ime.   I s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR MANTSHA:    Wel l ,  a t  tha t  t ime they d id  no t  do  anyth ing  

to  de lay  the  proceed ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR MANTSHA:    There  is  no th ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MANTSHA:    Because the  proceed ings were  be ing  

cont ro l led  a t  the  leve l  o f  the  lega l  depar tment  o f  the 

company.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r igh t .   Mr  Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you.   In  fac t ,  the  lega l  

depar tment  to  the  company a t  one s tage invo lved C l i f fe  

Dekker  Hofmeyr,  CDH,  a  reputab le  f i rm o f  a t to rneys w i th  

sk i l l s  in  labour  law to  hand le  the  d isc ip l ina ry  process,  no t  
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so?  

MR MANTSHA:    I  th ink  those were  the  lawyers  appo in ted   

They were  adv is ing  the  company.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:    So  they were  work ing  w i th  the  lega l  

depar tment  o f  the  company.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  indeed.   And as  we w i l l  see  a  

l i t t le  la te r,  there  was a  cha i rperson who was nominated,  an  

independent  cha i rpe rson,  Advocate  Nazeer  Cas im  SC to  

cha i r  the  inqu i ry.   A re  you aware  o f  tha t?  10 

MR MANTSHA:    Yes,  I  th ink  the  repor t  was g iven,  yes ,  

Cha i rperson.    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    See those o f  us  who prac t ise  in  

labour  law know tha t  f requent ly  i t  happens tha t  ma jor  

corpo ra t ions inc lud ing  s ta te  corpora t ions somet imes have  

the  need where  there  are  very  ser ious a l legat ions tha t  may  

resu l t  in  a  b reakdown o f  t rus t ,  have a  need to  convene a  

speedy d i sc ip l ina ry  process.  20 

 And they br ing  in  a t to rneys l i ke  CDH to  manage 

the  process because o f  the i r  know ledge o f  labour  l aw and 

the i r  exper ience o f  many s im i la r  mat te rs  such as  th is .  

MR MANTSHA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And to  b r ie f  independent  counse l ,  in  
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th is  case Advocate  Cas im SC to  cha i r  the  process.   And we 

in  labour  law know tha t  these processes,  i f  management  

wants  i t ,  can  happen very  qu ick ly.  

MR MANTSHA:    I t  i s  poss ib le  bu t  i t  i s  a lso  does not  

depend on ly  on  the  management .   As  you know,  i t  i s  a  

d ispute  s i tua t ion .   I t  can  be p ro longed by  one par ty  o r  t he  

o the r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  accept  tha t  some par t i es  may 

pro long i t  bu t  in  th is  case you conf i rmed to  the  Learned 

Cha i rperson tha t  there  is  no  ev idence tha t  these  10 

Execut ives  de layed the  process up  to  your  rece iv ing  o f  the 

charge sheet  on  the  18 t h  o f  December.  

MR MANTSHA:    Wel l ,  Cha i rperson,  w i th  the  knowledge 

tha t  I  have s ince  the  mat te r  was dea l t  w i th  the  lega l  

depar tment  o f  the  company,  w i th  the  l im i ted  knowledge tha t  

I  have f rom the  outs ide ,  I  do  no t  know anyth ing  bu t  maybe 

there  was d i scuss ions be tween  the  lawyers  s ince  the 

company appo in ted  C l i f fe  Dekker  and the  employees  

appo in ted  the  lawyer  tha t  you have  read.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  20 

MR MANTSHA:    I  have –  I  am not  p r ivy  to  the  d iscuss ion ,  

what  were  the  issues ra i sed between the  two lawyers  and 

what  were  the  issues between the  company ’s  lega l  

depar tment  and the  company lawyers  a t  the  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Good.   But  wou ld  i t  no t  be  cor rec t  tha t  
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CDH wou ld  have  in fo rmed you as  the  cha i rperson o f  the  

board  i f  there  was –  they be l ieve  tha t  the  employees were  

de lay ing  the  process a t  tha t  s tage?  D id  they take  not  

ins t ruc t ions f rom you as  the  cha i rperson o f  the  board?  

MR MANTSHA:    No,  w i th  respec t  Cha i rpe rson,  the  lega l  

depar tment  o f  the  company dea ls  w i th  ex terna l  lawyers .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:    So  even the  appo in ted  o f  the  lawyers  to  

hand le  th is ,  i t  was never  a  board  issue.   We d id  no t  know 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.  

MR MANTSHA:    . . .who are  the  lawyers .   So the  company  

in  te rms o f  the i r  da tabase or  whatever,  they p ick  the  lawyer  

fo r  a  par t i cu la r  case.   So they p i ck  them.   We knew la te r  

tha t  these were  the  lawyers .   So the  lawyers  were  no t  

repor t ing  to  the  board .   They were  repor t ing  to  the  lega l  

depar tment .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  the  lega l  depar tment ,  d id  they no t  

take  i ns t ruc t ions ,  so  to  speak,  f rom the  board  and  

cha i rperson in  te rms o f  dec i s ion?  In  o ther  words,  was the  20 

board  no t  the  c l ien t  o f  the  lega l  depar tment  in  a  cer ta in  

sense?  In  o ther  words,  the  lega l  depar tment  cou ld  no t  jus t  

make dec i s ions about  what  to  do .   They needed to  consu l t  

the  board  to  say g ive  us  ins t ruc t ions,  as  i t  were .    

MR MANTSHA:    Ja ,  we l l ,  Cha i rperson. . .  my in te rvent ion  in  
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th is  regard .   I  sen t  the  le t te r  request ing  th i s .   Of  course ,  I  

rea l i sed t ime was go ing  on and we were  no t  ge t t ing  

anyth ing .   But  in  te rms o f  the  repor t ing  processes,  the  

lega l  depar tment  repor ts  to  the  Ch ie f  Execut ive  Off i ce r.    

So they do  not  repor t  to  e i ther  the  cha i rperson o f  the  board  

or  the  Company Secre tary  o f  the  board .  

 So under  the  c i r cumstances,  I  then rea l i sed the  

process is  ge t t ing  pro longed.   So  I  sent  the  le t te rs . . .   And 

a t  the  same t ime,  I  then ind ica ted  tha t  we a re  no t  ready to  

o f fe r  these because no rmal l y  when  you go to  a  d isc ip l inary  10 

hear ing ,  you have got  to  f lex ib le  i n  te rms o f  –  i f  the  pa r t ies  

want  to  ta lk  se t t lement .   How much can you go?   

 So th is  was in  a  way o f  t ry ing  to  g ive  them the  

mandate  and i t  was done in  consu l ta t ion  w i th  o ther  board  

members .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   Mr  Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you Cha i r.   I  am go ing  to  dea l  

la te r  w i th  whethe r  you had a  d i scre t ion  to  se t t le  the  mat te r  

such as  th is  i f  there  were  some ser ious charges but  le t  us  

leave tha t  fo r  a  debate  fo r  a  l i t t le  b i t  la te r.   May  I  jus t  20 

comple te  the  re fe rence to  th is  le t te r?    

 I t  says  in  paragraph 3 :  

“The le t te r  fo r  se t t lement  must  be  de l i vered 

tomorrow togethe r  w i th  the  charge sheet  and 

fu r ther  w i th  a  le t te r  in fo rm ing the  suspens ion  
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i s  ex tended un t i l  the  f ina l i sa t ion  o f  the 

hear ing . . . ”  

 And as  fa r  as  you are  aware ,  tha t  was done.   I s  

tha t  r igh t?   The charge sheet  was sent  on  the  18 t h .   You,  in  

fac t ,  s igned i t  on  tha t  day.   Tha t  went  w i th  a  se t t lement  

le t te r,  p roposa l ,  fo r  th ree  months .    

 And i t  a lso  wen t  w i th  a  no t i f i ca t ion  tha t  the i r  

suspens ion  had a l ready s ta r ted  on  the  23 r d  o f  September  

2015,  wou ld  now be ex tended unt i l  the  f ina l i sa t ion  o f  the 

d isc ip l ina ry  hear ing .   Cor rec t?  10 

MR MANTSHA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   Now i f  we re fe rence in  the  

ev idence and I  am go ing  to  come in  a  moment  to  pa rag raph  

4 .   You made re ference to  a  Dentons repor t  and may I  jus t  

read to  you –  rem ind you what  you sa id?    

 You fu r ther  requested –  th is  i s  to  the  ac t ing  

Company Secre ta ry. . .  

“You fu r ther  requested to  in fo rm Dentons tha t  

the i r  repor t  i s  no t  accepted and request  them 

to  prov ide  us  w i th  a  repor t  w i th in  30-days and  20 

k ind l y  d i rec t  them to  prov ide  in fo rmat ion  to  

suppor t  the  charges. . . ”  

 Now who a t  Dentons?  The i r  f i rm o f  

invest iga to rs?  

MR MANTSHA:    No,  the i r  f i rm o f  a t to rneys.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    A t to rneys?  

MR MANTSHA:    The i r  repor t ,  yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And they were  ins t ruc ted  to  p repare  

a  repor t  to  do  an  invest iga t ion  in to  the  issues,  a l legat ions  

concern ing  the  LSSA t ransact ion .  

MR MANTSHA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR MANTSHA:    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And they  prepared the i r  repor t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

MR MANTSHA:    The . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    . . . submi t ted .  

MR MANTSHA:    They prepared a  pre l im inary  repor t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   And tha t  was then submi t ted  to  

you.  

MR MANTSHA:    Yes,  i t  was submi t ted .   I t  served before  

the  board .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   And  is  th is  the  repor t  tha t  you  

re fer  to  in  parag raph 4?  

MR MANTSHA:    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]   20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    “The Company Secre ta ry  must  in fo rm  

Dentons the i r  repor t  i s  no t  accepted and 

request  them to  prov ide  us  w i th  a  repor t  

w i th in  3 -days and k ind ly  d i rec t  them to 

prov ide  in fo rmat ion  to  suppor t  the  charges. ”  
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 I s  tha t  the  repor t  tha t  you are  re fer r ing  to ,  the 

Dentons repor t?  

MR MANTSHA:    Indeed.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    P resumable  the  one tha t  came 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MANTSHA:    Indeed Cha i rpe rson  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    . . .be fore  you.   Now o ther  w i tnesses 

have re fer red  to  the  Dentons repor t  inc lud ing  Mr  Sa loo jee .   

And what  i s  be ing  suggested is  tha t  Dentons had been 

appo in ted  as  ou ts ide  a t to rneys.    10 

 I  th ink  there  i s  a lso  re fe rence in  the  papers  to  

them be ing  br ie fed  to  ac t  together  w i th ,  I  th ink  i t  was  

Ernest  &  Young,  the  aud i to rs  invest iga t ing  f i rm,  to  

invest iga te  th i s .    

 They produced a  repor t  tha t  you re fer  to  here  bu t  

i t  was not  to  your  l i k ing .   And you sa id :    We are  no t  go ing  

to  accept  you r  repor t .   Say ing  tha t :   We want  someth ing  

tha t  ac tua l l y  suppor ts  the  charges.  

MR MANTSHA:    I  d isagree Cha i rperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Bu t  i t  i s  no t  exact ly  what  you are  20 

say ing  in  your  le t te r?  

MR MANTSHA:    The repor t  tha t  served before  the  board 

was ve ry  sha l low and to  be  honest ,  the  board  was not  

conv inced w i th ,  you know,  the  e f fo r ts  made in  tha t  repor t .   

So i t  was not  whether  i t  sa id  th ings tha t  we wanted or  no t  
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wanted.   I t  was jus t  ho l low.   I t  was empty.    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Bu t  your  ins t ruc t ion  to  the  Company 

Secre tary,  she was go ing  to  have to  convey th is  ins t ruc t ion  

f rom you to  Dentons,  co r rec t?   That  i s  what  you are  ask ing  

her  to  do .  

MR MANTSHA:    Yes,  co r rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  your  ins t ruc t ion  tha t  she must  

fo l low to  g ive  the  ins t ruc t ion  to  Dentons wou ld  be :   We do 

not  accept  you r  repor t .   We prov ide  –  we wan t  you to  

p rov ide  us  w i th  another  repor t  w i th in  30-days and th is  t ime 10 

you must  t ime,  you must  p rov ide  in fo rmat ion  to  suppor t  the  

charges.  

MR MANTSHA:    Wel l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I t  says  so .   Le t  me jus t  f in ish  the  

quest ion .  

MR MANTSHA:    Oh,  so r ry.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  tha t  I  can put  i t  to  you.   I t  

suggests  tha t  your  p rob lem was not  tha t  i t  was jus t  

sha l low.   I t  suggest  tha t  i t  d id  no t  meet  one ob jec t i ve  on  

your  s ide  wh ich  was:   We need the  b i rd .   We need the  20 

ev idence to  suppor t  the  charges,  come what  may.   And they 

have not  g iven us  ser ious ev idence tha t  w i l l  make these  

charges s t i ck .    

MR MANTSHA:    I t  i s  abso lu te l y  incor rec t .   As  I  have 

a l ready ind ica ted  in  the  ev idence.   As the  charge sheet  i s  
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se t  ou t ,  as  the  repor t  f rom the  Aud i t  Commi t tee  is  se t ,  the 

ev idence was there .   In  fac t ,  Cha i rpe rson,  you have heard  

o f  the  Dentons repor t  by  the  cur ren t  ac t ing  Ch ie f  Execut ive  

o f  Sad ik .   That  repor t ,  even tua l l y,  was conc luded 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    P lease jus t  rem ind me because you are  

ment ion ing  fo r  the  second t ime –  you are  re fe r r ing  to  the  

cur ren t  ac t ing  Ch ie f  Execut ive  Dene l  fo r  the  second t ime.   I  

have no reco l lec t ion  o f  who tha t  i s .   What  i s  h is  o r  her  

name?  10 

MR MANTSHA:    Sad ik .   Mr  Sad ik .   Ta l ib .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay,  okay.    

MR MANTSHA:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Now I  remember.   Okay a l r igh t .   I  am 

sor ry,  I  in te r rup ted  you wh i le  you were  g iv ing  your  answer.   

P lease cont inue.  

MR MANTSHA:    Wel l ,  in  fac t ,  he  to ld  the  Cha i rperson tha t  

tha t  repor t  was comple ted  and the  f ind ings o f  Dentons,  I  

th ink  they were  read before  the  Commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    They may . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

MR MANTSHA:    What  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  i s  jus t  tha t  I  cannot  remember  now.  

MR MANTSHA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MANTSHA:    Yes.   I  th ink  Mr  Kennedy read them in to  
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the  record .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR MANTSHA:    So  what  I  am ind ica t ing  here  Cha i rperson.   

The repor t  d id  no t  dea l  w i th  the  te rms o f  re fe rence tha t  we  

have g i ven to  them.   I f  you  see what  Mr  Kennedy has read 

in  the  record  when Mr  Ta l ib  Sad ik  was tes t i f y ing ,  those 

were  the  issues wh ich  we wanted them to  look a t  i t .    

 Why the  Dentons repor t?   I t  was impor tan t  

because as  the  Aud i t  and R isk  Commi t tee  was engag ing  

the  bankers ,  there  were  issues tha t  there  was a  re fusa l  to  10 

do  a  due d i l igence repor t  on  the  LSSA as a  company.   

 Cha i r,  you have  heard  ev idence  tha t  says the  

va lue  o f  855 was obv ious ly  exaggera ted .   So there  were  a l l  

those so r ts  o f  i ssues where  we expected them to  engage 

more  ex tens i ve l y  on  those issues  and present  the  repor t .   

So th is  i s  what  I  am t ry ing  to  exp la in  he re .    

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  I  guess what  Mr  Kennedy i s  ra i s ing  

w i th  you,  inc ludes the  quest ion :   Why wou ld  you have to  

say to  the  ac t ing  Company Secre ta ry  tha t  he  or  she,  I  th ink  

i t  was a  she,  shou ld  d i rec t  Dentons to  p rov ide  in fo rmat ion  20 

to  suppor t  the  charges?   

 In  o ther  words,  a t  leas t  tha t  i s  what  I  assume,  

tha t  the  –  what  was expec ted o f  Dentons when 

invest iga t ing ,  was tha t  they wou ld  invest iga te  and come up 

w i th ,  whethe r  i t  i s  f ind ings,  recommendat ions,  to  say,  yes ,  
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th is  cha rge is  suppor ted  by  ev idence,  th is  one  is  no t  

suppor ted  by  ev idence or  a l l  a re  suppor ted  by  ev idence o r  

none o f  them o f  them a re  suppor ted  by  ev idence.  

 They are  supposed to  know the i r  job .   Why d i rec t  

the  ac t ing  Company Secre tary  to  say:   Te l l  them to  prov ide  

in fo rmat ion  suppor t ing  the  charges?  I  th ink  tha t  i s  par t  o f  

what  Mr  Kennedy  is  ask ing .  

 The i r  a t to rneys who jus t  to ld  us  tha t  they must  

taken to  know the i r  job .   Why te l l  them what  to  g ive  you?   

MR MANTSHA:    Wi th  respect  Cha i rperson.   The charges 10 

as  ind ica ted  f rom the  R isk  and Aud i t  repor t  was se rved on 

the  board  on  the  23 r d .   The de l ibera t ion  o f  the  board ,  the  

suspens ion  le t te rs  and the  charge sheet .   

 So the  charges were  c lear l y  fo rmula ted .   What  

th is  le t te r  was supposed to  mean.   There  were  o the r  

per iphera l  i ssues  wh ich  Dentons repor t  was supposed to  

g ive  us ,  no t  what  we a l ready know,  because you know you 

have to  ge t  va lue  fo r  money.   

 We a l ready knew tha t  the  te rms sheet  has been 

changed f rom f i ve  years  to  s i x  months .   There  was no 20 

min is te r i a l  approva l .   So a l l  those  fac ts  we knew but  there  

were  o ther  i ssues  wh ich  requ i red  in -depth  invest iga t ion .    

 The appo in tment  o f  Nedbank as  the  t ransact ion  

adv isor  fo r  the  equ i ty  par tne r.   So there  were  a l l  

assoc ia ted  issues re la t ing  to  the  LSSA t ransact ion .   And 
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these were  the  issues we wanted  them to  invest iga te ,  no t  

to  te l l  us  i ssues tha t  we a l ready know.  

CHAIRPERSON:    A re  you say ing  tha t  the  mandate  g ive  to  

Dentons was not  to  invest iga te  ob jec t i ve ly,  whether  there  

was ev idence any one or  more  o f  the  charges because the  

board  a l ready knew tha t  there  was  ev idence o f  charges? 

 A l l  they  were  be ing  asked to  do  is  pu t  together  

tha t  ev idence tha t  suppor t s  the  charges because we know 

tha t  the  charges are  proper l y  founded.   A re  you –  i s  tha t  

what  you are  te l l ing  me?  10 

MR MANTSHA:    I  th ink  Cha i rperson,  you. . .  as  we l l  

because there  were  a  who le  range o f  i ssues re la ted  to  th is  

t ransact ion .   So we had the  f iduc ia ry  du ty  as  a  board  to  

repor t  o the r  i ssues tha t  we were  keep ing  f rom the  bankers ,  

who were  keep ing  f rom peop le  who were  inv i ted  to  

par t i c i pa te  and the  equ i ty  pa r tners ,  we were  keep ing  

issues f rom the  company tha t  was p icked as  a  poss ib le  

equ i ty. . .   

 So  there  were  a  number  o f  i ssues wh ich  we 

wanted c la r i t y  on  bu t  the  main  ev idence has been a l ready 20 

c lea r ly  se t  ou t .   The document  to  suppor t  tha t  ev idence  

was c lear l y  there .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  the  answer  t o  my  quest ion ,  I  take  i t ,  

was yes,  bu t  you wanted to  add on  top  o f  tha t . . .  

MR MANTSHA:    Cor rec t  Cha i rperson.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.    Mr  Kennedy.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you Cha i r.   But  why were  you  

worr ied  tha t  you  needed to  make sure  tha t  the  Dentons  

repor t  had enough in  i t  to  suppor t  the  charges?  You were  

ins t ruc t ing  tha t  the  charges were  go ing  to  go  ou t  the  next  

day wh ich  is  what  happened.   As  a  para l le l  p rocess,  you  

are  ask ing  the  Dentons repor t  must  be  rewr i t ten  so  tha t  i t  

does suppor t  the  charges.    

 You are  no t  say ing :   G ive  them an oppor tun i ty  to  

ind ica te  what  the i r  p ro fess iona l  v iew i s  ob jec t i ve ly,  as  the  10 

Cha i rperson has suggested to  you.  

MR MANTSHA:    No.   Obv ious ly,  the  in te rp re ta t ion  you are  

g iv ing  to  th is  pa r t  i s  no t  exact  what  was meant  because  

when you look  a t  th is ,  the  charges were  issued the  

fo l low ing day.   I t  was o f  cou rse  no t  poss ib le  tha t  th is  le t te r  

was say ing :   Look,  g i ve  us  the  ev idence.   The ev idence 

was there  as  se t  ou t  in  the  charge sheet  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Bu t  then. . .  Dentons repor t  a t  a l l .   I f  

the  ev idence was  there ,  why d id  the  d isc ip l inary  inqu i ry  no t  

happen?  On the  23 r d  o f  September. . .  I  am go ing  to  repeat ,  20 

I  am a f ra id  and I  must  apo log ise  to  you.    

 On the  23 r d  o f  September  2015,  you as  the  

cha i rperson were  conv inced f rom a  memo f rom the  Aud i t  

and R isk  Commi t tee  to  wh ich  the  Execut ives  had not  

responded in  any  de ta i l ,  you  were  conv inced tha t  there  was 
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more  than enough ev idence to  f i re  them on the  spot .  

 Three months  l a te r,  sees you in  a  s i tua t ion  

where  you have  a t  s ta te  expense,  I  m igh t  add ,  pub l i c  

expense,  employed an outs ide  f i rm o f  a t to rneys,  Dentons,  

to  p repare  a  repor t ,  no  doubt ,  to  ge t  togethe r  ev idence fo r  

the  d isc ip l inary  charges.   And they g ive  you a  repor t  bu t  i t  

does not  g ive  you  the  ev idence o f  the  charges.  

 So you say:   We l l ,  le t  us  ca r ry  on .   We do not  

charge them tomorrow anyway.   In  the  meant ime,  ask  

Dentons to  rewr i te  the i r  repor t .   Th is  t ime to  t ry  and f ind  10 

some suppor t  fo r  the  charges.   I t  i s  a l l  back to  f ron t .   I s  i t  

no t?  

MR MANTSHA:    Wel l ,  Cha i rperson ,  I  th ink  the  log ic  i s  ve ry  

s imp le  here .   I f  you  ac tua l l y  s ta r t  the  log ic  f rom the  repor t  

o f  the  Aud i t  and  R isk  Commi t tee ,  the  de l ibera t ion  o f  the  

board  and a l l  the  documents  wh ich  were  sent  to  these 

employees.  

 So the i r  add i t ions  were  cons is ten t ,  c lear ly  

cons i s ten t .   And  so  I  have ind i ca ted  to  the  Cha i rpe rson,  

there  were  many issues invo l ved in  th is  t ransact ion ,  20 

inc lud ing  a l legat ions o f  cor rup t ion  and br ibery.    

 So there  were  a  number  o f  th ings wh ich  Dentons 

was supposed to  p resent .   The Dentons repor t  was beyond  

th is  d isc ip l inary  hear ing .   I t  was  not  on ly  meant  fo r  the  

d isc ip l ina ry  hear ing .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    Bu t  hang on Mr  Mantsha.   I  am sor ry  

to  in te r rup t  bu t  may . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  –  maybe le t  h im f in ish .   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Sor ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Maybe le t  h im f in ish .   Mr  Mantsha,  f in ish  

w i th  your  answer.  

MR MANTSHA:    So  there  were  a  number  o f  a l legat ions  

wh ich  were  f l y ing  a l l  ove r.   So the  Dentons repor t  was 

meant  to  address a l l  o f  i t .   I t  was not  tha t  we cou ld  no t  

have d i sc ip l ined these employees w i thout  the i r  repor t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh.   Okay we l l ,  tha t  b r ings me to  what  

you sa id  i f  you  look a t  log ic .   Now one th ing  tha t  does not  

seem to  accord  w i th  my log i c  i s  tha t  you have sa id  as  a t  

the  da te  on  wh ich  the  da te  on  wh ich  the  dec i s ion  to  

suspend them was taken,  there  was c lear  ev idence,  i t  was 

s t rong and the  documenta t ion  was there .  

 Ac tua l l y,  the  dec is ion ,  they cou ld  have been  

f i red  on  the  spot ,  as  fa r  as  you a re  concerned.   Now why 

do you need Den tons inso far  as  the  fo rmula t ion  o f  charges  

fo r  inso fa r  as  in fo rmat ion  suppor t ing  the  charges is  20 

concerned because you a re  sa t is f ied  i t  i s  there .  

 And as  I  reca l l ,  your  board  d id  no t  jus t  have you 

as  a  lawyer.   There  were  qu i te  a  few lega l l y  t ra ined  peop le  

as  I  reca l l  cor rec t l y.  

MR MANTSHA:    Cor rec t .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Why not  jus t  hand over  the  ev idence to 

CDH i f  they  were  supposed to  p rosecute ,  as  i t  were ,  in  the  

d isc ip l ina ry  inqu i ry?   Le t  them formula te  the  charges,  run  

w i th  the  d isc ip l inary  inqu i ry  ins tead o f  wa i t ing  fo r  th ree  

months .  

MR MANTSHA:    Wel l ,  Cha i rperson,  you can c lea r ly  see  

f rom the  le t te r  o f  the  18 t h  tha t  charges were  fo rmula ted .   

So cor rec t l y,  we d id  no t  need  the  Dentons repor t  to  

p roceed w i th  the  d isc ip l ina ry  hear ings.    

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  10 

MR MANTSHA:    As  I  sa id  and  I  repeat .   The Dentons  

repor t  was to  cover  a l l  range o f  i ssues.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m?  

MR MANTSHA:    That  add i t iona l  i ssues wou ld  serve  be fore  

the  hear ing ,  p robab ly,  as  poss ib le  charges.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m?  

MR MANTSHA:    That  i s  how fa r  I  can take  the  mat te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you Cha i r.   I  want  to  tes t  you r  

suggest ion  what  Dentons were  rea l l y  requ i red  to  do ,  was  20 

not  p rov ide  in fo rmat ion  fo r  these charges because you  

a l ready had i t .   They had to  p rov ide  in fo rmat ion  fo r  o ther  

poss ib i l i t i es  such  as  co r rup t ion  and f raud and such.   But  

your  le t te r  wh ich  records  the  ins t ruc t ion  tha t  must  be  g iven 

to  Dentons says,  page 389,  the  same page,  pa ragraph 4 .    
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“You are  reques ted to  in fo rm Dentons the i r  

repor t  i s  no t  acceptab le  and request ing  to  

p rov ide  us  w i th  a  repor t ,  in  o ther  words a  new 

repor t ,  w i th in  30-days and k ind ly  d i rec t  

them. . . ”  

 Th is  i s  a  shopp ing  l i s t  fo r  what  has to  be  pu t  in  a  

new repor t  compared w i th  the  o ld .  

“ . . .p rov ide  in fo rmat ion  to  suppor t  tha t  

charges. . . ”  

 Those a re  the  charges tha t  a re  sub jec t  o f  the 10 

charge sheet  tha t  went  ou t  the  next  day.   I t  i s  no t  fo r  any 

o ther  po ten t ia l  charges.   I t  i s  no t  say :   P lease Dentons,  

you have conf ined yourse l f  to  the  charges tha t  the  Aud i t  

and R isk  Commi t tee  ind ica ted  on the 

22 n d  o f  September  2015.   Noth ing  a t  a l l .  

 You. . .   E ffec t i ve ly,  you a re  say ing :   We are  go ing  

to  charge them tomorrow.   By the  way,  a lso  ask  Dentons to  

go  and f ind  some more  ev idence  tha t  can show tha t  we 

have a  bas is  fo r  the  charges.   I t  i s  comple te ly  the  

oppos i te .  20 

 Sure ly,  as  any po l i ce  o f f i ce r,  any p rosecutor  i n  a  

c r im ina l  contex t  o r  any d isc ip l inary  lawyer  wou ld  know,  you  

f ind  what  the  ev idence is ,  you s i f t  tha t  ev idence,  you then  

determine whether  the  ev idence show a  proper  w innab le  

case to  the  e f fec t  tha t  the  employee may be gu i l t y  o f  
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someth ing .  

 Here  you are  say ing :    Le t  us  go  fo r  the  charges 

and then le t  us  ask  Dentons to  do  –  make a  second e f fo r t  

to  t ry  and f ind  any ev idence fo r  those charges.   I t  i s  back  

to  f ron t .   I s  i t  no t?  

MR MANTSHA:    Wel l ,  Cha i rperson,  I  th ink  –  I  am 

repeat ing  myse l f  in  te rms o f  my exp lanat ion .   I  respect  the  

v iew tha t  he  is  mak ing  fo rward  bu t  I  do  no t  want  to  

cont inue to  repea t  myse l f  bu t  as  I  have sa id ,  we had more 

than enough ev idence as  se t  ou t  in  the  documents ,  we 10 

charge. . .  

 So Dentons was appo in ted  above o ther  th ings to  

p rov ide  spec i f i c  i ssues.   So as  we s i t  here ,  we have got  

the  benef i t  o f  a  f ina l  repor t  wh ich  they have presented and  

tha t  fo l low repor t  as  i t  was read before  th is  Commiss ion ,  

ac tua l l y  conf i rm what  i s  se t  ou t  in  the  charge sheet  as  

cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Wel l ,  i t  i s  no t  qu i te  as  s imp le  as  tha t  

bu t  I  am not  go ing  to  engage in  a  debate  w i th  you on tha t  

Mr  Mantsha because I  want  to  s t ick  to  the ,  what  seems to  20 

be the  essent ia l  i ssue here  and tha t  i s  why you were  so  

concerned not  to  accept  the  Dentons repor t  and to  requ i re  

them to  f ind  more  in fo rmat ion  to  p rov ide  in fo rmat ion  to  

suppor t  the  charges.    

 I  f ind  i t  concern ing ,  par t i cu la r l y  as  a  lega l  
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p rac t i t ione r.   When a  c l ien t  te l l s  me,  as  th is  ins t ruc t ion  

seems to  be  d i rec ted  to  Dentons:   Dentons,  you f ind  

incr im inat ing  ev idence.   Not :   Dentons,  f ind  ev idence wh ich  

ob jec t i ve l y  tes ted  and then g i ve  us  a  v iew as to  whethe r  

we have a  bas i s  fo r  charge o r  no t .  

 I t  i s  l i ke  ask ing  an  advocate  to  g ive  an  op in ion  

bu t  i t  must  say  tha t  the  c l ien t  i s  r igh t .   You unders tand the  

concern?  

MR MANTSHA:    I  rea l l y  apprec ia te  your  concern .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  10 

MR MANTSHA:    And Cha i rperson,  I  apprec ia te  the  

concern  bu t  the  ev idence was there .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .  

MR MANTSHA:    The ev idence was there .   The ev idence  

shou ld  have been  captu red.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:    And the i r  repor t  d id  no t  even capture  tha t  

ev idence because. . .  i t  was not . . .   [Speaker ’s  vo i ce  drops –  

unc lea r. ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

MR MANTSHA:    So  maybe  the  read ing  o f  these 

paragraphs do not  c lea r ly  sa id  what  the  c lea r  in ten t ion  

was.   I  suppose Cha i rperson,  as  you a lways in  your  ca reer  

o f  many years ,  as  you a lways seek to  in te rpre t  e i ther  the  

leg is la t ion .   So there  is  a lways somet ime the  usage o f  the  
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language wh ich  does not  ca r ry  the  rea l  in ten t ion .  

 I t  m igh t  we l l  be  tha t  the  usage o f  the  language  

here  d id  no t  convey exact ly  what  we wanted but  as  I  

responded to  the  Cha i rpe rson,  i t  was more  than what  we  

a l ready had and what  we a l ready had was supposed to  be  

pro fess iona l ,  in  our  v iew,  as  we must  ge t  va lue  fo r  money,  

as  you cor rec t l y  say,  pub l i c  money.    

 So when you g ive  us  a  repor t ,  i t  must  be  a  repor t  

tha t  shows tha t  work  has been  done and we were  no t  

sa t is f ied .    10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  wou ld  l i ke  to  suggest  to  you tha t  

the  pa ragraph tha t  we have been  so  long on,  i s  in  fac t  

qu i te  c lea r  in  i t s  in ten t ion  to  rea l l y  reconc i le  i t  w i th  your  

own ev idence.   Of  course  when I  make remarks  about  the  

impor tance o f  ensur ing  tha t  lega l  p rac t i t ioners  be  g iven a  

f ree  hand to  g ive  proper  ob jec t i ve ,  independent  adv i ce ,  I  

am ta lk ing  to  you  not  s imp ly  as  the  fo rmer  Cha i rpe rson o f  

the  Board  o f  Dene l ,  bu t  o f  course  as  an  a t to rney.  

MR MANTSHA:   I  apprec ia te  tha t .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   O f  many years ’ exper ience,  no t  so?  20 

MR MANTSHA:   I  apprec ia te  tha t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   We are  aware  tha t  you were  s t ruck  o f f  

the  ro l l  o f  a t to rneys in  2011 but  then re ins ta ted ,  no t  so  

thereaf te r?  

MR MANTSHA:   Cor rec t .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   A t  the  t ime tha t  you were  the  

Cha i rperson o f  the  Board  here ,  had you by  then been 

re ins ta ted  as  an  A t to rney?  

MR MANTSHA:   Cor rec t .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   So  your  be ing  removed o f f  the  ro l l ,  

s t ruck  o f f  the  ro l l  was now over.   I t  had been reversed as  i t  

were .   

MR MANTSHA:   Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   You d id  no t  appea l  the  or ig ina l  

dec is ion  as  I  unders tand i t ,  bu t  you app l ied  aga in  la te r  and  10 

then succeeded in  persuad ing  the  H igh  Cour t  to  re ins ta te  

you on the  ro l l  o f  a t to rneys.  

MR MANTSHA:   Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Jus t  to  comple te  th is  re fe rence  to  the 

Denton ’s  repor t ,  you say in  pa ragraph 5 ,  and las t l y  may  

you . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am so r ry  Mr  Kennedy.   Mr  Man tsha,  I  

jus t  want  to  pu t  th is  and I  am qu i te  happy fo r  you to 

respond and say  someth ing  i f  you  w ish  to ,  bu t  i f  you  fee l  

you have g i ven an answer  I  am qu i te  happy tha t  you say so  20 

as  we l l .  

 Th is  i s  the  propos i t ion ,  tha t  in  paragraph 4 ,  when in  

parag raph 4  you  say the  ac t ing  company secre ta ry  must  

te l l  Dentons tha t  the i r  repor t  i s  no t  accepted.   The reason  

why i t  i s  no t  accepted,  appears  . . .  seems to  appear  f rom 
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the  ba lance o f  the  parag raph,  namely  what  we were  

expect ing  f rom them.    

 I t  i s  the  repor t  tha t  g ives  us  in fo rmat ion  tha t  

suppor ts  the  charges.   The reason when you look  a t  th is  

w i thout  any o the r  exp lanat ion  you might  g ive ,  when you 

jus t  look  a t  th is ,  i t  i s  l i ke  the  de fec t  in  the  repor t  i s  tha t  i t  

does not  g ive  us  in fo rmat ion  tha t  suppor ts  the  charges.   

 So I  am jus t  say ing  tha t  i s  the  impress ion  I  ge t  

when I  look  a t  th is  on  i t s  own.   You might  be  ab le  to  say 

here  is  my response to  tha t  o r  you might  say  I  cannot  add  10 

to  what  I  have a l ready sa id .   

MR MANTSHA:   I  th ink  Cha i rperson,  jus t  a  qu ick  response.   

I f  you  read th is  le t te r  ou t  o f  contex t  o f  what  was 

happen ing ,  you can probab ly  come wi th  tha t  conc lus ion ,  

bu t  i f  you  read  th is  le t te r  in  the  contex t  o f  what  was 

happen ing ,  so  c lear ly  you cannot  come to  tha t  conc lus ion .  

 So I  am say ing  read ing  the  le t te r  in  the  contex t  o f  

what  the  ev idence wh ich  was p resented and the  repor ts  

wh ich  were  g iven,  so  th is  le t te r  cannot  mean tha t  there  

was no ev idence  when the  dec is ion  was taken.   I f  we a re  20 

read ing  th i s  le t te r  w i th in  the  contex t ,  bu t  i f  you  take  th is  

le t te r  as  a  s tanda lone,  then you can come to  tha t  

conc lus ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Mr  Kennedy?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   Jus t  in  conc lus ion  
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on  th is  le t te r  a t  the  foo t  o f  the  page,  389 paragraph 5 ,  you 

say:  

 “And las t l y  may  you reca l l  the  s t r idu la ted  

Dentons repor t  and make su re  i t  i s  no t  

c i rcu la ted . ”  

Now Mr  Sa loo jee  has suggested  tha t  th is  was 

aga in  pa r t  o f  the  smoke screen,  par t  o f  the  s t ra tegy.   He 

d id  no t  want  a  repor t  tha t  was neu t ra l  in  favour  o f  Sa loo jee  

and Nonh lonh lo  to  be  c i rcu la ted .   You were  s imp ly  d r iven  

by  the  so le  mo t ive  wh ich  was  to  concoct  the  par t ies  10 

aga ins t  each o the r.  

 Any v iew on tha t?  

MR MANTSHA:   Cha i rperson,  tha t  i s  abso lu te ly,  abso lu te l y  

inco r rec t .   There  is  a  comple ted  Denton repor t  as  we  

speak,  wh ich  do  f ind  these two execut ive  [ ind i s t inc t ]  o f  

var ious issues,  inc lud ing  non-  d isc losure  and o ther  th ings.   

 So there  is  a  repor t  as  we speak now.   So I  do  no t  

want  to  keep on repeat ing  myse l f .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.    

MR MANTSHA:   So  I  comple te l y  d isagree.   There  was no 20 

smoke screen.   The a l legat ions as  they were  on  the  23 r d  o f  

September,  as  they were  a t  the  t ime o f  the  suspens ion  and  

a t  the  t ime o f  the  serv ing  o f  the  charge sheet ,  i s  the  same 

as i t  s tands before  th is  Commiss ion  as  p resented by  Mr  

Ta l ied  Sad ik ,  who took th is  Commiss ion  on  the  Denton ’s  
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repor t  as  i t  s tands today as  comple ted .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t .   So tha t  was your  le t te r  to  the  

ac t ing  company secre tary.   We know tha t  the  charges and 

the  o ther  documents  were  then issued the  fo l low ing  day.   I f  

I  can  now take you to  page 385?   

 In  fac t ,  sor ry  jus t  be fore  we get  there .   One 

th ing  I  m issed on page 383 wh ich  was par t  o f  your  

no t i f i ca t ion  o f  the  d isc ip l inary  p rocess inc lud ing  the  charge  

sheet .   You have  383?  383,  i t  i s  jus t  a  few pages before  

where  we were .   10 

MR MANTSHA:   Thank you Mr  Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Paragraph 6 .   You say:  

 “P lease be adv ised d i sc ip l ina ry  hear ing  w i l l  be  

he ld  on  the  25 t h  o f  January  2016.   To  be 

adv ised o f  the  venue,  e tce tera . ”  

 So tha t  was now f ina l l y  schedu led  fo r  the  25 t h  

o f  January  2016,  four  months  a f te r  the  dec is ion  to  suspend  

them and to  sub jec t  them to  d isc ip l inary  charges.   

MR MANTSHA:   Cor rec t .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now Ms Wale le ,  the  a t to rney  20 

rep resent ing  the  th ree ,  then wr i tes  on  the  1s t  o f  January,  

sor ry  t he  7 t h  o f  January,  page 385 and she wr i tes  she 

addressed he r  le t te r  to  Mr  Ad i l  Pathe l  who i s  a  very  sen ior  

and exper ienced  labour  lawyer  a t  CDH,  C l i f f  Decker  

Hofmeyr,  and she  wr i tes  to  h im,  no  doubt  because he was 
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a l ready invo lved as  par t  o f  the  lega l  team,  to  p repare  fo r  

the  d isc ip l ina ry  inqu i ry.  

MR MANTSHA:   Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now she says  in  parag raph 1  tha t  she 

w i l l  be  ass is ted  by  sen ior  counse l ,  in  fac t  a  la te r  le t te r  

re fe rs  to  tha t  in  b r ie f  Advocate  Cra ig  Wat t  P r ing le  SC,  the  

rep resenta t i ve  fo r  the  Employee,  and then she says in  

parag raph 2 :  

 “We are  in  the  process fo r  p repar ing  fo r  the  

d isc ip l ina ry  hear ings schedu led  fo r  the  25 t h  o f  10 

January  2016 and  requ i re  a  number  o f  

documents  to  adequate ly  p resents  our  c l ien t ’s  

de fence. ”  

 Then she asks fo r  spec i f i c  documents ,  se t  ou t  on  

page 386 and then she says on  page 387,  parag raph 4 :  

 “We unders tand tha t  Dentons have fu rn ished  

your  c l ien t  w i th  a  repor t  pursuant  to  the 

comple t ion  o f  the i r  invest iga t ion .   Our  c l ien ts  

have s ince  been  charged and wou ld  l i ke  to  

have access to  the  conc lus ions made pu rsuant  20 

to  the  invest iga t ion .   We have  reason to  

be l ieve  tha t  the  contents  o f  the  repor t  a re  

essent ia l  fo r  our  c l ien t ’s  de fence and there fore  

request  tha t  same be made ava i lab le  to  our  

c l ien t . ”  
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 Now tha t  Dentons repor t  was  not  made 

ava i lab le  to  Mr  Sa loo jee ,  o r  Mr  Nonh lonh lo  or  Ms A f r i ca  or  

the i r  lega l  team,  cor rec t?  

MR MANTSHA:   Yes.    

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Why was i t  no t  [ ind is t inc t ]?  

MR MANTSHA:   Wel l ,  Cha i rperson I  and the  Board ,  we 

were  no t  hand l ing  the  d isc ip l inary  process on  beha l f  o f ,  I  

must  say  th is .   That  we were  very  unhappy w i th  the  way in  

wh ich  the  lega l  depar tment  was mov ing  on the  mat te r.   I  

th ink  to  a  cer ta in  ex ten t  where  I  th ink  we,  the  person who 10 

was ho ld ing  th is  pos i t ion ,  I  th ink  had so  much pressure  and 

some breakdown and eventua l l y  approved.   She le f t  the 

company.    

 So we were  no t  happy w i th  the  pace o f  th is  

mat te r.   Yet  we were  p ressed w i th  sav ing  the  company as  

the  company was s ink ing .   So we ra ised our  concerns 

about  the  pace.   We were  no t  happy about  the  pace.   We 

ra ised our  concern  about  the  main tenance repor t  because 

i t  was not  wor th  what  we were  pay ing  fo r.   

 So we ra ised those concerns and  in  our  v iew I  20 

do  not  know what  served to  us  one  can even cons ider  as  a  

repor t .   So tha t  i s  why i t  was  in  the  in te res t  o f  the,  

comple te  the  repor t  and tha t  repor t  can be served to  these 

Employees.   

 I  do  no t  know whether  they comple ted  the  repor t  
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as  i t  was tes t i f ied  here ,  whethe r  i t  was g iven to  the 

Employees,  bu t  we were  par t i cu la r l y  no t  happen.    

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Wel l ,  we do know and there  has been  

ev idence f rom the  w i tnesses tha t  they never  rece ived any  

Dentons repor t .   I  wou ld  l i ke  to  tes t  your  vers ion  fo r  a  

moment  p lease.   You have suggested,  jus t  remember  

p lease.    

 My p rev ious quest ion  was were  they ever  

p rov ided w i th  the  Dentons repor t .   You say you  do not  

know.   We have  heard  ev idence.   The Commiss ion  has 10 

heard  ev idence tha t  tha t  was never  p rov ided.   The Dentons 

repor t  was never  p rov ided,  and when I  asked you why not ,  

your  exp lanat ion  seems to  be  we l l  peop le  were  so  busy,  

bu t  peop le  be ing  too  busy does not  exp la in  tha t  why you do 

not  ever  repor t .   

MR MANTSHA:   I  th ink  tha t  i s  no t  what  I  t r ied  to  answer  

w i th  respect .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Then I  apo log i se ,  jus t  to  c la r i f y  

p lease?  

MR MANTSHA:   Yes,  I  repeat  myse l f .   The repor t  wh ich  20 

served befo re  us  was not ,  i t  was such a  ve ry  sha l low  

document ,  i t  was  so  incomple te ,  i t  was not  a  repor t  you 

can serve  and we requested tha t  p lease ta lk  to  these 

peop le  to  f ina l i ze  th is  repor t .   

 I  must  a lso  add  tha t  the  appo in tment  o f  the  



04 MARCH 2021 – DAY 355 
 

Page 335 of 361 
 

invest iga to r  o f  Dentons,  i t  had o f  course  noth ing  to  do  w i th  

the  board ,  because these a re  a l l  dec is ions  o f  the 

management .   As  the  Cha i rperson  I  have never  sa t  down 

wi th  the  Denton peop le .  

 I  th ink  the  members  o f  Aud i t  and R isk  Commi t tee  

had meet ings w i th  them and convey our  unhapp iness w i th  

the  pace o f  the  work .   I  th ink  they had some d iscuss ion  as  

they were  in te rac t ing  w i th  them,  bu t  yes  we were  no t  happy  

w i th  the  repor t  and i t  was no t  served a t  tha t  s tage,  

because i t  was rea l l y  no t  comple te .    10 

 The repor t  tha t  we saw.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l ,  the  Employees who had been 

suspended were  sen ior  Employees.   Maybe the  te rm 

execut ives  is  co r rec t .   A re  you say ing  tha t  whether  o r  no t  

there  shou ld  be  an invest iga t ion  such as  the  invest iga t ion  

tha t  was conducted by  Dentons,  was not  a  dec is ion  tha t  

was made by  the  board?  

MR MANTSHA:   Wel l ,  the  board  made a  dec i s ion  to  

invest iga te  tha t  there  are  a l l  sor t  o f  a l legat ions.   There  is  

a l legat ions o f  b r i bery,  there  were  a l legat ions o f  cor rup t ion .   20 

There  were  a  lo t  o f  a l legat ions.   They have in f la ted  pr ice  

what  Dene l  has pa id  and a l l  sor t s  o f  th ings.  

 So we then say there  must  be  an  invest iga t ion .   

But  in  te rms o f  the  company pro toco l ,  the  execut ive  

appo in t  se rv i ce  p rov iders .   I t  i s  no t  the  board  tha t  appo in t  
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serv i ce  prov ide rs .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR MANTSHA:   So  Denton was appo in ted  to  do  th i s  job .  

CHAIRPERSON:   By  the  management?  

MR MANTSHA:   By  the  management .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

MR MANTSHA:   And as  I  sa id ,  I  th ink  I  was never,  I  have  

never  met  them.   I  th ink  there  were  e i ther  two or  I  do  no t  

know how many meet ings w i th  the  Aud i t  and R isk  

Commi t tee  and members  o f  Aud i t  and R isk  Commi t tee  o f  10 

course  convey the  d isp leasure  f rom the  board  in  t e rms o f  

what  we were  see ing  a t  the  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  Mr  Kennedy?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   Now we have jus t  

seen tha t  the  d i sc ip l inary  hear ing  was  supposed  to  take  

p lace on the  25 t h  o f  January  2016,  cor rec t?  

MR MANTSHA:   Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now tha t  d isc ip l inary  inqu i ry  d id  no t  

take  p lace on tha t  da te .   I f  I  can  take  you to  page 385,  

there  is  another  l e t te r  f rom Ms Wa le le  aga in  addressed to  20 

Mr  Pate l  a t  CDH.   

 That  i s  the  very  da te  tha t  the  inqu i ry  was 

supposed to  s ta r t  on  the  25 t h  o f  January  and she says:  

  “Your  emai l  w i th  a t tached le t te r  da ted  the  22n d  

o f  January  2015,  2016 I  beg your  pardon and our  te lephone 
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conversa t ion  o f  even date  re fers .   P lease be adv ised tha t  

our  c l ien ts  w i l l  a t tend a  proposed media t ion  process as  se t  

ou t  in  your  le t te r  and sub jec t  to  the  fo l low ing te rms. ”  

 Then she re fers  to  the  venue be ing  the  chambers  

o f  the  counse l  who had been appo in ted  to  t r y  to  med ia te ,  

Advocate  Pre to r ius  SC,  and . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Sor ry,  I  am sor ry.   Where  are  you read ing  

f rom? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Page 395.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  thank you I  found i t .   10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   So  what  th is  le t te r  ind ica ted  Mr  

Mantsha i s  tha t  the  d i sc ip l inary  inqu i ry  was now be ing  put  

as ide  fo r  a  wh i le ,  because ins tead what  was  be ing  

proposed on beha l f  o f  Dene l  was to  go  fo r  med ia t ion  

Cha i red  by  a  d i f fe ren t  counse l .  

 They agreed to  th is  sub jec t  to  cer ta in  cond i t ions ,  

and were  you aware  tha t  in  fac t  there  was a  med ia t ion  

exerc ise  under taken?  

MR MANTSHA:   Wel l ,  I  am not  p rev iew to  every th ing  tha t  

was happen ing .    20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Were  you aware  or  were  you no t?  

MR MANTSHA:   I  m igh t  reca l l  tha t  maybe on the  day I  was  

in fo rmed tha t  the re  w i l l  be  m i t iga t ion  o f  some sor t ,  bu t  I  

cannot  rea l l y  reca l l  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  you are  no t  suggest ing ,  a re  you,  tha t  

in  a  s i tua t ion  where  the  board  has suspended Employees  

pend ing  a  d isc ip l inary  inqu i ry,  the  management  cou ld  take  

a  dec i s ion  to  go  to  med ia t ion  and there fore  no t  pursue  

what  has been approved by  the  board ,  namely  pursu ing  

d isc ip l ina ry  charges,  tha t  they cou ld  do  tha t  w i thout  go ing  

back to  the  board  to  say you g ive ,  shou ld  we fo l low th is  

med ia t ion  rou te  because your  dec i s ion  as  the  board  is  tha t  

we must  pu rsue d isc ip l inary  charges?  

 You are  no t  suggest ing  tha t  they d id  tha t?  10 

MR MANTSHA:   Wi th  respect  Cha i rperson,  I  am not  

suggest ing  tha t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR MANTSHA:   I  th ink  I  w i l l  repea t  myse l f  aga in ,  the  Aud i t  

and R isk  Commi t tee  o f  the  board  was o f  course  invo lved in  

th is  mat te r  f rom the  beg inn ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:   They were  manag ing  th is  p rocess.  

MR MANTSHA:   Yes,  invest iga t ion  and a l l  so r ts  o f  th ings.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR MANTSHA:   So  the  cor respondence f rom an a t to rney to  20 

the  a t to rneys o f  the  company,  the  a t to rneys o f  the  company  

wou ld  then ta lk  w i th  the  lega l  depar tment  o f  the  company.   

The lega l  depar tment  o f  the  company wou ld  probab ly  ta lk  

to  the  CE or  the  CFO,  and then they wou ld  re lay  the  mat te r  

to  the  commi t tee  tha t  was dea l ing  w i th  i t .   
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 So  a l l  I  am say ing  to  you is  I  am not  say ing  tha t  

the  dec is ion  o f  hav ing  med ia t ion  wou ld  have been taken by  

the  lega l  depar tment  w i thout  consu l t ing  the  re levant  

commi t tee  o f  the  board  wh ich  was hand l ing  the  mat te r.   I  

am not  suggest ing  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  okay.   Okay.  

MR MANTSHA:   So  what  I  am say ing  to  you,  o f  course  i f  

there  was then  media t ion ,  i t  was o f  course  w i th  the 

b less ing  o f  the  re levant  commi t tee  o f  the  board  wh ich  was  

dea l ing  w i th  the  mat te r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  the  Aud i t  and R isk  Commi t tee?  

The Aud i t  and R isk  Commi t tee .  

MR MANTSHA:   The Aud i t  and R isk  Commi t tee ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  a l r igh t .   Mr  Kennedy?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you.   Now the  Commiss ion  has  

heard  ev idence  f rom Mr  Sa loo jee  tha t  the  med ia t ion  

sess ion  d id  in  fac t  take  p lace,  Cha i red  by  Advocate  

Pre tor ius  SC.   I t  d id  no t  succeed  in  reso lv ing  the  d ispute  

and tha t  what  was conveyed to  the  execut ives  and the i r  

lega l  team,  was  tha t  Dene l  was  prepared to  look  a t  a  20 

se t t lement ,  bu t  no t  on  the  bas i s  tha t  they wou ld  resume 

work .   

 Do you know about  tha t  o r  i f  you  do not  know,  

jus t  say  you do not  know? 

MR MANTSHA:   Wel l ,  I  rea l l y  do  no t  know the  contes t  o f  i t .  



04 MARCH 2021 – DAY 355 
 

Page 340 of 361 
 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay.   Now i f  I  can  re fer  you now to  

page 403,  there  i s  one o f  va r ious emai ls .   Cha i r,  I  am not  

go ing  to  take  h im  th rough every  s ing le  one.   Jus t  the  ones 

tha t  seem to  be  impor tan t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   The top  o f  page 403 s i r,  i s  an  emai l  

f rom Ms Wale le  to  Ade l  Pate l  f rom CDH,  on  the  16 t h  o f  

February  2016.   You see tha t?  

MR MANTSHA:   Yes.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And she says:  10 

  “Dear  Ad i l .   Our  request  fo r  documents  f rom 

yourse lves,  have  fa l len  on  deaf  ears .   Your  fa i lu re  to  hand  

over  the  documents  a l ready requested,  has impacted on  

our  p repara t ion  o f  th is  mat te r.   You are  dea l ing  w i th  

complex  issues and a  la rge  vo lume o f  documents  tha t  w i l l  

ob l ige  yourse l f  to  fu rn ish  our  c l ien ts  w i th  same to  ensure  

tha t  they are  adequate ly  p repared fo r  the  hear ing . ”  

 Now Mr  Mantsha,  the  . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

MR MANTSHA:   Cor rec t ion  s i r.    

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Sor ry,  Mr  Mantsha.   I  beg your  20 

pardon.   I  was dys lex i c  and now I  p ronounced,  you  sa id  i t  

very  d i f fe ren t  f rom everyone e lse .   I  apo log i se ,  w i th  no  

d is respect  to  you  or  to  Mr  Mantsha.   Mr  Mantsha,  th is  i s  

one o f  a  number  o f  emai ls  and fo rmal  le t te rs  i n  wh ich  Ms  

Wale le  repeated ly,  r igh t  f rom her  response as  fa r  back as 
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the  7 t h  o f  January  has been  repeated ly  ask ing  fo r  

documents .   

 You were  no t  aware  o f  tha t .   You cannot  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR MANTSHA:   Cha i rperson,  I  am not  p rev iew to  those 

communica t ions.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   Yes,  you see you suggested 

ear l ie r  in  one o f  your  answers  to  the  Cha i rpe rson tha t  the  

Employees may have been de lay ing  th ings and then you 

backt racked f rom tha t .   What  I  want  to  pu t  to  you and I  10 

want  you to  comment  on  i t  to  say  I  agree or  I  d isagree or  I  

do  no t  know.   

 What  I  want  to  pu t  to  you i s  when one looks a t  

a l l  the  cor respondence,  there  is  no th ing  in  the  papers  a t  a l l  

tha t  shows tha t  the  Employees and the  execut ives  or  the i r  

lega l  team were  de lay ing  th ings unreasonab ly.   I t  happens 

a l l  the  t ime.    

 But  when one as  a  lega l  p rac t i t ioner  i s  b r ie fed  or  

ins t ruc ted  to  represent  a  par t i cu la r ly  a  sen ior  execut ive  in  

a  major  corpora t ion  l i ke  Dene l ,  one o f  the  f i rs t  th ings you  20 

do is  to  ask  fo r  documents .   We have the  charge  sheet ,  

now we wou ld  l i ke  to  ask  you fo r  documents .   

 So i t  i s  a  per fec t l y  no rmal  request ,  and the  

compla in t  tha t  has been la id  by  Mr  Sa loo jee  in  h is  

ev idence and Mr  Nonh lonh lo  was  tha t  we kept  ask ing  fo r  
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documents ,  we kept  say ing  why is  th is  d isc ip l inary  process  

tak ing  so  long,  a  concern  tha t  you have ind ica ted  you 

shared,  and one  o f  the  prob lem was but  they jus t  do  no t  

g ive  us  any documents .   

 Now i f  your  concern  a t  the  top  leve l  o f  the  board  

o f  Dene l  were  anx ious to  ensure  tha t  the  d i sc ip l inary  

process shou ld  be  dea l t  w i th  qu ick ly,  why was there  no  

product ion  o f  documents?   Do you have any exp lana t ion  fo r  

tha t  o r  i s  tha t  beyond your  knowledge? 

MR MANTSHA:   Wel l  Cha i rpe rson ,  tha t  i s  obv ious l y  beyond 10 

my knowledge.   I  have never  dea l t  w i th  the  l awyers  

rep resent ing  the  company.   The lega l  depar tment  dea l t  w i th  

them.   So I  am not  even prev iew to  th is  k ind  o f  exchange,  

bu t  I  must  say  the  fo l low ing to  you  Cha i rpe rson.  

 We were  obv ious l y  very  concerned  w i th  the  pace 

o f  th is  p rocess and in te rna l l y  we had ou r  own bat t les  about  

i t .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l ,  I  expect  you to  have been  

concerned and I  am,  I  suspect  tha t  I  do  no t  have,  I  have 

not  seen anyth ing  here  tha t  the  de lay  had now reached 20 

maybe about  seven months  o f  suspens ion  and pe r  month  

pay ing  these th ree  execut ives  must  have been qu i te  a  

substant ia l  amount .   

MR MANTSHA:   Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  wou ld  be  surp r ised i f  you ,  the  company 
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was pay ing  them a l together  less  than R400 000-00,  

R500 000-00.   Maybe I  am even  too  conserva t ive .   You 

have an idea how much Dene l  was pay ing  pe r  month  each 

t ime,  each month  they were  no t  work ing  and then they were  

on  suspens ion ,  more  o r  less?  

MR MANTSHA:   Wi th  respect  Cha i rpe rson,  I  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   You have no idea? 

MR MANTSHA:   I  have no idea about  the i r  sa la r ies .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  because tha t  becomes impor tan t ,  i s  

i t  no t?   When you look a t  the  de lay  you know because you 10 

cannot  a f fo rd  a  s i tua t ion  where  the  company is  pay ing  a  lo t  

o f  money to  Emp loyees who are  no t  render ing  any serv i ce  

to  i t ,  and i t  i s  pend ing  an inqu i ry  and i t  i s  tak ing  too  long 

because i t  i s  un tenab le .    

MR MANTSHA:   Cor rec t  Cha i rperson.   

CHAIRPERSON:   You have sa id  tha t .   

MR MANTSHA:   And th is  i s  what  happened he re .   The 

Cha i rperson is  per fec t l y  cor rec t .   We shared the  same 

sent iment .   Th is  was pro long and as  th is  was be ing  

pro longed,  o f  course  there  were  a  number  o f  po l i t i ca l  20 

events  tak ing  p lace in  the  count ry.  

 So we were  no t  happy w i th  how th is  mat te r  was 

done.   Wi th  a l l  respect  to  the  compan ies  a t to rneys who 

were  hand l ing  th is  mat te r,  bu t  we jus t  fe l t  our  in te rna l  

peop le  were  no t  mov ing  w i th  speed,  and a t  the  same t ime 
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as  I  sa id ,  we were  so  consumed w i th  the  b igger  p ic tu re  fo r  

the  company,  and o f  course  tha t  consumed a  lo t  o f  our  

a t ten t ion  and we were  more  focused on those.   

 I  share  the  same sent iment .   We were  no t  happy  

w i th  the  dura t ion  o f  th is ,  so  i t  i s  no t  l i ke  i t  i s  someth ing  

tha t  we were  happy w i th .   Not  a t  a l l .   We were  no t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr  Kennedy?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you  Cha i r.   May I  ra ise  a  

quest ion  tha t  f lows f rom your  own quest ion  Cha i rperson to  

the  w i tness,  about  what  i t  must  have been cost ing  the  10 

company to  keep somebody on pa id  suspens ion ,  month  

a f te r  month .  

 As  i t  happens Cha i r,  i t  seems to  be  tha t  your  

es t imate  was . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Very  conserva t ive .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   P re t ty  much spot  on .  

CHAIRPERSON:   A l r igh t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  th ink .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   We are  go ing  to  take  you la te r  in  the  20 

same bund le  to  the  se t t lement  agreement  tha t  was 

conc luded between Dene l  and Mr  Sa loo jee  and tha t  

ind ica tes  tha t  he  was pa id  as  pa r t  o f  the  benef i t s ,  a  so  

ca l led  ex  grac ia  amount  o f  2 .36  m i l l ion  rand wh ich  i t  says  

is  an  amount  equ iva len t  to  50% of  the  Employee ’s  annua l  
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remunera t ion .  

 Now i f  you take  2 .36  mi l l ion  and you doub le  tha t  

to  ge t  the  annua l  remunera t ion  tha t  g ives  you about  4 .8  

m i l l ion  and i f  you d iv ide  tha t  by  12  to  ge t  the  month l y  

amount  i t  i s  in  fac t  spot  on  what  the  Cha i rperson guessed,  

bu t  i t  was abou t  R400 000-00 a  month  tha t  you were  

pay ing  Mr  Sa loo jee .  

 Mr  Nonh lonh lo  we can dea l  w i th  separa te ly.   He 

obv ious ly  earned  a  b i t  less .   But  i t  was cer ta in ly  hundreds  

o f  thousands o f  rands tha t  were  be ing  pa id  fo r  mon th  a f te r  10 

month  a f te r  month ,  in  a  process tha t  was tak ing  too  long in  

your  v iew.    

MR MANTSHA:   You are  co r rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Cor rec t .   Of  course  Mr  Sa loo jee  and  

Mr  Nonh lonh lo  suggest  someth ing  e lse ,  wh ich  is  tha t  the 

reason why i t  was tak ing  so  long was tha t  they  d id  no t  

cap i tu la te  when the  th ree  months  o f fe r  was made to  them 

in  se t t lement  [ ind is t inc t ] .    

 They sa id  br i ng  i t  on ,  we want  to  de fend  

ourse l ves.   You w i l l  see  tha t  in  the  Respondent ’s  emai l  bu t  20 

presumably  you re jec t  tha t  ve rs ion .   Cor rec t?  

MR MANTSHA:   I  am not  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   You though t  you accepted a  vers ion  

tha t  th is  was ac tua l l y  a  smoke sc reen aga ins t  them.   That  

you were  ba t t l ing  to  f ind  a  case.   I f  you  had had a  case,  
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espec ia l l y  superb ly  e f f i c ien t  a t to rneys such as  Mr  Pate l ,  i f  I  

may say so  w i th  due respect  to  h im,  wou ld  have had th is  

d isc ip l ina ry  inqu i ry  done and dusted w i th in  a  mat te r  o f  

weeks.   

MR MANTSHA:   Wel l ,  I  th ink  Cha i rpe rson aga in  I  am go ing  

to  be  gu i l t y  o f  repeat ing  myse l f .   Categor ica l l y,  no .   There  

were  charges.   There  were  ser ious charges.   There  were  

ser ious v io la t ion  tha t  they have commi t ted .   The  hear ing  

was never  a  smoke screen.  

 I  cannot  s i t  here  and ta l k  fo r  the  A t to rneys o f  the 10 

company.   A l l  I  can  say,  I  share  the  d isp leasure  o f  the 

mat te r  took too  long.   Our  members  o f  Aud i t  and R isk  

commi t tee  in te rvene where  necessary  and I  cannot  take  the  

mat te r  fu r ther  than tha t .   

 But  i t  i s  no t  t rue  tha t  these charges were  jus t  by  

the  way meant  to  ge t  r id  o f  these peop le ,  and aga in  I  re fe r  

you to  the  comple ted  repor t  by  Denton wh ich  then 

conf i rmed these a l legat ions and the  ev idence as  we s i t  

here  is  tha t  a  company i s  tak ing  ac t ion ,  spec i f i ca l l y  aga ins t  

Mr  Sa loo jee  and Mr  Nonh lonh lo .  20 

 That  ev idence is  very  c lear  here .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   

MR MANTSHA:   So  i f  you  take  the  log ic  f rom what  was 

s ta r ted  in  2015 by  my board ,  to  what  has happened in  the 

cur ren t  invest iga t ion  by  the  company,  c lea r ly  tha t  
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a l legat ion  have been susta ined and the  cur ren t  leadersh ip  

o f  Dene l  has adopted f rom the  ev idence tha t  was 

presented here .    

 So to  say th is  was a  smoke screen,  le t  us  assume 

you can accuse my board  o f  t ry ing  to  pu t  up  togethe r,  bu t  

then you have got  another  board ,  then you have got  

another  execut ive .   We have accepted i t .   So  and anyway 

a t  the  na ture  o f  the  charges,  pu t  the  cond i t ions  o f  approva l  

on  one hand and  what  happened?   The approva l  was fo r  a  

f i ve  year  t e rm loan.   The loan  wh ich  these execut ives  10 

s igned fo r  was a  br idge f inance fo r  s ix  months .   

 We gave them an approva l ,  because they must  

ge t  the  approva l  f rom the  shareho lde r,  the  execut ive  

au thor i t y.   There  was no approva l ,  so  to  ac tua l l y  t ry  to  

suggest  tha t  th is  was a  smoke sc reen o f  some sor t ,  wh i l s t  

the  ev idence are  c lea r.   

 The approva l  cond i t ions  f rom Nat iona l  Treasury,  

the  approva l  cond i t ions  f rom the  Depar tment  o f  Pub l ic  

Enterp r ise  i s  a l l  there .   The ac t ion  o f  the  execut ive ,  i t  i s  

there .   They were  to ld  p lease do not  p lay  the  banks  aga ins t  20 

one anothe r.    

 What  d id  they do?  They went  to  go  and p lay  

Absa aga ins t  Nedbank.   What  d id  they do?  They le t  

Nedbank run  w i th  no  secur i t y,  they  gave Absa secur i t y.   So 

they have comple te ly  as  i s  captured in  the  f ina l  repor t  
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wh ich  you have p resented to  th is  Commiss ion ,  tha t  they d id  

no t  fo l low the  te rms and cond i t ions  o f  the  approva l .  

 That  i s  the  case.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l ,  I  am sor ry  Mr  Kennedy.   I  want  to  

go  back to  Mr  Kennedy ’s  ear l ie r  fo rmula t ion  o f  h is  

quest ion .   He la te r  re - fo rmula ted  i t .   A re  you in  a  pos i t ion  

to  deny or  d ispute  the  Employee ’s  vers ion  tha t  th roughout  

the i r  suspens ion ,  maybe i t  i s  no t  th roughout ,  bu t  most  o f  

tha t  per iod  o f  suspens ion ,  the i r  a t t i tude was you 

suspended us  on  the  bas is  tha t  they were ,  we were  gu i l t y  10 

o f  m isconduct  and there  wou ld  be  a  d isc ip l ina ry  inqu i ry.  

 B r ing  those charges on,  b r ing  tha t  hear ing  on  

and they say when the  o f fe r  o f  th ree  months  pay as  a  

se t t lement  was made,  they re jec ted  i t  because they  wanted 

to  c lear  the i r  names  a t  the  d isc ip l inary  inqu i ry.   They say,  

i f  I  reca l l  cor rec t l y,  even the  med ia t ion  when i t  was put  

be fore  them,  they ins i s ted  tha t  they wanted a  d isc ip l inary  

inqu i ry  because they wanted to  c lear  the i r  name.   

 They were  sa t is f ied  tha t  the re  was no ev idence  

o f  wrongdo ing  on  the i r  par t .   Now as I  understand  i t ,  we 20 

know tha t  fo r  the  f i rs t  a t  leas t  s ix  months ,  maybe more  

than tha t ,  no  th ree  months  I  am sor ry,  i t  i s  accep ted tha t  

the  de lay  in  conven ing  a  d i sc ip l ina ry  inqu i ry  was not  due to  

any de lay ing  tac t i cs  on  the i r  par t ,  one.   

 Two,  cha rges were  brought  and then they asked 
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fo r  documents .   A se t t lement  o f fe r  was made wh ich  as  I  

unders tand the i r  ev idence they re jec ted ,  they were  no t  

in te res ted  in  i t .   A t  some s tage,  I  cannot  remember  what  

s tage,  a  med ia t ion  proposa l  was made they say,  and they  

say a l l  o f  th is  comes f rom the  Employer,  no t  f rom them.   

 You know,  the  se t t lement  o f fe r  comes f rom the  

Employer.   The  media t ion  proposa l  comes f rom the  

Employer.   They  say th roughout  we a re  say ing  b r ing  the  

d isc ip l ina ry  hear ing .   So are  you ab le  to  say tha t  i s  no t ,  

tha t  was not  the i r  a t t i tude or  a re  you on ly  ab le  to  say you  10 

are  no t  aware  tha t  tha t  was the i r  a t t i tude?  

MR MANTSHA:   Wel l ,  Cha i rperson w i th  respect ,  a  lo t  o f  i t  

w i l l  be  rhe tor ica l .   We are  in  a  p ro fess ion  tha t  every  day  

we meet  peop le .   I r respect ive  o f  the  a l legat ions bu t  then 

they main ta in  ce r ta in  pos i t ions ,  and probab ly  some t ime to 

f igh t  i t  on ,  wh i le  they know very  we l l  tha t  I  see we are  

spend ing  a  lo t  o f  t ime on th is  i ssue,  bu t  Cha i rperson,  we 

s i t  w i th  ob jec t i ve  fac ts  be fore  us .  

 I  th ink  w i th  respect  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Hang on one  second,  I  am go ing  to  20 

in te r rup t  you.   You have made the  po in t  about  the  f ina l  

repor t .   I  guess i t  i s  o f  the  Dentons,  bu t  I  am jus t  want ing  

to  es tab l i sh  whe ther  w i th  regard  to  what  they sa id  was 

the i r  a t t i tude,  whether  you are  ab le  to  say i t  i s  no t  t rue ,  

tha t  was not  the i r  a t t i tude or  you  say i t  i s  t rue ,  tha t  was 
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the i r  a t t i tude or  you say I  ac tua l l y  do  no t  know whether  i t  

was the i r  a t t i tude  or  no t .   

MR MANTSHA:   Wel l ,  f i rs t l y  I  was not  par t  o f  the 

d iscuss ions be tween our  lawyers  and the i r  lawyers .   So 

whethe r  they were  say ing  br ing  i t  on  o r  no t ,  bu t  what  I  am 

say ing  w i th  respect  Cha i rperson,  fo r  me in  the  pro fess ion  

tha t  we are  in ,  tha t  comple te ly  means noth ing .   

 So whether  they sa id  br ing  i t  on  or  no t  b r ing  i t  

on ,  bu t  i t  does not  address the  ser ious v io la t ion .   I t  does 

not  mean tha t  the  a l legat ions aga ins t  them,  desp i te  o f  the  10 

brave face  they were  t ry ing  to  pu t ,  were  no t  s t rong and 

va l id  a l legat ions aga ins t  them.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Jus t  one aspec t  tha t  I  do  no t  want  to  

fo rge t  to  ra ise  w i th  you.   Do you  know whethe r  Dentons  

ac tua l l y  in te rv iewed them and got  the i r  vers ion ,  the i r  s ide  

o f  the  s to ry  be fore  prepar ing  the i r  f ina l  repor t?  

MR MANTSHA:   Wi th  respect  Cha i rpe rson,  I  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   You have no knowledge?  

MR MANTSHA:   I  have no i dea because i t  seems f rom the  

ev idence before  th is  Commiss ion ,  tha t  these repor ts  have 20 

been f ina l i zed fa i r l y  a f te r  my depar tu re .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR MANTSHA:   And a f te r  the  depar tu re  o f  my board .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR MANTSHA:   So  these repor ts  a re  serv ing  I  th ink  in  the  
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cur ren t .   I  rea l l y  do  no t  know.  

CHAIRPERSON:   O f  course  you wou ld  agree,  wou ld  you  

not ,  tha t  i f  and I  say  i f  because  I  am a lso  no t  sure .   I f  

Dentons repor t  comple ted  the i r  repor t  w i thout  in te rv iewing 

these Employees,  then the i r  repor t  wou ld  no t  ca r ry  the  k ind  

o f  we igh t  tha t  one wou ld  have a t tached to  i t ,  i f  they  had 

in te rv iewed and got  the i r  s ide  o f  the  s to ry.  

MR MANTSHA:   Wel l ,  w i th  respect  Cha i rperson,  the  

Commiss ion  led  ev idence o f  Mr  Sad ik  on  those issues,  and 

I  have got  a  t ranscr ip t  he re  w i th  me.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR MANTSHA:   Bu t  what  I  do  no t  see,  I  do  no t  see tha t  

quest ion  Cha i rperson,  tha t  the  Cha i rperson is  ra i s ing  now.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes .   

MR MANTSHA:   How good is  the  repor t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Maybe i t  i s  because o f  how you are  

present ing  your  ev idence.    

MR MANTSHA:   Yes,  and Cha i rpe rson w i th  respect  I  th ink  

tha t  quest ion  i s  be ing  asked to  a  wrong person,  w i th  

respect .   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  ja .   

MR MANTSHA:   I  have made  cop ies  o f  the  var ious 

t ranscr ip ts  o f  ev idence.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

MR MANTSHA:   And tha t  ev idence is  c lea r.   There  was 
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no th ing  tha t  s topped the  Commiss ion  to  ac tua l l y  ra ise  tha t  

quest ion  w i th  you .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

MR MANTSHA:   Bu t  my unders tand ing  when I  read the  

ev idence,  the  Commiss ion  p laced cer ta in  repor ts  to  them,  

and those mat te rs  were  no t  d isputed and the  quest ions 

wh ich  a re  be ing  asked to  me,  were  no t  asked.   I  th ink  i t  i s  

un fa i r  tha t  I  can answer  someth ing  tha t  has happened a f te r  

my depar tu re ,  bu t  the  records  are  here  and these are  the  

records  o f  the  Commiss ion ,  and th is  i s  the  ev idence tha t  10 

the  Commiss ion  has p laced.   

 What  comes out  o f  i t ,  i s  no t  fo r  me to  say 

Cha i rperson.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Mr  Kennedy?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Cha i r,  may I  jus t  ass i s t?   

In  fac t  the  ev idence o f  Mr  Sa loo jee  and Mr  Nonh lonh lo  i s  

tha t  they were  a t  one s tage in te rv iewed by  Dentons.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh,  okay.   Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Bu t  what  i s  c lear  i s  tha t  there  was no 

d isc ip l ina ry  inqu i ry.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   A f te r  wh ich  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  tha t  i s  ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   On wh ich  the  w i tness  can be c ross-

examined.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   No,  tha t  i s  f ine ,  ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   A l r igh t ,  thank you.   Mr  Mantsha ,  may I  

now take you to  page 405?   

CHAIRPERSON:   What  page?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   405.   Th is  i s  another  le t te r  f rom Ms 

Wale le  to  Mr  Pa te l  and I  w i l l  no t  take  you th rough the  

who le  o f  i t ,  bu t  she quotes  a  newspaper  a r t i c l e ,  wh ich  

quotes  you as  hav ing  sa id  someth ing  be fore  pa r l iament ,  a  

par l iamentary  commi t tee ,  se lec t  commi t tee  on  pub l i c  

en terpr i ses  and communica t ion .  10 

 You were  quoted in  the  med ia ,  say ing  these  

o f f i c ia ls  re fe r r i ng  to  the  execut ives  were  in  b reach  o f  the  

law and they fa i led  to  observe  the  lega l  requ i rements  o f  

the  PFMA.   D id  you in  fac t  say  tha t  to  the  pa r l iamenta ry  

commi t tee?   

MR MANTSHA:   I  m igh t  have sa id  tha t ,  cor rec t .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   Now what  she compla ins  about ,  

i s  f i rs t l y  tha t  you found them gu i l t y  even before  a  

d isc ip l ina ry  inqu i ry  i s  be ing  he ld  and second ly  tha t  there  

has been a  de lay.   The top  o f  page 406,  she says 20 

paragraph 2 :  

  “Essent ia l l y  our  c l ien ts  have a l ready been  

found gu i l t y  by  the  Employer  and as  prev ious ly  

a l luded to ,  had imputed to  the  v iew he ld  by  our  

c l ien ts  tha t  there  was a  concer ted  e f fo r t  by  
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your  c l ien ts  t o  te rm inate  our  c l ien t ’s  

employment .   Your  c l ien t  by  so  do ing  have  

pronounced upon  and have conc luded tha t  our  

c l ien ts  a re  gu i l t y  be fore  even hav ing  regard  to  

the i r  r igh ts  and fa i rness. ”  

 I s  tha t  c r i t i c i sm not  a  jus t i f ied  c r i t i c i sm in  your  

v iew?  

MR MANTSHA:   No,  no t  rea l l y  Cha i rperson.   Aga in ,  i t  i s  

one paragraph.   When you go to  par l iament ,  there  are  

presenta t ion  tha t  you,  you do not  jus t  speak to  pa r l iament .   10 

A presenta t ion  tha t  you speak on,  tha t  you c i r cu la te  to  

members  o f  par l i ament .   

 So jus t  p ick  one  l ine  l i ke  th is  and say th is  i s  

what  the  newspaper  repor ted ,  i s  no t  say ing  th is  i s  what  

your  c l ien t ’s  p resenta t ion  s ta ted .   So i t  i s  rea l l y  no t  fo r  me  

to  answer  what  newspaper  have wr i t ten .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes,  bu t  Mr  Mantsha you have 

accepted,  you have admi t ted  tha t  you may have sa id  th is ,  

and the re  has been no rep l y  f rom Mr  Pate l  o r  f rom your  

o f f i ce  or  anybody  e lse  tha t  we are  aware  o f ,  tha t  d isputes  20 

tha t  you in  fac t  sa id  tha t  to  pa r l iament ,  and you accepted 

you may have sa id  i t .   

MR MANTSHA:   No . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  take  your  po in t  comple te l y  tha t  th is  

i s  one sentence taken out  o f  a  lengthy  address and so  to  
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be  fa i r  to  you,  there  may be o ther  s ta tements  tha t  you may 

have made,  bu t  i t  does seem tha t  r igh t  f rom the  23 r d  o f  

September  2015  where  you be l i eved Ben a l ready before  

they had even been suspended,  there  was more  than 

enough ev idence to  f i re  them on the  spot ,  as  you pu t  i t .   

 Here ,  months  la te r  you are  te l l i ng  par l iament  

these execut ives  have breached the  law and have  

breached the  PFMA.   Now is  i t  no t  appropr ia te  ra ther  to  te l l  

par l iament  there  are  a l legat ions  tha t  they may  have 

breached the  l aw,  and may be i n  b reach o f  the  PFMA,  and 10 

there fo re  we had a  d isc ip l ina ry  inqu i ry.   

 I t  i s  be ing  convened.  

MR MANTSHA:   Wi th  respect  Cha i rperson,  I  do  no t  th ink  

we must  ge t  in to  a  s ta tement  wh ich  is  a l leged ly  sa id  by  the  

newspaper.   So I  make presenta t ion  to  par l iament ,  in  the  

pro fess ion  where  I  p rac t ice .   We speak o f  a l legat ions.   So 

to  then say I  sa id  th is  s ta tement  as  i t  i s ,  there  a re  no  bas i s  

to  suggest  tha t .   

 To  take  th is  s ta tement  as  a  s ta tement  o f  fac ts ,  

w i thout  p roduc ing  the  presenta t i on  wh ich  was g iven in  20 

par l iament ,  in  my  f rame we speak o f  a l legat ions.   Sure l y  I  

wou ld  have ind ica ted  the  a l legat ions aga ins t  these  

Employees is  one ,  two,  th ree ,  four,  f i ve .   

 I  am qu i te  consc ious o f  tha t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now you seem to  be  d isput ing  tha t  
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you  d id  say to  par l iament  they were  gu i l t y  o f  b reaches o f  

the  law and the  PFMA.  

MR MANTSHA:   No,  w i th  respect  Cha i rperson,  w i th  respect  

the  way th i s  s ta tement  i s  worded,  tha t  i s  what  I  am say ing .   

Th is  s ta tement  a l leged ly  speaks f rom the  newspaper.   I  am 

say ing  the  p resenta t ion  was made  to  par l iament .   I t  was in  

a  presenta t ion  fo rm.   

 Of  course  I  do  no t  remember  a l l  the  s ta tements  

tha t  I  have named to  par l iament ,  because we presented.   

So i f  Mr  Kennedy was present ing  me wi th  a  document  10 

where  we s ta ted  th is ,  then I  wou ld  appropr ia te l y  responded 

to  h im.  

 But  I  cannot  respond to  th is  a l leged newspaper  

a r t i c le  tha t  I  have  sa id  th is  and tha t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  unders tand.   There  i s  no  ev idence 

though tha t  any rep ly  was rece ived f rom Mr  Pate l  a t  CDH 

or  yourse l f ,  tha t  you have been misquoted or  tha t  i f  one 

looked a t  the  proper  contex t ,  the  quota t ion  was mis lead ing .   

MR MANTSHA:   Wi th  respect  Cha i rperson,  I  was never  

par t y  to  th is  s ta tement .   20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay.  

MR MANTSHA:   I  was never  even asked Cha i r,  can you  

comment .   A l leged ly  you made th is  s ta tement .   I  was never  

consu l ted  on  i t .   So  I  am see ing  th is  as  we a re  p roceed ing  

w i th  every th ing .   So i t  i s  no t  someth ing  tha t  I  was asked to  
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dea l  w i th .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   A l r igh t ,  may I  cont inue w i th  a  f ew las t  

po in ts  in  the  le t te r,  page 406.   Paragraph 4 ,  Ms  Wale le  

says:  

 “Your  c l ien t ’s  conduct  towards my c l ien t  . . . ”  

 That  i s  par t i cu la r ly  you r  s ta tement  to  par l iament  

tha t  they a l lege  you made i s  regard ,  and tha t  be ing  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MANTSHA:   Wi th  respect  Cha i r,  can I  be  pro tec ted?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   10 

MR MANTSHA:   I  th ink  i t  i s  wrong fo r  Mr  Kennedy to  say  

my s ta tement .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR MANTSHA:   I  th ink  tha t  i s  ac tua l l y  the re  a re  no  bas is  

to  make tha t  s ta tement .   I t  i s  co r rec t  to  say you a l leged 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  thought  I  sa id  tha t .   

MR MANTSHA:   Which  I  have den ied .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   I  thought  I  have sa id  tha t ,  bu t  i f  

I  d id  no t ,  I  apo log ise .   20 

MR MANTSHA:   Thank you.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   The s ta tement  tha t  was a t t r ibu ted  to  

you,  i s  then used as  a  bas i s  fo r  the i r  a l legat ion  in  

parag raph 4 ,  and  p lease unders tand some o f  the  remarks  

you made ear l ie r  suggest  pe rhaps a  m isunders tand ing  o f  
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my ro le .   

 I  am here  to  pu t  the  vers ion  o f  Sa loo jee  and  

Nonh lonh lo ,  and  Ms A f r i ca  so  tha t  the  Cha i rpe rson  

u l t imate ly  can come to  a  v iew i f  the ,  whether  the  issue has  

to  be  dec ided or  no t  fo r  purposes  o f  th is  Commiss ion  and 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MANTSHA:   I  rea l l y  apprec ia te  Cha i rperson.   I  rea l l y  

apprec ia te  your  ro le .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Jus t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MANTSHA:   Thank you ve ry  much.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Jus t  as  I  have ra ised issues tha t  were  

pu t  in  your  s ta tement  to  o ther  w i tnesses,  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hang on jus t  one second Mr  Kennedy.   I  

see  we are  a t  what ,  e igh t  m inutes  past  n ine .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   I  want  to  check,  f rom what  I  have been  

to ld  I  thought  I  am s i t t ing  tomorrow,  bu t  I  am to ld  tha t  I  

may have been m is taken.    

ADV KENNEDY SC:   You have?  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  may have been mis taken to  th ink  I  am 20 

s i t t ing  tomor row.   Now I  am jus t  check ing  in  the  l igh t  o f  the 

t ime,  where  we a re  and o f  cou rse  I  am ab le  to  p roceed,  bu t  

I  want  to  check whether  by  any chance we a re  a l l  ava i lab le  

tomorrow,  in  wh ich  case i f  tha t  i s  the  case we can exp lore  

whethe r  we shou ld  ad journ  now,  because we are  a l l  
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ava i lab le  tomorrow,  bu t  obv ious ly  i f  we are  no t  a l l  ava i lab le  

tomorrow,  tha t  then we can dec ide  whethe r,  how fa r  we go 

f rom now.    

 Maybe we go another  30  m inutes ,  s top  a t  ha l f  

past  n ine  and then i f  we are  no t  done,  a r range to  cont inue 

one o f  the  even ings aga in .   What  i s  your  s i tua t ion  Mr 

Kennedy?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Cha i r,  I  be l ieve  I  w i l l  j us t  have to  

check my d ia ry  bu t  I  be l ieve  tha t  I  shou ld  be  ab le  to  re -

ar range th ings,  to  make myse l f  ava i lab le .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  do  no t  know about  my learned  

f r iends.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr  C i l l i e rs?  

ADV CILLIERS:   May I  maybe suggest  tha t  Mr  Kennedy  

g ives us  an  i nd i ca t ion  o f  how long he s t i l l  need w i th  the  

w i tness?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV CILLIERS:   Maybe tha t  shou ld  be  the  s ta r t ing  po in t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  what  is  your  assessment  Mr  20 

Kennedy?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Cha i rperson,  lawyers  are  a lways 

cr i t i c i zed fo r  mak ing  es t imates  and I  have been qu i te  

op t im is t i c  tha t  we cou ld  f in ish  th is  w i tness a t  leas t  by  ten 

o ’c lock  ton igh t .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Bu t  I  am a f ra id  tha t  op t im ism has not  

borne f ru i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And I  th ink  in  the  na tu re ,  I  have not  

in te r rup ted  the  w i tness when he has ra ther  tendered to  go  

in to  rec ip roca l  de ta i l  o f ten  in  response to  very  l im i ted  

quest ions,  because obv ious l y  he  must  have a  chance to 

have h i s  fu l l  say.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Bu t  on  tha t  bas i s  I  suspect  p robab ly  

another  fou r  hours .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  I  th ink  i f  the  t ime tha t  we s t i l l  need  

in  o rde r  to  f in ish  Mr  Mantsha ’s  ev idence was a  shor t  t ime.   

L ike  30  minutes  maybe we might  have cons idered whethe r  

to  jus t  p roceed and f in ish ,  bu t  f rom what  Mr  Kennedy says,  

we need much more  than tha t .   

 That  be ing  the  case,  i t  may be tha t  there  is  no  

war ran t  fo r  us  to  p roceed i f  we are  no t  go ing  to  f in ish  

today anyway.   Maybe we shou ld  look a t  f ind ing  anothe r,  20 

e i ther  f ind ing  another  even ing  or  i f  tomorrow might  work  

w i th  everybody be ing  ava i lab le ,  we can exp lore  tomorrow.  

 Mr  C i l l i e rs?  

ADV CILLIERS:   May I  suggest  tha t  you maybe ad journ  fo r  

a  coup le  o f  m inu tes  tha t  I  jus t  take  ins t ruc t ions f rom my 



04 MARCH 2021 – DAY 355 
 

Page 361 of 361 
 

a t to rney and f ind  ou t  what  the i r  ava i lab i l i t y  i s .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV CILLIERS:   Bu t  my c l ien t  d id  ind ica te  tha t  he  may  

have d i f f i cu l t y  in  fu tu re ,  because he has some 

commi tments .   I  have a  d i f f i cu l t y  w i th  tomorrow.   I  am in  

cour t  tomorrow.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh,  you a re  no t  ava i lab le  tomorrow.  

MR CILLIERS SC:   So  I  un for tunate ly  am not  ava i lab le  

tomorrow dur ing  the  course  o f  the  day.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.    10 

MR CILLIERS SC:   Can I  ask  tha t  you maybe or  suggest  

tha t  we maybe jus t  take  the  th ree ,  four  m inute  ad journment  

and then I  can take  i t  up  w i th  h im.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  okay.   No,  le t  us  do  tha t .   We wi l l  

take  a  few minutes  ad journment  and then . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Shou ld  we approach you in  chambers  

Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes  you can approach  me in  

chambers ,  ja .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   In  chambers .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  we ad journ .    

REGISTRAR:   Al l  r i se .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS SINE DIE  


